SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
BOARD OF EDUCATION
REGULAR BOARD MEETING

Wednesday, March 22, 2017
Greenfield High School - Library
225 S. El Camino Real
Greenfield, CA 93927

VISION

South Monterey County Joint Union High School District is a progressive academic learning community that is committed to

life-long educational success
MISSION

South Monterey County Joint Union High School District inspires and empowers all students with the knowledge and skills

necessary to achieve their full potential to succeed as responsible and productive citizens

BOARD OF EDUCATION SUPERINTENDENT
Paulette Bumbalough - President Daniel Moirao, Ed.D.
David Gaboni - Clerk
Joe Santibanez - Member STUDENT BOARD MEMBER
Paul Dake — Member Daniela Cervantes - GHS
Leslie Girard - Member Dusty Miller - KCHS
OPEN SESSION: 5:30 PM
A. CALL TO ORDER
B. PUBLIC COMMENT

The public may address the Board concerning items that are scheduled for discussion during closed session by
completing the Request to be Heard Form provided on the table at the entrance to the meeting room and
submitting the card to the Executive Assistant prior to the Board adjourning to closed session.

El publico puede dirigirse a la Mesa Directiva de Educacién con respecto a asuntos que estan enlistados para
dialogar durante la sesion a puertas cerrada completando asi la forma que se le da a la comunidad para poder
hablar durante la sesion, esta forma se encuentra en la entrada de la junta donde se lleva acabo la sesion 'y
entregando esta tarjeta a la Secretaria de el Superintendente antes de que la Mesa Directiva de Educacion de por
terminada la junta.

CLOSED SESSION: 5:35 PM

A.
B.
C.

Public Employment
Employee Discipline/Dismissal/Release/Complaint
Negotiations with Employee Organizations and Litigation Settlements

D. Threatened/Potential Litigation

E.

Superintendent Evaluation Review

OPEN SESSION: 6:30 PM

A.

B
C.
D

txd

CALL TO ORDER

FLAG SALUTE

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

. REPORT OF CLOSED SESSION ACTIONS

STUDENT BOARD MEMBER REPORT




Page 2

Agenda
March 22, 2017
F. PRESENTATION
1. Greenfield High School Students
2. Dale Scott, President, Dale Scott & Company
G. BOARD MEMBERS COMMENT
H. PUBLIC COMMENT: Unless otherwise determined by the Board/Superintendent, each person is limited to 3
(three) minutes. If a large number wish to speak on a specific item, there is a limit of 20 minutes total input on
an item. For matters that are not listed on the agenda, the Board may refer the matter to the Superintendent or
designee, or take it under advisement, but shall not take action at that time except as allowed by law.
El piiblico puede dirigirse a la Mesa Directiva de Educacion con respecto a asuntos generales o a asuntos
especificados en la agenda. La persona que quiera hablar debe de pedir la forma que se le da a la comunidad
pidiendo permiso antes de la junta, indicando si se desea hacer algiin comentario sobre un tema dela
agenda o algiin otro asunto y presentarlo a la Secretaria de el Superintendente. Esta es una oportunidad de
dirigirse a la Mesa Directiva de Educacion cuando un asunto se esté llevando acabo. A menos que se determine
de otra manera por el Superintendente, cada persona tiene un mdximo de 3 minutos para hablar. Se hay
muchas personas que quieran hablar sobre un asunto especifico entonces habrd un limite de 20 minutos en total
para cada asunto. Para asuntos que no estén enlistados en la agenda, La Mesa Directiva podrd referir ese
asunto al Superintendente o su designado o poner ese asunto en sobre aviso, pero no se tomara ninguna accion
en ese momento excepto cuando la ley lo permita.
I. REPORT FROM SUPERINTENDENT
J.  EMPLOYEE ORGANIZATIONS
K. CONSENT AGENDA
1. Approval of Minutes: February 28,2017, March 7, 2017, and March 14, 2017 (Pages 1-12)
2. Approval of Personnel Report Dated March 22, 2017 (Claudia Arellano, Sr. Director Human Resources)
Resources)
3. Approval of Williams Third Quarterly Report (Claudia Arellano, Sr. Director Human Resources) (Pages
13-14)
4. Approval of Contracts: (Pages 15-28)
1. Approval of Agreement with DMC Property Restoration for Completion of Portola-Butler Shade
Structure (Sherrie S. Castellanos, CBO) (Pages 17-24)
2. Approval of Contract with Deborah Bell (Sherrie S. Castellanos, CBO) (Pages 25-28)
L. CONSENT ITEMS REMOVED FOR COMMENT/QUESTIONS
M. INFORMATION ITEMS
1. Curriculum and Instruction Update (Diana Jimenez, Director of Educational Services)
2. Unification Update (Daniel Moirao, Ed.D., Superintendent)
3. Bond Obligation Program (Daniel Moirao, Ed.D., Superintendent) (Page 29)
4. Overnight GEAR UP Trip for KCHS Student to Visit CSU Campuses on April 12 and April 13,2017
(Hector Mandujano, College Facilitator, UC Santa Cruz Educational Partnership Center) (Page 30)
N. ACTION ITEMS

Approval of Second Interim Budget Revision Reporting (Sherrie S. Castellanos, CBO) (Pages 31-162)
Approval of Proposal for Use of Prop 39 Funds (Sherrie S. Castellanos, CBO) (Pages 163-166)

Approval of Consolidated Application Spring Submission (Sherrie S. Castellanos, CBO) (Pages 167-176)
Approval of Purchase of 2017 Chevrolet Silverado (Sherrie S. Castellanos, CBO) (Page 177)
Immigration Forum (Daniel Moirao, Ed.D., Superintendent) (Page 178)

Board Policies — Second Reading (Daniel Moirao, Ed.D., Superintendent) (Pages 179-260)

R




Page 3
Agenda
" March 22,2017

BP 3470 — Debt Issuance and Management (new)

BP 5030 — Student Wellness (revised)

AR 5111.1 — Criteria for Residency (revised)

BP 5116.2 — Involuntary Student Transfers (revised)

BP 5141.21 — Administering Medication and Monitoring Health Conditions (new)
AR 5141.21 — Administering Medication and Monitoring Health Conditions (new)
BP 6146.1 — High School Graduation Requirements (revised)

BP 6154 — Homework/Makeup Work (revised)

BP 6164.6 — Identification and Education Under Section 504 (revised)

AR 6164.6 — Identification and Education Under Section 504 (revised)

BP 6173 — Education for Homeless Children (revised)

AR 6173.3 — Education for Juvenile Court School Students (revised)

BB 9240 — Board Training (new)

BB 9323 — Meeting Conduct (revised)

O. PROMOTING DISTRICT

P. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS/MEETING DATES
April 4, 2017 — Study Session — King City
April 26, 2017 — Regular Board Meeting — King City
May 2, 2017 — Study Session — King City
May 24, 2017 — Regular Board Meeting — Greenfield High School
June 6, 2017 — Study Session — King City
June 28, 2017 — Regular Board Meeting — King City
July 5, 2017 — Study Session — King City (if needed)
July 26, 2017 — Regular Board Meeting — Greenfield High School (if needed)
August 1, 2017 — Study Session — King City
August 23, 2017 — Regular Board Meeting — King City
September 5, 2017 — Study Session — King City
September 27, 2017 — Regular Board Meeting — Greenfield High School
October 3, 2017 — Study Session - King City
October 25, 2017 — Regular Board Meeting — King City
November 7, 2017 — Study Session — King City
November 15, 2017 — Regular Board Meeting — Greenfield High School
December 5, 2017 — Study Session — King City
December 13, 2017 — Regular Board Meeting — King City

Q. ADJOURNMENT (TO CLOSED SESSION) (if required)

R. SIGNING OF PAPERS



SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
BOARD OF EDUCATION
'REGULAR BOARD MEETING

Tuesday, February 28, 2017

Minutes

BOARD OF EDUCATION SUPERINTENDENT
Paulette Bumbalough — President — Present Daniel Moirao, Ed.D.- Present
David Gaboni — Clerk — Present
Joe Santibanez — Member — Present STUDENT BOARD MEMBER
Paul Dake — Member - Present Daniela Cervantes - GHS
Leslie Girard — Member - Present Dusty Miller — KCHS - Present
OPEN SESSION:

Call to Order

Paulette Bumbalough called the meeting to order at 5:30 PM.

Public Comment _ _ A
There were not any comments from the public. The meeting was recessed to closed session.

CLOSED SESSION:
A. Public Employment
B. Employee Discipline/Dismissal/Release/Complaint
C. Negotiations with Employee Organizations and Litigation Settlements
D. Threatened/Potential Litigation
E. Student Matters — Transfer/Discipline
Recommendation to Expel Student #02:16/17

OPEN SESSION:
Call to Order
Paulette Bumbablough called the meeting to order at 6:30 P.M.

Flag Salute
Paulette Bumbalough led in the flag salute.

Report of Closed Session Actions

Paulette Bumbalough said she would like to make a change in the format of the agenda. She would like to see the
student presenter after the student board member report. She requested this change be applied on the next regular
board meeting agenda.

Ms. Bumbalough reported the acceptance of the Personal Report with the date revision.

Dr. Moirao said the Personnel Report should be reported as, for a regular classified employee there was a date change
from February 28 to March 1.

Ms. Bumbalough reported the écceptance of the Personnel Report with the date chaﬁge for a classified employée from
February 28 to March 1.

Paulette Bumbalough also reported the approval of the stipulated agreement for student 300017.
Dr. Moirao said it should be reported out as the approval of the stipulated agreement for student #02:16/17.

Paulette Bumbalough said the Board approved the stipulated agreement for student #02:16/17.




Page 2
Minutes
February 28, 2017

Student Board Member Report

Dusty Miller said FFA celebrated National FFA Week and provided a staff sausage appreciation luncheon on
February 23. There was a good turnout for the luncheon and staff appreciated the recognition. Last weekend girls
basketball competed in the CCS playoffs. They are currently planning for the upcoming ASB awards ceremony.
Prom fundraisers have started.

Paul Dake asked if the prom was taking place at the Gardens in Gilroy. Dusty responded yes.

PRESENTATION
King City High School Student
Christian Rose introduced himself as a junior at King City High School. He moved to the area in 2010 and lives at
Fort Hunter Liggett. Both an older brother and sister attend King City High School. He said they have all been
treated with kindness, and everyone has been very friendly and helpful to them. The district has made it easy for them
to get to school, bus service is provided. His sister who has graduated has nothing but great things to say about the
high school. He is taking an AP human geography class; the school encourages students to do as best they can.

There are other students from Fort Hunter Liggett who attend King City High School, everyone has been very helpful |
and accepting of them. His brother is attending San Diego State, his sister CSUMB and he plans on attend a naval
academy.

Christian said he is aware when the family first moved to Fort Hunter Liggett a lot of the students were attending
school in Paso Robles, but now all of the students are attending King City High School. The family has been
promoting the high school to the other students.

Janet Matos said Christian is a spoke person promoting King City High School.
Board Members Comment

Leslie Girard said she has been pre-occupied with family issues and apologized for not being available for school and
district activities.

Paul Dake said he barbequed for the Greenfield High School FFA sausage fundraiser. It was a very successful event,
700 sausages were sold.

Joe Santibanez said he enjoyed Christian’s presentation this evening. It is always good to hear the students saying
good things about our schools. He added he attends athletic events at Greenfield High School and the referees are
always very complimentary of our students. He complimented the staff and administration for instilling this to
students.

David Gaboni said he attended the MCSBA meeting on February 23. He said he did some bragging about the district
being recognized as being the only school in 22 district to receive the AP Honor Roll Award. He was very pleased to
receive the information that King City High School received a 6-year accreditation. The MCSBA committee is
currently organizing the annual dinner. March 9 is the next series of MCSBA training on the Nuts and Bolts of LCFF
and LCAP.

April 27 is the annual dinner meeting,

He said Dr. Patel was nominated at the president of MCSBA and he (David) was recommended to be the vice
president.

Paulette Bumbalough thanked Dr. Moirao and administration for answering the numerous questions the Board
directed to them for clarification of information which was in the board packet.

Public Comment
There were not any comments from the public.



Page 3
Minutes

February 28, 2017

Report from Superintendent

Dr. Moirao said the district has received information from the county and the recent resolution to consolidate elections
to even years beginning in 2018. The Monterey County Board of Supervisors approved the change from the odd
voting years to even.

Portola Butler had their WASC review a few weeks ago. They met with Dr. James on Sunday, February 12 in the
afternoon. They visited the campus on Monday and left that afternoon due to the size of the campus. The WASC
chair has sent the preliminary findings and has made some positive suggestions to move the school forward. We will
not know the terms of the accreditation until the commission has met.

Dr. Moirao said he is working with both the elementary districts in King City and Greenfield as well as the cities
regarding an MOU for a Probation Officer at each campus. He said he would like to have 60% of the Probation
Officer time for the high school district and 40% for the elementary districts.

Dr. Moirao said he attended a DELAC meeting recently, at the district office, in which a parent was in attendance.
The parent said he had keep his child home on “A Day without Immigrants”. The parent said he was sorry he advised
his child to stay home, he knows the importance for students to be in school every day and knew the school was a safe
place for his child. The parent did express fear for himself,

Dr. Moirao said the Equity Institute meetings have started again, today they had walk throughs at each site.
There will be a board study session after the superintendent search on the Equity Institute. Dr. Moirao said he -
strongly feels the reason for the achievement gap is because of equity.

He reminded the Board there would be a special closed board meeting for the superintendent applicants screening and
personnel matter as well as short open session on a couple of other items including the calendar and approving a
resolution for bumping rights.

Dr. Moirao displayed the 2017 AP Honors plaque. It will be displayed in the lobby of the district office. He added
each site has also order something for their location. Janet Matos ordered a banner which has been placed on the
fence by the Broadway parking lot. Mr. Lynch ordered a plaque for his site.

Dr. Moirao distributed a copy of the Ed Cal posting for the superintendent search.

This morning he met with the Fort Hunter Liggett new commander and PR staff member. We have been working
very hard with Fort Hunter Liggett to improve our reputation with them.

Dr. Moirao reminded the Board of the MCSBA dinner and organizational meeting on April 27.

Paulette Bumbalough suggested Dr. Moirao attend a King City and Greenfield City Council meeting to make them
aware of the AP Honors Roll plaque and the announcement of King City High School 6 year WASC accreditation.

Approval of Agenda
Motion made by David Gaboni and seconded by Paul Dake to approve the agenda.

All Board members said Aye.

Employee Organizations
There were not any comments from the employee organizations.

Consent Agenda
1. Approval of Minutes: January 25,2017, January 31, 2017, and February 16, 2017

2. Approval of Accounts Payable Warrants — October through December 2016
3. Approval of Purchase Orders — October through December 2016

B



Page 4
Minutes
" February 28, 2017

4. Approval of Contracts:

Approval of Proposal for DFE & Associates, Inc. — Required DSA Inspection

- Approval of Proposal for Tope’s Tree Service Inc.

Approval of Agreement for Special Services with School Services of California through MCOE
Approval of Sales Quote from Dynamic Digital Displays — Marquee at Greenfield High School
- Approval of Proposal from ASAP Signs & Printing — Marquee at Greenfield High School

- Approval of Overnight Trip for Migrant Students to Visit Microsoft in Mountain View

N

The Board members did not have any questions on items on the consent agenda.
Motion made by Paul Dake and seconded by Joe Santibanez to approve the consent agenda.
All Board members said Aye.

Consent Items Removed for Comment/Questions
There were not any items from the consent agenda removed for comments.

INFORMATION ITEMS
2015-2016 Financial Audit Report
Mr. Michael Ash, from Christy White, said the district received approval from the County Office of Education to
submit the audit report late. Mr. Ash said he would give a brief overview of their findings. He added they visit the
district twice a year to perform the audit. They review for district and site state compliance.

Mr. Ash said in the fall the district requested an extension for the audit to February 2017.

Mr. Ash said the auditor’s responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on their audit. An
audit involves preforming procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements.

Page 74 is the start of the summary of the auditor’s report. When they first started auditing the district there were 30
to 40 findings. The district has made a great turnaround, there were only 5 findings this year and the expectation is
that amount will be reduced to zero soon.

The district should maintain a complete capital asset listing which has not been maintained. The auditors were unable
to receive adequate documentation to support the capital asset listing due to lack of policies and procedures for capital
assets. The auditors recommended the district obtain a complete valuation for its capital assets and establish and
implement written policies, procedures, and implement written policies and procedures for recording and tracking of
capital assets as well as the depreciation.

There were findings of insufficient controls over student body activities for cash receipts and current year ASB
activities at Greenfield High School ASB. All sales activities, supporting documents should be prepared and retained
to reconcile the amount of sales or collections to the amount deposited. The district has responded they will
investigate the discrepancies and provide proper training to site staff on the receipt funds and oversee the
reconciliation process.

During the audit a testing of the district’s bank accounts and reconciliations it was noted that the district’s cash with
fiscal agent did not reconcile from the district’s general ledger. The district will work with the county to obtain cash
reconciliations so that we can properly review and maintain cash with fiscal agent.

A high school district should expend a minimum of 50% of the district’s current expenses of education towards
salaries of classroom teachers, the district only spent 48.98%. The recommendation is for the district to monitor its
expenses toward classroom teachers. The district has filed a waiver with the county and from now on will monitor to
make sure that the appropriate percentage is spent.



. Page 5
Minutes

February 28, 2017

The auditors tested a representative sample of the 2014-15 SARC’s postings for Portola-Butler. The FIT reported the
interior evaluation as fair while the SARC reported good. The FIT report on the structural category was fair while the
SARC indicated good. It was discovered this as a human error. The district will do a better job of double checking
the information prior to finalizing the SARC.

Paulette Bumbalough said the ASB findings keep coming up. Mr. Ash said it is not unusual to have these findings,
but they may be for different reasons. As long as it is not the same issue there should not be a concern. Paulette
Bumbalough said the money is handled by non-employees. Mr. Ask added, some schools have their own audit to
eliminate ASB findings.

School Enrollment, Attendance, and Referral Statistics

Dr. Moirao said a question had come up regarding referrals. This is being investigated, it appears in some instances it
was handled in the classroom and in other instances the student was referred to the office. Some families are driving
their students to school late, as a consequence they have to attend Saturday school, receive a letter, if it continues a
second letter, a third letter may result in a court hearing.

Curriculum and Instruction Update
The Spring testing information was distributed. Ms. Jimenez distributed a color chart showing testing for the entire
year, it is also posted on our website. They will be piloting the science test assessment for this year.

Paul Dake asked what areas are being tested in science. Ms. Jimenez said we do not know, and we will not receive
the results from the pilot testing. She added the Special Ed students will be pilot tested as well. The current CELDT
testing will be changing to ELPAC next year. A lot of testing items will not be similar to the CELDT testing.

Paulette Bumbalough said, from her understanding, the new testing encourages students to be more interactive.

Cashflow Summary Report for 2016-2017 - through December 2016

There were not any questions from the Board.

Revenue and Expenditures for 2016/2017
Dr. Moirao reminded the Board the cashflow summary and the revenue and expenditures are being brought forward
quarterly as was agreed upon earlier in the year.

Board Policies — First Reading

BP 3470 — Debt Issuance and Management (new)

BP 5030 — Student Wellness (revised)

AR 5111.1 — Criteria for Residency (revised)

BP 5116.2 — Involuntary Student Transfers (revised)

BP 5141.21 — Administering Medication and Monitoring Health Conditions (new)
AR 5141.21 — Administering Medication and Monitoring Health Conditions (new)
BP 6146.1 — High School Graduation Requirements (revised)

BP 6154 — Homework/Makeup Work (revised) .

BP 6164.6 — Identification and Education Under Section 504 (revised)

AR 6164.6 — Identification and Education Under Section 504 (revised)

BP 6173 — Education for Homeless Children (revised)

AR 6173.3 — Education for Juvenile Court School Students (revised)

BB 9240 — Board Training (new)

BB 9323 — Meeting Conduct (revised)

Paul Dake questioned the number of volunteer hours. He said his daughter had to serve 60 community service hours,
which started in her freshman year in the district she attended. Dr. Moirao said historically the district has required 20
community service hours, they are currently looking at the graduation requirements and will discuss this topic.

-5-



Page 6
Minutes

February 28, 2017

Mr. Dake suggested starting the required hours in the students’ sophomore year rather than the junior year.

Janet Matos said because of sports, leadership, and the workload it could benefit student starting their community
service time in their freshman year.

Paulette Bumbalough said she felt it would be beneficial to have students start their hours in the freshman year, it
would teach students to give back early.

Ms. Matos said in their morning announcement information is given as where students can serve to meet their
community requirement hours.

Mr. Lynch said in the Greenfield News the non-profit organizations publish information on their activities. This
information is posted in the library for students to review for participation to meet their required hour’s.

Leslie Girard said she does like the idea of students starting their community hours earlier, it may inspire them in a
career.

Dr. Moirao said he is hearing from the Board to extend the years when students start their community hours.

David Gaboni said BP 5030 there seems to be a duplicate of information at the bottom of page 220 and the top of page
221.

David Gaboni said he thought it was a good idea to encourage students to ride bikes.

Leslie Girard said on BB 9323 page 292 #5 in the second paragraph it seems to be redundant, the same information is
repeated on the top of page 293.

ACTION ITEMS

Approval of Acceptance of 2015-2016 Financial Audit Report
Motion made by Paul Dake and seconded by Joe Santibanez to approve the acceptance of the 2015-2016 financial
audit report.

The comment was made from where we were and where we are today is quite remarkable. Ms. Bumbalough said the
five areas Mr. Ash brought up as findings seem fairly minor. She thanked Sherrie Castellanos for her prompt
responses to the auditor’s findings.

All Board members said Aye.

Approval to Surplus Items
Motion made by David Gaboni and seconded by Leslie Girard to approve the surplus of items.

David Gaboni noticed the majority of the items are computers. He asked if they would be going to ewaste. Ms.
Jimenez responded yes.

Dr. Moirao said the IT Department has put in a lot of extra time installing new computers.
All Board members said Aye.
Approval of SARC Report from Greenfield High School

Motion made by Leslie Girard and seconded by David Gaboni to approve the SARC report from Greenfield High
School.

Dr. Moirao said the SARC’s are posted annually. Paulette Bumbalough complimented the district for the increase in
the CAASPP test scores.

_6-



Page 7
Minutes

February 28, 2017

David Gaboni said he was pleased to see that 92% of the students are enrolled in UC or CSU courses and went on to
college. He is also pleased to see the decrease in the student dropout rate. The district is below standard on the
dropout rate and above standard on the graduation rate.

All Board members said Aye.

Approval of SARC Report from King City High School
Motion made by Leslie Girard and seconded by Paul Dake to approve the SARC report from King City High School.

Paulette Bumbalough said she was pleased to see the increase in the CAASPP test scores.

David Gaboni said he was pleased to see the facilities rating was good. He was also pleased to see the increase in
English Language Arts. He felt this as a result of teacher collaboration.

All Board members said Aye.
Approval of SARC Report from Portola-Butler Continuation High School

Motion made by Leslie Girard and seconded by Joe Santibanez to approve the SARC report from Portola-Butler High
School.

David Gaboni said he was pleased to see the dropout rate decrease and graduation rate increased.
All Board members said Aye.
Considering Electing a Representative to the 2017 CSBA Delegate Assembly

Motion made by Leslie Girard and seconded by David Gaboni to consider electing a representative to the 2017 CSBA
Delegate Assembly.

Both Paulette Bumbalough and David Gaboni know the candidate, Lilia Cann, and state she is well qualified for the
job.

Leslie amended the motion to include the candidate’s name, Lilia Cann to be considered as the representative to the
2017 CSBA Delegate Assembly.

All Board members said Aye.
Approval of Employment for Brian Drazich on the Basis of a Provisional Internship

Motion made by Paul Dake and seconded by Joe Santibanez to approve the employment for Brian Drazich on the
basis of a provisional internship.

Dr. Moirao said Mr. Drazich e is in the pursuit of his credential. This allows us to hire him and fulfill the requirement
for our credential audit.

All Board members said Aye.

Approval of GHS Aerospace Engineering Course
Motion made by David Gaboni and seconded by Joe Santibanez to approve the GHS Aerospace Engineering Course.

The Board members were impressed with the course.

David Gaboni asked if the teacher would have training. Dr. Moirao said the teacher goes through a two-week intense
training during the summer. The teacher who will be teaching the course was an engineering manager before he
became a teacher. We are looking to expand this course at KCHS as well.



Page 8
Minutes

February 28, 2017

Paul Dake inquired if the training would be covered by the Chevron Grant. The response was yes.

Approval to Change Project Lead The Way Computer Science and Software Engineering (Foundational Course 1)
Into a Two-Year Course: CSE 1 and CSE 2

Motion made by Leslie Girard and seconded by Joe Santibanez to change Project Lead the Way Computer Science
and Software Engineering (Foundational Course 1) into a two-year course: CSE 1 and CSE 2.

Paul Dake asked if this could set up a second pathway. The response was yes. Frank Lynch said he is working with
Hartnell College.

Paulette Bumbalough reminded the Board questions should be directed to Dr. Moirao. He may ask one of his
administrators in the audience to answer the question.

Board Policies — Second Reading

AR 1340 — Access to District Records (revised)

AR 3311 - Bids (revised) _

BP 3311.1 — Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Procedures (new)
AR 3311.1 - Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Procedures (new)
AR 3311.2 — Lease-Leaseback Contracts (new)

AR 3311.3 — Design-Build Contracts (new)

AR 3311.4 — Procurement of Technological Equipment (new)

AR 3543 — Transportation Safety and Emergencies (revised)

BP 4030 — Nondiscrimination in Employment (revised)

AR 4030 — Nondiscrimination in Employment (revised)

BP 41191.11, 4219.11, 4319.11 — Sexual Harassment (revised)

AR 4119.11, 4219.11, 4319.11 — Sexual Harassment (revised)

BB 9320 — Meetings and Notices (revised)

Motion made by David Gaboni and seconded by Leslie Girard to approve the board policies second reading.
All Board members said Aye.

Promoting District

The Board recommended the following items to be promoted: Recipient of the AP District Honor Roll Award, the
improvement on the CAASPP tests at the sites. Dr. Moirao attending the Greenfield and King City Council meetings
to make them aware of great things happening in the district, and suggest Samantha Bengston, from the South County
Newspapers, interview Christian Rose.

Future Agenda Items/Meeting Dates

March 7, 2017 — Study Session — King City

March 22, 2017 — Regular Board Meeting — Greenfield High School
April 4, 2017 — Study Session — King City

April 26, 2017 — Regular Board Meeting — King City

May 2, 2017 — Study Session — King City

May 24, 2017 — Regular Board Meeting — Greenfield High School

June 6, 2017 — Study Session — King City

June 28, 2017 — Regular Board Meeting — King City

July 5, 2017 — Study Session — King City (if needed)

July 26, 2017 — Regular Board Meeting — Greenfield High School (if needed)
August 1, 2017 — Study Session — King City

August 23, 2017 — Regular Board Meeting — King City

September 5, 2017 — Study Session — King City

September 27, 2017 — Regular Board Meeting — Greenfield High School
October 3, 2017 — Study Session - King City

-8-



Page 9
Minutes
February 28, 2017

October 25, 2017 — Regular Board Meeting — King City

November 7, 2017 — Study Session — King City

November 15, 2017 — Regular Board Meeting — Greenfield High School
December 5, 2017 — Study Session — King City

December 13, 2017 — Regular Board Meeting — King City

Signing of Papers
Paulette Bumbalough and Dr. Moirao signed appropriate documents.

Paulette Bumbalough recommend the item signing of papers be listed after adjournment on the agenda.

Adjournment
Paulette Bumbalough adjourned the meeting at 7:50 PM.

Paulette Bumbalough, Board President Date




SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

BOARD OF EDUCATION
Special BOARD MEETING'
Tuesday, March 7, 2017
Minutes
BOARD OF EDUCATION SUPERINTENDENT
Paulette Bumbalough — President - Present Daniel Moirao, Ed.D.- Present

David Gaboni — Clerk — Present
Joe Santibanez — Member — Present
Paul Dake — Member — Present
Leslie Girard — Member — Present

OPEN SESSION: 5:30 PM
Call to Order
Paulette Bumbalough called the meeting to order at 5:30 PM.

Public Comment
There were not any comments from the public. The meeting was recessed to closed session.

CLOSED SESSION:
A. Public Employment
B. Employee Discipline/Dismissal/Release/Complaint
C. Negotiations with Employee Organizations and Litigation Settlements
D. Threatened/Potential Litigation
E. Review of Superintendent Candidate Applicants

OPEN SESSION:
Call to Order
Paulette Bumbalough called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM.

Flag Salute
Paulette Bumbalough led in the flag salute.

Report of Closed Session Actions
Paulette Bumbalough reported the acceptance of the Personnel Report pending approval of action item #2, Resolution
19:16/17.

Public Comment
There were not any comments from the public.

ACTION ITEMS :
The Board returned from closed session to open session at 7:00 PM.

Approval of 2017-2018 School Calendar
Motion made by David Gaboni and seconded by Joe Santibanez to approve the 2017-2018 school calendar.

Dr. Moirao explained one elementary district has the same calendar but another has not approved their calendar.
Leslie Girard noted there should be a correction to 181 school days, not 180. Dr. Moirao stated the error is the fair
week in May, it indicates only 4 days of school that week and it should be five.

All Board member said Aye.
Approval of Resolution 19:16/17 Tie Breaking Criteria Resolution for Same Date of Hire

Motion made by Leslie Girard and seconded by Paul Dake to approve Resolution 19:16/17 Tie Breaking Criteria
Resolution for Same Date of Hire.

-10-



Page 2
Minutes
‘March 7, 2017
Dr. Moirao explained the resolutions.

All Board members said Aye.

ADJOURNMENT (TO CLOSED SESSION) (if required)
Paulette Bumbalough adjourned the meeting to closed session at 7:10 PM.

Report of Closed Session Actions
Paulette Bumbalough reported there was no action to report from closed session.

Paulette Bumbalough adjourned the meeting at 7:40 PM.

Paulette Bumbalough, Board President Date

-11-



SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
BOARD OF EDUCATION
SPECIAL BOARD MEETING (Conference Call)

Tuesday, March 14, 2017
Minutes

BOARD OF EDUCATION SUPERINTENDENT

Paulette Bumbalough — President — Excused Absence Daniel Moirao, Ed.D. — Present
David Gaboni — Clerk — Present

Joe Santibanez — Member — Excused Absence

Paul Dake — Member — Present

Leslie Girard — Member — Present

OPEN SESSION: 7:30 AM
Call to Order
David Gaboni called the meeting to order at 7:35 AM.

Public Comment
There were not any comments from the public. The meeting was recessed to closed session.

CLOSED SESSION:
A. Public Employment
B. Employee Discipline/Dismissal/Release/Complaint
C. Negotiations with Employee Organizations and Litigation Settlements
D. Threatened/Potential Litigation

OPEN SESSION:
Call to Order
David Gaboni called the meeting to order at 7:37 AM.

Report of Closed Session Actions
Motion made by Paul Dake and seconded by Leslie Girard to approve revised Resolution 20:16/17 and the personnel
report.

Public Comment
There were not any comments from the public.

Adjournment
David Gaboni adjourned the meeting at 7:39 AM.

Paulette Bumbalough, Board President Date

14



SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL

DISTRICT

SUBJECT: Approval of Third Quarterly Williams Report MEETING: March 22, 2017
AGENDA SECTION:

J ACTION

O INFORMATION

X ACTION/CONSENT

GOVERNING BOARD
Board Goals:

X Improve, Monitor and Sustain Student Achievement

X Improve School Climate in Support of Teaching, Learning and Student Safety

Develop/Sustain Fiscal Solvency

Ensure that Facilities are Safe for Staff and Students

Ensure Compliance with Education/Other Codes/Updating Board Policies and Administrative Regulations

Summary:
By law, the South Monterey County Joint Union High School District must report quarterly during every

academic year to the Board its compliance with the Williams lawsuit. Attached is the third report for the 2016-
2017 school year.

Recommendation:
It is recommended that the Board of Education approve the third quarterly Williams Report.

Fiscal Impact:
No cost to the district.

Submitted By: Approved:
%MW

Clatidia Arellano ) Daniel R. Moirao, Ed.D.
. Director Human Resources Superintendent

13-



Academic School Year 2016-2017
Quarterly Report on Williams Uniform Complaints
[Education Code § 35186] '

District: South Monterey County Joint Union High School. District

Person completing this form: C€laudia Arellano g Sr. Director of

Humam Resources
Quarterly Report Submission Date: ! October 2016
(Please check one) ! January 2017
' X April 2017
! July 2017

Date for information to be reported publicly at governing board meeting:

Please check the box that applies:

' xvNo complaints were filed with any school in the district during the quarter
indicated above.

! Complaints were filed with schools in the district during the quarter
indicated above. The following chart summarizes the nature and
resolution of these complaints.

General Suvbject g Total # of

sy o Complaints # Resolved # Unresolved
Textbooks and
I nstructional
Materials 0 0 0
Teacher Vacancy or
Misassignments 0 0 0
Facilities
Conditions 0 0 0
TOTALS 0 0 0

Daniel R. Moirao, E4d.D
Print Name of District Superintendent

Signature of District Superintendent

3 /7 22 /2017
Date

Williams Districts Only: Please scan the original signed copy and email to:
Monterey County Office of Education, Compliance Office
Linda Sweet [sweet@montereycoe.org

-14-




SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL

DISTRICT
SUBJECT: Approval of Contracts MEETING: March 22, 2017
AGENDA SECTION: 0O ACTION
0O INFORMATION
X ACTION/CONSENT
GOVERNING BOARD

Board Goals:

~ Improve, Monitor and Sustain Student Achievement _
Improve School Climate in Support of Teaching, Learning and Student Safety
X Develop/Sustain Fiscal Solvency

X Ensure that Facilities are Safe for Staff and Students

Ensure Compliance with Education/Other Codes/Updating Board Policies and Administrative Regulations

Summary:
Attached are two contracts presented for approval:

Approval of Agreement with DMC Property Restoration — Completion of Portola-Butler Shade Structure.
Approval of Contract for Deborah Bell — a student from GHS is in need of services the district cannot provide.

The attached spreadsheet has an explanation of the services which will be provided.

Recommendation:
[t is recommended that the Board of Education approve the two contracts.

Fiscal Impact:
DMC Property Restoration — Not to exceed $9,822 to be paid out of LCAP Goal 1h Funds.

Contract with Deborah Bell — Not to exceed $2,500 from Special Ed.

Submitted By:

Daniel R. Moirao, Ed.D.
CBO -15- Superintendent

herrie S. Castellanos



SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

MEETING: March 22,2017
SUBJECT: Approval of Contracts

AGENDA SECTION: [ ] AcTioN

[ ] INFORMATION
ACTION/CONSENT

Original g E 3|8 % E g Current
s, Company or Contractor Contract Additional Contract . ol E| =l|.5 & E g ==
Description e Contract Funding Source (s) 3l ol 3| 3 ol B = Approval
Name: Description _—_— Amount Al 5 S ERE
: E— Amount - ol 5 Al Amount
Portola Butler Construction/ Gate General Fund LCAP Goal
Proper rati /A >
Shade Structure DMC Property Restoration ADA Compliance $9,822 N 1h X $9,822
1
e s it Special Ed Fund (no impact
O 'rofessional .
! Services Deborah Bell Assessment $2,500 N/A to ending fund balance - X $2,500

budget balance available)




SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL
DISTRICT

SUBJECT:  Approval of Agreement with DMC Property MEETING: March 22, 2017
Restoration for Completion of Portola-Butler Shade Structure

AGENDA SECTION: O ACTION
J INFORMATION

X ACTION/CONSENT

GOVERNING BOARD

Board Goals:

Improve, Monitor and Sustain Student Achievement

X Improve School Climate in Support of Teaching, Learning and Student Safety
X  Develop/Sustain Fiscal Solvency
Ensure that Facilities are Safe for Staff and Students
X Ensure compliance with Education/Other Codes/Updating Board Policies and Administrative Regulations

Summary:
To complete the Portola-Butler Shade Structure Project and close out the project with DSA, we are required to

upgrade the gate between Portola-Butler campus and King City HS campus to be ADA compliant. This project
was not included in the original project when the shade structure was installed.

DMC Property Restoration provided a quote to finish the project. We are scheduling completion during Spring
Break.

Recommendation:
It is recommended that the Board of Education to approve the Agreement with DMC Property Restoration for
the Portola-Butler Shade Structure, ADA Gate Compliance.

Fiscal Impact:
$9,822 to be paid out of the LCAP Goal 1h Funds designated for the shade structure.

Submitted By: / m
Sherrie S. Castellartos Daniel R. Moirab, Ed.D.
Chief Business Official Superintendent

-17-



AGREEMENT BETWEEN OWNER AND CONTRACTOR

This Agreement effective March 23, 2017, by and between

South Monterey County Joint Union High School District, Monterey County, California,
hereinafter called the "Owner" and DMC Property Restoration. hereinafter called the
"Contractor."

WITNESSETH: That the Contractor and the Owner for the consideration hereinafter
named agree as follows:

ARTICLE I. SCOPE OF WORK. The Contractor agrees to furnish all labor,
equipment and materials, including tools, implements, and appliances required, and to
perform all the work in a good and workmanlike manner, free from any and all liens and
claims from mechanics, material suppliers, subcontractors, artisans, machinists,
teamsters, freight carriers, and laborers required for:

South Monterey County Joint Union High School District Portola Butler Shade
Structure — ADA Gate Compliance

all in strict compliance with the plans, drawings and specifications therefore prepared by:

Teter, Architects & Engineers Connected, Fresno, CA
559-437-0887, Contact Dustin Graef (dustin.graef@teterae.com)

email scope provided by DMV Property Restoration — Exhibit B.
and other contract documents relating thereto.

ARTICLE II. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. The Contractor and the Owner agree that
all of the documents listed in Article 1.1.1 of the General Conditions form the Contract
Documents which form the Contract.

- ARTICLE III. TIME TO COMPLETE AND LIQUIDATED DAMAGES. Time is
of the essence in this contract, and the time of completion for this Project shall be Sixty
(60) Days from the date established in the Owner's Notice to Proceed. Failure to
complete the Project within the time and in the manner provided for by the Contract
Documents shall subject the Contractor to liquidated damages. The actual occurrence of
damages and the actual amount of the damages which the Owner would suffer if the
Project were not completed within the specified times set forth are dependent upon many
circumstances and conditions which could prevail in various combinations and, from the
nature of the case, it is impracticable and extremely difficult to fix the actual damages.

-18-



Damages which the Owner would suffer in the event of delay include, but are not limited
to, loss of the use of the Project, disruption of activities, costs of administration,
supervision and the loss suffered by the public.

Accordingly, the parties agree that the amount herein set forth shall be the amount of
damages which the Owner shall directly incur upon failure of the Contractor to complete
the Project within the time specified: $250.00, for each calendar day by which
completion of the Project is delayed beyond the completion date.

If the Contractor becomes liable under this section, the Owner, in addition to all other
remedies provided by law, shall have the right to withhold any and all retained
percentages of payments and/or progress payments, and to collect the interest thereon,
which would otherwise be or become due the Contractor until the liability of the
Contractor under this section has been finally determined. If the retained percentages and
withheld progress payments appear insufficient to discharge all liabilities of the
Contractor incurred under this Article, the Contractor and its sureties shall continue to
remain liable to the Owner for such liabilities until all such liabilities are satisfied in full.

If the Owner accepts any work or makes any payment under this Agreement after a
default by reason of delays, the payment or payments shall in no respect constitute a
waiver or modification of any Agreement provisions regarding time of completion and
liquidated damages.

ARTICLE IV. PAYMENT. The Owner agrees to pay the Contractor in current funds
for the performance of the Contract Nine Thousand Eight Hundred Twenty-Two Dollars
and No Cents ($9,822) and to make payments on account thereof as provided in the
General Conditions.

ARTICLE V. CHANGES. Changes in this Agreement or in the Work to be done under
this Agreement shall be made as provided in the General Conditions.

ARTICLE VI. TERMINATION. The Owner or Contractor may terminate the
Contract as provided in the General Conditions.

ARTICLE VII. PREVAILING WAGES. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 1770
et seq. of the Labor Code of the State of California, which are hereby incorporated by
reference and made a part hereof, the Director of Industrial Relations has determined the
general prevailing rate of per diem wages and the general prevailing rate for holiday and
overtime work in the locality in which the work is to be performed, for each craft,
classification or type of worker needed to execute this Contract. Per diem wages shall be
deemed to include employer payments for health and welfare, pension, vacation,
apprenticeship or other training programs, and similar purposes. Copies of the rates are
on file at the Owner's principal office. The rate of prevailing wage for any craft,
classification or type of workmanship to be employed on this Project is the rate
established by the applicable collective bargaining agreement which rate so provided is
hereby adopted by reference and shall be effective for the life of this Agreement or until

-19-



the Director of the Department of Industrial Relations determines that another rate be ,
adopted. It shall be mandatory upon the Contractor and on any subcontractor to pay not
less than the said specified rates to all workers employed in the execution of this
Agreement.

The Contractor and any subcontractor under the Contractor as a penalty to the Owner
shall forfeit not more than Fifty Dollars ($50.00) for each calendar day or portion thereof
for each worker paid less than the stipulated prevailing rates for such work or craft in
which such worker is employed. The difference between such stipulated prevailing wage
rates and the amount paid to each worker for each calendar day or portion thereof for
which each worker was paid less than the stipulated prevailing wage rate shall be paid to
each worker by the Contractor.

The Contractor and each Subcontractor shall keep or cause to be kept an accurate record
for work on this Project showing the names, addresses, social security numbers, work
classification, straight time and overtime hours worked and occupations of all laborers,
workers and mechanics employed by them in connection with the performance of this
Contract or any subcontract thereunder, and showing also the actual per diem wage paid
to each of such workers, which records shall be open at all reasonable hours to inspection
by the Owner, its officers and agents and to the representatives of the Division of Labor
Law Enforcement of the State Department of Industrial Relations.

ARTICLE VIII. WORKING HOURS. In accordance with the provisions of Sections
1810 to 1815, inclusive, of the Labor Code of the State of California, which are hereby
incorporated and made a part hereof, the time of service of any worker employed by the
Contractor or a Subcontractor doing or contracting to do any part of the Work
contemplated by this Agreement is limited and restricted to eight hours during any one
calendar day and forty hours during any one calendar week, provided, that work may be
performed by such employee in excess of said eight hours per day or forty hours per
week provided that compensation for all hours worked in excess of eight hours per day,
and forty hours per week, is paid at a rate not less than one and one-half (1%) times the
basic rate of pay. The Contractor and every Subcontractor shall keep an accurate record
showing the name of and the actual hours worked each calendar day and each calendar
week by each worker employed by them in connection with the Work. The records shall
be kept open at all reasonable hours to inspection by representatives of the Owner and the
Division of Labor Law Enforcement. The Contractor shall as a penalty to the Owner
forfeit Twenty-five Dollars ($25.00) for each worker employed in the execution of this
Agreement by the Contractor or by any subcontractor for each calendar day during which
such worker is required or permitted to work more than eight hours in any one calendar
day, and forty hours in any one calendar week, except as herein provided.

ARTICLE IX. APPRENTICES. The Contractor agrees to comply with Chapter 1, Part
7, Division 2, Sections 1777.5 and 1777.6 of the California Labor Code, which are
hereby incorporated and made a part hereof. These sections require that contractors and

-20-



subcontractors employ apprentices in apprenticeable occupations in a ratio of not less
than one hour of apprentice's work for each five hours of work performed by a
journeyman (unless an exemption is granted in accordance with Section 1777.5) and that
contractors and subcontractors shall not discriminate among otherwise qualified
employees as indentured apprentices on any public works solely on the ground of sex,
race, religious creed, national origin, ancestry or color. Only apprentices as defined in
Labor Code Section 3077, who are in training under apprenticeship standards and who
have signed written apprentice agreements, will be employed on public works in
apprenticeable occupations. The responsibility for compliance with these provisions is
fixed with the Contractor for all apprenticeable occupations.

ARTICLE X. INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE. The Contractor will
defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Owner, its governing board, officers, agents,
trustees, and employees against and from any and all liability for damages on account of
injury to or death of persons or damage to property or delay or damage to another
contractor resulting from or arising out of or in any way connected with the performance
by the Contractor of this Agreement and reimburse the Owner for all costs, attorney's
fees, expenses and loss incurred by it in consequence of any claims, demands, and causes
of action which may be brought against it arising out of the performance by the
Contractor of this Agreement. This indemnification shall be in addition to the other
indemnification provisions contained in the Contract Documents.

By this statement the Contractor represents that it has secured the payment of Workers'
Compensation in compliance with the provisions of the Labor Code of the State of
California and during the performance of the work contemplated herein will continue so
to comply with said provisions of said Code. The Contractor shall supply the Owner with
certificates of insurance evidencing that Workers' Compensation Insurance is in effect
and providing that the Owner will receive thirty (30) days' notice of cancellation.

Contractor shall provide the insurance set forth in the General Conditions. The amount
of general liability insurance shall be $1,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury,
personal injury and property damage and the amount of automobile liability insurance
shall be $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property damage combined single
limit.

ARTICLE XI. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. The Contract constitutes the entire
agreement between the parties relating to the Project, and supersedes any prior or
contemporaneous agreement between the parties, oral or written, including the Owner's
award of the Project to Contractor, unless such agreement is expressly incorporated
herein. The Owner makes no representations or warranties, express or implied, not
specified in the Contract. The Contract is intended as the complete and exclusive
statement of the parties’ agreement pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure section 1856.

ARTICLE XII. EXECUTION OF OTHER DOCUMENTS. The parties to this
Agreement shall cooperate fully in the execution of any and all other documents and in

9] -



the completion of any additional actions that may be necessary or appropriate to give full
force and effect to the terms and intent of the Contract.

ARTICLE XIII. EXECUTION IN COUNTERPARTS. This Agreement may be
executed in counterparts such that the signatures may appear on separate signature pages.
A copy, or an original, with all signatures appended together, shall be deemed a fully
executed Agreement.

ARTICLE XIV. BINDING EFFECT. Contractor, by execution of this Agreement,
acknowledges that Contractor has read this Agreement and the other Contract
Documents, understands them, and agrees to be bound by their terms and conditions.
The Contract shall inure to the benefit of and shall be binding upon the Contractor and
the Owner and their respective successors and assigns.

ARTICLE XV. SEVERABILITY. If any provision of the Contract shall be held
invalid or unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not
invalidate or render unenforceable any other provision hereof. The Contract shall be
governed by the laws of the State of California and venue shall be in the appropriate
Superior Court in Monterey County, California.

ARTICLE XVI. AMENDMENTS. The terms of the Contract shall not be waived,
altered, modified, supplemented or amended in any manner whatsoever except by written
agreement signed by the parties and approved or ratified by the Governing Board.

ARTICLE XVII. ASSIGNMENT OF CONTRACT. The Contractor shall not assign
or transfer by operation of law or otherwise any or all of its rights, burdens, duties or
obligations without the prior written consent of the surety on the payment bond, the
surety on the performance bond and the Owner.

ARTICLE XVIII. WRITTEN NOTICE. Written notice shall be deemed to have been
duly served if delivered in person to the individual or member of the firm or to an officer
of the corporation for whom it was intended, or if delivered at or sent by registered or
certified or overnight mail to the last business address known to the person who gives the
notice.

-2



DMC PROPERTY RESTORATION SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY

JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL
DISTRICT

SIGNED BY (Contractor) Daniel R. Moirao, Ed.D.

Superintendent

CONTRACTOR'S LICENSE NO.

LICENSE EXPIRATION DATE

NOTE:

Contractor must give the full business address of the Contractor and sign
with Contractor’s usual signature. Partnerships must furnish the full name
of all partners and the Agreement must be signed in the partnership name
by a general partner with authority to bind the partnership in such matters,
followed by the signature and designation of the person signing. The
name of the person signing shall also be typed or printed below the
signature. Corporations must sign with the legal name of the corporation,
followed by the name of the state of incorporation and by the signature
and designation of the chairman of the board, president or any vice
president, and then followed by a second signature by the secretary,
assistant secretary, the chief financial officer or assistant treasurer. All
persons signing must be authorized to bind the corporation in the matter.
The name of each person signing shall also be typed or printed below the
signature. Satisfactory evidence of the authority of the officer signing on
behalf of a corporation shall be furnished.

99



3/8/12017

RE: King City High School - Portola Butler Concrete and Fence Improvements

& Replyall|v [ Delete Junk|Vv oo X

EXHIBIT B

RE: King City High School - Portola Butler Concrete and Fence Improvements

Inbox

i i‘\.’ H

Dan McAweeney <dan@prsrestore.com> & O Replyall |v
Thu 2716, 4:49 PM
'Dustin Graef' <dustin.graef@teterae.com>; Sherrie S. Castellanos ¥

Dustin and Sherrie,

After further review and compilation of materials pricing and labor estimates | am pleased to propose to construct the ADA gate assembly at the Portola
Butler campus at the King City High School.

Below are some clarifications regarding scope and schedule:

_VZ_

w0 N W;

1.
2.,
3.

We will demo existing concrete and asphalt in order to install new post hole.
We will coordinate inspection by the [OR as required.
We will set the new post in concrete and this will allow concrete to cure for 2-3 days before heavy gate is mounted. During the cure time the existing
fence gates will need to be locked with a chain as they will not close fully with the new gate post in line.
The new 42" gate assembly and hardware will be installed.

a. Von Duprin 22 EO with pull handle

b. D&D Technologies HD Tru-Close Spring Hinges
We will remove and dispose of existing gates unless the District requests to salvage these materials.
We will mount the signs as required.
There is no concrete demolition or new flatwork concrete paving associated with this quote.
The anticipation is that the worlk will be completed as work is being finished on the KCHS Lunch Shelter.
There are no bond premiums included in this price.

The total proposed cost for this work is $9,822.

Frorh: Dustih G“ra”ef [mailto: dustin.graef@teterae.com]

Sent: Wednesday, January 18, 2017 10:14 AM

To: Dan McAweeney

Cc: Sherrie S. Castellanos

Subject: RE: King City High School - Portola Butler Concrete and Fence Improvements

https://outlook.office.com/owa/projection.aspx

1/5



SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL

DISTRICT
SUBJECT: Approval of Contract for Deborah Bell MEETING: March 22, 2017
AGENDA SECTION: 0O ACTION
U INFORMATION
X ACTION/CONSENT
GOVERNING BOARD

Board Goals:

Improve, Monitor and Sustain Student Achievement

Improve School Climate in Support of Teaching, Learning and Student Safety

Develop/Sustain Fiscal Solvency

Ensure that Facilities are Safe for Staff and Students

X Ensure Compliance with Education/Other Codes/Updating Board Policies and Administrative Regulations

1]

Summary:
A student at GHS is in need of an Augmentative and Alternative Communication assessment (AAC) per the IEP

dated 3/15/17. We need to contract with an outside provider who is qualified to complete this assessment.

Recommendation:
It is recommended that the Board of Education approve the contract with Deborah Bell.

Fiscal Impact:
The contract will not exceed $2,500.

Submitted By: Apprgved:

Moreer sl (T eIt
Sherrie S. Castellanos Daniel R. Moirad,'Ed.D.
CBO Superintendent

9k



SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
800 BROADWAY
KING CITY, CA 93930

AGREEMENT TO FURNISH CONSULTANT SERVICES

Pursuant to California Education Code 10400, South Monterey County Joint Union High School
District, hereinafter called “District,” has need of the specialized services Deborah Bell, an
independent contractor, hereinafter called “Consultant,” for the period specified in Article L.
“TERM.”

Consultant shall be, for the purposes of this agreement, an independent contractor and shall not
be deemed an employee of the District for any purpose.

District may provide such supplies and equipment as shown herein for the convenience of
CONSULTANT and such accommodation shall not operate as an indication of employment.

I.  TERM:
The effective date of the agreement is March 22, 2017 and terminates June 30, 2017 unless
sooner terminate as provided herein.

II. PAYMENT LIMIT
e Consultant shall be compensated at the rate of $150 per hour plus travel expenses
calculated at hourly rate,
e Total payment(s) to Consultant, under this contract shall not exceed $2,500.

III. DISTRICT OBLIGATION:

Inconsideration of Consultant’s provision of service(s) as described in the Consultants Services
Description and subject to the payment limit expressed herein, the District shall pay the
Consultant, upon documented evidence of completion of service(s), payment according to the fee
schedule listed within thirty (30) days of billing.

IV. CONSULTANT’S OBLIGATION
The consultant shall provide service(s) as described in the Consultant Service Description.

V. CONSULTANT SERVICE DESCRIPTION

The consultant will complete an Augmentative Alternative Communication assessment for C.
Hernandez. The assessment will include observation, informal/formal testing, chart review and
staff interviews. The Consultant will complete an assessment report to include assessment data

recommendations regarding Augmentative Alternative Communication for M. Bravo at
Greenfield High School.

VI. CONFIDENTIALITY

In the course of performing consulting services, the parties realize that the Consultant may come
in contact with or become familiar with information which may be considered confidential,

-26-



Consultant agrees to keep all such information confidential and not to discuss or divulge itto
anyone other than South Monterey County Joint Union High School District.

VIL ASSIGNMENT :

This agreement is for personal services to be performed by Consultant and may not be assigned
to, sub-let to or performed by any person or persons who are not parties hereto except by
employ_ees of Consultant whose names and qualifications have been approved by District.

VIIL. TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT
This agreement shall terminate on the last day as written in Article I except:

a. District may terminate agreement at any time if Consultant does not perform, or
refuses to perform according to this Agreement.

b. District and Consultant may terminate agreement at any time with mutual written
consent.

e In the event of early termination, Consultant shall be paid for all work or services

performed to the date of termination together with an amount for approved expenses
due and owing.

IX. DISTRICT’S RIGHT OF RETENTION

District shall become the owner of and entitled to exclusive possession of all records, documents,
files, graphs, photographic or other reproductions of any kind produced in the scope of services
performed and no other uses thereof will be permitted except by permission of the District.

X. EXTENSION QOF TERM

By mutual consent of the parties hereto the term of service described herein in Article I may be
extended by reformation of this Agreement and the attachment hereto of an addendum mutually
executed setting forth the extended term.

XI. SIGNATURES
ese. signatures attest the pasties’ agreement hereto:

A g b} 7,\;2/(41Q

"Deborah Bell, SLP Daniel Moirao, Ed.D., Superintendent

/ / 7 South Monterey County Joint Union High School District

Da e / Date

i

Social Security Niﬁ_nber of Consultant *
¥ Whenever organizational names are used, the Employer IRS Identification Number
must be used instead of a Social Security Number,

97 -



Preferred contact information:

Deborah Bell, SIL.P

CONSULTANT / TITLE (Please Print)

wlailing Address (numbef, street 1_1ame, cify, state and zip code: Please Print)

Phone nﬁmber Cell Phone

Account code:

CBO signature Date:
Routirig: ' '

1. Immediate supervisor

2. CBO, for coding and presentation to Board

3. After Board (State Administrator) approval, CBO for processing

-08-

(U5



SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL

DISTRICT
SUBJECT: Bond Obligation Program MEETING: March 22, 2017
AGENDA SECTION: O ACTION
X INFORMATION
J ACTION/CONSENT
GOVERNING BOARD

Board Goals:

Improve, Monitor and Sustain Student Achievement

X Improve School Climate in Support of Teaching, Learning and Student Safety

Develop/Sustain Fiscal Solvency
Ensure that Facilities are Safe for Staff and Students
Ensure Compliance with Education/Other Codes/Updating Board Policies and Administrative Regulations

i

2
=
t
8
0

The District is nearing the end of its current Bond obligation taken out to build Greenfield High School and do
some modernization on King City High School. There is a small window of opportunity to continue the Bond,
if the Board is so interested, without any additional cost to the community. Mr. Dale Scott of Dale Scott &
Company will be present to explain the options.

The Superintendent would like direction from the Board on how to proceed.

Recommendation:

Fiscal Impact:
This has the potential to generate several millions of dollars over the life of the Bond for construction and major

building repairs and modernization, freeing other district dollars for other designated projects.

Submitted By: Approved:

Daniel R. Moirao, Ed.D Daniel R. Moirao, Ed.D.
Superintendent Superintendent

=29



SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL
DISTRICT

SUBJECT: Overnight GEAR UP Trip for KCHS Students to MEETING: March 22, 2017
Visit CSU Campuses on April 12 and April 13, 2017

AGENDA SECTION: O ACTION
X INFORMATION

J ACTION/CONSENT

GOVERNING BOARD

Board Goals:

Improve, Monitor and Sustain Student Achievement

X Improve School Climate in Support of Teaching, Learning and Student Safety
Develop/Sustain Fiscal Solvency
Ensure that Facilities are Safe for Staff and Students
X Ensure Compliance with Education/Other Codes/Updating Board Policies and Administrative Regulations

Summary:
Approximately 12 to 18 students from King City High School will be touring several CSU campuses through

the UCSC GEAR UP Program on April 12 and April 13, 2017. This trip will require an overnight stay, there
will be 3 to 4 adult chaperones traveling with the students.

Recommendation:
This is an information item only.

Fiscal Impact:
There is no fiscal impact to the district. UCSC GEAR UP will be proving the transportation, hotel costs, all

meals and snacks for the students.

Submitted By: Approved:
” 8
. . )
y |
Helébr Mandujan Daniel R. Moirao, Ed.D.
College Facilitgfor,/UC Santa Cruz Educational Superintendent

Partnership Center

-30-



SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL

DISTRICT
SUBJECT:  Second Interim Budget Revision Reporting MEETING: March 22, 2017
AGENDA SECTION: X ACTION
0O INFORMATION
O ACTION/CONSENT
GOVERNING BOARD

Board Goals:

Improve, Monitor and Sustain Student Achievement

Improve School Climate in Support of Teaching, Learning and Student Safety

X  Develop/Sustain Fiscal Solvency
Ensure that Facilities are Safe for Staff and Students
X Ensure compliance with Education/Other Codes/Updating Board Policies and Administrative Regulations

Summary:
School Districts are required to report their financial status as of January 31, of each year on or before March

15" of that year to the County Office of Education.

Recommendation:
It is recommended that the Board of Education to approve the Second Interim Financial Report with a positive
status

Fiscal Impact:
Positive Budget Certification for current and subsequent two years.

Submitted By: Approved:

— f( P | 4
Sherrie S. Castellanos Daniel R. Moirao, Ed.D.
Chief Business Official Superintendent

-31-



State Budget

On January 10, 2017, Governor Brown released his 2017/18 budget proposal that impacts our second
interim and multi-year projections. According to Governor Brown, State revenue indicates the “Tide
has begun to turn” and that the trajectory of general fund revenue growth has declined from estimates
used by the administration when the 2016/17 budget was enacted. The Governor proposed several
adjustments in funding for school districts.

Reporting | Grade 2016-17 2016-17 2017-18 2017-18 2018-19 2018-19

Period Level Target Target Target Target Target Target
Base GSA Base GSA Base GSA
Grant Grant Grant Grades

1% Interim | 9-12 $8,578 $223 $8,673 $225 $8.,883 $231

e 9-12 $8,578 $223 $8,705 $226 $8,914 $232

Interim

Change 0.00 0.00 $32 51 $31 $1

Increase | Increase | Increase | Increase

While the annual gap-closure percentage estimates may seem large, the remaining gap to fill has
shrunk significantly. This means that gap-closure percentages will increase, yet result in a smaller
actual funding increase for school districts. Our current year projected gap funding is $4,262,262.
This amount is down from 1** Interim due to a downward adjustment to our unduplicated pupil
percentage. These funds are made up of the Supplemental and Concentration Grants and are meant
to be used to serve the needs of the targeted subgroups (English Learner, Low Socio Economic,
Foster and Homeless).

Reporting Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate
Period 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20
1* Interim | LCFF Gap 54.18% 72.99% 40.36% 73.98%
Funding
Percentage
2™ Interim | LCFF Gap 55.28% 23.67% 68.94% 100.00%
Funding
Percentage
Change 1.1% 49.32% 28.58% 26.02%
Increase Decrease Increase Increase
1% Interim | Annual COLA | 0.00% 1.11% 2.42% 2.67%
2" Interim | Annual COLA | 0.00% 1.48% 2.40% 2.53%
Change 37% 02% 14%
' Increase Decrease Decrease
Reserves

County offices continue to reinforce the need for reserves over the minimum reserve requirements.
The experience of the most recent recession has clearly demonstrated the minimum levels are
insufficient to protect educational programs from severe disruption in an economic downturn. The
typical 3% reserve minimum represents less than two weeks of payroll for many districts.

-39




Many Districts have established reserve policies higher than minimum reserves, recognizing their
duty to maintain fiscal solvency. The adequacy of a given reserve level should be assessed based on
the LEA’s own specific circumstances, and numerous reasonable models are available for
consideration. Examples include:

* The Government Finance Officers Association recommends reserves equal to two months of
average general fund operating expenditures, or about 17%.

* Rating agencies assess the adequacy of a district’s reserves by comparing them to statewide
averages, which have hovered around 15% for California unified school districts in recent years.

Still in place is the potential reserve cap triggered by Education 42127.01 (enacted with S 858,
Statutes of 2015) should certain conditions exist. It is not expected to be in effect for fiscal years
2016/17 or 2017/18.

South Monterey County High School District has adopted policy that agree with the 17%.
Multi-Year Assumptions

' Planning Factors for 2016-17 and MYPs Key planning factors incofporated into the 2016-17 budget
and multiyear projections are listed below and based on the latest information available.

Fiscal Year
Planning Factor 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19
COLA (Department of | 0.00% 1.48% 2.40%
Finance - DOF)
LCFF Gap Funding 55.28% 23.67% 53.85%
Percentage (DOF)
STRS Employer 12.58% 14.43% 16.28%
Statutory Rates*
PERS Employer 13.888% 15.8% 18.7%
Projected Rates*
Lottery — unrestricted | $144 $144 $144
per ADA
Lottery — Prop. 20 per | $45 $45 $45
ADA
Mandated Cost per $214 $48 (not included in $0
ADA or One-Time projections) Estimated
Allocations at $104,736
Mandate Block Grant | $56 $56 $56
.| for Districts — 9-12 per
ADA
Mandate Block Grant | $42 $42 $42
for Charters — 9-12 per
ADA

-33-



SMCJUHSD Overall Assumptions/Changes from Budget Adoption

1. Projected General Fund revenues are $30,218,009
a. Increased Projected ADA by 33
b. Local Revenue Received Budgeted
2. Enrollment/ADA Projections
a. LCFF Funding —2121 (Increase of 33) ADA
b. Increase Enrollment to 2,252 (Increase of 19 based on CALPADS)
3. Reserve '
a. Total Ending Balance $7,246,388 (21%)
i. Board Designated 17% is $5,291,926
4. Projected Expenditures $31,128,974 a 3% Increase
a. Increased salaries for Estimated Actuals
b. Added Additional Construction Cost .
i. Buildings were in Fund 25 — Not enough funds to cover
ii. Cost of ground work not budgeted
c. Books and supplies adjusted for Estimated Actuals
d. Additional Cost for County Transfers
5. Multi-Year Projections
a. Department of Finance estimates used for revenues and gap funding
No Change in Enrollment Projections for 17/18 or 18/19
Increased Certificated salaries for increased enrollment
Negotiated increases Included
Maintained Capital Outlay $100,000 for each subsequent year

P e o

District Enrollment

: I e —
©2017-18
2016-17
2015-16 =
 2014-15 =
2013-14 ==
2012-13 TR

0 1000 2000 3000
LCAP Planning

The District has been engaging stakeholders by presenting to students, staff and community
members. We have done several presentations regarding data on graduation rates, math and English
proficiency, and college readiness. We have also outlined our current goals in our 2017/18 plan.

-34-



Due to the reduction in our unduplicated pupil counts for English Learners, Low Socio Economics
and Foster and Homeless students, we have reduced expenditures to correspond to those reductions.

Cash
The governor’s January budget proposal for 2017/18 includes a one-time principal apportionment

deferral from June 2017 to July 2017. This payment is expected to be just a few days in July. Our
current cash flow reflects the adjustment.

-35-



S OUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
800 Broadway Street, King City, CA 93930 + 831-385-0606 » FAX 831-385-0695

2016/17 Second Interim Financial Report
March 22, 2017

Miscellaneous Information

-36-




_[8_

3/15/201712:04 PM

[ LCFF Calculator Universal Assumptions 3]
[ South Monterey County Joint Union High (66068) - 2017/18 Budget Prep'and 2016/17 2nd Interim |
Summary of Funding

2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21
Target S 21,062,151 § 22,057,238 § 23,520,624 S 24,026,608 S 24,547,911 $ 25,249,863 $ 21,025,519 $ 329,492
Floor 13,729,429 15,063,308 18,175,622 21,770,918 23,544,779 24,085,553 24,652,399 2,536,670
Applied Formula: Target or Floor FLOOR FLOOR FLOOR FLOOR FLOOR FLOOR TARGET TARGET
Remaining Need after Gap (informational only) 6,452,671 4,884,549 2,535,796 1,008,745 765,691 537,329 - -
Current Year Gap Funding 880,051 2,109,381 2,809,206 1,246,945 237,441 626,981 - -
Economic Recovery Target - - - % - . z -
Additional State Aid - - - - - - - 2,207,178
Total Phase-In Entitlement $ 14,609,480 $ 17,172,689 $ 20,984,828 $ 23,017,863 $ 23,782,220 $ 24,712,534 $ 21,025,519 $ 2,536,670
Components of LCFF By Object Code

2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21
8011 - State Aid S 4,089,421 § 6,826,959 $ 8,426,479 S 11,729,919 $ 14,155,798 S 15,101,700 S 16,234,810 S 12,555,528 $ 2,536,670
8011 - Fair Share - - - - - -
8311 & 8590 - Categoricals 2,536,670 [y T R ST 5 =
EPA (for LCFF Calculation purposes) 2,408,555 2,371,885 3,108,578 3,191,371 3,234,524 2,826,689 2,819,025 -
Local Revenue Sources:

8021 to 8089 - Properly Taxes 5,410,636 5,637,632 6,063,538 5,654,000 5,654,000 5,676,572 5,676,572 5,676,572
8096 - In-Lieu of Property Taxes - - - (26,458) (25,797) (25,537) (25,606) -
Property Taxes net of in-lieu 4,696,013 5,410,636 5,637,632 6,063,538 5,627,542 5,628,203 5,651,035 5,650,966 5,676,572
TOTAL FUNDING S 13,730,659 S 14,609,480 S 17,172,689 § 20,984,828 S 23,017,863 § 23,782,220 S 24,712,534 S 21,025,519 §$ 8,213,242
Less: Excess Taxes s - S = 1§ -8 -8 -8 - s - s = 8 5,676,572

Less: EPA in Excess to LCFF Funding S - S - s - S -5 - s 2§ - S - S -
Total Phase-In Entitlement S __ 14,609,480 s 17,172,689 S 20,984,828 S 23,017,863 S 23,782,220 § 24,712,534 S 21,025,519 § 2,536,670
8012 - EPA Receipts (for budget & cashflow) S 2,394,217 S 2,370,601 S 3,109,535 § 3,206,036 S 3,234,524 S 3,052,317 § 2,826,689 S 2,819,025 S -
Summary of Student Population
2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21
Unduplicated Pupil Population
Agency Unduplicated Pupil Count 1,625.00 1,688.00 1,666.00 1,632.00 1,696.00 1,697.00 - -
COQE Unduplicated Pupil Count 3.00 6.00 - 1.00 1.00 1.00 - -
Total Unduplicated pupil Count 1,628.00 1,694.00 1,666.00 1,633.00 1,697.00 1,698.00 - -
Rolling %, Supplemental Grant 82.7700% 83.0400% 80.9500% 77.2700% 73.9900% 72.3300% 0.0000% 0.0000%
Rolling %, Concentration Grant 82.7700% 83.0400% 80.9500% 77.2700% 73.9900% 72.3300% 0.0000% 0.0000%
FUNDED ADA
Adjusted Base Grant ADA Prior Year Curmrent Year Current Year Current Year Current Year Current Year Prior Year Current Year
Grades TK-3 - - - - - - - -
Grades 4-6 - - - - - - - -
Grades 7-8 - - - - - - - -
Grades 9-12 1,840.07 1,909.24 2,040.07 2,127.00 2,181.72 2,212.87 2,206.87 -
Total Adjusted Base Grant ADA 1,840.07 1,909.24 2,040.07 2,127.00 2,181.72 2,212.87 2,206.87 -
Necessary Small School ADA Current year Current year Cument year Current year Current year Current year Current year Cument year
Grades TK-3 - - - - - - - -
Grades 4-6 - - - - - - - -
Grades 7-8 - - - - - - - -
Grades 9-12 - - - - - - - -
Total Necessary Small School ADA - - - - - - - -
Total Funded ADA 1840.07 1909.24 2040.07 2127.00 2181.72 2212.87 2206.87 0.00
ACTUAL ADA (Current Year Only)
Grades TK-3 - - - - - - - -
Grades 4-6 - - - - - - - -
Grades 7-8 - = - S - - g -
Grades 9-12 1,837.86 1,909.24 2,040.07 2,127.00 2,181.72 2,212.87 -
Total Actual ADA 1,837.86 1,909.24 2,040.07 2,127.00 2,181.72 2,212.87 - -
Funded Difference (Funded ADA less Actual ADA) 2.21 - - - - - 2,206.87 -
Minimum Proportionality Percentage (MPP)
2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21
Current year estimated supplemental and concentration grant funding in the LCAP year S 1,536,493 $ 3,345,181 §$ 4,262,262 $ 4,460,606 S 4,620,808 $ - S <
Current year Minimum Proportionality Percentage (MPP) 10.04% 19.32% 23.13% 23.49% 23.38% 0.00% 0.00%
Summary

LCFF Calculator v17.2b
released July 8, 2016



SSC School District and Charter School Financial Projection Dartboard
201 7-1_8 Governor’s Proposed State Budget

This version of SSC’s Financial Projection Dartboard is based on the 2017-18 Governor’s Proposed State Budget. We have
updated the cost-of-living adjustment (COLA), Consumer Price Index (CPI), and ten-year T-bill planning factors per the latest
economic forecasts. We have also updated the Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) factors. We rely on various state
agencies and outside sources in developing these factors, but we assume responsibility for them with the understanding that
they are general guidelines.

SiETATa S SRR . "LCFF'ENTITLEMENT FACTORS

Entitlement Factors per ADA K-3 4-6 7-8 9-12
2016-17 Initial Grants $7,083 $7,189 $7,403 $8,578
COLA at 1.48% $105 $106 $110 $127
2017-18 Base Grants $7,188 $7,295 $7,513 $8,705

Entitlement Factors per ADA K-3 4-6 7-8 9-12
2017-18 Base Grants $7,188 $7,295 $7,513 $8,705
Adjustment Factors 10.4% CSR - - 2.6%CTE
CSR and CTE amounts $748 - - $226
2017-18 Adjusted Base Grants $7,936 $7,295 $7,513 $8,931
Supplemental Grants (% Adj. Basc) 20% 20% 20% 20%
Concentration Grants 50% 50% 50% 50%
Concentration Grant Threshold 55% 55% 55% 55%

e = . LCFF-DARTBOARD FACTORS
Factor 2016-17 201718 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21
LCFF Planning Factors SSC Simulator SSC Simulator | SSC Simulator! | SSC Simulator! | SSC Simulator!
SSC Gap Funding Percentage 55.28% 23.67% 34.42% 35.88% 37.32%
Department of Finance Gap Funding 55.28% 23.67% 53.85% 68.94% 100.00%
Percentage
Gap.F unding Percentage (May 54.849% _
Revise)
Factor 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21

Statutory COLA 0.00% 1.48% 2.40% 2.53% 2.66%
COLA on state and local share only of Special
Education, Child Nutrition, Foster Youth, Preschool, o o
American Indian Education Centers/American Indian 0.08% 1.45% 2:40% #99% 2.66%
Early Childhood Education
California CPI 2.37% 2.72% 2.92% 2.60% 2.73%
California Lotter Base per ADA $144 $144 $144 $144 $144

- y Proposition 20 per ADA $45 $45 $45 $45 $45
One-Time Discretionary Funds per ADA $214 $48 - - -
Interest Rate for Ten-Year Treasuries 2.20% 2.50% 2.70% 2.90% 2.80%
CalPERS Employer Rate (projected) 13.888% 15.8% 18.7% 21.6% 24.9%
CalSTRS Employer Rate (statutory) 12.58% 14.43% 16.28% 18.13% 19.10%

SRy . A, . “RESERVES i i :
State Reserve Requirement District ADA Range Reserve Plan?
The greater of 5% or $66,000 0 to 300
The greater of 4% or $66,000 301 to 1,000 L.
SSC recommends one year’s increment

o 1,091 10.30,000 of planned revenue growth
2% : 30,001 t0.400,000 .
1% 400,001 and higher

! District reserve requirements as stated in the State Board of Education (SBE) adopted criteria and standards based solely on district size is not as relevant when
tinancial volatility and exposure is disparate under the LCFF. We recommend that every district first observe the current SBE-required reserve for the traditional
economic uncertainties. We also recommend the establishment of a separate reserve based on the annual LCFF revenue increase projected for the district in Year 2
and Year 3 of the multiyear projection. We recommend that the district develop a plan to, over time, set aside one year’s growth in LCFF funding as a reserve due
to the potential volatility inherent in state revenues. Within that set aside, we also recommend assigning the supplemental and concentration grant dollars.

SSchool

ervices © 2017 School Services of California, Inc.

@alilgcc)rniq -38-



SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JIOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL D ISTRICT
800 Broadway Street, King City, CA 93930 * 831-385-0606 = FAX 831-385-0695

2016/17 Second Interim Financial Report
March 22, 2017

Form CI
Certification of Interim Report

-39-



Second Interim
South Monterey County Joint Union High DISTRICT CERTIFICATION OF INTERIM REPORT 27 66068 0000000
Monterey County For the Fiscal Year 2016-17 Form ClI

NOTICE OF CRITERIA AND STANDARDS REVIEW. This interim report was based upon and reviewed using the
state-adopted Criteria and Standards. (Pursuant to Education Code (EC) sections 33129 and 42130)

Signed: Date:

District Superintendent or Designee

NOTICE OF INTERIM REVIEW. Al action shall be taken on this report during a regular or authorized special
meeting of the governing board.

To the County Superintendent of Schools:
This interim report and certification of financial condition are hereby filed by the governing board
of the school district. (Pursuant to EC Section 42131)

Meeting Date: March 22, 2017 Signed:

President of the Governing Board

CERTIFICATION OF FINANCIAL CONDITION .

X POSITIVE CERTIFICATION
As President of the Governing Board of this school district, | certify that based upon current projections this
district will meet its financial obligations for the current fiscal year and subsequent two fiscal years.

QUALIFIED CERTIFICATION
As President of the Governing Board of this school district, | certify that based upon current projections this
district may not meet its financial obligations for the current fiscal year or two subsequent fiscal years.

NEGATIVE CERTIFICATION

As President of the Governing Board of this school district, | certify that based upon current projections this
district will be unable to meet its financial obligations for the remainder of the current fiscal year or for the
subsequent fiscal year.

Contact person for additional information on the interim report:

Name: Sherrie S. Castellanos Telephone: 831.385.0606

Title: Chief Business Official E-mail: scastellanos@smcjuhsd.org

Criteria and Standards Review Summary

The following summary is automatically completed based on data provided in the Criteria and Standards Review
form (Form 01CSI). Criteria and standards that are "Not Met," and supplemental information and additional fiscal
indicators that are "Yes," may indicate areas of potential concern, which could affect the interim report certification,
and should be carefully reviewed.

Not

CRITERIA AND STANDARDS Met  Met
1 Average Daily Attendance Funded ADA for any of the current or two subsequent fiscal years has
not changed by more than two percent since first interim.

California Dept of Education -4(0-
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
File: ci (Rev 04/09/2015) Page 1 of 3 Printed: 3/15/2017 9:40 AM



South Monterey County Joint Union High

Second Interim
DISTRICT CERTIFICATION OF INTERIM REPORT

27 66068 0000000

Monterey County For the Fiscal Year 2016-17 Form CI
Not
CRITERIA AND STANDARDS (continued) Met  Met
2 Enrollment Projected enrollment for any of the current or two subsequent fiscal
years has not changed by more than two percent since first interim. X
3 ADA to Enroliment Projected second period (P-2) ADA to enrollment ratio for the current
and two subsequent fiscal years is consistent with historical ratios. X
4 Local Control Funding Projected LCFF for any of the current or two subsequent fiscal years
Formula (LCFF) has not changed by more than two percent since first interim. X
5 Salaries and Benefits Projected ratio of total unrestricted salaries and benefits to total
unrestricted general fund expenditures has not changed by more X
than the standard for the current and two subsequent fiscal years.
6a Other Revenues Projected operating revenues (federal, other state, other local) for the
current and two subsequent fiscal years have not changed by more X
than five percent since first interim.
6b Other Expenditures Projected operating expenditures (books and supplies, services and
other expenditures) for the current and two subsequent fiscal years X
have not changed by more than five percent since first interim.
7 Ongoing and Major If applicable, changes occurring since first interim meet the required
Maintenance Account contribution to the ongoing and major maintenance account (i.e., X
restricted maintenance account).
8 Deficit Spending Unrestricted deficit spending, if any, has not exceeded the standard
in any of the current or two subsequent fiscal years. X
9a Fund Balance Projected general fund balance will be positive at the end of the
current and two subsequent fiscal years. X
9b Cash Balance Projected general fund cash balance will be positive at the end of the
current fiscal year. X
10 Reserves Available reserves (e.g., reserve for economic uncertainties,
unassigned/unappropriated amounts) meet minimum requirements X
for the current and two subsequent fiscal years.
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION No Yes
S1 Contingent Liabilities Have any known or contingent liabilities (e.g., financial or program
audits, litigation, state compliance reviews) occurred since first X
interim that may impact the budget?
S2 Using One-time Revenues Are there ongoing general fund expenditures funded with one-time
to Fund Ongoing revenues that have changed since first interim by more than five X
Expenditures percent?
S3 Temporary Interfund Are there projected temporary borrowings between funds?
Borrowings X
S4 Contingent Revenues Are any projected revenues for any of the current or two subsequent
fiscal years contingent on reauthorization by the local government,
special legislation, or other definitive act (e.g., parcel taxes, forest X
reserves)?
S5 Contributions Have contributions from unrestricted to restricted resources, or
transfers to or from the general fund to cover operating deficits,
changed since first interim by more than $20,000 and more than 5% X
for any of the current or two subsequent fiscal years?

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
File: ci (Rev 04/09/2015)

4]-

Page 2 of 3

Printed: 3/15/2017 9:40 AM



South Monterey County Joint Union High

Second Interim
DISTRICT CERTIFICATION OF INTERIM REPORT

27 66068 0000000

Monterey County For the Fiscal Year 2016-17 Form Cl
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION (continued) No Yes
S6 Long-term Commitments Does the district have long-term (multiyear) commitments or debt
agreements? X
+ If yes, have annual payments for the current or two subsequent
fiscal years increased over prior year's (2015-16) annual X
payment?
* Ifyes, will funding sources used to pay long-term commitments
decrease or expire prior to the end of the commitment period, or X
are they one-time sources?
S7a Postemployment Benefits Does the district provide postemployment benefits other than
Other than Pensions pensions (OPEB)? X
* Ifyes, have there been changes since first interim in OPEB
liabilities? X
S7b Other Self-insurance Does the district operate any self-insurance programs (e.g., workers'
Benefits compensation)? X
* Ifyes, have there been changes since first interim in self-
insurance liabilities? . , n/a
S8 Status of Labor Agreements| As of second interim projections, are salary and benefit negotiations
still unsettled for:
* Certificated? (Section S8A, Line 1b) X
* Classified? (Section S8B, Line 1b) X
* Management/supervisor/confidential? (Section S8C, Line 1b) n/a
S8 Labor Agreement Budget For negotiations settled since first interim, per Government Code
Revisions Section 3547.5(c), are budget revisions still needed to meet the costs
of the collective bargaining agreement(s) for:
*  Certificated? (Section S8A, Line 3) n/a
* Classified? (Section S8B, Line 3) n/a
S9 Status of Other Funds Are any funds other than the general fund projected to have a
negative fund balance at the end of the current fiscal year? X
ADDITIONAL FISCAL INDICATORS No Yes
A1 Negative Cash Flow Do cash flow projections show that the district will end the current
fiscal year with a negative cash balance in the general fund? X
A2 Independent Position Is personnel position control independent from the payroll system?
Control X
A3 Declining Enroliment Is enroliment decreasing in both the prior and current fiscal years? X
A4 New Charter Schools Are any new charter schools operating in district boundaries that are
Impacting District impacting the district's enroliment, either in the prior or current fiscal X
Enrollment year?
A5 Salary Increases Exceed Has the district entered into a bargaining agreement where any of the
COLA current or subsequent fiscal years of the agreement would result in
salary increases that are expected to exceed the projected state X
funded cost-of-living adjustment?
AB Uncapped Health Benefits Does the district provide uncapped (100% employer paid) health
benefits for current or retired employees? X
A7 Independent Financial Is the district’s financial system independent from the county office
System system? X
A8 Fiscal Distress Reports Does the district have any reports that indicate fiscal distress? If yes,
provide copies to the COE, pursuant to EC 42127.6(a). X
A9 Change of CBO or Have there been personnel changes in the superintendent or chief
Superintendent business official (CBO) positions within the last 12 months? X

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
File: ci (Rev 04/09/2015)

_42-

Page 3 of 3

Printed: 3/15/2017 9:40 AM



SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL D ISTRICT
800 Broadway Street, King City, CA 93930 * 831-385-0606 = FAX 831-385-0695

2016/17 Second Interim Financial Report
March 22, 2017

Fund 01
General Fund

-43-



2016-17 Second Interim

South Monterey County Joint Union High General Fund 27 66068 0000000
Monterey County Summary - Unrestricted/Restricted Form 011
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Board Approved Projected Year Difference % Diff
Object Original Budget | Operating Budget | Actuals To Date Totals (ColB &D) (E/IB)
Description Resource Codes Codes (A) (B) (C) (D) ._(E) (F)
A. REVENUES
1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 22,839,806.00 22,801,105.00 13,567,546.64 22,991,491.00 190,386.00 0.8%
2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 1,238,681.00 1,388,904.00 297,533.80 1.412,152.00 23,248.00 1.7%
3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 722,939.00 3,974,396.00 2,781,942.35 4,014,345.18 39,949.18 1.0%
4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 1,565,850.00 1,599,278.00 749,978.39 1,800,021.32 200,743.32 12.6%
5) TOTAL, REVENUES 26,367,276.00 29,763,683.00 17,397,001.18 30,218,009.50
B. EXPENDITURES
1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 10,232,073.00 10,419,286.00 5,629,774.97 10,579,321.51 (160,035.51) -1.5%
2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 3.044,947.00 3,143,007.00 1,708,309.54 3,138,140.41 4,866.59 0.2%
3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 4,568,375.00 5,118,418.00 2,451,391.93 5,143,486.76 (25,068.76) -0.5%
4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 1,551,503.00 2,136,888.00 1.026,007.90 2,230,726.14 (93,838.14) -4.4%
5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 4,655,791.00 7,103,455.00 2,638,666.28 6,728,189.28 375,265.72 5.3%
6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 336,122.00 512,122.00 439,798.20 1,369,581.00 (857,459.00)] -167.4%
7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299 .
Costs) 7400-7499 1,624,529.00 1,770,879.00 212,290.11 1,939,529.00 (168,650.00) -9.5%
8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 1.00 1.00 0.00 0.00 1.00 100.0%
9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 26,013,341.00 30,204,056.00 14,106,238.93 31,128,974.10
C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER
FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (A5 - B9) 353,935.00 (440,373.00) 3.,290,762.25 | - (910,964.60)
D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
1) Interfund Transfers
a) Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
2) Other Sources/Uses
a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 1,207.49 0.00 0.00 0.0%
4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 0.00 0.00 1,207.49 0.00
California Dept of Education - 44 =
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 03/22/2016) Page 1 Printed: 3/15/2017 9:38 AM



2016-17 Second Interim

South Monterey County Joint Union High General Fund 27 66068 0000000
Monterey County Summary - Unrestricted/Restricted Form 01l
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Board Approved Projected Year Difference % Diff
Object Original Budget | Operating Budget | Actuals To Date Totals (ColB & D) (EIB)
Description Resource Codes Codes (A) (B) (C) (D) . (E) (F)
E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND
BALANCE (C + D4) 353,935.00 (440,373.00) 3,291,969.74 (910,964.60)
F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES
1) Beginning Fund Balance
a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 6,463,799.00 8,157,359.00 8,157,353.48 (5.52) 0.0%
b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 6,463,799.00 8,157,359.00 8,157,353.48
d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 6,463,799.00 8,157,359.00 | 8,157,353.48
2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 6,817,734.00 7,716,986.00 7,246,388.88
Components of Ending Fund Balance
a) Nonspendable
Revolving Cash 9711 6,000.00 6,000.00 6,000.00
Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.00
Prepaid Expenditures 9713 0.00 0.00 0.00
All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 |. 0.00
b) Restricted 9740 252,614.00 138,602.00 135,620.69
c) Committed
Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00
Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.00
d) Assigned
Other Assignments 9780 0.00 315,412.00 310,169.52
e) Unassigned/Unappropriated
Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 4,422,268.00 5,134,690.00 5,291,926.00
Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 2,136,852.00 2,122,282.00 1,502,672.67
‘
California Dept of Education -45-
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 03/22/2016) Page 2 Printed: 3/15/2017 9:38 AM



2016-17 Second Interim

South Monterey County Joint Union High General Fund 27 66068 0000000
Monterey County Unrestricted (Resources 0000-1999) Form 011
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Board Approved Projected Year Difference % Diff
Object Original Budget | Operating Budget| Actuals To Date Totals (Col B & D) (E/IB)
Description Resource Codes Codes {A) (B) (C) (D) (E) (F)
A. REVENUES
1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 22,839,806.00 22,801,105.00 13,567,546.64 22,991,491.00 190,386.00 0.8%
2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 393,383.00 849,359.00 610,226.52 849,359.00 0.00 0.0%
4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 761,276.00 761,276.00 315,380.94 844,139.16 82,863.16 10.9%
5) TOTAL, REVENUES 23,994,465.00 24,411,740.00 14,493,154.10 24,684,989.16
B. EXPENDITURES
1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 8,447,116.00 8,532,122.00 4,640,993.56 8,788,168.51 (256,046.51) -3.0%
2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 2,296,504.00 2,392,537.00 1,293,432.42 2,360,775.41 31,761.59 1.3%
3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 3,594,141.00 3,589,687.00 1,934,837.73 3,631,204.76 (41,517.76) -1.2%
4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 1,270,308.00 1,329,869.00 760,941.24 1,355,116.69 (25,247.69) -1.9%
5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 3,179,728.00 3,207,564.00 1,240,526.98 2,814,687.12 392,876.88 12.2%
6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 335,619.00 431,619.00 344,986.23 1,146,018.00 (714,399.00)|  -165.5%
7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299 |
Costs) 7400-7499 1,389,929.00 1,401,529.00 25,254.00 1,478,908.00 (77,379.00) -5.5%
8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 (40,450.00) (37,412.00) 0.00 (62,114.00) 24,702.00 -66.0%
9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 20,472,895.00 20,847,515.00 10,240,972.16 21,512,764.49
C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER
FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (A5 - B9) 3,521,570.00 3,564,225.00 4,252,181.94 3,172,224.67
D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
1) Interfund Transfers
a) Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
2) Other Sources/Uses
a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
3) Contributions 8980-8999 (3.167,635.00) (3,476,565.00) 1,207.49 (3,552,179.00) (75,614.00) 2.2%
4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES (3.167,635.00) (3,476,565.00) 1,207.49 (3,552,179.00)

California Dept of Education -46-
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 03/22/2016) Page 1 Printed: 3/15/2017 9:38 AM




2016-17 Second Interim

South Monterey County Joint Union High General Fund 27 66068 0000000
Monterey County Unrestricted (Resources 0000-1999) Form 011
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Board Approved Projected Year Difference % Diff
Object Original Budget | Operating Budget | Actuals To Date Totals (Col B & D) (EIB)
Description Resource Codes Codes (A) (B) (C) (D) (E) (F)
E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND
BALANCE (C + D4) 353,935.00 87,660.00 4,253,389.43 (379,954.33)
F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES
1) Beginning Fund Balance
a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 6.211,185.00 7,490,725.00 7.490,722.52 (2.48) 0.0%
b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 6,211,185.00 7,490,725.00 7,490,722.52
d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 6,211,185.00 7.490,725.00 7.490,722.52
2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 6,565,120.00 7,578,385.00 7,110,768.19
Components of Ending Fund Balance
a) Nonspendable
Revolving Cash 9711 6,000.00 6,000.00 6,000.00
Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.00
Prepaid Expenditures 9713 0.00 0.00 0.00
All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.00
b) Restricted 9740 0.00 0.00 0.00
c) Committed
Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00
Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.00
d) Assigned
Other Assignments 9780 0.00 315,412.00 310,169.52
e) Unassigned/Unappropriated
Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 4,422,268.00 5,134,690.00 5,291,926.00
Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 2,136,852.00 2,122,283.00 1,502,672.67
;alifornia Dept of Education - 47 -
JACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
‘ile: fundi-a (Rev 03/22/2016) Page 2 Printed: 3/15/2017 9:38 AM



2016-17 Second Interim

South Monterey County Joint Union High General Fund 27 66068 0000000
Monterey County Unrestricted (Resources 0000-1999) Form 011
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Board Approved Projected Year Difference % Diff
Object Original Budget | Operating Budget | Actuals To Date Totals (Col B & D) (EIB)
Description Resource Codes Codes (A) (B). (C) . (D) . (F)
LCFF SOURCES
Principal Apportionment
State Aid - Current Year 8011 14,013,631.00 13,989,637.00 9,011,687.00 14,155,798.00 166,161.00 1.2%
Education Protection Account State Aid - Current Year 8012 3,172,175.00 3.184,341.00 1,528,320.00 3,206,036.00 21,695.00 0.7%
State Aid - Prior Years 8019 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Tax Relief Subventions
Homeowners' Exemptions 8021 29,157.00 29,157.00 12,958.60 29,157.00 0.00 0.0%
Timber Yield Tax 8022 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Other Subventions/In-Lieu Taxes 8029 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
County & District Taxes
Secured Roll Taxes 8041 5,124,167.00 5,124,167.00 2,704,637.32 5,126,282.00 2,115.00 0.0%
Unsecured Roll Taxes 8042 207,631.00 207,631.00 172,965.81 207,631.00 0.00 0.0%
Prior Years' Taxes 8043 51,487.00 51,487.00 38,985.50 51,487.00 0.00 0.0%
Supplemental Taxes 8044 64,676.00 64,676.00 51,956.09 64,676.00 0.00 0.0%
Education Revenue Augmentation
Fund (ERAF) 8045 138,603.00 138,603.00 (332.85) 138,603.00 0.00 0.0%
Community Redevelopment Funds
(SB 617/699/1992) 8047 36,164.00 36,164.00 45,565.45 36,164.00 0.00 0.0%
Penalties and Interest from
Delinquent Taxes 8048 2,115.00 2,115.00 803.72 2,115.00 0.00 0.0%
Miscellaneous Funds (EC 41604)
Royalties and Bonuses 8081 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Other In-Lieu Taxes 8082 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Less: Non-LCFF
(50%) Adjustment 8089 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Subtotal, LCFF Sources 22,839,806.00 22,827,978.00 13,567,546.64 23,017,949.00 189,971.00 0.8%
LCFF Transfers
Unrestricted LCFF
Transfers - Current Year 0000 8091 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
All Other LCFF
Transfers - Current Year All Other 8091 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Transfers to Charter Schools in Lieu of Property Taxes 8086 0.00 (26,873.00) 0.00 (26,458.00) 415.00 -1.5%
Property Taxes Transfers 8097 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
LCFF/Revenue Limit Transfers - Prior Years 8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
TOTAL, LCFF SOURCES 22,839,806.00 22,801,105.00 13,567,546.64 22,991,491.00 190,386.00 0.8%
FEDERAL REVENUE
Maintenance and Operations 8110 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Special Education Entitlement 8181 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Special Education Discretionary Grants 8182 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Child Nutrition Programs 8220 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Donated Food Commodities 8221 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Forest Reserve Funds 8260 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Flood Control Funds 8270 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Wildlife Reserve Funds 8280 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
FEMA 8281 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Interagency Contracts Between LEAs 8285 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Pass-Through Revenues from Federal Sources 8287 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
NCLB: Title I, Part A, Basic Grants
Low-Income and Neglected 3010 8290
NCLB: Title I, Part D, Local Delinquent
Program 3025 8290
|
|_NCLB: Title Il, Part A, Teacher Quality 4035 8290 B 4 8 _

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 03/22/2016)

Page 3

Printed: 3/15/2017 9:38 AM



2016-17 Second Interim

South Monterey County Joint Union High General Fund 27 66068 0000000
Monterey County Unrestricted (Resources 0000-1999) Form 011
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Board Approved Projected Year Difference % Diff
Object Original Budget | Operating Budget | Actuals To Date Totals (ColB & D) (EIB)
Description Resource Codes . Codes (A) (B) (C) (D) (E). (F)
NCLB: Title Ill, Immigration Education
Program 4201 8290
NCLB: Title lll, Limited English Proficient (LEP)
Student Program 4203 8290
NCLB: Title V, Part B, Public Charter Schools
Grant Program (PCSGP) 4610 8290
3012-3020, 3030-
3199, 4036-4126,
Other No Child Left Behind 5510 8290
Vocational and Applied Technology Education 3500-3699 8280
Safe and Drug Free Schools 3700-3799 8290
All Other Federal Revenue All Other 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
TOTAL, FEDERAL REVENUE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
OTHER STATE REVENUE
Other State Apportionments
ROC/P Entitlement
Prior Years 6360 8319
Special Education Master Plan
Current Year 6500 8311
Prior Years 6500 8319
All Other State Apportionments - Current Year All Other 8311 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
All Other State Apportionments - Prior Years All Other 8319 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Child Nutrition Programs 8520 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Mandated Costs Reimbursements 8550 106,430.00 543,005.00 476,773.00 543,005.00 0.00 0.0%
Lottery - Unrestricted and Instructional Materials 8560 286,953.00 306,354.00 132,928.81 306,354.00 0.00 0.0%
Tax Relief Subventions
Restricted Levies - Other
Homeowners' Exemptions 8575 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Other Subventions/In-Lieu Taxes 8576 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Pass-Through Revenues from State Sources 8587 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
After School Education and Safety (ASES) 6010 8590
Charter School Facility Grant 6030 8590
Career Technical Education Incentive Grant
Program 6387 8590
Drug/Alcohol/Tobacco Funds 6650, 6690 8590
California Clean Energy Jobs Act 6230 8590
Specialized Secondary 7370 8590
American Indian Early Childhood Education 7210 8590
Quality Education Investment Act 7400 8590
Common Core State Standards
Implementation 7405 8590
All Other State Revenue All Other 8590 - 0.00 0.00 524.71 0.00 0.00 0.0%
TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 393,383.00 849,359.00 610,226.52 849,359.00 0.00 0.0%
California Dept of Education N 49 -
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
“ile: fundi-a (Rev 03/22/2016) Page 4 Printed: 3/15/2017 9:38 AM



2016-17 Second Interim

South Monterey County Joint Union High General Fund 27 66068 0000000
Monterey County Unrestricted (Resources 0000-1999) Form 011
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Board Approved Projected Year Difference % Diff
Object Original Budget | Operating Budget| Actuals To Date Totals (ColB&D) (E/B)
Description Resource Codes Codes (A) . (B) .(C) (D) . (E) (F)
OTHER LOCAL REVENUE
Other Local Revenue
County and District Taxes
Other Restricted Levies
Secured Roll 8615 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Unsecured Roll 8616 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Prior Years' Taxes 8617 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Supplemental Taxes 8618 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Non-Ad Valorem Taxes
Parcel Taxes 8621 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Other 8622 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Community Redevelopment Funds
Not Subject to LCFF Deduction 8625 219,633.00 219,633.00 50,128.36 222,406.00
Penalties and Interest from Delinquent Non-LCFF
Taxes 8629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Sales
Sale of Equipment/Supplies 8631 0.00 0.00 0.00 .0.00 0.00 0.0%
Sale of Publications 8632 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Food Service Sales 8634 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
All Other Sales 8639 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Leases and Rentals 8650 16,000.00 16,000.00 22,317.41 16,000.00 0.00 0.0%
Interest 8660 43,352.00 43,352.00 66,122.09 94,911.16 51,559.16 118.9%
Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments 8662 2,423.00 2,423.00 0.00 2,423.00 0.00 0.0%
Fees and Contracts
Adult Education Fees 8671 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Non-Resident Students 8672 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Transportation Fees From Individuals 8675 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Interagency Services 8677 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Mitigation/Developer Fees 8681 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
All Other Fees and Contracts 8689 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Other Local Revenue
Plus: Misc Funds Non-LCFF (50%) Adjustment 8691 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Pass-Through Revenues From Local Sources 8697 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
All Other Local Revenue 8699 479,868.00 479,868.00 176,813.08 508,399.00 28,531.00 5.9%
Tuition 8710 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
All Other Transfers In 8781-8783 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Transfers Of Apportionments
Special Education SELPA Transfers
From Districts or Charter Schools 6500 8791
From County Offices 6500 8792
From JPAs 6500 8793
ROCIP Transfers
From Districts or Charter Schools 6360 8791
From County Offices 6360 8792
From JPAs 6360 8793
Other Transfers of Apportionments
From Districts or Charter Schools All Other 8791 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
From County Offices All Other 8792 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
From JPAs All Other 8793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 i 0.00 0.0%
All Other Transfers In from All Others 8799 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 ‘ 0.00 0.0%
? TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 761,276.00 761,276.00 315,380.94 844,139.16 : 82,863.16 10.9%
TOTAL, REVENUES 23,994,465.00 { 24,411,740.00 14,493,154.10 24,684,989.16 . 273,249.16 1.1%

California Dept of Education
5ACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
“ile: fundi-a (Rev 03/22/2016)

-50-

Page 5

Printed: 3/15/2017 9:38 AM



2016-17 Second Interim

South Monterey County Joint Union High General Fund 27 66068 0000000
Monterey County Unrestricted (Resources 0000-1999) Form 011
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Board Approved Projected Year Difference % Diff
Object Original Budget | Operating Budget | Actuals To Date Totals (Col B & D) (E/B)
Description . Resource Codes Codes 5 (A) (B) (C) (D) . (E) (F)
Certificated Teachers' Salaries 1100 7,023,681.00 7,185,462.00 3,864,737.13 7,275,575.00 (80,113.00) -1.3%
Certificated Pupil Support Salaries 1200 329,054.00 333,855.00 178,055.48 334,388.00 (533.00) -0.2%
Certificated Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 1300 994,379.00 912,803.00 546,791.27 1,051,203.51 (138,400.51) -15.2%
Other Certificated Salaries 1900 100,002.00 100,002.00 51,409.68 127,002.00 (27,000.00) -27.0%
TOTAL, CERTIFICATED SALARIES 8,447,116.00 8,532,122.00 4,640,993.56 8,788,168.51 (256,046.51) -3.0%
CLASSIFIED SALARIES
Classified Instructional Salaries 2100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Classified Support Salaries 2200 1,175,541.00 1,182,054.00 631,642.73 1,151,912.00 30,142.00 2.5%
Classified Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 2300 447,719.00 492,542.00 274,059.74 478,650.94 13,891.06 2.8%
Clerical, Technical and Office Salaries 2400 573,242.00 617,939.00 352,995.66 627,983.47 (10,044.47) -1.6%
Other Classified Salaries 2800 100,002.00 100,002.00 34,734.29 102,229.00 (2,227.00) -2.2%
TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 2,296,504.00 2,392,537.00 1,293,432.42 2,360,775.41 31,761.59 1.3%
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
STRS . 3101-3102 1,033,453.00 1,064,356.00 577,156.13 1,080,783.00 (16,427.00) -1.5%
PERS 3201-3202 324,228.00 313,768.00 155,005.93 310,173.00 3,5695.00 1.1%
OASDI/Medicare/Alternative 3301-3302 321,073.00 320,136.00 165,567.66 327,482.76 (7,346.76) -2.3%
Health and Welfare Benefits 3401-3402 1,523,840.00 1,524,184.00 815,506.21 1,537,523.00 (13,339.00) -0.9%
Unemployment Insurance 3501-3502 5.412.00 6,332.00 5,368.61 11,015.00 (4,683.00) -74.0%
Workers' Compensation 3601-3602 243,611.00 212,958.00 116,168.10 216,275.00 (3,317.00) -1.6%
OPEB, Allocated 3701-3702 142,524.00 147,953.00 100,065.09 147,953.00 0.00 0.0%
OPEB, Active Employees 3751-3752 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Other Employee Benefits 3901-3902 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 3.594,141.00 3,589,687.00 1,934,837.73 3,631,204.76 (41,517.76) -1.2%
BOOKS AND SUPPLIES
Approved Textbooks and Core Curricula Materials 4100 100,000.00 100,000.00 39,941.05 118,165.00 (18,165.00) -18.2%
Books and Other Reference Materials 4200 58,088.00 66,088.00 12,053.25 57,410.69 8,677.31 13.1%
Materials and Supplies 4300 564,022.00 609,612.00 326,229.46 642,317.00 (32,705.00) -5.4%
Noncapitalized Equipment 4400 548,198.00 554,169.00 382,717.48 537,224.00 16,945.00 3.1%
Food 4700 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
TOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 1,270,308.00 1,329,869.00 760,941.24 1,355,116.69 (25,247.69) -1.9%
SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES
Subagreements for Services 5100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Travel and Conferences 5200 100,500.00 109,254.00 85,740.03 206,623.31 (97,369.31) -89.1%
Dues and Memberships 5300 72,043.00 72,043.00 43,254.17 77,163.00 (5,120.00) -11%
Insurance 5400-5450 166,890.00 177,890.00 175,875.00 177,890.00 0.00 0.0%
Operations and Housekeeping Services ) 5500‘ 563,220.00 576_,220.00 298,776.91 i 568,720.00 7,500.00 1.3%
Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncapitalized Improvements 5600 706,562.00 717,310.00 95,713.93 495,318.00 221,992.00 30.9%
Transfers of Direct Costs 5710 (4,000.00) (4,000.00) (6.862.42) (10,842.19) 6,842.19 -171.1%
Transfers of Direct Costs - Interfund 5750 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Professional/Consulting Services and
Operating Expenditures 5800 1,468,619.00 1,480,651.00 493,859.48 1,195,117.00 285,534.00 19.3%
Communications 5900 105,894.00 78,196.00 54,169.88 104,698.00 (26,502.00) -33.9%
TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER
OPERATING EXPENDITURES 3,179,728.00 3,207,564.00 1,240,526.98 2,814,687.12 392,876.88 12.2%

California Dept of Education = 51 -
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
Zile: fundi-a (Rev 03/22/2016) Page 6 Printed: 3/15/2017 9:38 AM



2016-17 Second Interim

South Monterey County Joint Union High General Fund 27 66068 0000000
Monterey County Unrestricted (Resources 0000-1999) Form 011
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Board Approved Projected Year Difference % Diff
Object Original Budget | Operating Budget | Actuals To Date Totals (ColB & D) (EIB)
Description Resource Codes Codes (A) (B) (C) (D) (E) . (F)
CAPITAL OUTLAY
Land 6100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Land Improvements 6170 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Buildings and Improvements of Buildings 6200 199,985.00 199,985.00 274,000.37 964,384.00 (764,399.00)] -382.2%
Books and Media for New School Libraries
or Major Expansion of School Libraries 6300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Equipment 6400 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Equipment Replacement 6500 135,634.00 231,634.00 70,985.86 181,634.00 50,000.00 21.6%
TOTAL, CAPITAL OUTLAY 335,619.00 431,619.00 344,986.23 1,146,018.00 (714,399.00)|  -165.5%
OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs)
Tuition
Tuition for Instruction Under Interdistrict
Attendance Agreements 7110 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
State Special Schools 7130 6,943.00 6,943.00 689.00 6,943.00 0.00 0.0%
Tuition, Excess Costs, and/or Deficit Payments
Payments to Districts or Charter Schools 7141 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Payments to County Offices 7142 58,002.00 58,002.00 24,565.00 135,381.00 (77,379.00)] -133.4%
Payments to JPAs 7143 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Transfers of Pass-Through Revenues
To Districts or Charter Schools 7211 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
To County Offices 7212 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
To JPAs 7213 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Special Education SELPA Transfers of Abpcnionmems
To Districts or Charter Schools 6500 7221
To County Offices 6500 7222
To JPAs 6500 7223
ROC/P Transfers of Apportionments
To Districts or Charter Schools 6360 7221
To County Offices 6360 7222
To JPAs 6360 7223
Other Transfers of Apportionments All Other 7221-7223 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
All Other Transfers 7281-7283 32,370.00 43,970.00 0.00 43,970.00 0.00 0.0%
All Other Transfers Out to All Others 7299 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Debt Service
Debt Service - Interest 7438 712,614.00 712,614.00 0.00 712,614.00 0.00 0.0%
Other Debt Service - Principal 7439 580,000.00 580,000.00 0.00 580,000.00 0.00 0.0%
TOTAL, OTHER QUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 1,389,929.00 1.401,529.00 25,254.00 1.478,908.00 (77,379.00) -5.5%
OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS
Transfers of Indirect Costs 7310 (40,450.00) (37,412.00) 0.00 (62,114.00) 24,702.00 -66.0%
Transfers of Indirect Costs - Interfund 7350 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS (40,450.00) (37,412.00) 0.00 (62,114.00) 24,702.00 -66.0%
TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 20,472,895.00 20,847,515.00 10,240,972.16 21,512,764.49 (665,249.49) -3.2%

salifornia Dept of Education
3ACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
‘ile: fundi-a (Rev 03/22/2016)

-52-

Page 7

Printed: 3/15/2017 9:38 AM




2016-17 Second Interim

South Monterey County Joint Union High General Fund 27 66068 0000000
Monterey County Unrestricted (Resources 0000-1999) Form 011
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Board Approved Projected Year Difference % Diff

Object Original Budget | Operating Budget | Actuals To Date Totals (Col B & D) (E/B)
Description Resource Codes . Codes (A) s (B) (C) (D) (E) . (F)
INTERFUND TRANSFERS

INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN
From: Special Reserve Fund 8912 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
From: Bond Interest and
Redemption Fund 8914 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Other Authorized Interfund Transfers In 8919 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
(a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT
To: Child Development Fund 7611 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
To: Special Reserve Fund 7612 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
To: State School Building Fund/

County School Facilities Fund 7613 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
To: Cafeteria Fund 7616 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Other Authorized Interfund Transfers Out 7619 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
OTHER SOURCES/USES
SOURCES
State Apportionments
Emergency Apportionments 8931 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Proceeds

Proceeds from Sale/Lease-

Purchase of Land/Buildings 8953 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Sources

Transfers from Funds of

Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 8965 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Long-Term Debt Proceeds

Proceeds from Certificates

of Participation 8971 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Proceeds from Capital Leases 8972 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Proceeds from Lease Revenue Bonds 8973 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

All Other Financing Sources 8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
(c) TOTAL, SOURCES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
USES

Transfers of Funds from

Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 7651 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
All Other Financing Uses 7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(d) TOTAL, USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
CONTRIBUTIONS
Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues 8980 (3,167,635.00) (3.476,565.00) 1,207.49 (3.552,179.00) " (75,614.00) 2.2%
Contributions from Restricted Revenues 8990 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
(e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS (3,167,635.00) (3.476,565.00) 1,207.49 (3.552,179.00) (75,614.00) 2.2%
|
TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCESIUSES '
(a-b+c-d+eg) (3,167,635.00) (3.476,565.00)| 1,207.49 (3,552,179.00) (75,614.00) 2.2%

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 03/22/2016)

_53-

Page 8

Printed: 3/15/2017 9:38 AM



2016-17 Second Interim

South Monterey County Joint Union High General Fund 27 66068 0000000
Monterey County Restricted (Resources 2000-9999) Form 011
Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Board Approved Projected Year Difference % Diff
Object Original Budget | Operating Budget | Actuals To Date Totals (ColB & D) (E/B)
Description Resource Codes Codes (A) . (B) (C) (D) (E) . (F)
A. REVENUES
1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 1,238,681.00 1,388,904.00 297,533.80 1.412,152.00 23,248.00 1.7%
3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 329,556.00 3,125,037.00 2,171,715.83 3,164,986.18 39,949.18 1.3%
4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 804,574.00 838,002.00 434,597.45 955,882.16 117,880.16 14.1%
5) TOTAL, REVENUES 2,372,811.00 5,351,943.00 2,903,847.08 5,533,020.34
B. EXPENDITURES
1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 1,784,957.00 1,887,164.00 988,781.41 1.791,153.00 96,011.00 5.1%
2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 748,443.00 750,470.00 414,877.12 777,365.00 (26,895.00) -3.6%
3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 974,234.00 1,528,731.00 516,554.20 1,512,282.00 16,449.00 1.1%
4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 281,195.00 807,019.00 265,066.66 875,609.45 (68,590.45) -8.5%
5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 1,476,063.00 3,895,891.00 1,398,139.30 3.913,502.16 (17,611.16) -0.5%
6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 503.00 80,503.00 94,811.97 223,563.00 (143,060.00) -177.7%
7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299 .
Costs) 7400-7499 234,600.00 369,350.00 187,036.11 460,621.00 (91,271.00) -24.7%
8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 40,451.00 37.413.00 0.00 62,114.00 (24,701.00) -66.0%
9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 5,540,446.00 9,356,541.00 3,865,266.77 9,616,209.61
C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER
FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (A5 - B9) (3,167,635.00) (4.004,598.00) (961,419.69) (4,083,189.27)
D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCESIUSES
1) Interfund Transfers
a) Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
2) Other Sources/Uses
a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
3) Contributions 8980-8999 3,167,635.00 3,476,565.00 0.00 3,552,179.00 75,614.00 2.2%
4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 3,167,635.00 3,476,565.00 0.00 3,552,179.00
California Dept of Education - 54 -
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 03/22/2016) Page 1 Printed: 3/15/2017 9:38 AM




2016-17 Second Interim

South Monterey County Joint Union High General Fund 27 66068 0000000
Monterey County Restricted (Resources 2000-9999) Form 011
Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Board Approved Projected Year Difference % Diff
Object Original Budget | Operating Budget| Actuals To Date Totals (ColB& D) (EIB)
. |Description Resource Codes .Codes (A) . (B) (C) (D) (E) . (F)
E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND
BALANCE (C + D4) 0.00 (528,033.00) (961,419.69) (531,010.27)
F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES
1) Beginning Fund Balance
a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 252,614.00 666,634.00 666,630.96 (3.04) 0.0%
b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 252,614.00 666,634.00 666,630.96
d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 252,614.00 666,634.00 666,630.96
2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E +F1e) 252,614.00 138,601.00 135,620.69
Components of Ending Fund Balance
a) Nonspendable
Revolving Cash 9711 0.00 0.00 0.00
Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.00
Prepaid Expenditures 9713 0.00 0.00 0.00
All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.00
b) Restricted 9740 252,614.00 138,602.00 135,620.69
c) Committed
Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00
Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.00
d) Assigned
Other Assignments 9780 0.00 0.00 0.00
e) Unassigned/Unappropriated
Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00 0.00
Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 (1.00) 0.00
California Dept of Education =5b=
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 03/22/2016) Page 2 Printed: 3/15/2017 9:38 AM



2016-17 Second Interim

South Monterey County Joint Union High General Fund 27 66068 0000000
Monterey County Restricted (Resources 2000-9999) Form 011
Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Board Approved Projected Year Difference % Diff
Object Original Budget | Operating Budget | Actuals To Date Totals (ColB&D) (E/B)
Description Resource Codes Codes (A) . (B) (C) (D) (E) . (F)
LCFF SOURCES
Principal Apportionment
State Aid - Current Year 8011 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Education Protection Account State Aid - Current Year 8012 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
State Aid - Prior Years 8019 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Tax Relief Subventions
Homeowners' Exemptions 8021 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Timber Yield Tax 8022 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Other Subventions/In-Lieu Taxes 8029 0.00° 0.00 0.00 0.00
County & District Taxes
Secured Roll Taxes 8041 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Unsecured Roll Taxes 8042 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Prior Years' Taxes 8043 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Supplemental Taxes 8044 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Education Revenue Augmentation
Fund (ERAF) 8045 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Community Redevelopment Funds
(SB 617/699/1992) 8047 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Penalties and Interest from
Delinquent Taxes 8048 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Miscellaneous Funds (EC 41604)
Royalties and Bonuses 8081 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Other In-Lieu Taxes 8082 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Less: Non-LCFF
(50%) Adjustment 8089 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Subtotal, LCFF Sources 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
LCFF Transfers
Unrestricted LCFF
Transfers - Current Year 0000 8091
All Other LCFF
Transfers - Current Year All Other 8091 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Transfers to Charter Schools in Lieu of Property Taxes 8096 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Property Taxes Transfers 8097 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
LCFF/Revenue Limit Transfers - Prior Years 8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
TOTAL, LCFF SOURCES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
FEDERAL REVENUE
Maintenance and Operations 8110 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Special Education Entitlement 8181 388,231.00 388,231.00 0.00 388,231.00 0.00 0.0%
Special Education Discretionary Grants 8182 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Child Nutrition Programs 8220 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Donated Food Commodities 8221 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Forest Reserve Funds 8260 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Flood Control Funds 8270 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Wildlife Reserve Funds 8280 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
FEMA 8281 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Interagency Contracts Between LEAs 8285 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Pass-Through Revenues from Federal Sources 8287 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
NCLB: Title I, Part A, Basic Grants
Low-Income and Neglected 3010 8290 662,796.00 __772,181.00 287,761.30 782,505.00 10,324.00 1.3%
NCLB: Title I, Part D, Local Delinquent
Program 3025 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
NCLB: Title Il, Part A, Teacher Quality 4035 8290 53, 5 6 54,712.00 0.00 54,636.00 (76.00) -0.1%)
California Dept of Education TIUT
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 03/22/2016) Page 3 Printed: 3/15/2017 9:38 AM



2016-17 Second Interim

South Monterey County Joint Union High General Fund 27 66068 0000000
Monterey County Restricted (Resources 2000-9999) Form 011
Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Board Approved Projected Year Difference % Diff
Object Original Budget | Operating Budget | Actuals To Date Totals (ColB & D) (EIB)
Description Resource Codes Codes (A) (B) (C) (D) (E) . (F)
NCLB: Title Ill, Immigration Education
Program 4201 8290 4,825.00 10,069.00 0.00 11,717.00 1,648.00 16.4%
NCLB: Title lll, Limited English Proficient (LEP;
Student Program 4203 8290 54,537.00 88,494.00 9,772.50 87,646.00 (848.00) -1.0%
NCLB: Title V, Part B, Public Charter Schools
Grant Program (PCSGP) 4610 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
3012-3020, 3030-
3199, 4036-4126,
Other No Child Left Behind 5510 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Vocational and Applied Technology Education 3500-3699 8290 75,217.00 75,217.00 0.00 87,417.00 12,200.00 16.2%
Safe and Drug Free Schools 3700-3799 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
All Other Federal Revenue All Other 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
TOTAL, FEDERAL REVENUE 1,238,681.00 1,388,904.00 297,533.80 1,412,152.00 23,248.00 1.7%
OTHER STATE REVENUE
Other State Apportionments
ROC/P Entitlement
Prior Years 6360 8319 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Special Education Master Plan
Current Year 6500 8311 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Prior Years 6500 8319 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
All Other State Apportionments - Current Year All Other 8311 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
All Other State Apportionments - Prior Years All Other 8319 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Child Nutrition Programs 8520 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Mandated Costs Reimbursements 8550 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Lottery - Unrestricted and Instructional Materi: 8560 90,700.00 105,278.00 27,800.32 105,278.00 0.00 0.0%
Tax Relief Subventions
Restricted Levies - Other
Homeowners' Exemptions 8575 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Other Subventions/In-Lieu Taxes 8576 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Pass-Through Revenues from State Sources 8587 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
After School Education and Safety (ASES) 6010 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Charter School Facility Grant 6030 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Career Technical Education Incentive Grant
Program 6387 8590 0.00 264,996.00 333,252.00 332,252.00 67,256.00 25.4%
Drug/Alcohol/Tobacco Funds 6650, 6690 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
California Clean Energy Jobs Act 6230 8590 121,145.00 121,145.00 0.00 121,145.00 0.00 0.0%
Specialized Secondary 7370 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
American Indian Early Childhood Education 7210 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Quality Education Investment Act 7400 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Common Core State Standards
Implementation 7405 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
All Other State Revenue All Other 8590 117,711.00 2,633,618.00 1,810,663.51 2,606,311.18 (27,306.82) -1.0%
TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 329,556.00 3,125,037.00 2,171,715.83 3,164,986.18 39,949.18 1.3%
California Dept of Education =5 =
SACS Financial Reporting Sofiware - 2016.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 03/22/2016) Page 4 Printed: 3/15/2017 9:38 AM



2016-17 Second Interim

South Monterey County Joint Union High General Fund 27 66068 0000000
Monterey County Restricted (Resources 2000-9999) Form 011
Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Board Approved Projected Year Difference % Diff
Object Original Budget | Operating Budget | Actuals To Date Totals (ColB & D) (E/IB)
Description Resource Codes Codes (A) (B) . (C) (D) (E) (F)
OTHER LOCAL REVENUE
Other Local Revenue
County and District Taxes
Other Restricted Levies
Secured Roll 8615 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Unsecured Roll 8616 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Prior Years' Taxes 8617 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Supplemental Taxes 8618 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Non-Ad Valorem Taxes
Parcel Taxes 8621 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Other 8622 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Community Redevelopment Funds
Not Subject to LCFF Deduction 8625 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Penalties and Interest from Delinquent Non-LCFF
Taxes 8629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Sales
Sale of Equipment/Supplies . 8631 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Sale of Publications 8632 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Food Service Sales 8634 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
All Other Sales 8639 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Leases and Rentals 8650 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Interest 8660 36.00 36.00 (314.17) 36.00 0.00 0.0%
Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments 8662 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Fees and Contracts
Adult Education Fees 8671 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Non-Resident Students 8672 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Transportation Fees From Individuals 8675 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Interagency Services 8677 0.00 0.00 (2,012.50) 72,980.16 72,980.16 New
Mitigation/Developer Fees 8681 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
All Other Fees and Contracts 8689 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Other Local Revenue
Plus: Misc Funds Non-LCFF (50%) Adjustme 8691 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Pass-Through Revenues From Local Sources 8697 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
All Other Local Revenue ‘ 8699 17,700.00 21,700.00 61,442.12 66,600.00 44,900.00 206.9%
Tuition 8710 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
All Other Transfers In 8781-8783 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Transfers Of Apportionments
Special Education SELPA Transfers
From Districts or Charter Schools 6500 8791 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
From County Offices 6500 8792 786,838.00 816,266.00 375,482.00 816,266.00 0.00 0.0%
From JPAs 6500 8793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
| ROCIP Transfers
From Districts or Charter Schools 6360 8791 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
From County Offices 6360 8792 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
From JPAs 6360 8793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Other Transfers of Apportionments
From Districts or Charter Schools All Other 8791 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 | 0.0%
From County Offices All Other 8792 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 | 0.0%
From JPAs All Other 8793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 10.00 | 0.0%
All Other Transfers In from All Others 8799 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 | 0.0%
TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 804,574.00 838,002.00 434,597.45 955,882.16 117,880.16 | 14.1%
| t
TOTAL, REVENUES 2,372,811.00 5351,943.00 |  2,903,847.08 5,533,020.34 181,077.34 | 3.4%
Zalifornia Dept of Education - 58 B
5ACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
file: fundi-a (Rev 03/22/2016) Page 5 Printed: 3/15/2017 9:38 AM



2016-17 Second Interim

South Monterey County Joint Union High General Fund 27 66068 0000000
Monterey County Restricted (Resources 2000-9999) Form 011
Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Board Approved Projected Year Difference % Diff
Object Original Budget | Operating Budget | Actuals To Date Totals (ColB & D) (E/B)
Description Resource Codes Codes (A) . (B) (C) (D) (E) (F)
CERTIFICATED SALARIES
Certificated Teachers' Salaries 1100 1,346,368.00 1,325,336.00 687,105.09 1,273,324.00 52,012.00 3.9%
Certificated Pupil Support Salaries 1200 285,880.00 305,928.00 178,336.69 305,928.00 0.00 0.0%
Certificated Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 1300 152,708.00 255,900.00 123,339.63 211,901.00 43,999.00 17.2%
Other Certificated Salaries 1900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
TOTAL, CERTIFICATED SALARIES 1.784,957.00 1,887,164.00 988,781.41 1.791,153.00 96,011.00 5.1%
CLASSIFIED SALARIES
Classified Instructional Salaries 2100 539,665.00 532,656.00 295,618.24 555,776.00 (23,120.00) -4.3%
Classified Support Salaries 2200 139,341.00 149,494.00 87,873.03 150,071.00 (577.00) -0.4%
Classified Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 2300 42,923.00 45,819.00 17,360.03 45,819.00 0.00 0.0%
Clerical, Technical and Office Salaries 2400 26,514.00 22,501.00 14,025.82 25,699.00 (3,198.00) -14.2%
Other Classified Salaries 2900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 748,443.00 750,470.00 414,877.12 777,365.00 (26,895.00) -3.6%
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
STRS 3101-3102 224,329.00 822,428.00 122,868.76 808,809.00 13.,619.00 1.7%
PERS 3201-3202 103,953.00 99,716.00 54,063.11 100,535.00 (819.00) -0.8%
OASDI/Medicare/Alternative 3301-3302 104,983.00 86,779.00 46,116.94 87,326.00 (547.00) -0.6%
Health and Welfare Benefits 3401-3402 482,185.00 467,345.00 261,432.17 464,554.00 2,791.00 0.6%
Unemployment Insurance 3501-3502 1,286.00 1,325.00 4,647.16 1,311.00 14.00 1.1%
Workers' Compensation 3601-3602 57,498.00 51,138.00 27,318.60 49,639.00 1,499.00 2.9%
OPERB, Allocated 3701-3702 0.00 0.00 107.46 108.00 (108.00) New
OPEB, Active Employees 3751-3752 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Other Employee Benefits 3901-3902 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 974,234.00 1,528,731.00 516,554.20 1,512,282.00 16,449.00 1.1%
BOOKS AND SUPPLIES
Approved Textbooks and Core Curricula Materials 4100 90,736.00 110,314.00 100,096.49 135,800.00 (25,486.00) -23.1%
Books and Other Reference Materials 4200 20,469.00 37,093.00 22,806.07 49,960.00 (12,867.00) -34.7%
Materials and Supplies 4300 101,767.00 557,224.00 92,649.10 525,258.45 31,965.55 5.7%
Noncapitalized Equipment 4400 68,223.00 102,388.00 49,515.00 164,591.00 (62,203.00) -60.8%
Food 4700 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
TOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 281,195.00 807,019.00 265,066.66 875,609.45 (68,590.45) -8.5%
SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES
Subagreements for Services 5100 20,000.00 20,000.00 0.00 20,000.00 0.00 0.0%
Travel and Conferences 5200 76,560.00 146,028.00 65,866.91 160,319.07 (14,291.07) -9.8%
Dues and Memberships 5300 2,270.00 10,520.00 8,282.00 15,520.00 (5.000.00) -47.5%
Insurance 5400-5450 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Operations and Housekeeping Services 5500 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0(;‘ 0.0%
Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncapitalized Improvements 5600 394,200.00 2,048,645.00 1,075,500.39 1,924,884.00 123,761.00 6.0%
Transfers of Direct Costs 5710 4,000.00 4,000.00 6,862.42 10,842.19 (6,842.19)] -171.1%
Transfers of Direct Costs - Interfund 5750 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Professional/Consulting Services and I
Operating Expenditures 5800 972,593.00 1,662,806.00 239,513.58 1,778,044.90 [ 15,238.90)§ -6.9%
Communications 5900 6,440.00 3,892.00 2,114.00 3,892.00 0.00 0.0%
TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER .
OPERATING EXPENDITURES 1,476,063.00 | 3,895,891.00 1,398,139.30 3,913,502.16 (17,611.16) -0.5%
California Dept of Education -89-
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 03/22/2016) Page 6 Printed: 3/15/2017 9:38 AM



2016-17 Second Interim

South Monterey County Joint Union High General Fund 27 66068 0000000
Monterey County Restricted (Resources 2000-9999) Form 011
Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Board Approved Projected Year Difference % Diff
Object Original Budget | Operating Budget| Actuals To Date Totals (ColB&D) (EIB)
Description . Resource Codes Codes (A) (B) (C) (D) (E) (F)
CAPITAL OUTLAY
Land 6100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Land Improvements 6170 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
Buildings and Improvements of Buildings 6200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Books and Media for New School Libraries
or Major Expansion of School Libraries 6300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Equipment 6400 0.00 80,000.00 94,811.97 223,060.00 (143,060.00)] -178.8%
Equipment Replacement 6500 503.00 503.00 0.00 503.00 0.00 0.0%
TOTAL, CAPITAL OUTLAY 503.00 80,503.00 94,811.97 223,563.00 (143,060.00)] -177.7%
OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs)
Tuition
Tuition for Instruction Under Interdistrict
Attendance Agreements 7110 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
State Special Schools 7130 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Tuition, Excess Costs, and/or Deficit Payments .
Payments to Districts or Charter Schools 7141 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Payments to County Offices 7142 234,600.00 369,350.00 187,036.11 460,621.00 (91,271.00) -24.7%
Payments to JPAs 7143 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Transfers of Pass-Through Revenues
To Districts or Charter Schools 7211 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
To County Offices 7212 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
To JPAs 7213 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Special Education SELPA Transfers of Apportionments
To Districts or Charter Schools 6500 7221 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
To County Offices 6500 7222 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
To JPAs 6500 7223 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
ROC/P Transfers of Apportionments
To Districts or Charter Schools 6360 7221 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
To County Offices 6360 7222 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
To JPAs 6360 7223 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Other Transfers of Apportionments All Other 7221-7223 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
All Other Transfers 7281-7283 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
All Other Transfers Out to All Others 7299 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Debt Service
Debt Service - Interest 7438 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Other Debt Service - Principal 7439 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 234,600.00 369,350.00 187,036.11 460,621.00 (91,271.00) -24.7%
OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS
Transfers of Indirect Costs 7310 40,451.00 37,413.00 0.00 62,114.00 (24,701.00)]  -66.0%
Transfers of Indirect Costs - Interfund 7350 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS 40,451.00 37,413.00 0.00 62,114.00 (24,701.00) -66.0%
TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 5,540,446.00 | 9,356,541.00 3,865,266.77 9,616,209.61 (259,668.61) -2.8%
California Dept of Education -60- e
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0 T
=ile: fundi-a (Rev 03/22/2016) Page 7 Printed: 3/15/2017 9:38 AM




2016-17 Second Interim

South Monterey County Joint Union High General Fund 27 66068 0000000
Monterey County Restricted (Resources 2000-9999) Form 011
Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Board Approved Projected Year Difference % Diff
Object Original Budget | Operating Budget | Actuals To Date Totals (ColB&D) (E/B)
Description Resource Codes Codes (A) (B) (C) (D) ; (E) (F)
INTERFUND TRANSFERS
INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN
From: Special Reserve Fund 8912 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
From: Bond Interest and
Redemption Fund 8914 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Other Authorized Interfund Transfers In 8919 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
(a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT
To: Child Development Fund 7611 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
To: Special Reserve Fund 7612 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
To: State School Building Fund/
County School Facilities Fund 7613 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
To: Cafeteria Fund 7616 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Other Authorized Interfund Transfers Out 7619 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
(b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
OTHER SOURCES/IUSES
SOURCES
State Apportionments
Emergency Apportionments 8931 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Proceeds
Proceeds from Sale/Lease-
Purchase of Land/Buildings 8953 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Other Sources
Transfers from Funds of
Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 8965 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Long-Term Debt Proceeds
Proceeds from Certificates
of Participation 8971 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Proceeds from Capital Leases 8972 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Proceeds from Lease Revenue Bonds 8973 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
All Other Financing Sources 8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
(c) TOTAL, SOURCES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
USES
Transfers of Funds from
Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 7651 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
All Other Financing Uses 7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
(d) TOTAL, USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
CONTRIBUTIONS
Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues 8980 3,167,635.00 3,476,565.00 | 0.00 3,552,179.00 75,614.00 2.2%|
Contributions from Restricted Revenues 89390 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
(e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS 3,167,635.00 3,476,565.00 0.00 3,552,179.00 75,614.00 2.2%
TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
(@a-b+c-d+e) 3,167,635.00 3.476,565.00 0.00 3,552,179.00 (75.614.00) 2.2%
salifornia Dept“o'f;Education -61-
ACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
‘ile: fundi-a (Rev 03/22/2016) Page 8 Printed: 3/15/2017 9:38 AM



2016-17 Second Interim

South Monterey County Joint Union High General Fund 27 66068 0000000
Monterey County Summary - Unrestricted/Restricted Form 011
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Board Approved Projected Year Difference % Diff
Object Original Budget | Operating Budget | Actuals To Date Totals (ColB &D) (E/B)
Description Resource Codes Codes (A) (B) (C) (D) (E) - (F)
LCFF SOURCES
Principal Apportionment
State Aid - Current Year 8011 14,013,631.00 13,989,637.00 9,011,687.00 14,155,798.00 166,161.00 1.2%
Education Protection Account State Aid - Current Year 8012 3,172,175.00 3,184,341.00 1,528,320.00 3,206,036.00 21,695.00 0.7%
State Aid - Prior Years 8019 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Tax Relief Subventions
Homeowners' Exemptions 8021 29,157.00 29,157.00 12,958.60 29,157.00 0.00 0.0%
Timber Yield Tax 8022 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Other Subventions/in-Lieu Taxes 8029 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
County & District Taxes
Secured Roll Taxes 8041 5,124,167.00 5,124,167.00 2,704,637.32 5,126,282.00 2,115.00 0.0%
Unsecured Roll Taxes 8042 207,631.00 207,631.00 172,965.81 207,631.00 0.00 0.0%
Prior Years' Taxes 8043 51,487.00 51,487.00 38,985.50 51,487.00 0.00 0.0%
Supplemental Taxes 8044 64,676.00 64,676.00 51,956.09 64,676.00 0.00 0.0%
Education Revenue Augmentation
Fund (ERAF) 8045 138,603.00 138,603.00 (332.85) 138,603.00 0.00 0.0%
Community Redevelopment Funds
(SB 617/699/1992) 8047 36,164.00 36,164.00 45,565.45 36,164.00 0.00 0.0%
Penalties and Interest from
Delinquent Taxes 8048 2,115.00 2,115.00 803.72 2,115.00 0.00 0.0%
Miscellaneous Funds (EC 41604)
Royalties and Bonuses 8081 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Other In-Lieu Taxes 8082 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Less: Non-LCFF
(50%) Adjustment 8089 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Subtotal, LCFF Sources 22,839,806.00 22,827,978.00 13,567,546.64 23,017,949.00 189,971.00 0.8%
LCFF Transfers
Unrestricted LCFF
Transfers - Current Year 0000 8091 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
All Other LCFF
Transfers - Current Year All Other 8091 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Transfers to Charter Schools in Lieu of Property Taxes 8096 0.00 (26,873.00) 0.00 (26,458.00) 415.00 -1.5%
Property Taxes Transfers 8097 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
LCFF/Revenue Limit Transfers - Prior Years 8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
TOTAL, LCFF SOURCES 22,839,806.00 22,801,105.00 13,567,546.64 22,991,491.00 190,386.00 0.8%
FEDERAL REVENUE
Maintenance and Operations 8110 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Special Education Entitlement 8181 388,231.00 388,231.00 0.00 388,231.00 0.00 0.0%
Special Education Discretionary Grants 8182 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Child Nutrition Programs 8220 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Donated Food Commodities 8221 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Forest Reserve Funds 8260 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Flood Control Funds 8270 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Wildlife Reserve Funds 8280 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
FEMA 8281 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Interagency Contracts Between LEAs 8285 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Pass-Through Revenues from Federal Sources 8287 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
NCLB: Title I, Part A, Basic Grants
Low-Income and Neglected 3010 8290 662,796.00 772,181.00 287,761.30 782,505.00 10,324.00 1.3%
NCLB: Title I, Part D, Local Delinquent i
Program 3025 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
NCLB: Title I, Part A, Teacher Quality 4035 8290 53, 6 2 54,712.00 0.00 54,636.00 (76.00) -0.1%;

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 03/22/2016)

Page 3

Printed: 3/15/2017 9:38 AM



2016-17 Second Interim

South Monterey County Joint Union High General Fund 27 66068 0000000
Monterey County Summary - Unrestricted/Restricted Form 011
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Board Approved Projected Year Difference % Diff
Object Original Budget | Operating Budget | Actuals To Date Totals (Col B & D) (EIB)
Description Resource Codes . Codes (A) : (B) (C) (D) (E) . (F)
NCLB: Title [Il, Immigration Education .
Program 4201 8290 4,825.00 10,069.00 0.00 11,717.00 1,648.00 16.4%
NCLB: Title lll, Limited English Proficient (LEP;
Student Program 4203 8290 54,537.00 88,494.00 9,772.50 87,646.00 (848.00) -1.0%
NCLB: Title V, Part B, Public Charter Schools
Grant Program (PCSGP) 4610 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
3012-3020, 3030-
3199, 4036-4126,
Other No Child Left Behind 5510 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Vocational and Applied Technology Education 3500-3699 8290 75,217.00 75,217.00 0.00 87,417.00 12,200.00 16.2%
Safe and Drug Free Schools 3700-3799 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
All Other Federal Revenue All Other 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
TOTAL, FEDERAL REVENUE 1,238,681.00 1,388,904.00 297,533.80 1,412,152.00 23,248.00 1.7%
OTHER STATE REVENUE
Other State Apportionments
ROC/P Entitlement
Prior Years 6360 8319 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Special Education Master Plan
Current Year 6500 8311 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Prior Years 6500 8319 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
All Other State Apportionments - Current Year All Other 8311 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
All Other State Apportionments - Prior Years All Other 8319 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Child Nutrition Programs 8520 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Mandated Costs Reimbursements 8550 106.,430.00 543,005.00 476,773.00 543,005.00 0.00 0.0%
Lottery - Unrestricted and Instructional Materi: 8560 377,653.00 411,632.00 160,729.13 411,632.00 0.00 0.0%
Tax Relief Subventions
Restricted Levies - Other
Homeowners' Exemptions 8575 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Other Subventions/In-Lieu Taxes 8576 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Pass-Through Revenues from State Sources 8587 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
After School Education and Safety (ASES) 6010 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Charter School Facility Grant 6030 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Career Technical Education Incentive Grant
Program 6387 8590 0.00 264,996.00 333,252.00 332,252.00 67,256.00 25.4%
Drug/Alcohol/Tobacco Funds 6650, 6690 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
California Clean Energy Jobs Act 6230 8590 121,145.00 121,145.00 0.00 121,145.00 0.00 0.0%
Specialized Secondary 7370 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
American Indian Early Childhood Education 7210 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Quality Education Investment Act 7400 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Common Core State Standards
Implementation 7405 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
All Other State Revenue All Other 8590 117,711.00 2,633,618.00 1,811,188.22 2,606,311.18 (27,306.82) -1.0%
TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 722,939.00 3,974,396.00 2,781,942.35 4,014,345.18 39,949.18 1.0%
California Dept of Education -63-
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 03/22/2016) Page 4 Printed: 3/15/2017 9:38 AM



2016-17 Second Interim

South Monterey County Joint Union High General Fund 27 66068 0000000
Monterey County Summary - Unrestricted/Restricted Form 011
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Board Approved Projected Year Difference % Diff
Object Original Budget | Operating Budget | Actuals To Date Totals (Col B & D) (EIB)
Description . Resource Codes Codes (A) . (B) (C) (D) . _(E) (F)
OTHER LOCAL REVENUE
Other Local Revenue
County and District Taxes
Other Restricted Levies
Secured Roll 8615 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Unsecured Roll 8616 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Prior Years' Taxes 8617 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Supplemental Taxes 8618 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Non-Ad Valorem Taxes
Parcel Taxes 8621 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Other 8622 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Community Redevelopment Funds
Not Subject to LCFF Deduction 8625 219,633.00 219,633.00 50,128.36 222,406.00 2,773.00 1.3%
Penalties and Interest from Delinquent Non-LCFF
Taxes 8629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Sales
Sale of Equipment/Supplies 8631 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Sale of Publications 8632 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Food Service Sales 8634 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
All Other Sales 8639 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Leases and Rentals 8650 16,000.00 16,000.00 22,317.41 16,000.00 0.00 0.0%
Interest 8660 43,388.00 43,388.00 65,807.92 94,947.16 51,559.16 118.8%
Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments 8662 2,423.00 2,423.00 0.00 2,423.00 0.00 0.0%
Fees and Contracts
Adult Education Fees 8671 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Non-Resident Students 8672 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Transportation Fees From Individuals 8675 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Interagency Services 8677 0.00 0.00 (2,012.50) 72,980.16 72,980.16 New
Mitigation/Developer Fees 8681 0.00 0.00 000/ 0.00 0.00 0.0%
All Other Fees and Contracts 8689 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Other Local Revenue
Plus: Misc Funds Non-LCFF (50%) Adjustment 8691 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Pass-Through Revenues From Local Sources 8697 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
All Other Local Revenue 8699 497,568.00 501,568.00 238,255.20 574,999.00 73,431.00 14.6%
Tuition 8710 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
All Other Transfers In 8781-8783 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Transfers Of Apportionments
Special Education SELPA Transfers
From Districts or Charter Schools 6500 8791 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
From County Offices 6500 8792 786,838.00 816,266.00 375,482.00 816,266.00 0.00 0.0%
From JPAs 6500 8793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
ROC/P Transfers
From Districts or Charter Schools 6360 8791 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
From County Offices 6360 8792 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
From JPAs 6360 8793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Other Transfers of Apportionments
From Districts or Charter Schools All Other 8791 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
From County Offices All Other 8792 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
From JPAs All Other 8793 0.00 e ____0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
All Other Transfers In from All Others 8799 0.00 _ 0.0 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 1,565,850.00 1,599,278.00 749,978.39 1,800,021.32 200,743.32 12.6%
TOTAL, REVENUES 26,367,276.00 29,763,683.00 | 17,397,001.18 30,218,009.50 454,326.50 1.5%
Zalifornia Dept of Education -64-
5ACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
“ile: fundi-a (Rev 03/22/2016) Page 5 Printed: 3/15/2017 9:38 AM



2016-17 Second Interim

South Monterey County Joint Union High General Fund 27 66068 0000000
Monterey County Summary - Unrestricted/Restricted Form 01l
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Board Approved Projected Year Difference % Diff
Object Original Budget | Operating Budget | Actuals To Date Totals (ColB & D) (EIB)
Description . Resource Codes Codes . A (B) (C) (D) (E) (F)
CERTIFICATED SALARIES
Certificated Teachers' Salaries 1100 8,370,049.00 8,510,798.00 4,551,842.22 8,548,899.00 (38,101.00) -0.4%
Certificated Pupil Support Salaries 1200 614,934.00 639,783.00 356,392.17 640,316.00 (533.00) -0.1%
Certificated Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 1300 1,147,088.00 1,168,703.00 670,130.90 1,263,104.51 (94,401.51) -8.1%
Other Certificated Salaries 1900 100,002.00 100,002.00 51,409.68 127,002.00 (27,000.00) -27.0%
TOTAL, CERTIFICATED SALARIES 10,232,073.00 10,419,286.00 5,629,774.97 10,579,321.51 (160,035.51) -1.5%
CLASSIFIED SALARIES
Classified Instructional Salaries 2100 539,665.00 532,656.00 295,618.24 555,776.00 (23,120.00) -4.3%
Classified Support Salaries 2200 1,314,882.00 1,331,548.00 719,515.76 1,301,983.00 29,565.00 2.2%
Classified Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 2300 490,642.00 538,361.00 291,419.77 524,469.94 13,891.06 2.6%
Clerical, Technical and Office Salaries 2400 599,756.00 640,440.00 367,021.48 653,682.47 (13,242.47) -2.1%
Other Classified Salaries 2900 100,002.00 100,002.00 34,734.29 102,229.00 (2,227.00) -2.2%
TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 3,044,947.00 3,143,007.00 1,708,309.54 3,138,140.41 4,866.59 0.2%
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
STRS 3101-3102 1,257,782.00 1,886,784.00 700,024.89 1,889,592.00 (2,808.00) -0.1%
PERS 3201-3202 428,181.00 413,484.00 209,069.04 410,708.00 2,776.00 0.7%
OASDI/Medicare/Alternative 3301-3302 426,056.00 406,915.00 211,684.60 414,808.76 (7,893.76) -1.9%
Health and Welfare Benefits 3401-3402 2,006,025.00 1,991,529.00 1,076,938.38 2,002,077.00 (10,548.00) -0.5%
Unemployment Insurance 3501-3502 6,698.00 7,657.00 10,015.77 12,326.00 (4,669.00) -61.0%
Workers' Compensation 3601-3602 301,109.00 264,096.00 143,486.70 265,914.00 (1,818.00) -0.7%
OPEB, Allocated 3701-3702 142,524.00 147,953.00 100,172.55 148,061.00 (108.00) -0.1%
OPEB, Active Employees 3751-3752 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Other Employee Benefits 3901-3902 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 4,568,375.00 5,118,418.00 2,451,391.93 5,143,486.76 (25,068.76) -0.5%
BOOKS AND SUPPLIES
Approved Textbooks and Core Curricula Materials 4100 190,736.00 210,314.00 140,037.54 253,965.00 (43,651.00) -20.8%
Books and Other Reference Materials 4200 78,557.00 103,181.00 34,859.32 107,370.69 (4,189.69) -4.1%
Materials and Supplies 4300 665,789.00 1,166,836.00 418,878.56 1,167,575.45 (739.45) -0.1%
Noncapitalized Equipment 4400 616,421.00 656,557.00 432,232.48 701,815.00 (45,258.00) -6.9%
Food 4700 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
TOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 1,551,503.00 2,136,888.00 1,026,007.80 2,230,726.14 (93,838.14) -4.4%
SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES
Subagreements for Services 5100 20,000.00 20,000.00 0.00 20,000.00 0.00 0.0%
Travel and Conferences 5200 177,060.00 255,282.00 151,606.94 366,942.38 (111,660.38) -43.7%
Dues and Memberships 5300 74,313.00 82,563.00 51,536.17 92,683.00 (10,120.00) -12.3%
Insurance 5400-5450 166,890.00 177,890.00 175,875.00 " 177,890.00 0.00 0.0%
Operations and Housekeeping Services 5500 563,220.00 576,220.00 298,776.91 568,720.00 7,500.00 1.3%
Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncapitalized Improvements 5600 1,100,762.00 2,765,955.00 1,171,214.32 2,420,202.00 345,753.00 12.5%
Transfers of Direct Costs 5710 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Transfers of Direct Costs - Interfund 5750 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Professional/Consulting Services and
Operating Expenditures 5800 2,441,212.00 3,143,457.00 733,373.06 2,973,161.90 170,295.10 5.4%
Communications 5900 112,334.00 82,088.00 56,283.88 108,590.00 ; (26,502.00) -32.3%
TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER
OPERATING EXPENDITURES 4,655,791.00 7,103,455.00 2,638,666.28 6,728,189.28 | 375,265.72 5.3%
Salifornia Dept of Education -65-
3ACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
“ile: fundi-a (Rev 03/22/2016) Page 6 Printed: 3/15/2017 9:38 AM




2016-17 Second Interim

South Monterey County Joint Union High General Fund 27 66068 0000000
Monterey County Summary - Unrestricted/Restricted Form 011
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Board Approved Projected Year Difference % Diff
Object Original Budget | Operating Budget | Actuals To Date Totals (ColB & D) (E/IB)
Description Resource Codes Codes. (A) (B). (C) . (D) (E) _(F)
CAPITAL OUTLAY
Land 6100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Land Improvements 6170 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Buildings and Improvements of Buildings 6200 199,985.00 199,985.00 274,000.37 964,384.00 (764,399.00)| -382.2%
Books and Media for New School Libraries
or Major Expansion of School Libraries 6300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Equipment 6400 0.00 80,000.00 94,811.97 223,060.00 (143,060.00)| -178.8%
Equipment Replacement 6500 136,137.00 232,137.00 70,985.86 182,137.00 50,000.00 21.5%
TOTAL, CAPITAL OUTLAY 336,122.00 512,122.00 439,798.20 1,369,581.00 (857.459.00)| -167.4%
OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs)
Tuition
Tuition for Instruction Under Interdistrict
Attendance Agreements 7110 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
State Special Schools 7130 6,943.00 6,943.00 689.00 6,943.00 0.00 0.0%
Tuition, Excess Costs, and/or Deficit Payments
Payments to Districts or Charter Schools 7141 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Payments to County Offices 7142 292,602.00 427,352.00 211,601.11 596,002.00 (168,650.00) -39.5%
Payments to JPAs 7143 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Transfers of Pass-Through Revenues
To Districts or Charter Schools 7211 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
To County Offices 7212 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
To JPAs 7213 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Special Education SELPA Transfers of Apportionments
To Districts or Charter Schools 6500 7221 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
To County Offices 6500 7222 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
To JPAs 6500 7223 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
ROC/P Transfers of Apportionments
To Districts or Charter Schools 6360 7221 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
To County Offices 6360 7222 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
To JPAs 6360 7223 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Other Transfers of Apportionments All Other 7221-7223 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
All Other Transfers 7281-7283 32,370.00 43,970.00 0.00 43,970.00 0.00 0.0%
All Other Transfers Out to All Others 7299 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Debt Service
Debt Service - Interest 7438 712,614.00 712,614.00 0.00 712,614.00 0.00 0.0%
Other Debt Service - Principal 7439 580,000.00 580,000.00 0.00 580,000.00 0.00 0.0%
TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 1,624,529.00 1,770,879.00 212,290.11 1,939,529.00 (168,650.00) -9.5%
OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS
Transfers of Indirect Costs 7310 1.00 1.00 0.00 0.00 i
Transfers of Indirect Costs - Interfund 7350 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
TOTAL, OTHER QUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS 1.00 1.00 0.00 0.00 1.00 100.0%
TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 26,013,341.00 30,204,056.00 14,106,238.93 31,128,974.10 (924,918.10) -3.1%

California Dept of Education - 66 -
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
Zile: fundi-a (Rev 03/22/2016) Page 7 Printed: 3/15/2017 9:38 AM




2016-17 Second Interim

South Monterey County Joint Union High General Fund 27 66068 0000000
Monterey County Summary - Unrestricted/Restricted Form 01l
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Board Approved Projected Year Difference % Diff
Object Original Budget | Operating Budget | Actuals To Date Totals (ColB&D) (EIB)
Description . Resource Codes Codes . (A (B) (C) (D) . (E) (F)
INTERFUND TRANSFERS
INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN
From: Special Reserve Fund 8912 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
From: Bond Interest and
Redemption Fund 8914 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Other Authorized Interfund Transfers In 8919 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
(a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT
To: Child Development Fund 7611 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
To: Special Reserve Fund 7612 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
To: State School Building Fund/

County School Facilities Fund 7613 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
To: Cafeteria Fund 7616 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Other Authorized Interfund Transfers Out 7619 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT ] 0.00 0.0 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
OTHER SOURCES/USES
SOURCES
State Apportionments
Emergency Apportionments 8931 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Proceeds
Proceeds from Sale/Lease-
Purchase of Land/Buildings 8953 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Other Sources

Transfers from Funds of

Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 8965 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Long-Term Debt Proceeds

Proceeds from Certificates
of Participation 8971 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Proceeds from Capital Leases 8972 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Proceeds from Lease Revenue Bonds 8973 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
All Other Financing Sources 8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
(c) TOTAL, SOURCES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
USES
Transfers of Funds from
Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 7651 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
All Other Financing Uses 7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
(d) TOTAL, USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
CONTRIBUTIONS
Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues 8980 ° 0.00 ~__0.00 1,207.49 ) 0.00
Contributions from Restricted Revenues 8990 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
_(e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS 0.00 0.00 1,207.49 0.00 0.00 0.0%
TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
(@a-b+c-d+e) 0.00 0.00 1,207.49 0.00 0.00 0.0%

California Dept of Education = 67 =
3ACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
“ile: fundi-a (Rev 03/22/2016) Page 8 Printed: 3/15/2017 9:38 AM



South Monterey County Joint Union High

Second Interim

General Fund 27 66068 0000000
Monterey County Exhibit: Restricted Balance Detail Form 01l
2016-17
Resource Description Projected Year Totals
6300 Lottery: Instructional Materials 102.08
9010 Other Restricted Local 135,518.61
Total, Restricted Balance 135,620.69

California Dept of Education

SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
File: fundi-a (Rev 04/24/2012)

£-68-

Printed: 3/15/2017 9:38 AM



SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT '
800 Broadway Street, King City, CA 93930 * 831-385-0606 = FAX 831-385-0695

2016/17 Second Interim Financial Report
March 22, 2017

Fund 09
Charter Schools Special Revenue Fund

-69-



2016-17 Second Interim

South Monterey County Joint Union High Charter Schools Special Revenue Fund 27 66068 0000000
Monterey County Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance Form 09I
% Diff
Board Approved Projected Year Difference Column
. Original Budget Operating Budget Actuals To Date Totals _(CalB&D) B&D
Description Resource Codes Object Codes| (A) (B) (C) (D) (E) {F)
A. REVENUES
1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 0.00 106,179.00 5,802.00 108,912.00 2,733.00 2.6%
2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%A
3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,248.00 2,248.00 New|
4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%]
5) TOTAL, REVENUES 0.00 106,179.00 5,802.00 111,160.00
B. EXPENDITURES
1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 0.00 74,430.00 16,655.41 42,206.00 32,224.00
2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 0.00 3.760.00 1,153.14 3,076.00 684.00
3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 0.00 14,903.00 5,771.92 16,908.00 (2,005.00
4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 0.00 6,000.00 27.72 6,526.00 (526.00;
5) Services and Other Operaling Expenditures 5000-5999 0.00 2,000.00 14.00 1,032.00 968.00
6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299,
Costs) 7400-7499 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 0.00 101,093.00 23,622.19 69,748.00
C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER
FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (A5 - B9) 0.00 5,086.00 (17, 820.;9__1] 41,412.00
D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
1) Interfund Transfers
a) Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%]|
b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
2) Other Sources/Uses
a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

salifornia Dept of Education
JACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
‘ile: fundi-b (Rev 05/12/2016)

-70-

Page 1

Printed: 3/15/2017 9:38 AM



2016-17 Second Interim

South Monterey County Joint Union High Charter Schools Special Revenue Fund 27 66068 0000000
Monterey County Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance Form 09I
% Diff
Board Approved Projected Year Difference Column
) . Original Budget Operating Budget Actuals To Date Totals (ColB&D) B&D
Description Resource Codes  Object Codes| (A) (B) (C) (D) (E) (F)
E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND
BALANCE (C + D4) 0.00 5,086.00 (17, 820.12;] 41,412.00
F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES
1) Beginning Fund Balance
a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 0.00 0.00 0.00
d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 0.00 0.00 0.00
2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 0.00 5,086.00 41,412.00
Components of Ending Fund Balance
a) Nonspendable
Revolving Cash 9711 0.00 0.00 0.00
Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.00
Prepaid Expenditures 9713 0.00 0.00 0.00
All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.00
b) Restricted 9740 0.00 0.00 0.00
c) Committed
Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00
Other Committments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.00
d) Assigned
Other Assignments 9780 0.00 0.00 41,412.00
e) Unassigned/Unappropriated
Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 5,086.00 0.00
| Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00

Zalifornia Dept of Education
5ACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 05/12/2016)

-71-

Page 2

Printed: 3/15/2017 9:38 AM



2016-17 Second Interim

South Monterey County Joint Union High Charter Schools Special Revenue Fund 27 66068 0000000
Monterey County Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance Form 09I
% Diff
Board Approved Projected Year Difference Column
! . Original Budget Operating Budget Actuals To Date Totals (ColB& D) B&D
Description Resource Codes  Object Codes (A) (B) (C) (D) (E) (F)
LCFF SOURCES
Principal Apportionment
State Aid - Current Year 8011 0.00 77,306.00 5,672.00 80,176.00 2,870.00 3.7%
Education Protection Account State Aid - Cumrent Year 8012 0.00 2,000.00 130.00 2,278.00 278.00 13.9%!
State Aid - Prior Years 8019 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%|
LCFF Transfers
Unrestricted LCFF Transfers - Current Year 0000 8091 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 O.Q
All Other LCFF Transfers - Current Year All Other 8091 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%)
Transfers to Charter Schools in Lieu of Property Taxes 8096 0.00 26,873.00 0.00 26,458.00 (415.00) -145“/_4
Property Taxes Transfers 8097 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
LCFF/Revenue Limit Transfers - Prior Years 8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
TOTAL, LCFF SOURCES 0.00 106,179.00 5,802.00 108,912.00 2,733.00 2.6%
FEDERAL REVENUE
Maintenance and Operations 8110 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
Special Education Entitlement 8181 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Special Education Discretionary Grants 8182 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
Child Nutrition Programs 8220 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Donated Food Commodities 8221 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%|
Interagency Contracts Between LEAs 8285 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%:!
NCLB: Title I, Part A, Basic Grants Low-Income
and Neglected 3010 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
NCLB: Title I, Part D, Local Delinquent Program 3025 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
NCLB: Title Il, Part A, Teacher Quality 4035 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
NCLB: Title lll, Immigrant Education Program 4201 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%]
NCLB: Title Ill, Limited English Proficient (LEP)
Student Program 4203 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
NCLB: Tille V, Part B, Public Charter Schools
Grant Program (PCSGP) 4610 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0"/£L
3012-3020, 3030-3199,
Other No Child Left Behind 4036-4126, 5510 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Vocational and Applied Technology Education 3500-3699 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Safe and Drug Free Schools 3700-3799 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
All Other Federal Revenue All Other 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
TOTAL, FEDERAL REVENUE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
OTHER STATE REVENUE
Other State Apportionments
Special Education Master Plan
Current Year 6500 8311 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Prior Years 6500 8319 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
All Other State Apportionments - Current Year All Other 8311 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
All Other State Apportionments - Prior Years All Other 8319 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Child Nutrition Programs 8520 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%]
Mandated Costs Reimbursements 8550 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Lottery - Unrestricted and Instructional Materials 8560 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,248.00 2,248.00 New|
After School Education and Safety (ASES) 6010 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 05/12/2016)

_72-

Page 3

Printed: 3/15/2017 9:38 AM




2016-17 Second Interim

South Monterey County Joint Union High Charter Schools Special Revenue Fund 27 66068 0000000
Monterey County Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance Form 091
% Diff
Board Approved Projected Year Difference Column
. Original Budget Operating Budget | Actuals To Date Totals (ColB & D) B&D
Description Resource Codes  Object Codes A) (B) (C) (D) (E) (F)
Charter School Facility Grant 6030 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%})
Drug/Alcohol/Tobacco Funds 6630 8530 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Califomnia Clean Energy Jobs Act 6230 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%]
Career Technical Education Incentive
Grant Program 6387 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%:!
Specialized Secondary 7370 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 M
Quality Education Investment Act 7400 8530 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Common Core State Standards Implementation 7405 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
All Other State Revenue All Other 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%}
TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,248.00 2,248.00 New
OTHER LOCAL REVENUE
Sales
Sale of Equipment/Supplies 8631 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%:!
Sale of Publications 8632 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 @
F_-'ood Service Sales 8§34 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
All Other Sales 8639 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%|
Leases and Rentals 8650 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Interest 8660 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%|
Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments 8662 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.%1
Fees and Contracts
Child Development Parent Fees 8673 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Transportation Fees From Individuals 8675 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0“Ij
Interagency Services 8677 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
All Other Fees and Contracts 8689 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Other Local Revenue
All Other Local Revenue 8699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Tuition 8710 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 __0.0%|
All Other Transfers In 8781-8783 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!|
Transfers of Apportionments
Special Education SELPA Transfers
From Districts or Charter Schools 6500 8791 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
From County Offices 6500 8792 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
From JPAs 6500 8793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Other Transfers of Apportionments
From Districts or Charter Schools All Other 8791 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
From County Offices All Other 8792 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
From JPAs All Other 8793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
All Other Transfers In from All Others 8799 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 OL%L
TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
TOTAL, REVENUES 0.00 106,179.00 5,802.00 111,160.00

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 05/12/2016)

-73-

Page 4

Printed: 3/15/2017 9:38 AM



2016-17 Second Interim

South Monterey County Joint Union High Charter Schools Special Revenue Fund 27 66068 0000000
Monterey County Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance Form 09l
% Diff
Board Approved Projected Year Difference Column
. . Original Budget Operating Budget Actuals To Date Totals (ColB & D) B&D
Description Resource Codes  Object Codes (A) (B) i (C) (D) (E) (F)

CERTIFICATED SALARIES

Certificated Teachers' Salaries 1100 0.00 60,000.00 14,254.49 36,798.00 23,202.00 38.7%
Certificated Pupil Support Salaries 1200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
Certificated Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 1300 0.00 14,430.00 2,400.92 5,408.00 9,022.00 62.5%
Other Certificated Salaries 1900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%}
TOTAL, CERTIFICATED SALARIES 0.00 74,430.00 16,655.41 42,206.00 32,224.00 43.3%

CLASSIFIED SALARIES

Classified Instructional Salaries 2100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
Classified Support Salaries 2200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Classified Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 2300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%|
Clerical, Technical and Office Salaries 2400 0.00 3,760.00 1,153.14 3,076.00 684.00 18.2%
Other Classified Salaries 2900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES _ 0.00 3,760.00 1,153.14 3,076.00 684.00 18'.2%
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
STRS 3101-3102 0.00 7.548.00 2,091.45 5,302.00 2,246.00 29.8%
PERS 3201-3202 0.00 523.00 160.17 428.00 95.00 18.2%.
OASDI/Medicare/Alternative 3301-3302 0.00 3,171.00 332.66 847.00 2,324.00 73.3%|
Health and Welfare Benefits 3401-3402 0.00 2,102.00 2,832.68 9,426.00 (7,324.00) -348.4%
Unemployment Insurance 3501-3502 0.00 40.00 8.89 24.00 16.00 40.0%
Workers' Compensation 3601-3602 0.00 1,519.00 346.07 881.00 638.00 42.0%
OPERB, Allocated 3701-3702 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
OPEB, Aclive Employees 3751-3752 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
Other Employee Benefits 3901-3902 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 0.00 14,903.00 5,771.92 16,908.00 (2,005.00) -13.5%
BOOKS AND SUPPLIES
Approved Textbooks and Core Curricula Materials 4100 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,835.00 (1,835.00)| New
Books and Other Reference Materials 4200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Materials and Supplies 4300 0.00 6,000.00 27.72 4,691.00 1,309.00 21.8%!
Noncapitalized Equipment 4400 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Food 4700 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
TOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES . 0.00 6,000.00 27.72 6.526.00 (526.00)| -8.8%

SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES

Subagreements for Services 5100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!

Travel and Conferences ) 5200 0.00 2,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 50.0%

Dues and Memberships 5300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%|
Insurance 5400-5450 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Operations and Housekeeping Services 5500 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncapif d Impro' 5600 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 OL%H
Transfers of Direct Costs 5710 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transfers of Direct Costs - Interfund 5750 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Professional/Consulting Services and

Operating Expenditures 5800 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Communications 5900 0.00 0.00 14.00 32.00 (32.00) New

TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES 0.00 2,000.00 14.00 1.032.00 968.00 48.4%!

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 05/12/2016) Page 5 Printed: 3/15/2017 9:38 AM



2016-17 Second Interim

South Monterey County Joint Union High Charter Schools Special Revenue Fund 27 66068 0000000
Monterey County Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance Form 09I
% Diff
Board Approved Projected Year Difference Column
. Original Budget Operating Budget Actuals To Date Totals (ColB& D) B&D
Description Resource Codes __ Object Codes| (A) (8) {D) (E) (F)
CAPITAL OUTLAY
Land 6100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Land Improvements 6170 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Buildings and Improvements of Buildings 6200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 &]
Books and Media for New School Libraries
or Major Expansion of School Libraries 6300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Equipment 6400 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%|
Equipment Replacement 6500 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
TOTAL, CAPITAL QUTLAY 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
OTHER QUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs)
Tuition
Tuition for Instruction Under Interdistrict Attendance Agreements 7110 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%.
Tuition, Excess Costs, and/or Deficit Payments
Payments to Districts or Charter Schools 7141 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Payments to County Offices 7142 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Payments to JPAs 7143 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Other Transfers Out
All Other Transfers 7281-7283 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
All Other Transfers Out to All Others 7299 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
Debt Service
Debt Service - Interest 7438 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
Other Debt Service - Principal 7439 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0"&!
TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS
Transfers of Indirect Costs 7310 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Transfers of Indirect Costs - Interfund 7350 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 @
TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 0.00 101,093.00 23,622.19 69,748.00

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 05/12/2016)

iy

Page 6

Printed: 3/15/2017 9:38 AM



2016-17 Second Interim

South Monterey County Joint Union High Charter Schools Special Revenue Fund 27 66068 0000000
Monterey County Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance Form 09I
% Diff
Board Approved Projected Year Difference Column
. i Original Budget Operating Budget | = Actuals To Date Totals . (ColB &D) B&D
Description Resource Codes  Object Codes| (A) (B) (D) (E) (F)
|INTERFUND TRANSFERS
INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN
Other Authorized Interfund Transfers In 8919 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
| (a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%|
INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT
Other Authorized Interfund Transfers Out 7619 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
(b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
OTHER SOURCES/USES
SOURCES
Other Sources
Transfers from Funds of Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 8965 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%:!
Long-Term Debt Proceeds
Proceeds from Capital Leases 8972 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
All Other Financing Sources 8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
(c) TOTAL, SOURCES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
USES
Transfers of Funds from Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 7651 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
All Other Financing Uses 7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
(d) TOTAL, USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
CONTRIBUTIONS
Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues 8980 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Contributions from Restricted Revenues 8990 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
(e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
(a-b+c-d+e) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 05/12/2016) Page7 Printed: 3/15/2017 9:38 AM



Second Interim

South Monterey County Joint Union High Charter Schools Special Revenue Fund 27 66068 0000000
Monterey County Exhibit: Restricted Balance Detail Form 09I
2016/17
Resource Description Projected Year Totals
Total, Restricted Balance 0.00

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0

File: fundi-b (Rev 04/30/2012) F-77- Printed: 3/15/2017 9:38 AM




SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT '
800 Broadway Street, King City, CA 93930 * 831-385-0606 « FAX 831-385-0695

2016/17 Second Interim Financial Report
March 22, 2017

Fund 11
Adult Education Fund

-78-



2016-17 Second Interim

South Monterey County Joint Union High Adult Education Fund 27 66068 0000000
Monterey County Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance Form 11l
% Diff
Board Approved Projected Year Difference Column
) X Original Budget Operating Budget . Actuals To Date Totals (ColB&D) B&D
Description Resource Codes  Object Codes| (A) (B) (C) (D) ) (E) {F)
A. REVENUES
1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 78,500.00 78,500.00 37,528.29 78,500.00 0.00 0.0%|
4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 0.00 0.00 (246.10) 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
5) TOTAL, REVENUES 78,500.00 78,500.00 37,282.19 78,500.00

B. EXPENDITURES

1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 0.00 35,000.00 24,416.15 43,729.00 (8,729.00)| -24.9%
2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 0.00 7,500.00 2,713.76 7,500.00 0.00 ;I
3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 0.00 6,896.00 3.413.79 8,192.00 (1,296.00) -18.8%
4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 17,193.00 17,193.00 5,583.99 17,193.00 0.00 0.0%
5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 61,307.00 11,911.00 0.00 26,525.20 (14,614.20) -122.7%|
6) Capital Outlay - 6000-6999 0.00 - 0.00 0.00 3 0.00 0.00 0.0%
7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299,

Costs) 7400-7499 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
8) Other Qutgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!

|__9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 78,500.00 78,500.00 36,127.69 103,139.20

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER

FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (A5 - BSY) 0.00 0.00 1,154.50 (24,639.20)|

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

1) Interfund Transfers

a) Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%]|
2) Other Sources/Uses

a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%|

b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 —I

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 05/12/2016) Page 1 Printed: 3/15/2017 9:38 AM



South Monterey County Joint Union High

2016-17 Second Interim
Adult Education Fund

27 66068 0000000

Monterey County Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance Form 11l
% Diff
Board Approved Projected Year Difference Column
. Original Budget Operating Budget Actuals To Date Totals (ColB&D) B&D
Description Resource Codes  Object Codes! (A) (B) (D) (E) (F)
E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND
BALANCE (C + D4) 0.00 0.00 1,154.50 (24,639.20)
F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES
1) Beginning Fund Balance
a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 0.00 24,640.00 24,639.20 (0.80) 0.0%|
b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 0.00 24,640.00 24,639.20
d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (Fic + F1d) 0.00 24,640.00 24,639.20
2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 0.00 24,640.00 0.00
Components of Ending Fund Balance
a) Nonspendable
Revolving Cash 9711 0.00 0.00 0.00
Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.00
Prepaid Expenditures 9713 0.00 0.00 0.00
All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.00
b) Restricted 9740 0.00 24,640.00 0.00
c) Committed
Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00
Other Committments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.00
d) Assigned
Other Assignments 9780 0.00 0.00 0.00
e) Unassigned/Unappropriated
Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00 0.00
Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 05/12/2016)

-80-

Page 2

Printed: 3/152017 9:38 AM



South Monterey County Joint Union High

2016-17 Second Interim
Adult Education Fund

27 66068 0000000

Monterey County Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance Form 111
% Diff
Board Approved Projected Year Difference Column
i Original Budget Operating Budget Actuals To Date Totals . (ColB&D) B&D
Description Resource Codes __ Object Codes| (A) (B) (D) (E) (F)
LCFF SOURCES
LCFF Transfers
LCFF Transfers - Current Year 8091 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
LCFF/Revenue Limit Transfers - Prior Years 8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
TOTAL, LCFF SOURCES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
FEDERAL REVENUE
Interagency Contracts Between LEAs 8285 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 %‘
No Child Left Behind 3105, 4045 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Vocational and Applied Technology Education 3500-3699 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Safe and Drug Free Schools 3700-3799 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 %
All Other Federal Revenue All Other 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
TOTAL, FEDERAL REVENUE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%)
OTHER STATE REVENUE
Other State Apportionments
All Other State Apportionments - Current Year 8311 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
All Other State Apportionments - Prior Years 8319 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Pass-Through Revenues from State Sources 8587 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Adult Education Block Grant Program 6391 8590 78,500.00 78,500.00 37,528.29 78,500.00 0.00 0.0%!
All Other State Revenue All Other 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%|
TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 78,500.00 78,500.00 37.528.29 78,500.00 0.00 0.0%
OTHER LOCAL REVENUE
Sales
Sale of Equipment/Supplies 8631 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
Leases and Rentals 8650 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0‘V;I
Interest 8660 0.00 0.00 (246.10) 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments 8662 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%)
Fees and Contracts
Adult Education Fees 8671 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
Interagency Services 8677 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
Other Local Revenue
All Other Local Revenue 8699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Tuition 8710 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 0.00 0.00 (246.10) 0.00 0.00 0.0%
TOTAL, REVENUES 78,500.00 78,500.00 37,282.19 78,500.00

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 05/12/2016)

-81-

Page 3

Printed: 3/15/2017 9:38 AM



2016-17 Second Interim

South Monterey County Joint Union High Adult Education Fund 27 66068 0000000
Monterey County Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance Form 11l
% Diff
Board Approved Projected Year Difference Column
. Original Budget Operating Budget Actuals To Date Totals (ColB&D) B&D
Description Resource Codes _ Object Codes| (A) (B) (C) (D) (E) (F)
CERTIFICATED SALARIES
Certificated Teachers' Salaries 1100 0.00 35,000.00 24,416.15 43,729.00 (8,729.00) -24.9%
Certificated Pupil Support Salaries 1200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Certificated Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 1300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Other Certificated Salaries 1900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%|
TOTAL, CERTIFICATED SALARIES 0.00 35,000.00 24,416.15 43,729.00 __(8,729.00) -24.9%
CLASSIFIED SALARIES
Classified Instructional Salaries 2100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
Classified Support Salaries 2200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Classified Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 2300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Clerical, Technical and Office Salaries 2400 0.00 7,500.00 2,713.76 7,500.00 0.00 0.0%
Other Classified Salaries 2900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 0.00 7,500.00 2,713.76 7,500.00 0.00 0.0%
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
STRS 3101-3102 0.00 4,402.00 2,028.22 5,051.00 (649.00] -14.7%
PERS 3201-3202 0.00 1,042.00 283.58 1,042.00 0.00 0.0%!
OASD!/Medicare/Alternative 3301-3302 0.00 466.00 561.66 986.00 (530.00) -113.7%
Health and Welfare Benefits 3401-3402 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
Unemployment Insurance 3501-3502 0.00 22.00 13.54 27.00 (S.OO)J -22.7%
Workers' Compensation 3601-3602 0.00 964.00 526.79 1,076.00 (112.00)/ -11.6%!
OPEB, Allocated 3701-3702 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
OPEB, Active Employees 3751-3752 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Other Employee Benefils 3901-3902 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 0.00 6,896.00 3,413.79 8,192.00 (1,296.00) -18.8%!
BOOKS AND SUPPLIES
Approved Textbooks and Core Curricula Materials 4100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Books and Other Reference Materials 4200 14,493.00 14,493.00 4,278.51 5,493.00 9,000.00 62.1%!
Materials and Supplies 4300 1,944.00 1,944.00 1,000.60 10,944.00 (9,000.00) -463.0%|
Noncapitalized Equipment 4400 756.00 756.00 304.88 756.00 0.00 0.0%!
TOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 17,193.00 17,193.00 5,583.99 17,193.00 0.00 0.0%

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 05/12/2016)

-82-

Page 4

Printed: 3/15/2017 9:38 AM



2016-17 Second Interim

South Monterey County Joint Union High Adult Education Fund 27 66068 0000000
Monterey County Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance Form 11l
% Diff
Board Approved Projected Year Difference Column
. . Original Budget Operating Budget Actuals To Date Totals (ColB& D) B&D
IDescription Resource Codes _ Object Codes| (A) (B) (C) (D) (E} (F)
SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES
Subagreements for Services 5100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Travel and Conferences 5200 0.00 0.00 0.00 14,614.20 (14.614.20), New
Dues and Memberships 5300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Insurance 5400-5450 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Operations and H ping Services 5500 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncapitalized Improvements 5600 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Transfers of Direct Costs 5710 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Transfers of Direct Costs - Interfund 5750 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 L:I
Professional/Consulting Services and
Operaling Expenditures 5800 61,307.00 11,911.00 0.00 11.911.00 0.00 0.0%!
Communications 5900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES 61,307.00 11,911.00 0.00 26,525.20 (14.614.20] -122.7%
CAPITAL OUTLAY
Land 6100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Land Improvements 6170 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
Buildings and Improvements of Buildings 6200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%|
Equipment 6400 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Equipment Replacement 6500 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
TOTAL, CAPITAL OUTLAY 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 __0.0%}
OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs)
Tuition
Tuition, Excess Costs, and/or Deficit Payments
Payments to Districts or Charter Schools 7141 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%|
Payments to County Offices 7142 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Payments to JPAs 7143 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
Other Transfers Out
Transfers of Pass-Through Revenues
To Districts or Charter Schools 7211 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
To County Offices 7212 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0“3
To JPAs 7213 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%|
Debt Service
Debt Service - Interest 7438 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
Other Debt Service - Principal 7439 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS
Transfers of Indirect Costs - Interfund 7350 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFEkS OF INDIRECT COSTS 0.00 0.00 0.00‘ 0.00 0:00 0.0%!
TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 78,500.00 78,500.00 36,127.69 103,139.20

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 05/12/2016)

-83-

Page S

Printed: 3/15/2017 9:38 AM




2016-17 Second Interim

South Monterey County Joint Union High Adult Education Fund 27 66068 0000000
Monterey County Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance Form 111
% Diff
Board Approved Projected Year Difference Column
B i . Original Budget Operating Budget Actuals To Date Totals (ColB&D) B&D
Description Resource Codes  Object Codes (A) (B) (C) (D) (E) (F)
INTERFUND TRANSFERS

INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN

Other Authorized Interfund Transfers In 8919 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

(a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!

INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT

To: State School Building Fund/

County School Facilities Fund 7613 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
Other Authorized Interfund Transfers Out 7619 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 U.D%L
| (b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OQUT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
OTHER SOURCESIUSES
SOURCES

Other Sources

. Transfers from Funds of Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 8965 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Long-Term Debt Proceeds
Proceeds from Certificates of Participation 8971 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Proceeds from Capital Leases 8972 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%|
All Other Financing Sources 8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
(c) TOTAL, SOURCES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
USES
Transfers of Funds from Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 7651 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%|
All Other Financing Uses 7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
(d) TOTAL, USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!

CONTRIBUTIONS

Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues 8980 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Contributions from Restricted Revenues 8930 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
| (e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
(a-b+c-d+e) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 05/12/2016) Page 6 Printed: 3/15/2017 9:38 AM



Second Interim

South Monterey County Joint Union High Adult Education Fund 27 66068 0000000
Monterey County Exhibit: Restricted Balance Detail Form 111
2016/17
Resource Description Projected Year Totals
Total, Restricted Balance 0.00

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 04/30/2012) i-85- Printed: 3/15/2017 9:38 AM



SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY (HOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
800 Broadway Street, King City, CA 93930 * 831-385-0606 = FAX 831-385-0695

2016/17 Second Interim Financial Report
March 22, 2017

Fund 13
Cafeteria Fund

-86-



South Monterey County Joint Union High

2016-17 Second Interim
Cafeteria Special Revenue Fund

27 66068 0000000

Monterey County Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance Form 13l
% Diff
Board Approved Projected Year Difference Column
Original Budget Operating Budget Actuals To Date Totals (ColB& D) B&D
Description Resource Codes __Object Codes (A) (B) (D) (E) (F)
A. REVENUES
1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 455,000.00 455,000.00 232,239.02 455,000.00 0.00 0.0%
3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 36,500.00 36,500.00 6.874.33 36,500.00 0.00 0.0%
4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 164,971.00 164,971.00 2,079.15 165,343.00 372.00 0.2%!
5) TOTAL, REVENUES 656,471.00 656,471.00 241,192.50 656,843.00
B. EXPENDITURES
1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 143,216.00 143,216.00 86.945.39 151,758.00 (8,542.00)
3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 98,501.00 98,501.00 43,269.66 99,798.00 (1.297.00_)_h
4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 397,413.00 397,413.00 221,132.67 397.413.00 0.00 0.0%!
5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 17,341.00 17,341.00 9,085.16 28,341.00 (11,000.00) -63.4%
6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
7) Other Qutgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299,
Costs) 7400-7499 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
8) Other Qutgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0"/_1
| _9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 656,471.00 656,471.00 360,432.88 677,310.00
C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER
FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (A5 - B9) 0.00 0.00 (119,240.38)| (20,467.00ﬂ
D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
1) Interfund Transfers
a) Transfers [n 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
2) Other Sources/Uses
a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 05/12/2016)

-87-

Page 1

Printed: 3/15/2017 9:33 AM



2016-17 Second Interim

South Monterey County Joint Union High Cafeteria Special Revenue Fund 27 66068 0000000
Monterey County Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance Form 13l
% Diff
Board Approved Projected Year Difference Column
Original Budget Operating Budget Actuals To Date Totals (ColB&D) B&D
Description Resource Codes _ Object Codes (A) (B) (D) {E) {F)
E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND
BALANCE (C + D4) 0.00 0.00 (119,240.38)| (20,467.00))
F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES
1) Beginning Fund Balance
a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 154,377.00 227,327.00 227,326.37 (0.63) 0.0%!|
b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 154,377.00 227,327.00 227,326.37
d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1ic + F1d) 154,377.00 227,327.00 227,326.37
2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 154,377.00 227,327.00 206,859.37
Components of Ending Fund Balance
a) Nonspendable
Revolving Cash 9711 0.00 0.00 0.00
Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.00
Prepaid Expenditures 9713 0.00 0.00 0.00
All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.00
b) Restricted 9740 154,377.00 227,327.00 206.859.37
c) Committed
Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00
Other Committments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.00
d) Assigned
Other Assignments 9780 0.00 0.00 0.00
e) Unassigned/Unappropriated
Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00 0.00
Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 05/12/2016)

-88-

Page 2

Printed: 3/15/2017 9:39 AM



South Monterey County Joint Union High

2016-17 Second Interim
Cafeteria Special Revenue Fund

27 66068 0000000

Monterey County Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance Form 13l
% Diff
Board Approved Projected Year Difference Column
Original Budget Operating Budget Actuals To Date Totals (ColB&D) B&D
Description Resource Codes _ Object Codes (A) (B) (C) (D) (E) (F)
FEDERAL REVENUE
Child Nutrition Programs 8220 455,000.00 455,000.00 232,239.02 455,000.00 0.00 @
Donated Food Commodities 8221 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
All Other Federal Revenue 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
TOTAL, FEDERAL REVENUE 455,000.00 455,000.00 232,239.02 455,000.00 0.00 0.0%
OTHER STATE REVENUE
Child Nutrition Programs 8520 36,500.00 36,500.00 6,874.33 36,500.00 0.00 0.0%!
All Other State Revenue 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!|
TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 36,500.00 36,500.00 6,874.33 36,500.00 0.00 0.0%
OTHER LOCAL REVENUE
Sales
Sale of Equipment/Supplies 8631 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Food Service Sales 8634 164,500.00 164,500.00 1,284.75 164,500.00 0.00 0.0%!
Leases and Rentals 8650 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 %
Interest 8660 471.00 471.00 794.40 843.00 372.00 “79.0%
Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments 8662 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%|
Fees and Contracts
Interagency Services 8677 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Other Local Revenue
All Other Local Revenue 8699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 164,971.00 164,971.00 2,079.15 165,343.00 372.00 0.2%
TOTAL, REVENUES 656,471.00 656,471.00 241,192.50 656,843.00

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 05/12/2016)

-89-

Page 3

Printed: 3/15/2017 9:39 AM




2016-17 Second Interim

South Monterey County Joint Union High Cafeteria Special Revenue Fund 27 66068 0000000
Monterey County Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance Form 13|
% Diff
Board Approved Projected Year Difference Column
. . Original Budget Operating Budget Actuals To Date Totals (ColB& D) B&D
\Description Resource Codes  Object Codes (A) (B) {C) (D) (E) (F)
CERTIFICATED SALARIES
Certificated Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 1300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 D.O‘Q
Other Certificated Salaries 1900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
TOTAL, CERTIFICATED SALARIES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
CLASSIFIED SALARIES
Classified Support Salaries 2200 143,216.00 143,216.00 86,945.39 151,758.00 (8,542.00) -6.0%
Classified Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 2300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
Clerical, Technical and Office Salaries 2400 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Other Classified Salaries 2800 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 ML
TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 143,216.00 143,216.00 86,945.39 151,758.00 (8,542.00)| -6.0%!
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
STRS 3101-3102 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
PERS A ’ 3201-3202 18,143.00 18,143.00 10,469.47 18,547.00 (404.00) -2.2%|
OASDI/Medicare/Altemative 3301-3302 10,747.00 10,747.00 6,637.75 11,477.00 (730.00) -6.8%!
Health and Welfare Benefits 3401-3402 66,287.00 66,287.00 24,430.58 66,287.00 0.00 0.0‘Vgh
Unemployment Insurance 3501-3502 74.00 74.00 43.61 78.00 (4.00 -5.4%
Workers' Compensation 3601-3602 3,250.00 3,250.00 1,688.25 3,409.00 (@I —LEWﬁ
OPEB, Allocated 3701-3702 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
OPEB, Active Employees 3751-3752 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
Other Employee Benefits 3901-3902 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0‘Yj
TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 98,501.00 98,501.00 43,269.66 99,798.00 (1,297.00) -1.3%
BOOKS AND SUPPLIES
Books and Other Reference Materials 4200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Materials and Supplies 4300 48,954.00 48,954.00 27,367.49 48,954.00 0.00 0.0%!
Noncapitalized Equipment 4400 10,000.00 10,000.00 0.00 10,000.00 0.00 0.0°/_a.1
Food 4700 338,459.00 338,459.00 193,765.18 338,459.00 0.00 0.0%
TOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 397.413.00 397.413.00 221,132.67 397,413.00 0.00 0.0%!

:alifornia Dept of Education
iACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
ile: fundi-b (Rev 05/12/2016) Page4 Printed: 3/15/2017 9:39 AM



2016-17 Second Interim

Cafeteria Special Revenue Fund 27 66068 0000000

South Monterey County Joint Union High

Monterey County Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance Form 13l
% Diff
Board Approved Projected Year Difference Column
X Original Budget Operating Budget Actuals To Date Totals (ColB&D) B&D
Description Resource Codes _Object Codes| (A) (B) (C) (D) _(E) (F)
SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES
Subagreements for Services 5100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
Travel and Conferences 5200 2,000.00 2,000.00 0.00 2,000.00 0.00 0.0%!
Dues and Memberships 5300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Insurance 5400-5450 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (@
Operations and Housekeeping Services 5500 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncapitalized Improvements 5600 4,000.00 4,000.00 2,540.23 4,000.00 0.00 0.0%
Transfers of Direct Costs 5710 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
Transfers of Direct Costs - Interfund 5750 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Professional/Consulting Services and
Operating Expenditures 5800 11,341.00 11,341.00 6,544.93 22,341.00 1 ,OOD.OO)J -97.0%
Communications 5900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES 17.341.00 17,341.00 9,085.16 28,341.00 (11,000.00) -63.4%
CAPITAL OUTLAY
Buildings and Improvements of Buildings 6200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Equipment 6400 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Equipment Replacement 6500 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
TOTAL, CAPITAL OUTLAY 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs)
Debt Service
Debt Service - Interest 7438 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Other Debt Service - Principal 7439 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
OTHER OUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS
Transfers of Indirect Costs - Interfund 7350 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
TOTAL, OTHER OQUTGO - TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 656,471.00 656,471.00 360,432.88 677,310.00

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 05/12/2016)

-91-

Page 5

Printed: 3/152017 9:39 AM



South Monterey County Joint Union High

2016-17 Second Interim
Cafeteria Special Revenue Fund

27 66068 0000000

Monterey County Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance Form 13l
% Diff
Board Approved Projected Year Difference Column
. . Original Budget Operating Budget Actuals To Date Totals (ColB& D) B&D
Description Resource Codes __ Object Codes (A) (B) (D) (E) (F)
thTERFUND TRANSFERS
INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN
From: General Fund 8916 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%‘
Other Authorized Interfund Transfers In 8919 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
(a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT
Other Authorized Interfund Transfers Out 7619 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%1
(b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS QUT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
OTHER SOURCES/USES
SOURCES
Other Sources
Transfers from Funds of Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 8965 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
Long-Term Debt Proceeds
Proceeds from Capital Leases 8972 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Ali Other Financing Sources 8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
(c) TOTAL, SOURCES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
USES
Transfers of Funds from Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 7651 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%‘
All Other Financing Uses 7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
(d) TOTAL, USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
CONTRIBUTIONS
Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues 8980 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%|
Contributions from Restricted Revenues 8990 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
(e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
(@a-b+c-d+e) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 05/12/2016)

-92-

Page 6

Printed: 3/1572017 9:39 AM



Second Interim

South Monterey County Joint Union High Cafeteria Special Revenue Fund 2766068 0000000
Monterey County Exhibit: Restricted Balance Detail Form 13I
2016/17
Resource Description Projected Year Totals
5310 Child Nutrition: School Programs (e.g., School Lunch, School 206,859.37
Total, Restricted Balance 206,859.37

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0

File: fundi-b (Rev 04/30/2012) F_93 _ Printed: 3/15/2017 9:39 AM



SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JIOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
800 Broadway Street, King City, CA 93930 * 831-385-0606 = FAX 831-385-0695

2016/17 Second Interim Financial Report
March 22, 2017

Fund 17
Special Reserve Fund for Other than
Capital Outlay Projects

-94-



2016-17 Second Interim

South Monterey County Joint Union High Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay Projects 27 66068 0000000
Monterey County Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance Form 171
% Diff
Board Approved Projected Year Difference Column
. i X Original Budget Operating Budget Actuals To Date _Totals (ColB&D) B&D
Description Resource Codes _ Object Codes (A) (B) (C) (D) (E) (F)
A. REVENUES
1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 16,266.00 16,266.00 19,727.54 16,266.00 0.00 0.0%
5) TOTAL, REVENUES 16,266.00 16,266.00 19,727.54 16,266.00

B. EXPENDITURES

1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 __0.0%|
2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%|
5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
6) Capital Outlay . 6000-6999 0.00 | 0.00 0.00 0.00 - 0.00 0.0%!
7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299,

Costs) 7400-7499 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%|
8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

|_9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER

FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (AS - B9) 16,266.00 16,266.00 19,727.54 16,266.00

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCESIUSES

1) Interfund Transfers

a) Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%|

b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 2,500,000.00 0.00 2,500,000.00 0.00 0.0%|
2) Other Sources/Uses

a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%|

b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 0.00 (2,500,000.00){ 0.00 (2,500,000.00)

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 05/12/2016) Page 1 Printed: 3/15/2017 9:39 AM



2016-17 Second Interim

South Monterey County Joint Union High Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay Projects 27 66068 0000000
Monterey County Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance Form 171
% Diff
Board Approved Projected Year Difference Column
. i . Original Budget Operating Budget Actuals To Date Totals (ColB& D) B&D
Description Resource Codes _ Object Codes (A) (B) (C) (D) (E) (F)
E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND
BALANCE (C + D4) 16,266.00 (2,483,734.00) 19,727.54 (2,483,734.00)

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES

1) Beginning Fund Balance

a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 3,013,656.00 3,021,839.00 3,021,838.60 (0.40)| 0.0%
b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Q
c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 3,013,656.00 3,021,839.00 3.021,838.60
d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 U.O%L
e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (Fic + F1d) 3,013,656.00 3,021,839.00 3,021,838.60

2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + Fle) 3,029,922.00 538,105.00 538,104.60

Components of Ending Fund Balance
a) Nonspendable

Revolving Cash 9711 0.00 0.00 0.00

Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.00

Prepaid Expenditures 9713 0.00 0.00 0.00

All Others ) 9719 000]" 0.00 ; 0.00
b) Restricted 9740 0.00 0.00 0.00
c) Committed

Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00

Other Commiittments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.00
d) Assigned

Other Assignments 9780 3.029,922.00 538,105.00 538,104.60

e) Unassigned/Unappropriated
Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00 0.00

___Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
File: fundi-b (Rev 05/12/2016) Page 2 Printed: 3/15/2017 9:39 AM



South Monterey County Joint Union High

2016-17 Second Interim
Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay Projects

27 66068 0000000

Monterey County Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance Form 171
% Diff
Board Approved Projected Year Difference Column
i Original Budget Operating Budget Actuals To Date Totals (ColB & D) B&D
Description Resource Codes _ Object Codes (A) (B) (D) (E) (F)
OTHER LOCAL REVENUE
Sales
Sale of Equipment/Supplies 8631 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Interest 8660 16,266.00 16,266.00 19,727.54 16,266.00 0.00 O.Dﬁ
Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments 8662 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 16,266.00 16,266.00 19,727.54 16,266.00 0.00 0.0%
TOTAL, REVENUES 16,266.00 16,266.00 19,727.54 16,266.00
[INTERFUND TRANSFERS
INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN
From: General Fund/CSSF 8912 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Other Authorized Interfund Transfers In 8919 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
| (a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT
To: General Fund/CSSF 7612 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
To: State School Building Fund/
County School Facilities Fund 7613 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Other Authorized Interfund Transfers Out 7619 0.00 2,500,000.00 0.00 2,500,000.00 0.00 O.O%W
| (b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 0.00 2,500,000.00 0.00 2,500,000.00 0.00 0.0%
OTHER SOURCES/USES
SOURCES
Other Sources
Transfers from Funds of Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 8965 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
(c) TOTAL, SOURCES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
USES
Transfers of Funds from Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 7651 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
(d) TOTAL, USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
CONTRIBUTIONS
Contributions from Restricted Revenues 8930 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
(e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 O.D“A
TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
(a-b+c-d+e) 0.00 (2,500,000.00) 0.00 (2,500,000.00)

Zalifornia Dept of Education
5ACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
“ile: fundi-b (Rev 05/12/2016)

-97-

Page 3

Printed: 3/15/2017 9:39 AM



Second Interim

South Monterey County Joint Union Higtecial Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay Projects 2766068 0000000
Monterey County Exhibit: Restricted Balance Detail Form 171
2016/17
Resource Description Projected Year Totals
Total, Restricted Balance 0.00

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0

File: fundi-b (Rev 04/30/2012) F-98- Printed: 3/15/2017 9:39 AM



SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
800 Broadway Street, King City, CA 93930 « 831-385-0606 = FAX 831-385-0695

2016/17 Second Interim Financial Report
March 22, 2017

Fund 25
Capital Facilities Funds

-99-



South Monterey County Joint Union High

2016-17 Second Interim
Capital Facilities Fund

27 66068 0000000

Monterey County Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance Form 25|
% Diff
Board Approved Projected Year Difference Column
X Original Budget Operating Budget Actuals To Date Totals (Col B& D) B&D
Description Resource Codes  Object Codes| (A) (B) (C) (D) (E) (F)
A. REVENUES
1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 174,685.00 174,685.00 121,064.07 174,685.00 0.00 0.0%!
|__5) TOTAL, REVENUES 174,685.00 174,685.00 121,064.07 174,685.00
|B. EXPENDITURES
1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 O.D%k
3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 10,000.00 10,000.00 0.00 10,000.00 0.00 0.0%
5) Services and Other Operaling Expenditures 5000-5999 59,461.00 59,461.00 7,844.13 72,961.00 (13,500.00) -224
6) Capital Oullay 6000-6999 0.00 0.00 48,182.53 50,900.00 (50,900.00) New|
7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299,
Costs) 7400-7499 105,224.00 105,224.00 74,012.58 105,224.00 0.00 0.0%.
8) Other Qutgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 _0.0%|
|__9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 174,685.00 174,685.00 130,039.24 239,085.00
C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER
FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (A5 - B9) 0.00 0.00 (8,975.17) (64,400.00)
D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
1) Interfund Transfers
a) Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
2) Other Sources/Uses
a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!|
b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
|__4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
File: fundi-d (Rev 02/02/2016)

-100-

Page 1

Printed: 3/15/2017 9:39 AM



2016-17 Second Interim

South Monterey County Joint Union High Capital Facilities Fund 27 66068 0000000
Monterey County Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance Form 25l
% Diff
Board Approved Projected Year Difference Column
. Original Budget Operating Budget Actuals To Date Totals (Col B& D) B&D
Description Resource Codes _ Object Codes| (A) (B) {C) (D) (E) (F)
hE, NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND
BALANCE (C + D4) 0.00 0.00 (8,975.17) (64,400.00;
F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES
1) Beginning Fund Balance
a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 101,157.00 183,780.00 183,779.54 (0.46) 0.0%!
b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 101,157.00 183,780.00 183,779.54
d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0,0%1
e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (Fic + F1d) 101,157.00 183,780.00 183,779.54
2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 101,157.00 183,780.00 119,379.54
Components of Ending Fund Balance
a) Nonspendable
Revolving Cash 9711 0.00 0.00 0.00
Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.00
Prepaid Expenditures 9713 0.00 0.00 0.00
All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.00
b) Legally Restricted Balance 9740 0.00 0.00 0.00
c) Committed
Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00
Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.00
d) Assigned
Other Assignments 9780 101,157.00 183,780.00 119,379.54
€) Unassigned/Unappropriated
Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00 0.00
Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00

California Dept of Education
5ACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
“ite: fundi-d (Rev 02/02/2016)

~101-

Page 2

Printed: 3/15/2017 9:39 AM



2016-17 Second Interim

South Monterey County Joint Union High Capital Facilities Fund 27 66068 0000000
Monterey County Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance Form 25l
% Diff
Board Approved Projected Year Difference Column
i Original Budget Operating Budget Actuals To Date Totals (ColB&D) B&D
Description Resource Codes __ Object Codes| (A) (B) (D) (E) (F)
OTHER STATE REVENUE
Tax Relief Subventions
Restricted Levies - Other
Homeowners' Exemptions 8575 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Other Subvenlions/In-Lieu Taxes 8576 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
All Other State Revenue 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
OTHER LOCAL REVENUE
County and District Taxes
Other Restricted Levies
Secured Roll 8615 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Unsecured Roll 8616 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%H
Prior Years' Taxes 8617 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Supplemental Taxes 8618 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Non-Ad Valorem Taxes
Parcel Taxes 8621 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
Other 8622 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Community Redevelopment Funds
Not Subject to LCFF Deduction 8625 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0“/31
Penalties and Interest from Delinquent
Non-LCFF Taxes 8629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Sales
Sale of Equipment/Supplies 8631 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Interest 8660 1,685.00 1,685.00 1,382.91 1,685.00 0.00 0.0%
Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments 8662 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Fees and Contracts
Mitigation/Developer Fees 8681 173,000.00 173,000.00 119,681.16 173,000.00 0.00 0.0%
Other Local Revenue
All Other Local Revenue 8699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
All Other Transfers In from All Others 8799 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 174,685.00 174,685.00 121,064.07 174,685.00 0.00 0.0%
TOTAL, REVENUES 174,685.00 174,685.00 121,064.07 174,685.00

Salifornia Dept of Education
5ACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
“ile: fundi-d (Rev 02/02/2016)

-102-

Page 3

Printed: 3/15/2017 9:39 AM



2016-17 Second Interim

South Monterey County Joint Union High Capital Facilities Fund 27 66068 0000000
Monterey County Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance Form 25|
% Diff
Board Approved Projected Year Difference Column
. X Original Budget Operating Budget Actuals To Date Totals (Col B&D) B&D

Description Resource Codes __ Object Codes| (A) (B) (D) _(E) (F)

CERTIFICATED SALARIES
Other Certificated Salaries 1900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
TOTAL, CERTIFICATED SALARIES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CLASSIFIED SALARIES
Classified Support Salaries 2200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Classified Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 2300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Clerical, Technical and Office Salaries 2400 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%|
Other Classified Salaries 2900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
STRS 3101-3102 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0‘Y_ol
PERS 3201-3202 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
OASD!/Medicare/Alternative 3301-3302 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0"/3&
Health and Welfare Benefits 3401-3402 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Unemployment Insurance 3501-3502 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Workers' Compensation 3601-3602 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
OPEB, Allocated 3701-3702 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
OPEB, Active Employees 3751-3752 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00,(1!
Other Employee Benefits 3901-3902 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!|
TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

BOOKS AND SUPPLIES

Approved Textbooks and Core Curricula Materials 4100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Books and Other Reference Materials 4200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0,0“/;'
Materials and Supplies 4300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
Noncapitalized Equipment 4400 10,000.00 10,000.00 0.00 10,000.00 0.00 0.0%
TOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 10,000.00 10,000.00 0.00 10,000.00 0.00 0.0%

SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES
Subagreements for Services 5100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Travel and Conferences 5200 5,000.00 5,000.00 362.89 5,000.00 0.00 0.0%
Insurance 5400-5450 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Operations and Housekeeping Services 5500 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncapitalized Improvements 5600 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Transfers of Direct Costs 5710 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Transfers of Direct Costs - Interfund . 5750 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Professional/Consulting Services and
Operating Expenditures 5800 54,461.00 54,461.00 7.481.24 67,961.00 (13,500.00) -24.8%
Communications 5900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES 59,461.00 59,461.00 7.844.13 72,961.00 (13.500.00)J -22.7%

-103-

Zalifornia Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
file: fundi-d (Rev 02/02/2016)

Page 4 Printed: 3/15/2017 9:39 AM



2016-17 Second Interim

South Monterey County Joint Union High Capital Facilities Fund 27 66068 0000000
Monterey County Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance Form 25l
% Diff
Board Approved Projected Year Difference Column
s . Original Budget Operating Budget Actuals To Date . Totals (ColB&D) B&D
Description Resource Codes _ Object Codes (A) (B) (C) (D) (E) (F)
CAPITAL OUTLAY
Land 6100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
Land Improvements 6170 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%|
Buildings and Improvements of Buildings 6200 0.00 0.00 48,182.53 50,900.00 (50,900.00) New|
Books and Media for New School Libraries
or Major Expansion of School Libraries 6300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%|
Equipment 6400 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%|
Equipment Replacement 6500 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
TOTAL, CAPITAL QUTLAY 0.00 0.00 48,182.53 50,900.00 __(50,900.00) New|
OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs)
Other Transfers Out
All Other Transfers Out to All Others 7299 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
Debt Service
Debt Service - Interest 7438 12,845.00 12,845.00 8,623.28 12,845.00 0.00 0.0%
Other Debt Service - Principal” 7439 92,379.00 92,379.00 65,389.30 92,379.00 - _0.00 0.0%
TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 105,224.00 105,224.00 74,012.58 105,224.00 0.00 0.0%
TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 174,685.00 174,685.00 130,039.24 239,085.00

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
File: fundi-d (Rev 02/02/2016)

-104-

Page 5

Printed: 3/15/2017 9:39 AM



2016-17 Second Interim

South Monterey County Joint Union High Capital Facilities Fund 27 66068 0000000
Monterey County Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance Form 251
% Diff
Board Approved Projected Year Difference Column
. . Original Budget Operating Budget Actuals To Date i Totals (Col B& D) B&D
Description Resource Codes _ Object Codes (A) (B) {C) (D) (E) (F)
INTERFUND TRANSFERS

INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN

Other Authorized Interfund Transfers In 8919 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!|
| (a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT

To: State School Building Fund/

County School Facilities Fund 7613 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 %‘
Other Authorized Interfund Transfers Out 7619 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
(b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
OTHER SOURCES/USES
SOURCES
Proceeds
Proceeds from Sale/Lease-
Purchase of Land/Buildings 8953 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Other Sources
Transfers from Funds of Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 8965 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0“A
Long-Term Debt Proceeds
Proceeds from Certificates of Participation 8971 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Proceeds from Capital Leases 8972 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Proceeds from Lease Revenue Bonds 8973 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
All Other Financing Sources 8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
| (c) TOTAL, SOURCES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
USES
Transfers of Funds from Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 7651 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
All Other Financing Uses 7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
d) TOTAL, USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
CONTRIBUTIONS W
Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues 8980 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
Contributions from Restricted Revenues 8990 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
| (e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0“/j

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
(a-b+c-d+e) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
<ile: fundi-d (Rev 02/02/2016) Page 6 Printed: 3/15/2017 9:39 AM



Second Interim

South Monterey County Joint Union High Capital Facilities Fund 27 66068 0000000
Monterey County Exhibit: Restricted Balance Detail Form 25|
201617
Resource Description Projected Year Totals
Total, Restricted Balance 0.00

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0

File: fundi-d (Rev 04/18/2012) -106- Printed: 3/15/2017 9:39 AM



' SOUTH MONTEREY (\COUNTY ]OINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
800 Broadway Street, King City, CA 93930 * 831-385-0606 » FAX 831-385-0695

2016/17 Second Interim Financial Report
March 22, 2017

Fund 56
Debt Service Fund

-107-




South Monterey County Joint Union High

2016-17 Second Interim
Debt Service Fund

27 66068 0000000

Monterey County Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance Form 56l
% Diff
Board Approved Projected Year Difference Column
Original Budget Operating Budget Actuals To Date Totals (ColB& D) B&D
Description Resource Codes  Object Codes| (A) (B) (D) (F)
A. REVENUES
1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%)
4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
5) TOTAL, REVENUES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
fB. EXPENDITURES
1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 0.00 0.00 0.00 -0.00 0.00 0@ .
7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299,
Costs) 7400-7499 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
|__9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER
FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (AS - B9) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
1) Interfund Transfers
a) Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 2,500,000.00 0.00 2,500,000.00 0.00 0.0%!
b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
2) Other Sources/Uses
a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%|
b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 0.00 _2,500,000.00 0.00 2,500,000.00

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
File: fundi-d (Rev 02/02/2016)

-108-

Page 1

Printed: 3/15/2017 9:39 AM



2016-17 Second Interim

South Monterey County Joint Union High Debt Service Fund 27 66068 0000000
Monterey County Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance Form 56l
% Diff
Board Approved Projected Year Difference Column
. Original Budget Operating Budget Actuals To Date Totals (ColB& D) B&D
Description Resource Codes _ Object Codes (A) (B) (C) (D) (E) (F)
E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND
BALANCE (C + D4) 0.00 2,500,000.00 0.00 2,500,000.00
F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES
1) Beginning Fund Balance
a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 1,248,728.00 1,248,728.00 1,248,727.02 (0.98)} 0.0%
b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 1,248,728.00 1,248,728.00 1,248,727.02
d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%L
€) Adjusted Beginning Balance (Fic + F1d) 1,248,728.00 1,248,728.00 1,248,727.02
2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + Fie) 1,248,728.00 3,748,728.00 3,748,727.02
Components of Ending Fund Balance
a) Nonspendable
Revolving Cash 9711 0.00 0.00 0.00
Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.00
Prepaid Expenditures 9713 0.00 0.00 0.00
All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.00
b) Legally Restricted Balance 9740 0.00 0.00 0.00
c) Committed
Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00
Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.00
d) Assigned
Other Assignments 9780 1,248,728.00 3,748,728.00 3,748,727.02
e) Unassigned/Unappropriated
Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00 0.00
Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
File: fundi-d (Rev 02/02/2016)

-109-

Page 2

Printed: 3/15/2017 9:39 AM



2016-17 Second Interim

South Monterey County Joint Union High Debt Service Fund 27 66068 0000000
Monterey County Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance Form 56l
% Diff
Board Approved Projected Year Difference Column
. Original Budget Operating Budget Actuals To Date Totals (Col B& D) B&D
Description Resource Codes _ Object Codes| a) (B) (c) (D) (E) (F)
FEDERAL REVENUE
All Other Federal Revenue 8290 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%|
TOTAL, FEDERAL REVENUE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
OTHER STATE REVENUE
All Other State Revenue 8590 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%|
OTHER LOCAL REVENUE
Interest 8660 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments 8662 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Other Local Revenue
All Other Local Revenue 8699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%|
TOTAL, REVENUES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
OTHER OUTG_O (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs)v
Debt Service
Debt Service - Interest 7438 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%)|
Other Debt Service - Principal 7439 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%)
TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
INTERFUND TRANSFERS
INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN
Other Authorized Interfund Transfers In 8919 0.00 2,500,000.00 0.00 2,500,000.00 0.00 0.0%|
| (a) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 0.00 2,500,000.00 0.00 2,500,000.00 0.00 0.0%11
INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT
Other Authorized Interfund Transfers Out 7619 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0“/11
| (b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
OTHER SOURCESIUSES
SOURCES
Other Sources
Transfers from Funds of Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 8965 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Long-Term Debt Proceeds
Proceeds from Certificates of Participation 8971 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
All Other Financing Sources 8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
(c) TOTAL, SOURCES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00.] 0.00 0.0%
USES
Transfers of Funds from Lapsed/Reorganized LEAs 7651 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
All Other Financing Uses 7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
| (d) TOTAL, USES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
CONTRIBUTIONS
Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues 8980 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%!
Contributions from Restricted Revenues 8990 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
| (e) TOTAL. CONTRIBUTIONS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES
@-b+c-d+e) -110- 2,500,000.00 0.00 2,500,000.00
A s RE Somr-zoTzD
“ile: fundi-d (Rev 02/02/2016) Page 3 Printed: 3/15/2017 9:39 AM



Second Interim

South Monterey County Joint Union High Debt Service Fund 2766068 0000000
Monterey County Exhibit: Restricted Balance Detail Form 561
2016/17
Resource Description Projected Year Totals
Total, Restricted Balance 0.00

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
File: fundi-d (Rev 04/18/2012) -111- Printed: 3/15/2017 9:39 AM



SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY ]OINT UNI ON HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
800 Broadway Street, King City, CA 93930 * 831-385-0606 = FAX 831-385-0695

2016/17 Second Interim Financial Report
March 22, 2017

Form Al
Average Daily Attendance

~-112-



South Monterey County Joint Union High

2016-17 Second Interim
AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE

27 66068 0000000

Monterey County Form Al
ESTIMATED
) FUNDED ADA| ESTIMATED )
ESTIMATED Board P-2 REPORT | ESTIMATED
FUNDED ADA| Approved ADA FUNDED ADA PERCENTAGE
Original Operating |Projected Year| Projected DIFFERENCE | DIFFERENCE
Budget Budget Totals Year Totals (Col. D -B) (Col. E/B)
Description (A) (B) (C) (D) (E) (F)
A. DISTRICT
1. Total District Regular ADA
Includes Opportunity Classes, Home &
Hospital, Special Day Class, Continuation
Education, Special Education NPS/LCI
and Extended Year, and Community Day
School (includes Necessary Small School
ADA) 2,086.00 2,088.00 2,121.00 2,121.00 33.00 2%
2. Total Basic Aid Choice/Court Ordered
Voluntary Pupil Transfer Regular ADA
Includes Opportunity Classes, Home &
Hospital, Special Day Class, Continuation
Education, Special Education NPS/LCI
and Extended Year, and Community Day
School (ADA not included in Line A1 above) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
3. Total Basic Aid Open Enroliment Regular ADA
Includes Opportunity Classes, Home &
Hospital, Special Day Class, Continuation
Education, Special Education NPS/LCI
and Extended Year, and Community Day
School (ADA not included in Line A1 above) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
4. Total, District Regular ADA
(Sum of Lines A1 through A3) 2,086.00 2,088.00 2,121.00 2,121.00 33.00 2%
5. District Funded County Program ADA
a. County Community Schools 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
b. Special Education-Special Day Class 3.85 3.85 6.00 6.00 2.15 56%
c. Special Education-NPS/LCI 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
d. Special Education Extended Year 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
e. Other County Operated Programs:
Opportunity Schools and Full Day
Opportunity Classes, Specialized Secondary
Schools, Technical, Agricultural, and Natural
Resource Conservation Schools 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
f. County School Tuition Fund
(Out of State Tuition) [EC 2000 and 46380] 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
g. Total, District Funded County Program ADA
(Sum of Lines A5a through A5f) 3.85 3.85 6.00 6.00 2.15 56%
6. TOTAL DISTRICT ADA
(Sum of Line A4 and Line A5g) 2,089.85 2,091.85 2,127.00 2,127.00 35.15 2%
7. Adults in Correctional Facilities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
8. Charter School ADA : ) A ;
(Enter Charter School ADA using
Tab C. Charter School ADA)
California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0 -113-
File: adai (Rev 02/03/2016) Pi Printed: 3/15/2017 9:40 AM



2016-17 Second Interim

South Monterey County Joint Union High AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE 27 66068 0000000
Monterey County Form Al
ESTIMATED
: FUNDED ADA | ESTIMATED :
ESTIMATED Board P-2 REPORT | ESTIMATED
FUNDED ADA | Approved ADA FUNDED ADA PERCENTAGE
Original Operating |Projected Year| Projected DIFFERENCE | DIFFERENCE
Budget Budget Totals Year Totals (Col.D-B) (Col. E/B)
Description (A) (B) (C) (D) (E) (F)

B. COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
1. County Program Alternative Education ADA

a. County Group Home and Institution Pupils 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
b. Juvenile Halls, Homes, and Camps 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
c. Probation Referred, On Probation or Parole,

Expelled per EC 48915(a) or (c) [EC 2574(c)(4)(A)] 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
d. Total, County Program Alternative Education

ADA (Sum of Lines B1a through B1c) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%

2. District Funded County Program ADA

a. County Community Schools 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
b. Special Education-Special Day Class 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
c. Special Education-NPS/LCI 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
d. Special Education Extended Year 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
e. Other County Operated Programs:

Opportunity Schools and Full Day
Opportunity Classes, Specialized Secondary
Schools, Technical, Agricultural, and Natural

Resource Conservation Schools 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
f. County School Tuition Fund
(Out of State Tuition) [EC 2000 and 46380] 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
g. Total, District Funded County Program ADA
(Sum of Lines B2a through B2f) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
3. TOTAL COUNTY OFFICE ADA
(Sum of Lines B1d and B2g) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
4. Adults in Correctional Facilities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
5

. County Operations Grant ADA 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%

6. Charter School ADA : e S A ; : : | '
(Enter Charter School ADA using
Tab C. Charter School ADA)

>alifornia Dept of Education =114-
5ACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
“ile: adai (Rev 02/03/2016) Page 1 of 1 Printed: 3/15/2017 9:40 AM



2016-17 Second Interim

South Monterey County Joint Union High AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE 27 66068 0000000

Monterey County Form Al
ESTIMATED
FUNDED ADA | ESTIMATED
ESTIMATED Board P-2 REPORT | ESTIMATED
FUNDED ADA| Approved ADA FUNDED ADA PERCENTAGE
Original Operating |Projected Year| Projected DIFFERENCE | DIFFERENCE
Budget Budget Totals Year Totals (Col. D-B) (Col. EIB)
Description (A) (B) (C) (D) (E) (F)
C. CHARTER SCHOOL ADA
Authorizing LEAs reporting charter school SACS financial data in their Fund 01, 09, or 62 use this worksheet to report ADA for those charter schools.
Charter schools reporting SACS financial data separately from their authorizing LEAs in Fund 01 or Fund 62 use this worksheet to report their ADA.
FUND 01: Charter School ADA corresponding to SACS financial data reported in Fund 01.
1. Total Charter School Regular ADA 0.00 0.00 l 0.00 0.00 0.0¢ 0%
2. Charter School County Program Alternative
Education ADA
a. County Group Home and Institution Pupils 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
b. Juvenile Halls, Homes, and Camps 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
c. Probation Referred, On Probation or Parole,
Expelled per EC 48915(a) or (c) [EC 2574(c)(4)(A)] 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
d. Total, Charter School County Program
Alternative Education ADA
(Sum of Lines C2a through C2c) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
3. Charter School Funded County Program ADA
a. County Community Schools 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
b. Special Education-Special Day Class 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
c¢. Special Education-NPS/LCI 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
d. Special Education Extended Year 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
e. Other County Operated Programs:
Opportunity Schools and Full Day
Opportunity Classes, Specialized Secondary
Schools, Technical, Agricultural, and Natural
Resource Conservation Schools 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
f. Total, Charter School Funded County
Program ADA
(Sum of Lines C3a through C3e) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
4. TOTAL CHARTER SCHOOL ADA
(Sum of Lines C1, C2d, and C3f) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
FUND 09 or 62: Charter School ADA corresponding to SACS financial data reported in Fund 01 or Fund 62.
5. Total Charter School Regular ADA 0.00 ' 10.00 , 11.39 l 11.39 1.39 14%
6. Charter School County Program Alternative
Education ADA
a. County Group Home and Institution Pupils 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
b. Juvenile Halls, Homes, and Camps 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
c. Probation Referred, On Probation or Parole,
Expelled per EC 48915(a) or (c) [EC 2574(c)(4)(A)] 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
d. Total, Charter School County Program
Alternative Education ADA
(Sum of Lines C6a through C6c) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
7. Charter School Funded County Program ADA
a. County Community Schools 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 .0.00 0%
b. Special Education-Special Day Class 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
c. Special Education-NPS/LCI 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
d. Special Education Extended Year 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
e. Other County Operated Programs:
Opportunity Schools and Full Day
Opportunity Classes, Specialized Secondary
Schools, Technical, Agricultural, and Natural
Resource Conservation Schools 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
f. Total, Charter School Funded County
Program ADA
(Sum of Lines C7a through C7e) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
8. TOTAL CHARTER SCHOOL ADA
(Sum of Lines C5, C6d, and C7f) 0.00 10.00 11.39 11.39 1.39 14%
9. TOTAL CHARTER SCHOOL ADA
Reported in Fund 01, 09, or 62
(Sum of Lines C4 and C8) 0.00 10.00 11.39 11.39 1.39 14%
California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0 _ 1 15 _
File: adai (Rev 02/03/2016) Pe Printed: 3/15/2017 9:40 AM



S OUTH MONTEREY'COUNTY rHOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL D ISTRICT
800 Broadway Street, King City, CA 93930 * 831-385-0606 = FAX 831-385-0695

2016/17 Second Interim Financial Report
March 22, 2017

Form CASH
Cashflow Worksheet

-116-



Second Interim

South Monterey County Joint Union High 2016-17 INTERIM REPORT 27 66068 0000000

Monterey County Cashflow Worksheet - Budget Year (1) Form CASH
July August September October November December January February
ACTUALS THROUGH THE MONTH OF 3 2 e e : S H / f s
(Enter Month Name): I e v A ST PR S RN SR Y SRRE I R A e e
A. BEGINNING CASH i 10,390,803.30 10,294,433.20 9,543,059.20 10,148,898.14 10,252,620.73 8,549,164.01 10,440,760.76 10,245,643.28
B. RECEIPTS )
LCFF/Revenue Limit Sources
Principal Apportionment 8010-8019 5 2,047,738.00 2,047,738.00 2,811,898.00 2,047,738.00 0.00 765,800.00 819,095.00 1,045,902.00
Property Taxes 8020-8079 | 2,186.59 5,844.68 164,787.06 30,359.70 2,655,621.13 168,740.48 118,859.89
Miscellaneous Funds 8080-8099
Federal Revenue 8100-8299 79,990.80 217,543.00 20,000.00 339.34
Other State Revenue 8300-8599 | 132,497.85 1,792,282.86 29,180.25 306,668.30 24.,482.00 496,831.09 128,175.00
Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 (350.00) 76,476.00 65,991.19 139,847.78 192,933.82 80,188.02 194,891.58 102,215.11
Interfund Transfers In 8910-8929
All Other Financing Sources 8930-8979 | 1,207.49 (1,207.49)
TOTAL RECEIPTS 2,182,072.44 2,124 214.00 4,756,007.53 2,381,553.09 529,961.82 3,743,634.15 1,700,765.64 1,394,283.85
C. DISBURSEMENTS
Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 | 114,859.47 919,162.89 894,657.35 926,997.50 914,555.45 942,852.17 916,690.14 871 .992.70
Classified Salaries 2000-2999 140,752.49 260,359.57 260,627.40 252,332.78 260,199.37 284,395.53 249,642.40 235,861.29
Employee Benefits 3000-3999 114,915.54 399,119.48 381,795.37 387,612.82 391,809.85 392,515.75 383,623.12 375,363.63
Books and Supplies 4000-4999 | 102,582.23 281,987.30 166,460.46 143,851.01 137,230.63 73,067.64 120,828.63 97,539.35
Services 5000-5999 372,263.43 546,413.82 481,820.30 391,214.55 378,862.83 331,717.11 136,374.24 227,344.30
Capital Outlay 6000-6599 119,955.98 17,035.00 13,252.38 50,934.84 60,470.23 178,149.77 9,154.96
Other Outgo 7000-7499 5,583.00 39,318.04 41,242.90 35,944.53 41,274.46 5,784.03 43,143.15 104,609.88
Interfund Transfers Out 7600-7629
All Other Financing Uses 7630-7699
I TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS : 850,956.16 2,566,317.08 2,243,638.78 2,151,205.57 2,174,867.43 2,090,802.46 2,028,451.45 1,921,866.11
. BALANCE SHEET ITEMS
~ isets and Deferred Qutflows
! Cash Not In Treasury 9111-9199 967,879.07 (246,543.38) (246,543.38) (219,333.75) (246,543.38)
Accounts Receivable 9200-9299 415,658.94 132,992.29 84,001.12 66,784.60 (24,600.71) 98,072.91 77,509.00 238,845.66
Due From Other Funds 9310 5,563.00
Stores 9320
Prepaid Expenditures 9330 42,483.94 42,483.94
Other Current Assets 9340 0.00
Deferred Outflows of Resources 9490
SUBTOTAL 1,431,584.95 (71,067.15) (246,543.38) (135,332.63) (179,758.78) (24,600.71) 98,072.91 77,509.00 238,845.66
Liabilities and Deferred Inflows
Accounts Payable 9500-9599 1,862,979.71 1,359,454.23 62,727.54 (35.847.05) (51,179.98) 37,596.86 (140,692.15) (55,059.33) 48,746.29
Due To Other Funds 9610
Current Loans 9640
Unearned Revenues 9650 1,802,055.36 1,802,055.36
Deferred Inflows of Resources 9690
SUBTOTAL 3.665,035.07 1,359,454.23 62,727.54 1,766,208.31 (51,179.98) 37,596.86 (140,692.15) (55,059.33) 48,746.29
Nonoperating
Suspense Clearing 9910 3,035.00 (4,988.87) 1,953.87 3,646.46
TOTAL BALANCE SHEET ITEMS (2,233,450.12) (1,427 486.38) (309,270.92) (1,906,529.81) (126,624.93) (58,551.11) 238,765.06 132,568.33 190,099.37
E. NET INCREASE/DECREASE (B-C+D) (96,370.10) (751,374.00) 605,838.94 103,722.59 (1,703 ,456.72) 1,891,596.75 (195,117.48) (337,482.89)
F. ENDING CASH (A + E) 10,294 433.20 9,543,059.20 10,148,898.14 10,252,620.73 8,549,164.01 10,440,760.76 10,245,643.28 9,908,160.39
G. ENDING CASH, PLUS CASH : R B e : Gt T e i
ACCRUALS AND ADJUSTMENTS
California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
File: cashi (Rev 06/17/2014) Page 1 of 2 Printed: 3/15/2017 9:40 AM




South Monterey County Joint Union High
Monterey County

81T~

Second Interim

2016-17 INTERIM REPORT
Cashflow Worksheet - Budget Year (1)

27 66068 0000000
Form CASH

California Dept of Education

Object March April May June Accruals Adjustments TOTAL BUDGET
ACTUALS THROUGH THE MONTH OF| ) R, ' AT A :
(Enter Month Name): M R e R AT e i ¢ AN |
A. BEGINNING CASH 9,908,160.39 9,105,419.08 9,905,316.86 8,087,478.94
B. RECEIPTS
LCFF/Revenue Limit Sources
Principal Apportionment 8010-8019 1,045,902.00 1,045,902.00 1,045,902.00 0.00 2,638,219.00 17,361,834.00 17,361,834.00
Property Taxes 8020-8079 110,000.00 2,150,644.88 60,000.00 189,070.59 5,656,115.00 5,656,115.00
Miscellaneous Funds 8080-8099 (26,458.00) (26,458.00) (26,458.00)

Federal Revenue 8100-8299 40,000.00 125,000.00 779,278.86 150,000.00 1,412,152.00 1,412,152.00

Other State Revenue 8300-8599 77,002.68 250,000.00 176,187.38 250,000.00 351,037.77 4.014,345.18 4,014,345.18

Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 120,000.00 309,984.61 300,000.00 217,843.21 1,800,021.32 1,800,021.32

Interfund Transfers In 8910-8929 0.00 0.00

All Other Financing Sources 8930-8979 i 0.00 0.00

TOTAL RECEIPTS 1,392,904.68 3,730,073.49 1,707,089.38 1,436,192.66 3,139,256.77 0.00 30,218,009.50 30,218,009.50
C. DISBURSEMENTS

Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 1,045,902.00 949,815.45 949,815.44 1,132,020.95 10,579,321.51 10,579,321.51{-

Classified Salaries 2000-2999 261,000.00 261,000.00 261,000.00 315,000.00 95,969.58 3,138,140.41 3,138,140.41

Employee Benefits 3000-3999 400,000.00 400,000.00 400,000.00 1,068,164.94 48,566.26 5,143,486.76 5,143,486.76

Books and Supplies 4000-4999 26,936.97 485,000.00 185,000.00 285,000.00 125,241.92 2,230,726.14 2,230,726.14

Services 5000-5999 380,000.00 557,770.00 557,770.00 927,767.65 1,438,871.05 6.728,189.28 6,728,189.28

Capital Outlay 6000-6599 25,000.00 210,943.80 342,342.02 342,342.02 1,369,581.00 1,369,581.00

Other Outgo 7000-7499 63,163.60 62,000.00 62,000.00 1,435,465.41 1,939,529.00 1,939,529.00

Interfund Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00

All Other Financing Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00

TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS 2,202 ,002.57 2,926,529.25 2,757,927.46 5,505,760.97 1,708,648.81 0.00 31,128,974.10 31,128,974.10
D. BALANCE SHEET ITEMS s
Assets and Deferred Outflows

Cash Not In Treasury 9111-9199 (8,915.18) (967,879.07)|

Accounts Receivable 9200-9299 (128,972.96) (128,972.95) 415,658.96|:

Due From Other Funds 9310 5,563.00 5,563.00|

Stores 9320 0.00:

Prepaid Expenditures 9330 42,483.94|

Other Current Assets 9340 0.00

Deferred Outflows of Resources 9490 0.00§

SUBTOTAL 5,563.00 0.00 (128,972.96) (128,972.95) 0.00 (8,915.18) (504,173.17)'

Liabilities and Deferred Inflows d

Accounts Payable 9500-9599 (793.58) 638,026.88 1,862,979.71

Due To Other Funds 9610 0.00

Current Loans 9640 0.00

Unearned Revenues 9650 1,802,055.36

Deferred Inflows of Resources 9690 0.00)

SUBTOTAL (793.58) 0.00 638,026.88 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,665,035.07
Nonoperating

Suspense Clearing 9910 (3.646.46) 0.00] .

TOTAL BALANCE SHEET ITEMS 6,356.58 (3,646.46) (766,999.84) (128,972.95) 0.00 (8,915.18) (4,169,208.24)| . Slaratss :
E. NET INCREASE/DECREASE (B - C + D) (802,741.31) 799,897.78 (1,817,837.92) (4,198,541.26) 1,430,607.96 (8,915.18) (5,080,172.84) (910,964.60)
F. ENDING CASH (A + E) 9,105,419.08 9,905,316.86 8,087,478.94 3,888,937.68|. EREEEANA SRR
G. ENDING CASH, PLUS CASH ’ Sl i ‘

ACCRUALS AND ADJUSTMENTS 5,310,630.46
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
Page 2 of 2 Printed: 3/15/2017 9:40 AM

File: cashi (Rev 06/17/2014)



South Monterey County Joint Union High

Second Interim
2016-17 INTERIM REPORT

27 66068 0000000

Monterey County Cashflow Worksheet - Budget Year (2) Form CASH
Object July August September October November December January February
ACTUALS THROUGH THE MONTH OF| s ;s W S T R s e A - 3
(Enter Month Name): R RN ST YR SN T ) A T A o PR A A N O A o RS e R
A. BEGINNING CASH 3,888,937.68 3,888,937.68 3,888,937.68 3,888,937.68 3,888,937.68 3,888,937.68 3,888,937.68 3,888,937.68
B. RECEIPTS
LCFF/Revenue Limit Sources
Principal Apportionment 8010-8019
Property Taxes 8020-8079 |.
Miscellaneous Funds 8080-8099 |
Federal Revenue 8100-8299
Other State Revenue 8300-8599 |
Other Local Revenue 8600-8799
Interfund Transfers In 8910-8929
All Other Financing Sources 8930-8979
TOTAL RECEIPTS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
C. DISBURSEMENTS
Certificated Salaries 1000-1999
Classified Salaries 2000-2999
Employee Benefits 3000-3999 |
Books and Supplies 4000-4999 |
Services 5000-5999
Capital Outlay 6000-6599 |
Other Outgo 7000-7499 |
Interfund Transfers Out 7600-7629
All Other Financing Uses 7630-7699
1 TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
E ). BALANCE SHEET ITEMS
O ssets and Deferred Outflows
' Cash Not In Treasury 9111-9199
Accounts Receivable 9200-9299
Due From Other Funds 9310
Stores 9320
Prepaid Expenditures 9330
Other Current Assets 9340
Deferred Outflows of Resources 9490
SUBTOTAL 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Liabilities and Deferred Inflows
Accounts Payable 9500-9599
Due To Other Funds 9610
Current Loans 9640
Unearned Revenues 9650
Deferred Inflows of Resources 9690 ;
SUBTOTAL i 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Nonoperating
Suspense Clearing 9910
TOTAL BALANCE SHEET ITEMS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
E. NET INCREASE/DECREASE (B - C + D) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
E. ENDING CASH (A + E) 3,888,937.68 3,888,937.68 3,888,937.68 3,888,937.68 3,888,937.68 3,888,937.68 3,888,937.68 3,888,937.68
G. ENDING CASH, PLUS CASH ; o : | % 5 R et i £ :
ACCRUALS AND ADJUSTMENTS
California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0 “
File: cashi (Rev 06/17/2014) Page 1 of 2 Printed: 3/15/2017 9:40 AM



Monterey County

-0¢1-

Second Interim

California Dept of Education

South Monterey County Joint Union High 2016-17 INTERIM REPORT 27 66068 0000000
Cashflow Worksheet - Budget Year (2) Form CASH
Object March April May June Accruals Adjustments TOTAL BUDGET
ACTUALS THROUGH THE MONTH OF A i B i 3 ] | SO
(Enter Month Name): TS o S B AE S
A. BEGINNING CASH 3 3,888,937.68 3,888,937.68 3,888,937.68 3,888,937.68
B. RECEIPTS
LCFF/Revenue Limit Sources
Principal Apportionment 8010-8019 0.00
Property Taxes 8020-8079 0.00
Miscellaneous Funds 8080-8099 0.00
Federal Revenue 8100-8299 0.00
Other State Revenue 8300-8599 0.00
Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 0.00
Interfund Transfers In 8910-8929 0.00
All Other Financing Sources 8930-8979 0.00
TOTAL RECEIPTS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
C. DISBURSEMENTS
Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 0.00
Classified Salaries 2000-2999 0.00
Employee Benefits 3000-3999 0.00
Books and Supplies 4000-4999 0.00
Services 5000-5999 0.00
Capital Outlay 6000-6599 0.00
Other Outgo 7000-7499 0.00
Interfund Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00
All Other Financing Uses 7630-7699 0.00
TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
D. BALANCE SHEET ITEMS ;
Assets and Deferred Outflows
Cash Not In Treasury 9111-9199 0.00
Accounts Receivable 9200-9299 0.00|"
Due From Other Funds 9310 0.00
Stores 9320 0.00]|
Prepaid Expenditures 9330 0.00|:
Other Current Assets 9340 0.00
Deferred Outflows of Resources 9490 0.00
SUBTOTAL 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Liabilities and Deferred Inflows ;
Accounts Payable 9500-9599 0.00
Due To Other Funds 9610 0.00
Current Loans 9640 0.00
Unearned Revenues 9650 0.00|
Deferred Inflows of Resources 9690 0.00
SUBTOTAL 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00|:
Nonoperating
Suspense Clearing 9910 0.00
TOTAL BALANCE SHEET ITEMS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00|! bl
E. NET INCREASE/DECREASE (B - C + D) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
F. ENDING CASH (A + E) 3,888,937.68 3,888,937.68 3,888,937.68 3,888,037.68|" T 5 i ] i
G. ENDING CASH, PLUS CASH i as g Rl : ; ' R {
ACCRUALS AND ADJUSTMENTS 3,888,937.68: . i
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
Page 2 of 2 Printed: 3/15/2017 9:40 AM

File: cashi (Rev 06/17/2014)



SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY ]OINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
800 Broadway Street, King City, CA 93930 * 831-385-0606 = FAX 831-385-0695

2016/17 Second Interim Financial Report
March 22, 2017

Form MYP
Multi-Year Projections

-121-



South Monterey County Joint Union High

2016-17 Second Interim

General Fund

27 66068 0000000

Monterey County Multiyear Projections Form MYPI
Unrestricted
Projected Year % %
Totals Change 2017-18 Change 2018-19
Object (Form O11) (Cols. C-A/A) Projection (Cols. E-C/C) Projection
Description Cod_cs (A) (B) (C) (D) (E)
(Enter projections for subsequent years 1 and 2 in Columns C and E;
current year - Column A - is extracted)
A. REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
I. LCFF/Revenue Limit Sources 8010-8099 22,991,491.00 241% 23.544,779.00 4.96% 24,712,534.00
2. Federal Revenues 8100-8299 0.00 0.00% 0.00%
3. Other State Revenues 8300-8599 849,359.00 -63.93% 306,354.00 0.00% 306,354.00
4. Other Local Revenues 8600-8799 844,139.16 -9.70% 762,239.00 0.14% 763,289.00
5. Other Financing Sources
a. Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00% 0.00%
b. Other Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00% 0.00%
c. Contributions 8980-8999 (3.552,179.00) -5.36% (3.361,895.00) -0.56% (3.342,941.31)
6. Total (Sum lines Al thru ASc) 21,132,810.16 0.56% 21,251.477.00 5.59% 22.439,235.69
B. EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES e ; : :
1. Certificated Salaries i i
a. Base Salaries 8,788,168.51 : 9.621,829.51
b. Step & Column Adjustment 170,642.00 194,436.00
c. Cost-of-Living Adjustment 213,019.00
d. Other Adjustments G e o DAL S S S ) 450,000.00 | = 400,000.00
e. Total Certificated Salaries (Sum lines Bla thru B1d) 1000-1999 8.,788,168.51 9.49% 9,621,829.51 6.18% 10,216,265.51
2. Classified Salaries 3 i o
a. Base Salaries 2,360,775.41 2,515,635.41
b. Step & Column Adjustment 47.851.00 50,028.00
c. Cost-of-Living Adjustment 61,009.00 | 63,786.00
d. Other Adjustments 53 Sl | SRR 46,000.00 ;
e. Total Classified Salaries (Sum lines B2a thru B2d) 2000-2999 2,360,775.41 6.56% 2,515,635.41 4.52% 2,629.449.41
3. Employee Benefits 3000-3999 3,631,204.76 6.87% 3,880.567.00 7.03%| 4,153,564.00
4. Books and Supplies 4000-4999 1,355,116.69 0.48% 1,361,652.00 9.80% 1,495,149.00
5. Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 2,814,687.12 -15.01% 2,392,224.00 2.42% 2.450,000.00
6. Capital Outlay 6000-6999 1,146,018.00 -91.27% 100,000.00 0.00%! 100,000.00
7. Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 7100-7299, 7400-7499 1,478,908.00 -5.23% 1,401,529.00 0.00% 1,401,529.00
8. Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 (62,114.00) -32.32% (42,037.00) 0.00% (42,037.00)
9. Other Financing Uses
a. Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00% 0.00%
b. Other Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00% 0.00%
10. Other Adjustments (Explain in Section F below) AR R : L
11. Total (Sum lines Bl thru B10) 21.512,764.49 -1.31% 21,231,399.92 5.52% 22.403.919.92
C. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE e : !
| (Line AG minus line B11) (379.954.33)||" 20.077.08 |I: 35.315.77
D. FUND BALANCE
1. Net Beginning Fund Balance (Fonn 011, line Fle) 7.490,722.52 7.110,768.19 7,130,845.27
2. Ending Fund Balance (Sum lines C and D1) 7,110,768.19 7,130,845.27 | 7,166,161.04
3. Components of Ending Fund Balance (Forn 011) :
a. Nonspendable 9710-9719 6,000.00 6,000.00 6.000.00
b. Restricted 9740 ; £5f e
c. Committed
1. Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00
2. Other Commitments 9760 0.00
d. Assigned 9780 310,169.52
¢. Unassigned/Unappropriated
1. Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 5.291,926.00 4,753,981.00 4.981,153.00
2. Unassigned/Unappropriated 9790 1,502,672.67 2,370,864.27 2,179,008.04
f. Total Components of Ending Fund Balance
(Line D3f must agree with line D2) 7.110.768.19 7.130.845.27 7.166.161.04
California Dept of Education - ]_22 =
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
File: mypi (Rev 03/30/2015) Page 1 Printed: 3/16/2017 12:20 PM



South Monterey County Joint Union High

2016-17 Second Interim
General Fund

27 66068 0000000

Monterey County Multiyear Projections Form MYPI
Unrestricted
Projected Year % %
Totals Change 2017-18 Change 2018-19
Object (Form 011) (Cols. C-A/A) Projection (Cols. E-C/C) Projection
Description Codes (A) (B) (C) (D) (E)
E. AVAILABLERESERVES | e EEAEE R
1. General Fund
a. Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00
b. Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 5.291,926.00 4,753,981.00 | 4,981,153.00
c. Unassigned/Unappropriated 9790 1,502,672.67 2,370,864.27 | 2,179,008.04
(Enter other reserve projections in Columns C and E for subsequent
years 1 and 2; current year - Column A - is extracted) !
2. Special Reserve Fund - Noncapital Outlay (Fund 17) i
a. Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 |
b. Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00
c. Unassigned/Unappropriated 9790 0.00
3. Total Available Reserves (Sum lines Ela thru E2c) 6,794,598.67 7.124.845.27 7.160.161.04

F. ASSUMPTIONS

SACS Financial Reporting Software User Guide.

Please provide below or on a separate attachment, the assumptions used to determine the projections for the first and
second subsequent fiscal years. Further, please include an explanation for any significant expenditure adjustments
projected in lines B1d, B2d, and B10. For additional information, please refer to the Budget Assumptions section of the

We have included costs to add certificated staff due to increased enrollments. We have included negotiated increases.

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
File: mypi (Rev 03/30/2015)

-123-

Page 2

Printed: 3/16/2017 12:20 PM



South Monterey County Joint Union High

2016-17 Second Interim
General Fund

27 66068 0000000

Monterey County Multiyear Projections Form MYPI
Restricted
Projected Year % %
Totals Change 2017-18 Change 2018-19
Object (Form 011) (Cols. C-A/A) Projection (Cols. E-CIC) Projection
Description Codes (A) (B) ,(C) (D) (E)
(Enter projections for subsequent years 1 and 2 in Columns C and E;
current year - Column A - is extracted)
A. REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
L. LCFF/Revenue Limit Sources 8010-8099 0.00 0.00% 0.00%
2. Federal Revenues 8100-8299 1,412,152.00 -8.27% 1,295,372.00 0.00% 1,295,372.00
3. Other State Revenues 8300-8599 3.164,986.18 -61.17% 1,228,819.00 2.21% 1,256,009.00
4. Other Local Revenues 8600-8799 955,882.16 -11.38% 847.064.00 2.36% 867,037.00
5. Other Financing Sources
a. Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00% 0.00%
b. Other Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00% 0.00%
c. Contributions 8980-8999 3,552,179.00 -5.36% 3,361,895.00 -0.56% 3,342,941.31
6. Total (Sum lines Al thru ASc) 9,085.199.34 -25.89% 6,733,150.00 0.42% 6,761,359.31
B. EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES i
1. Certificated Salaries
a. Base Salaries 1,791,153.00 1,866,144.00
b. Step & Column Adjustment 26,868.00 37,323.00
c. Cost-of-Living Adjustment 48,123.00
d. Other Adjustments o] b ) :
e. Total Certificated Salaries (Sum lines Bla thru Bld) 1000-1999 1,791,153.00 4.19% 1,866,144.00 2.00% 1,903,467.00
2. Classified Salaries s . e SHE
a. Base Salaries 7717,365.00 808,164.00
b. Step & Column Adjustment 11,661.00 16,163.00
c. Cost-of-Living Adjustment 19,138.00 20,015.00
d. Other Adjustments : z 3 i
e. Total Classified Salaries (Sum lines B2a thru B2d) 2000-2999 777,365.00 3.96% 808,164.00 448% 844,342.00
3. Employee Benefits 3000-3999 1,512,282.00 6.18% 1,605,684.00 4.99% 1,685,864.00
4. Books and Supplies 4000-4999 875,609.45 -33.82% 579.441.00 1.75% 589,590.00
5. Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 3.913,502.16 -64.98% 1,370,680.00 0.00% 1,370,680.00
6. Capital Outlay 6000-6999 223,563.00 -100.00% 0.00 0.00%
7. Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 7100-7299, 7400-7499 460,621.00 0.08% 461,000.00 0.00% 461,000.00
8. Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 62,114.00 -32.32% 42,037.00 0.00% 42,037.00
9. Other Financing Uses
a. Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00% 0.00%
b. Other Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00% 0.00%
10. Other Adjustments (Explain in Section F below) ey . &
11. Total (Sum lines Bl thru B10) 9.616,209.61 -29.98% 6.733,150.00 243% 6.896.980.00
C. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE ; ‘ i
(Line A6 minus line B11) (531.010.27) 0.00 | (135.620.69)
D. FUND BALANCE
1. Net Beginning Fund Balance (Form 011, line Fle) 666,630.96 135,620.69 | 135.620.69
2. Ending Fund Balance (Sum lines C and D1) 135,620.69 135,620.69 0.00
3. Components of Ending Fund Balance (Form 011) f
a. Nonspendable 9710-9719 0.00
b. Restricted 9740 135,620.69 | 135,620.69
c. Comimitted
1. Stabilization Arrangements 9750
2. Other Commitments 9760
d. Assigned 9780
e. Unassigned/Unappropriated
1. Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789
2. Unassigned/Unappropriated 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00
f. Total Components of Ending Fund Balance
(Line D3f must agree with line D2) 135.620.69 135.620.69 0.00
California Dept of Education = 124 =
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
File: mypi (Rev 03/30/2015) Page 1 Printed: 3/16/2017 12:20 PM



2016-17 Second Interim
South Monterey County Joint Union High

General Fund 27 66068 0000000
Monterey County Multiyear Projections Form MYPI
Restricted
Projected Year % %
Totals Change 2017-18 Change 2018-19
Object (Form 011) (Cols. C-A/A) Projection (Cols. E-CIC) Projection
Description Codes (A) (B) (C) (D) (E)
E. AVAILABLE RESERVES Fimivae s | e E ;
1. General Fund ;
a. Stabilization Arrangements 9750 ;
b. Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789
c. Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790
(Enter current year reserve projections in Column A, and other reserve :
projections in Columns C and E for subsequent years 1 and 2) { S i i
2. Special Reserve Fund - Noncapital Outlay (Fund 17) i | [
a. Stabilization Arrangements 9750
b. Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789
c. Unassigned/Unappropriated 9790
3. Total Available Reserves (Sum lines Ela thru E2c) £

F. ASSUMPTIONS
Please provide below or on a separate attachment, the assumptions used to determine the projections for the first and
second subsequent fiscal years. Further, please include an explanation for any significant expenditure adjustments

SACS Financial Reporting Software User Guide.

projected in lines B1d, B2d, and B10. For additional information, please refer to the Budget Assumptions section of the

-125-

Page 2

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
File: mypi (Rev 03/30/2015)

Printed: 3/16/2017 12:20 PM



2016-17 Second Interim

South Monterey County Joint Union High General Fund 27 66068 0000000
Monterey County Multiyear Projections Form MYPI
Unrestricted/Restricted
Projected Year % %
Totals Change 2017-18 Change 2018-19
Object (Forin O11) (Cols. C-A/A) Projection (Cols. E-C/C) Projection
Description Codes (A) (B) Q) (D) (E)
(Enter projections for subsequent years | and 2 in Columns C and E; ) )
current year - Column A - is extracted)
A. REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
1. LCFF/Revenue Limit Sources 8010-8099 22,991.491.00 2.41% 23,544,779.00 4.96% 24,712,534.00
2. Federal Revenues 8100-8299 1,412,152.00 -8.27% 1,295,372.00 0.00% 1,295,372.00
3. Other State Revenues 8300-8599 4.014,345.18 -61.76% 1,535,173.00 1.77% 1,562,363.00
4. Other Local Revenues 8600-8799 1,800,021.32 -10.60% 1,609,303.00 1.31% 1,630,326.00
5. Other Financing Sources
a. Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00% 0.00
b. Other Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00% 0.00
c. Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00% 0.00
6. Total (Sum lines Al thru ASc) 30,218,009.50 -1.39% 27.984.627.00 4.35% 29,200,595.00
B. EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES : Ze RaEE
1. Certificated Salaries
a. Base Salaries 10,579,321.51 11,487,973.51
b. Step & Column Adjustment 197,510.00 |I° 231,759.00
c. Cost-of-Living Adjustment 261,142.00 0.00
d. Other Adjustments ] | 450,000.00 : 400,000.00
e. Total Certificated Salaries (Sum lines Bla thru B1d) 1000-1999 10,579,321.51 8.59% 11,487,973.51 5.50% 12,119,732.51
2. Classified Salaries : I SR
a. Base Salaries 3,138,140.41 3,323,799.41
b. Step & Column Adjustment 59,512.00 66,191.00
c. Cost-of-Living Adjustment 80,147.00 83,801.00
d. Other Adjustments 5 B 3 46,000.00 oy 0.00
e. Total Classified Salaries (Sum lines B2a thru B2d) 2000-2999 3,138.140.41 5.92% 3,323,799.41 451% 3.473,791.41
3. Employee Benefits 3000-3999 5.143.486.76 6.66% 5.486,251.00 6.44% 5,839,428.00
4. Books and Supplies 4000-4999 2,230,726.14 -12.98% 1,941,093.00 740% 2,084,739.00
5. Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 6,728,189.28 -44.07% 3,762,904.00 1.54% 3,820,680.00
6. Capital Outlay 6000-6999 1,369.581.00 -92.70% 100,000.00 0.00% 100,000.00
7. Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 7100-7299, 7400-7499 1,939,529.00 -3.97% 1,862,529.00 0.00% 1,862,529.00
8. Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00% 0.00
9. Other Financing Uses
a. Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00% 0.00
b. Other Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00% 0.00
10. Other Adjustments ] ] i 0.00 By 0.00
11. Total (Sum lines Bl thru B10) 31.128.974.10 -10.17% 27,964.549.92 4.78% 29.300.899.92
C. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE T d
(Line A6 minus line B11) (910.964.60) 20.077.08 (100.304.92)
D. FUND BALANCE ; .‘
1. Net Beginning Fund Balance (Form 011, line Fle) 8,157,353.48 7.246,388.88 | 7,266,465.96
2. Ending Fund Balance (Sum lines C and D1) 7,246,388.88 7.266,465.96 7,166.,161.04
3. Components of Ending Fund Balance (Form 011)
a. Nonspendable 9710-9719 6,000.00 6,000.00 6,000.00
b. Restricted 9740 135,620.69 |- 135,620.69 0.00
c. Committed d
1. Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 | 0.00 0.00
2. Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.00
d. Assigned 9780 310,169.52 0.00 0.00
e. Unassigned/Unappropriated
I. Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 5.291,926.00 4,753,981.00 4.981,153.00
2. Unassigned/Unappropriated 9790 1,502,672.67 2,370,864.27 2,179,008.04
f. Total Components of Ending Fund Balance
(Line D3f must agree with line D2) 7.246.388.88 7.266,465.96 7.166.161.04
California Dept of Education - 1 2 6 -
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
File: mypi (Rev 03/09/2016) Page 1 Printed: 3/16/2017 12:20 PM



2016-17 Second Interim

South Monterey County Joint Union High General Fund 27 66068 0000000
Monterey County Multiyear Projections Form MYPI
Unrestricted/Restricte

Projected Year % %
Totals Change 2017-18 Change 2018-19
Object (Form 011) (Cols. C-A/A) Projection (Cols. E-C/C) Projection
Description Codes (A) (B) (C) (D) (E)
E. AVAILABLE RESERVES (Unrestricted except as noted) S5
1. General Fund oA s
a. Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 |’ 0.00
b. Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 5,291,926.00 4,753,981.00 4,981,153.00
c. Unassigned/Unappropriated 9790 1,502,672.67 2,370,864.27 2,179.008.04
d. Negative Restricted Ending Balances :
(Negative resources 2000-9999) 9792 i 0.00 0.00
2. Special Reserve Fund - Noncapital Outlay (Fund 17) ] :
a. Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00
b. Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00 fi - 0.00
c. Unassigned/Unappropriated 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00
3. Total Available Reserves - by Amount (Sum lines E1 thru E2c) 6,794,598.67 | : 7,124,845.27 7.160,161.04
4. Total Available Reserves - by Percent (Line E3 divided by Line F3c) 2 l.83%i,7 % : 25.48% '._v 7 24.44%
F. RECOMMENDED RESERVES o TR SR S
1. Special Education Pass-through Exclusions
For districts that serve as the administrative unit (AU) of a
special education local plan area (SELPA):
a. Do you choose to exclude from the reserve calculation
the pass-through funds distributed to SELPA members? No
b. [f you are the SELPA AU and are excluding special
education pass-through funds:
1. Enter the name(s) of the SELPA(s):
2. Special education pass-through funds
(Column A: Fund 10, resources 3300-3499 and 6500-6540,
objects 7211-7213 and 7221-7223; enter projections for i
subsequent years 1 and 2 in Columns C and E) 0.00 0.00 0.00
2. District ADA
Used to determine the reserve standard percentage level on line F3d
(Col. A: Form Al, Estimated P-2 ADA column, Line A4; enter projections) 2,121.00 2,181.72 2,212.87
3. Calculating the Reserves :
a. Expenditures and Other Financing Uses (Line B11) 31,128,974.10 27,964,549.92 | 29,300,899.92
b. Plus: Special Education Pass-through Funds (Line F1b2, if Line Fla is No) 0.00 0.00 0.00
c. Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses
(Line F3a plus line F3b) 31,128,974.10 | 27,964.549.92 29,300,899.92
d. Reserve Standard Percentage Level
(Refer to Form 01CSI, Criterion 10 for calculation details) 3% 3% 3%
e. Reserve Standard - By Percent (Line F3c times F3d) 933,869.22 838,936.50 879,027.00
f. Reserve Standard - By Amount
(Refer to Form 01CSl, Criterion 10 for calculation details) 0.00 0.00 0.00
g. Reserve Standard (Greater of Line F3e or F3f) 933,869.22 ) 838,936.50 879,027.00
h. Available Reserves (Line E3) Mcet Reserve Standard (Line F3g) YES |YES YES

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
File: mypi (Rev 03/09/2016)

-127 -

Page 2

Printed: 3/16/2017 12:20 PM



R o N /i 4 j 1 1 A 3
bOUTH MONTEREY "COUNTY JOINT UNION I%[IGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
800 Broadway Street, King City, CA 93930 * 831-385-0606 » FAX 831-385-0695

2016/17 Second Interim Financial Report
March 22, 2017

Form SIA
Summary of Interfund Activities

-128-



Second Interim

South Monterey County Joint Union High 2016-17 Projected Year Totals 27 66068 0000000
Monterey County SUMMARY OF INTERFUND ACTIVITIES Form SIAl
FOR ALL FUNDS
Direct Costs - Interfund Indirect Costs - Interfund Interfund Interfund Due From Due To
Transfers In Transfers Out Transfers In Transfers Out Transfers In Transfers Out Other Funds Other Funds
Description 5750 5750 7350 7350 8900-8929 7600-7629 9310 9610
01l GENERAL FUND ) %
Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00

Fund Reconciliation

091 CHARTER SCHOOLS SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Other Sources/Uses Detail : EhEi] A ST | P ; 0.00 0.00
Fund Reconciliation | HE g B % ! Y
SPECIAL EDUCATION PASS-THROUGH FUND d ; 3 g :
Expenditure Detail REMRS R d b
Other Sources/Uses Detail
Fund Reconciliation

ADULT EDUCATION FUND
Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Other Sources/Uses Delail 0.00 0.00
Fund Reconciliation

121 CHILD DEVELOPMENT FUND
Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Other Sources/Uses Delail 0.00 0.00
Fund Reconciliation

CAFETERIA SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Other Sources/Uses Detail i o | Eh ; 0.00 0.00
Fund Reconciliation & ]

DEFERRED MAINTENANCE FUND
Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00 i
Other Sources/Uses Delail . ! 2y 0.00 0.00
Fund Reconciliation : 5 3

PUPIL TRANSPORTATION EQUIPMENT FUND
Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00
Olher Sources/Uses Detail : 3
Fund Reconciliation

171 SPECIAL RESERVE FUND FOR OTHER THAN CAPITAL OUTLAY

Expenditure Detail X 1
Other Sources/Uses Detail 4 3 0.00 2,500,000.00
Fund Reconciliation Al

181 SCHOOL BUS EMISSIONS REDUCTION FUND
Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00 4 Sert e B
Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
Fund Reconciliation 3

FOUNDATION SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Other Sources/Uses Detail G 2 : : 3 FRIR
Fund Reconciliation

201 SPECIAL RESERVE FUND FOR POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
Expenditure Detail a)s 3 5 J 2 ;| : 1

Other Sources/Uses Detail 3 : 4 0.00 0.00
Fund Reconciliation i

211 BUILDING FUND i
Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00 5 :

Olher Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
Fund Reconciliation 1

251 CAPITAL FACILITIES FUND
Expendilure Detail 0.00 0.00

Other Sources/Uses Detail : bt 0.00 0.00
Fund Reconciliation

301 STATE SCHOOL BUILDING LEASE/PURCHASE FUND
Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00 i

Other Sources/Uses Detail B 4 2 0.00 0.00

Fund Reconciliation ; EE

35| COUNTY SCHOOL FACILITIES FUND

Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00 !

Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00

Fund Reconciliation i

401 SPECIAL RESERVE FUND FOR CAPITAL OUTLAY PROJECTS

Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00 2 2 i

Other Sources/Uses Detail ARk 0.00 0.00

Fund Reconciliation :

491 CAP PROJ FUND FOR BLENDED COMPONENT UNITS
Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00
Other Sources/Uses Detail G 3 ; : 0.00 0.00
Fund Reconciliation : !

BOND INTEREST AND REDEMPTION FUND
Expenditure Detail
Otlher Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
Fund Reconciliation . ; : : ; .

DEBT SVC FUND FOR BLENDED COMPONENT UNITS
Expenditure Detail
Other Sources/Uses Detail : : 0.00 0.00
Fund Reconciliation
TAX OVERRIDE FUND
Expenditure Detail
Other Sources/Uses Detail ; : 0.00 0.00
Fund Reconciliation 2
DEBT SERVICE FUND
Expenditure Detail :
Other Sources/Uses Delail 2,500,000.00 0.00
Fund Reconciliation >
FOUNDATION PERMANENT FUND
Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00
Fund Reconciliation
CAFETERIA ENTERPRISE FUND
Expenditure Detail 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Other Sources/Uses Detail 0.00 0.00
Fund Reconciliation

10

1

13|

14

15

0.00 0.00 |

19|

0.00

51

52|

53|

56|

57

o
=

:alifornia Dept of Education
‘ACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
ile: siai (Rev 05/16/2016) Page 10of 2 Printed: 3/15/2017 12:01 PM




South Monterey County Joint Union High
Monterey County

Second Interim

2016-17 Projecled Year Tolals
SUMMARY OF INTERFUND ACTIVITIES
FOR ALL FUNDS

27 66068 0000000
Form SIAl

Description

Direct Costs - Interfund

Transfers In
5750

Transfers Out
5750

Transfers In
7350

Indirect Costs

- Interfund
Transfers Out
7350

Interfund
Transfers In
8900-8929

Interfund
Transfers Out
7600-7629

Due From
Other Funds
9310

Due To
Other Funds
9610

621 CHARTER SCHOOLS ENTERPRISE FUND
Expendilure Detail
Olher Sources/Uses Detail
Fund Reconciliation
OTHER ENTERPRISE FUND
Expenditure Detail
Other Sources/Uses Detail
Fund Reconciliation
WAREHOUSE REVOLVING FUND
Expenditure Detail
Other Sources/Uses Detail
Fund Reconciliation
SELF-INSURANCE FUND
Expenditure Detail
Other Sources/Uses Detail
Fund Reconciliation
RETIREE BENEFIT FUND
Expenditure Detail
Other Sources/Uses Delail
Fund Reconciliation
FOUNDATION PRIVATE-PURPOSE TRUST FUND
Expendilure Detail
Other Sources/Uses Detail
Fund Reconcilialion
WARRANT/PASS-THROUGH FUND
Expenditure Detail
Other Sources/Uses Detail
Fund Reconciliation
STUDENT BODY FUND
Expenditure Detail
Other Sources/Uses Detail
Fund Reconciliation

63|

66

67|

71

73

76

95|

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00 ji:

0.00

0.00 '

0.00

0.00 |

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00 |

0.00 |

TOTALS

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

2.500,000.00

2,500,000.00

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
File: siai (Rev 05/16/2016)

-130-

Page 2 of 2

Printed: 3/15/2017 12:01 PM



S OUTH MONTEREY COUNTY ]OINT UNION HIGH S CHOOL. DISTRICT
800 Broadway Street, King City, CA 93930 « 831-385-0606 = FAX 831-385-0695

2016/17 Second Interim Financial Report
March 22, 2017

Form CS
Criterion and Standards Review

-131-



2016-17 Second Interim
South Monterey County Joint Union High General Fund 27 66068 0000000
Monterey County School District Criteria and Standards Review Form 01CSlI

Provide methodology and assumptions used to estimate ADA, enroliment, revenues, expenditures, reserves and fund balance, and multiyear
commitments (including cost-of-living adjustments).

Deviations from the standards must be explained and may affect the interim certification.

CRITERIA AND STANDARDS

1. CRITERION: Average Daily Attendance

STANDARD: Funded average daily attendance (ADA) for any of the current fiscal year or two subsequent fiscal years has not changed by more than
two percent since first interim projections.

District's ADA Standard Percentage Range: -2.0% to +2.0%

1A. Calculating the District's ADA Variances

DATA ENTRY: First Interim data that exist will be extracted into the first column, otherwise, enter data for all fiscal years. Second Interim Projected Year Totals data that exist for the current
year will be extracted; otherwise, enter data for all fiscal years. Enter district regular ADA and charter school ADA corresponding to financial data reported in the General Fund, only, for all
fiscal years.

Estimated Funded ADA

First Interim Second Interim
Projected Year Totals Projected Year Totals
Fiscal Year (Form 01CSlI, Item 1A) (Form Al, Lines A4 and C4) Percent Change Status
Current Year (2016-17)
District Regular 2,086.00 2,121.00
Charter School 0.00 0.00
Total ADA 2,086.00 2,121.00 1.7% Met
1st Subsequent Year (2017-18)
District Regular 2,175.72 2,181.72
Charter School
Total ADA 2,175.72 2,181.72 0.3% Met
2nd Subsequent Year (2018-19)
District Regular 2,206.87 2,206.87
Charter School
Total ADA 2,206.87 2,206.87 0.0% Met

1B. Comparison of District ADA to the Standard

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if the standard is not met.

1a. STANDARD MET - Funded ADA has not changed since first interim projections by more than two percent in any of the current year or two subsequent fiscal years.

Explanation:
(required if NOT met)

California Dept of Education - ]-3 2 -
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
File: csi (Rev 06/07/2016) Page 1 of 26 Printed: 3/16/2017 12:22 PM



2016-17 Second Interim
South Monterey County Joint Union High General Fund 27 66068 0000000
Monterey County School District Criteria and Standards Review Form 01CSI

2. CRITERION: Enroliment

STANDARD: Projected enroliment for any of the current fiscal year or two subsequent fiscal years has not changed by more than two percent since
first interim projections.

District's Enroliment Standard Percentage Range: -2.0% to +2.0%

2A. Calculating the District's Enrollment Variances

DATA ENTRY: First Interim data that exist will be extracted; otherwise, enter data into the first column for all fiscal years. Enter data in the second column for all fiscal years. Enter district
regular enrollment and charter school enrollment corresponding to financial data reported in the General Fund, only, for all fiscal years.

Enroliment
First Interim Second Interim
Fiscal Year (Form 01CSlI, Item 2A) CBEDS/Projected Percent Change Status
Current Year (2016-17)
District Regular 2,233 2,252
Charter School
Total Enroliment 2,233 2,252 0.9% Met
1st Subsequent Year (2017-18)
District Regular 2,323 2,323
Charter School
Total Enroliment| 2,323 2,323 0.0% Met
2nd Subsequent Year (2018-19)
District Regular 2,355 2,355
Charter School
Total Enroliment 2,355 2,355 0.0% Met

2B. Comparison of District Enrollment to the Standard

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if the standard is not met.

1a. STANDARD MET - Enrollment projections have not changed since first interim projections by more than two percent for the current year and two subsequent fiscal years.

Explanation:
(required if NOT met)

California Dept of Education - 133 =
3ACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
“ile: csi (Rev 06/07/2016) Page 2 of 26 Printed: 3/16/2017 12:22 PM



2016-17 Second Interim
South Monterey County Joint Union High General Fund 27 66068 0000000
Monterey County School District Criteria and Standards Review Form 01CSI

3. CRITERION: ADA to Enrollment

STANDARD: Projected second period (P-2) average daily attendance (ADA) to enrollment ratio ‘for any of the current fiscal yeér or two subsequent
fiscal years has not increased from the historical average ratio from the three prior fiscal years by more than one half of one percent (0.5%).

3A. Calculating the District's ADA to Enrollment Standard

DATA ENTRY: Unaudited Actuals data that exist will be extracted into the P-2 ADA column for the First Prior Year; otherwise, enter First Prior Year data. P-2 ADA for the second and third
prior years are preloaded. First Interim data that exist will be extracted into the Enrollment column; otherwise, enter Enroliment data for all fiscal years. Data should reflect district regular and
charter school ADA/enroliment corresponding to financial data reported in the General Fund, only, for all fiscal years.

“Please note for FY 2013-14 unaudited actuals: Line C4 in Form A reflects total charter school ADA corresponding to financial data reported in funds 01, 09, and 62. Please adjust charter
school ADA or explain accordingly.

P-2 ADA Enroliment
Unaudited Actuals CBEDS Actual Historical Ratio
Fiscal Year (Form A, Lines A4 and C4*) (Form 01CSl, Item 3A) of ADA to Enroliment
Third Prior Year (2013-14) 1,829 1,962 93.2%
Second Prior Year (2014-15)
District Regular 1,901 2,033
Charter School
Total ADA/Enroliment 1,901 2,033 93.5%
First Prior Year (2015-16)
District Regular 2,036 2,159
Charter School ’ o 0
Total ADA/Enroliment, 2,036 2,159 94.3%
Historical Average Ratio: 93.7%
District's ADA to Enrollment Standard (historical average ratio plus 0.5%): 94.2%

3B. Calculating the District's Projected Ratio of ADA to Enrollment

DATA ENTRY: Estimated P-2 ADA will be extracted into the first column for the Current Year; enter data in the first column for the subsequent fiscal years. Data should reflect district regular
and charter school ADA/enroliment corresponding to financial data reported in the General Fund, only, for all fiscal years. All other data are extracted.

Estimated P-2 ADA Enrollment
CBEDS/Projected
Fiscal Year (Form Al, Lines A4 and C4) (Criterion 2, Item 2A) Ratio of ADA to Enrollment Status
Current Year (2016-17)
District Regular 2,121 2,252
Charter School 0
Total ADA/Enroliment 2,121 2,252 94.2% Met
1st Subsequent Year (2017-18)
District Regular 2,323
Charter School
Total ADA/Enroliment 0 2,323 0.0% Met
2nd Subsequent Year (2018-19)
District Regular 2,355
Charter School
Total ADA/Enroliment 0 2,355 0.0% Met

3C. Comparison of District ADA to Enrollment Ratio to the Standard

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if the standard is not met.

1a. STANDARD MET - Projected P-2 ADA to enroliment ratio has not exceeded the standard for the current year and two subsequent fiscal years.

Explanation:
(required if NOT met)

California Dept of Education - 134 -
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
File: csi (Rev 06/07/2016) Page 3 of 26 Printed: 3/16/2017 12:22 PM



2016-17 Second Interim
South Monterey County Joint Union High General Fund 27 66068 0000000
Monterey County School District Criteria and Standards Review Form 01CSI

4. CRITERION: LCFF Revenue

STANDARD: Projected LCFF revenue for any of the current fiscal year or two subsequent fiscal years has not changed by more than two percent
since first interim projections.

District's LCFF Revenue Standard Percentage Range: L -2.0% to +2.0% j

4A. Calculating the District's Projected Change in LCFF Revenue

DATA ENTRY: First Interim data that exist will be extracted; otherwise, enter data into the first column. In the Second Interim column, Current Year data are extracted; enter data for the two
subsequent years.

LCFF Revenue
(Fund 01, Objects 8011, 8012, 8020-8089)

First Interim Second Interim
Fiscal Year (Form 01CSlI, Item 4A) Projected Year Totals Percent Change Status
Current Year (2016-17) 22,827,978.00 23,017,949.00 0.8% Met
1st Subsequent Year (2017-18) 24,586,239.00 23,960,675.00 -2.5% Not Met
2nd Subsequent Year (2018-19) 25,310,013.00 25,155,400.00 -0.6% Met

4B. Comparison of District LCFF Revenue to the Standard

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if the standard is not met.

1a. STANDARD NOT MET - Projected LCFF revenue has changed since first interim projections by more than two percent in any of the current year or two subsequent fiscal years.
Provide reasons why the change(s) exceed the standard and a description of the methods and assumptions used in projecting LCFF revenue.

Explanation: State reduction in Gap funding of 2/3 from First Interim caused the drop in funding.
(required if NOT met)

salifornia Dept of Education -135-
JACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
file: csi (Rev 06/07/2016) Page 4 of 26 Printed: 3/16/2017 12:22 PM



2016-17 Second Interim
South Monterey County Joint Union High General Fund 27 66068 0000000

Monterey County School District Criteria and Standards Review Form 01CSI

5. CRITERION: Salaries and Benefits

STANDARD: Projected ratio of total unrestricted salaries and benefits to total unrestricted general fund expenditures for any of the current fiscal year

or two subsequent fiscal years has not changed from the historical average ratio from the three prior fiscal years by more than the greater of three
percent or the district's required reserves percentage.

5A. Calculating the District's Historical Average Ratio of Unrestricted Salaries and Benefits to Total Unrestricted General Fund Expenditures

DATA ENTRY: Unaudited Actuals data that exist for the First Prior Year will be extracted; otherwise, enter data for the First Prior Year. Unaudited Actuals data for the second and third prior
years are preloaded.

Unaudited Actuals - Unrestricted

(Resources 0000-1999) Ratio
Salaries and Benefits Total Expenditures of Unrestricted Salaries and Benefits
Fiscal Year (Form 01, Objects 1000-3999) (Form 01, Objects 1000-7499) to Total Unrestricted Expenditures
Third Prior Year (2013-14) 9,567,931.51 13,012,109.89 73.5%
Second Prior Year (2014-15) 10,648,678.42 14,243,982.09 74.8%
First Prior Year (2015-16) 11,704,216.54 17,052,639.93 68.6%
Historical Average Ratio: 72.3%
Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year
(2016-17) (2017-18) (2018-19)

District's Reserve Standard Percentage .
(Criterion 10B, Line 4) 3.0% 3.0% 3.0%

District's Salaries and Benefits Standard
(historical average ratio, plus/minus the
greater of 3% or the district's reserve
standard percentage): 69.3% to 75.3% 69.3% to 75.3% 69.3% to 75.3%

5B. Calculating the District's Projected Ratio of Unrestricted Salaries and Benefits to Total Unrestricted General Fund Expenditures

DATA ENTRY: If Form MYPI exists, Projected Year Totals data for the two subsequent years will be extracted; if not, enter Projected Year Totals data. Projected Year Totals data for Current
Year are extracted.

Projected Year Totals - Unrestricted
(Resources 0000-1999)

Salaries and Benefits Total Expenditures Ratio
(Form 011, Objects 1000-3999) (Form 01l, Objects 1000-7499)  of Unrestricted Salaries and Benefits
Fiscal Year (Form MYPI, Lines B1-B3) (Form MYPI, Lines B1-B8, B10)  to Total Unrestricted Expenditures Status
Current Year (2016-17) 14,780,148.68 21,512,764.49 68.7% Not Met
1st Subsequent Year (2017-18) 16,018,031.92 21,231,399.92 75.4% Not Met
2nd Subsequent Year (2018-19) 16,999,278.92 22,403,919.92 75.9% Not Met

5C. Comparison of District Salaries and Benefits Ratio to the Standard

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if the standard is not met.

1a. STANDARD NOT MET - Projected ratio of unrestricted salary and benefit costs to total unrestricted expenditures has changed by more than the standard in any of the current year or
two subsequent fiscal years. Provide reasons why the change(s) exceed the standard and a description of the methods and assumptions used in projecting salaries and benefits.

Explanation: We have Emergency Repair Funds and additional capital expenditures causing our ratio to be less than normal.
(required if NOT met)

California Dept of Education -1 3 6 -
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
File: csi (Rev 06/07/2016) Page 5 of 26 Printed: 3/16/2017 12:22 PM



2016-17 Second Interim
South Monterey County Joint Union High General Fund

Monterey County School District Criteria and Standards Review

6. CRITERION: Other Revenues and Expenditures

27 66068 0000000
Form 01CSI

STANDARD: Projected operating revenues (including federal, other state and other local) or expenditures (including books and supplies, and services
and other operating), for any of the current fiscal year or two subsequent fiscal years, have not changed by more than five percent since first interim

projections.

Changes that exceed five percent in any major object category must be explained.

District's Other Revenues and Expenditures Standard Percentage Range:

-5.0% to +5.0%

District's Other Revenues and Expenditures Explanation Percentage Range:

-5.0% to +5.0%

6A. Calculating the District's Change by Major Object Category and Comparison to the Explanation Percentage Range

DATA ENTRY: First Interim data that exist will be extracted; otherwise, enter data into the first column. Second Interim data for the Current Year are extracted. If Second Interim Form MYPI

exists, data for the two subsequent years will be extracted; if not, enter data for the two subsequent years into the second column.

Explanations must be entered for each category if the percent change for any year exceeds the district's explanation percentage range.

First Interim Second Interim
Projected Year Totals Projected Year Totals Change |s Outside
Object Range / Fiscal Year (Form 01CSlI, Item 6A) (Fund 01) (Form MYPI) Percent Change Explanation Range
Federal Revenue (Fund 01, Objects 8100-8299) (Form MYPI, Line A2) i
Current Year (2016-17) 1,388,904.00 1.412,152.00 1.7% No
1st Subsequent Year (2017-18) 1,295,372.00 1,295,372.00 0.0% No
2nd Subsequent Year (2018-19) 1,295,372.00 1,295,372.00 0.0% No
Explanation:
(required if Yes)
Other State Revenue (Fund 01, Objects 8300-8599) (Form MYPI, Line A3)
Current Year (2016-17) 3,974,395.57 4,014,345.18 1.0% No
1st Subsequent Year (2017-18) 1.535,172.97 1,5635,173.00 0.0% No
2nd Subsequent Year (2018-19) 1,562,362.66 1,562,363.00 0.0% No
Explanation:
(required if Yes)
Other Local Revenue (Fund 01, Objects 8600-8799) (Form MYPI, Line A4)
Current Year (2016-17) 1.599,278.00 1,800,021.32 12.6% Yes
1st Subsequent Year (2017-18) 1,609,301.76 1,609,303.00 0.0% No
2nd Subsequent Year (2018-19) 1,630,325.78 1,630,326.00 0.0% No
Explanation: We increased budgets for interest. We also corrected a resource that was budgeted to other State revenue to a local code.
(required if Yes)
Books and Supplies (Fund 01, Objects 4000-4999) (Form MYPI, Line B4)
Current Year (2016-17) 2,136,886.10 2,230,726.14 4.4% No
1st Subsequent Year (2017-18) 1,941,091.95 1,941,093.00 0.0% No
2nd Subsequent Year (2018-19) 1,984,737.34 2,084,739.00 5.0% No
Explanation:
(required if Yes)
Services and Other Operating Expenditures (Fund 01, Objects 5000-5999) (Form MYPI, Line B5)
Current Year (2016-17) 7,103,449.80 6,728,189.28 -5.3% Yes
1st Subsequent Year (2017-18) 4,654,997.69 3,762,904.00 -19.2% Yes
2nd Subsequent Year (2018-19) 4,735,890.31 3,820,680.00 -19.3% Yes
Explanation: The amount of funds that were budgeted in LCAP goals was reduced due to reduction in funds allocated and reduction in unduplicated pupil
(required if Yes) percentage. We eliminated some facility projects.

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
File: csi (Rev 06/07/2016) Page 6 of 26

Printed: 3/16/2017 12:22 PM



2016-17 Second Interim
General Fund
School District Criteria and Standards Review

South Monterey County Joint Union High
Monterey County

27 66068 0000000
Form 01CSI

6B. Calculating the District's Change in Total Operating Revenues and Expenditures

DATA ENTRY: All data are extracted or calculated.

First Interim Second Interim
Object Range / Fiscal Year Projected Year Totals Projected Year Totals Percent Change Status
Total Federal, Other State, and Other Local Revenue (Section 6A)
Current Year (2016-17) 6,962,577.57 7,226,518.50 3.8% Met
1st Subsequent Year (2017-18) 4,439,846.73 4,439,848.00 0.0% Met
2nd Subsequent Year (2018-19) 4,488,060.44 4,488,061.00 0.0% Met
Total Books and Supplies, and Services and Other Operating Expenditures (Section 6A)
Current Year (2016-17) 9,240,335.90 8,958,915.42 -3.0% Met
1st Subsequent Year (2017-18) 6,596,089.64 5,703,997.00 -13.5% Not Met
2nd Subsequent Year (2018-19) 6,720,627.65 5,905,419.00 -12.1% Not Met

6C. Comparison of District Total Operating Revenues and Expenditures to the Standard Percentage Range

DATA ENTRY: Explanations are linked from Section 6A if the status in Section 6B is Not Met; no entry is allowed below.

1a. STANDARD MET - Projected total operating revenues have not changed since first interim projections by more than the standard for the current year and two subsequent fiscal

years.

Explanation:
Federal Revenue
(linked from 6A
if NOT met)

Explanation:
Other State Revenue
(linked from 6A
if NOT met)

Explanation:
Other Local Revenue
(linked from 6A
if NOT met)

1b.  STANDARD NOT MET - One or more total operating expenditures have changed since first interim projections by more than the standard in one or more of the current year or two

subsequent fiscal years. Reasons for the projected change, descriptions of the methods and assumptions used in the projections, and what changes, if any,

projected operating revenues within the standard must be entered in Section 6A above and will also display in the explanation box below.

will be made to bring the

Explanation:
Books and Supplies
(linked from 6A
if NOT met)

Explanation:
Services and Other Exps |Percentage. We eliminated some facility projects.
(linked from 6A

if NOT met)

The amount of funds that were budgeted in LCAP goals was reduced due to reduction in funds allocated and reduction in unduplicated pupil

California Dept of Education - 138 -
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
File: csi (Rev 06/07/2016) Page 7 of 26

Printed: 3/16/2017 12:22 PM



2016-17 Second Interim
South Monterey County Joint Union High General Fund 27 66068 0000000
Monterey County School District Criteria and Standards Review Form 01CSI

7. CRITERION: Facilities Maintenance

STANDARD: Identify changes that have occurred since first interim projections in the projected contributions for facilities maintenance funding as
required pursuant to Education Code Section 17070.75, or in how the district is providing adequately to preserve the functionality of its facilities for their
normal life in accordance with Education Code sections 52060(d)(1) and 17002(d)(1).

Determining the District's Compliance with the Contribution Requirement for EC Section 17070.75, as amended by AB 104 (Chapter 13, Statutes of
2015), effective 2015-16 and 2016-17 - Ongoing and Major Maintenance/Restricted Maintenance Account (OMMA/RMA)

NOTE: AB 104 (Chapter 13, Statutes of 2015) requires the district to deposit into the account, for the 2015-16 and 2016-17 fiscal years, a minimum amount that is the lesser of 3% of the
total general fund expenditures and other financing uses for that fiscal year or the amount that the district deposited into the account for the 2014-15 fiscal year.

DATA ENTRY: For the Required Minimum Contribution, enter the lesser of 3% of the total general fund expenditures and other financing uses for the current year or the amount that the
district deposited into the account for the 2014-15 fiscal year. If EC 17070.75(e)(1) and (e)(2) apply, input 3%. First Interim data that exists will be extracted; otherwise, enter First Interim data
into lines 1 and 2. All other data are exiracted.

Second Interim Contribution
Projected Year Totals

Required Minimum (Fund 01, Resource 8150,
Contribution Objects 8900-8999) Status
1. OMMA/RMA Contribution 780,400.23 811,823.00 Met
2.  First Interim Contribution (information only) [ 811,823.00 |

(Form 01CSlI, First Interim, Criterion 7, Line 1)

If status is not met, enter an X in the box that best describes why the minimum required contribution was not made:

Not applicable (district does not participate in the Leroy F. Greene School Facilities Act of 1998)
Exempt (due to district's small size [EC Section 17070.75 (b)(2)(E)])
Other (explanation must be provided)

Explanation:
(required if NOT met
and Other is marked)

California Dept of Education - 13 9 -
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
File: csi (Rev 06/07/2016) Page 8 of 26 Printed: 3/16/2017 12:22 PM



South Monterey County Joint Union High

2016-17 Second Interim
General Fund

Monterey County School District Criteria and Standards Review

8. CRITERION: Deficit Spending

27 66068 0000000
Form 01CSI

STANDARD: Unrestricted deficit spending (total unrestricted expenditures and othér financing uses is greater than total unrestricted revenues and
other financing sources) as a percentage of total unrestricted expenditures and other financing uses, has not exceeded one-third of the district's
available reserves’ as a percentage of total expenditures and other financing uses?in any of the current fiscal year or two subsequent fiscal years.

'Available reserves are the unrestricted amounts in the Reserve for Economic Uncertainties and
the Unassigned/Unappropriated accounts in the General Fund and the Special Reserve Fund for
Other Than Capital Outlay Projects. Available reserves will be reduced by any negative ending

balances in restricted resources in the General Fund.

“A school district that is the Administrative Unit of a Special Education Local Plan Area (SELPA)
may exclude from its expenditures the distribution of funds to its participating members.

8A. Calculating the District's Deficit Spending Standard Percentage Levels

DATA ENTRY: All data are extracted or calculated.

District's Available Reserve Percentages (Criterion 10C, Line 9)

District's Deficit Spending Standard Percentage Levels
(one-third of available reserve percentage):

Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year
(2016-17) (2017-18) (2018-19)
21.8% 25.5% 24.4%
7.3% 8.5% 8.1%

8B. Calculating the District's Deficit Spending Percentages

DATA ENTRY: Current Year data are extracted. If Form MYPI exists, data for the two subsequent years will be extracted; if not, enter data for the two subsequent years into the first and

second columns.

Projected Year Totals

Net Change in
Unrestricted Fund Balance
(Form 01, Section E)

Total Unrestricted Expenditures
and Other Financing Uses
(Form 011, Objects 1000-7999)

Deficit Spending Level
(If Net Change in Unrestricted Fund

Fiscal Year (Form MYPI, Line C) (Form MYPI, Line B11) Balance is negative, else N/A) Status
Current Year (2016-17) (379,954.33) 21,512,764.49 1.8% Met
1st Subsequent Year (2017-18) 20,077.08 21,231,399.92 N/A Met
2nd Subsequent Year (2018-19) 35,315.77 22,403,919.92 N/A Met

8C. Comparison of District Deficit Spending to the Standard

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if the standard is not met.

1a. STANDARD MET - Unrestricted deficit spending, if any, has not exceeded the standard percentage level in any of the current year or two subsequent fiscal years.

Explanation:
(required if NOT met)

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
File: csi (Rev 06/07/2016)

-140-

Page 9 of 26

Printed: 3/16/2017 12:22 PM



2016-17 Second Interim
South Monterey County Joint Union High General Fund 27 66068 0000000
Monterey County School District Criteria and Standards Review Form 01CSI

9. CRITERION: Fund and Cash Balances

A. FUND BALANCE STANDARD: Projected general fund balance will be positive af the end of the current fiscal year and two subsequent fiscal years.

9A-1. Determining if the District's General Fund Ending Balance is Positive

DATA ENTRY: Current Year data are extracted. If Form MYP| exists, data for the two subsequent years will be extracted; if not, enter data for the two subsequent years.

Ending Fund Balance
General Fund
Projected Year Totals

Fiscal Year (Form 011, Line F2 ) (Form MYPI, Line D2) Status
Current Year (2016-17) 7,246,388.88 Met
1st Subsequent Year (2017-18) 7,266,465.96 Met
2nd Subsequent Year (2018-19) 7,166,161.04 Met

9A-2. Comparison of the District's Ending Fund Balance to the Standard

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if the standard is not met.

1a. STANDARD MET - Projected general fund ending balance is positive for the current fiscal year and two subsequent fiscal years.

Explanation:
(required if NOT met)

B. CASH BALANCE STANDARD: Projected general fund cash balance will be positive at the end of the current fiscal year.

9B-1. Determining if the District's Ending Cash Balance is Positive

DATA ENTRY: If Form CASH exists, data will be extracted; if not, data must be entered below.

Ending Cash Balance
General Fund
Fiscal Year (Form CASH, Line F, June Column) Status
Current Year (2016-17) | 3,888,937.68 | Met j

9B-2. Comparison of the District's Ending Cash Balance to the Standard

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if the standard is not met.

1a. STANDARD MET - Projected general fund cash balance will be positive at the end of the current fiscal year.

Explanation:
(required if NOT met)

California Dept of Education B ]-41 =
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
File: csi (Rev 06/07/2016) Page 10 of 26 Printed: 3/16/2017 12:22 PM



2016-17 Second Interim
South Monterey County Joint Union High General Fund
Monterey County

27 66068 0000000
School District Criteria and Standards Review Form 01CSI

10. CRITERION: Reserves

STANDARD: Available reserves* for any of the current fiscal year or two subsequent fiscal years are not less than the following percentages or
amounts? as applied to total expenditures and other financing uses®:

DATA ENTRY: Current Year data are extracted. Enter district regular ADA corresponding to financial data reported in the General Fund, only, for the
two subsequent years.

Percentage Level District ADA
5% or $66,000 (greater of) 0 to 300
4% or $66,000 (greater of) 301 to 1,000
3% 1,001 to 30,000
2% 30,001 to 400,000
1% 400,001 and over

* Available reserves are the unrestricted amounts in the Reserve for Economic Uncerainties and the
Unassigned/Unappropriated accounts in the General Fund and Special Reserve Fund for Other Than
Capital Outlay Projects. Available reserves will be reduced by any negative ending balances in restricted
resources in the General Fund.

2 Dollar amounts to be adjusted annually by the prior year statutory cost-of-living adjustment (Education
Code Section 42238), rounded to the nearest thousand.

* A school district that is the Administrative Unit (AU) of a Special Education Local Plan Area (SELPA)
may exclude from its expenditures the distribution of funds to its participating members.

2nd Subsequent Year

Current Year 1st Subsequent Year
(2016-17) (2017-18) (2018-19)
District Estimated P-2 ADA (Form Al, Line A4):| 2,121 ' 2,182 2,213 ,
District's Reserve Standard Percentage Level: 3% | 3% | 3% |

10A. Calculating the District's Special Education Pass-through Exclusions (only for districts that serve as the AU of a SELPA)

DATA ENTRY: For SELPA AUs, if Form MYPI exists, all data will be extracted including the Yes/No button selection. If not, click the appropriate Yes or No button for item 1 and, if Yes, enter
data for item 2a and for the two subsequent years in item 2b; Current Year data are extracted.

For districts that serve as the AU of a SELPA (Form MYPI, Lines F1a, F1b1, and F1b2):

1. Do you choose to exclude from the reserve calculation the pass-through funds distributed to SELPA members? No
2. you are the SELPA AU and are excluding special education pass-through funds:
a. Enter the name(s) of the SELPA(s):

Current Year
Projected Year Totals 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year
(2016-17) (2017-18) (2018-19)
b. Special Education Pass-through Funds
(Fund 10, resources 3300-3499 and 6500-6540,
objects 7211-7213 and 7221-7223) 0.00 0.00 0.00

10B. Calculating the District's Reserve Standard

DATA ENTRY: If Form MYPI exists, all data will be extracted or calculated. If not, enter data for line 1 for the two subsequent years; Current Year data are extracted.

Current Year

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
File: csi (Rev 06/07/2016)

Page 11 of 26

Projected Year Totals 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year
(2016-17) (2017-18) (2018-19)

1. Expenditures and Other Financing Uses . . -
(Form 011, objects 1000-7999) (Form MYPI, Line B11) 31,128,974.10 27,964,549.92 29,300,899.92
Plus: Special Education Pass-through
(Criterion 10A, Line 2b, if Criterion 10A, Line 1 is No) 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses
(Line B1 plus Line B2) 31,128,974.10 27,964,549.92 29,300,899.92
Reserve Standard Percentage Level 3% 3% 3%

Reserve Standard - by Percent

(Line B3 times Line B4) 933,869.22 838,936.50 879,027.00

Reserve Standard - by Amount

($66,000 for districts with less than 1,001 ADA, else 0) 0.00 0.00 0.00

District's Reserve Standard

(Greater of Line B5 or Line B6) 933,869.22 838,936.50 879,027.00
-142-

Printed: 3/16/2017 12:22 PM



2016-17 Second Interim

27 66068 0000000
Form 01CSI

South Monterey County Joint Union High General Fund
Monterey County School District Criteria and Standards Review
10C. Calculating the District's Available Reserve Amount
DATA ENTRY: All data are extracted from fund data and Form MYPI. If Form MYPI does not exist, enter data for the two subsequent years.
Current Year
Reserve Amounts Projected Year Totals 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year
(Unrestricted resources 0000-1999 except Line 4) (2016-17) (2017-18) (2018-19)
1. General Fund - Stabilization Arrangements
(Fund 01, Object 9750) (Form MYPI, Line E1a) 0.00
2. General Fund - Reserve for Economic Uncertainties
(Fund 01, Object 9789) (Form MYPI, Line E1b) 5,291,926.00 4,753,981.00 4,981,153.00
3. General Fund - Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount
(Fund 01, Object 9790) (Form MYP!I, Line E1c) 1,502,672.67 2,370,864.27 2,179,008.04
4.  General Fund - Negative Ending Balances in Restricted Resources
(Fund 01, Object 9797, if negative, for each of resources 2000-9999)
(Form MYPI, Line E1d) 0.00 0.00 0.00
5.  Special Reserve Fund - Stabilization Arrangements
(Fund 17, Object 9750) (Form MYPI, Line E2a) 0.00
6.  Special Reserve Fund - Reserve for Economic Uncertainties
(Fund 17, Object 9789) (Form MYPI, Line E2b) 0.00
7.  Special Reserve Fund - Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount
(Fund 17, Object 9790) (Form MYPI, Line E2c) 0.00
8.  District's Available Reserve Amount
(Lines C1 thru C7) 6,794,598.67 7,124,845.27 7,160,161.04
9.  District's Available Reserve Percentage (Information only)
(Line 8 divided by Section 10B, Line 3) 21.83% 25.48% 24.44%
District's Reserve Standard
(Section 10B, Line 7): 933,869.22 838,936.50 879,027.00
Status: Met Met Met

10D. Comparison of District Reserve Amount to the Standard

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if the standard is not met.

1a.

STANDARD MET - Available reserves have met the standard for the current year and two subsequent fiscal years.

Explanation:
(required if NOT met)

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
File: csi (Rev 06/07/2016)

-143-

Page 12 of 26

Printed: 3/16/2017 12:22 PM



2016-17 Second Interim

South Monterey County Joint Union High General Fund
Monterey County School District Criteria and Standards Review

27 66068 0000000
Form 01CSI

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate Yes or No button for items S1 through S4. Enter an explanation for each Yes answer.

S1. Contingent Liabilities
1a.  Does your district have any known or contingent liabilities (e.g., financial or program audits, litigation,
state compliance reviews) that have occurred since first interim projections that may impact the budget? No
1b.  If Yes, identify the liabilities and how they may impact the budget:
$2. Use of One-time Revenues for Ongoing Expenditures
1a.  Does your district have ongoing general fund expenditures funded with one-time revenues that have
changed since first interim projections by more than five percent? No
1b.  If Yes, identify the expenditures and explain how the one-time resources will be replaced to continue funding the ongoing expenditures in the following fiscal years:
S§3. Temporary Interfund Borrowings
1a.  Does your district have projected temporary borrowings between funds?
(Refer to Education Code Section 42603) No
1b.  If Yes, identify the interfund borrowings:
S4. Contingent Revenues
1a.  Does your district have projected revenues for the current fiscal year or either of the two subsequent fiscal years
contingent on reauthorization by the local government, special legislation, or other definitive act
(e.g., parcel taxes, forest reserves)? No
1b.  If Yes, identify any of these revenues that are dedicated for ongoing expenses and explain how the revenues will be replaced or expenditures reduced:
California Dept of Education - 144 -

SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
File: csi (Rev 06/07/2016) Page 13 of 26

Printed: 3/16/2017 12:22 PM




South Monterey County Joint Union High
Monterey County

2016-17 Second Interim
General Fund
School District Criteria and Standards Review

27 66068 0000000
Form 01CSI

S5. Contributions

Identify projected contributions from unrestricted resources in the general fund to restricted resources in the general fund for the current fiscal year and two subsequent fiscal years.
Provide an explanation if contributions have changed by more than $20,000 and more than five percent since first interim projections.

Identify projected transfers to or from the general fund to cover operating deficits in either the general fund or any other fund for the current fiscal year and two subsequent fiscal
years. Provide an explanation if transfers have changed by more than $20,000 and more than five percent since first interim projections.

Identify capital project cost overruns that have occurred since first interim projections that may impact the general fund budget.

-5.0% to +5.0%
or -$20,000 to +$20,000

District's Contributions and Transfers Standard:

S5A. Identification of the District's Projected Contributions, Transfers, and Capital Projects that may Impact the General Fund

DATA ENTRY: First Interim data that exist will be extracted; otherwise, enter data into the first column. For Contributions, the Second Interim's Current Year data will be extracted. Enter
Second Interim Contributions for the 1st and 2nd Subsequent Years. For Transfers In and Transfers Out, if Form MYP exists, the data will be extracted into the Second Interim column for the
Current Year, and 1st and 2nd Subsequent Years. If Form MYP does not exist, enter data in the Current Year, and 1st and 2nd Subsequent Years. Click on the appropriate button for Item 1d;
all other data will be calculated.

First Interim Second Interim Percent
Description / Fiscal Year (Form 01CSlI, Item S5A) Projected Year Totals Change Amount of Change Status
1a. Contributions, Unrestricted General Fund
(Fund 01, Resources 0000-1999, Object 8980)
Current Year (2016-17) (3.476,565.00) (3,552,179.00)| 2.2% 75,614.00 Met
1st Subsequent Year (2017-18) (3,348,959.43) (3.381,972.00)| 1.0% 33,012.57 Met
2nd Subsequent Year (2018-19) (3.467,285.40) (3,363,018.31)| -3.0% (104,267.09) Met
1b.  Transfers In, General Fund *
Current Year (2016-17) 0.00 0.00 | 0.0% 0.00 Met
1st Subsequent Year (2017-18) 0.00 0.00] 0.0% 0.00 Met
2nd Subsequent Year (2018-19) 0.00 0.00 | 0.0% 0.00 Met
1c. Transfers Out, General Fund *
Current Year (2016-17) 0.00 0.00 [ 0.0% 0.00 Met
1st Subsequent Year (2017-18) 0.00 0.00 [ 0.0% 0.00 Met
2nd Subsequent Year (2018-19) 0.00 000 0.0% 0.00 Met
1d. Capital Project Cost Overruns
Have capital project cost overruns occurred since first interim projections that may impact
the general fund operational budget? No

* Include transfers used to cover operating deficits in either the general fund or any other fund.

S5B. Status of the District's Projected Contributions, Transfers, and Capital Projects

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if Not Met for items 1a-1c or if Yes for Item 1d.

1a.  MET - Projected contributions have not changed since first interim projections by more than the standard for the current year and two subsequent fiscal years.

Explanation:
(required if NOT met)

1b.  MET - Projected transfers in have not changed since first interim projections by mare than the standard for the current year and two subsequent fiscal years.

Explanation:
(required if NOT met)

-145-

California Dept of Education
5ACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
File: csi (Rev 06/07/2016)

Page 14 of 26 Printed: 3/16/2017 12:22 PM



2016-17 Second Interim
South Monterey County Joint Union High General Fund 27 66068 0000000
Monterey County School District Criteria and Standards Review Form 01CSI

1c.  MET - Projected transfers out have not changed since first interim projections by more than the standard for the current year and two subsequent fiscal years.

Explanation:
(required if NOT met)

1d.  NO - There have been no capital project cost overruns occurring since first interim projections that may impact the general fund operational budget.

Project Information:
(required if YES)

>alifornia Dept of Education B ]-46 -
5ACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
“ile: csi (Rev 06/07/2016) Page 15 of 26 Printed: 3/16/2017 12:22 PM



South Monterey County Joint Union High
Monterey County

2016-17 Second Interim
General Fund
School District Criteria and Standards Review

27 66068 0000000
Form 01CSI

$6. Long-term Commitments

Identify all existing and new multiyear commitments® and their annual required payment for the current fiscal year and two subsequent fiscal years.

Explain how any increase in annual payments will be funded. Also, explain how any decrease to funding sources used to pay long-term commitments will be replaced.

* Include multiyear commitments, multiyear debt agreements, and new programs or contracts that result in long-term obligations.

S6A. Identification of the District's Long-term Commitments

DATA ENTRY: If First Interim data exist (Form 01CSl, Item S6A), long-term commitment data will be extracted and it will only be necessary to click the appropriate butlon for Item 1b.
Extracted data may be overwritten to update long-term commitment data in Item 2, as applicable. If no First Interim data exist, click the appropriate buttons for items 1aand 1b, and enter all
other data, as applicable.

1. a. Does your district have long-term (multiyear) commitments? ’
(If No, skip items 1b and 2 and sections S6B and S6C) Yes
b. If Yes to Item 1a, have new long-term (multiyear) commitments been incurred
since first interim projections? No
2. IfYesto Item 1a, list (or update) all new and existing multiyear commitments and required annual debt service amounts. Do not include long-term commitments for postemployment
benefits other than pensions (OPEB); OPEB is disclosed in ltem S7A.
# of Years SACS Fund and Object Codes Used For: Principal Balance
Type of Commitment Remaining Funding Sources (Revenues) Debt Service (Expenditures) asof July 1, 2016
Capital Leases X 3 Fund 25 Object 74xx 206,027
Certificates of Participation
General Obligation Bonds 5 Fund 51 Taxes Levied 7,072,052
Supp Early Retirement Program
State School Building Loans
Compensated Absences
Other Long-term Commitments (do not include OPEB):
Lease Revenue Bonds 14 General Fund 11,935,000
TOTAL: 19,213,079
Prior Year Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year
(2015-16) (2016-17) (2017-18) (2018-19)
Annual Payment Annual Payment Annual Payment Annual Payment
Type of Commitment (continued) (P& (P&l (P&I) (P &I)
Capital Leases 104,673 74,013 74,013 74,012
Certificates of Participation
General Obligation Bonds 1,601,106 1,641,656 1,689,806 1,730,256
Supp Early Retirement Program
State School Building Loans
Compensated Absences
Other Long-term Commitments (continued):
Lease Revenue Bonds 1,234,344 1,234,131 1,229,769 1,226,694
Total Annual Payments: 2,940,123 2,949,800 2,993,588 3,030,962
Has total annual payment increased over prior year (2015-16)? Yes Yes Yes

California Dept of Education

SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0

File: csi (Rev 06/07/2016)

-147-

Page 16 of 26

Printed: 3/16/2017 12:22 PM




2016-17 Second Interim
South Monterey County Joint Union High General Fund 27 66068 0000000
Monterey County School District Criteria and Standards Review Form 01CSI

S6B. Comparison of the District's Annual Payments to Prior Year Annual Payment
DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if Yes.

1a.  Yes - Annual payments for long-term commitments have increased in one or more of the current or two subsequent fiscal years. Explain how the increase in annual payments will be
funded.

Explanation: General Obligation Bond paid by taxes levied.
(Required if Yes
to increase in total
annual payments)

S6C. Identification of Decreases to Funding Sources Used to Pay Long-term Commitments

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate Yes or No button in Item 1; if Yes, an explanation is required in Item 2.

1. Will funding sources used to pay long-term commitments decrease or expire prior to the end of the commitment period, or are they one-time sources?

[

2. No- Funding sources will not decrease or expire prior to the end of the commitment period, and one-time funds are not being used for long-term commitment.

Explanation:
(Required if Yes)

California Dept of Education - 148 -
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
File: csi (Rev 06/07/2016) Page 17 of 26 Printed: 3/16/2017 12:22 PM



2016-17 Second Interim
South Monterey County Joint Union High General Fund 27 66068 0000000
Monterey County School District Criteria and Standards Review Form 01CSI

§7. Unfunded Liabilities

Identify any changes in estimates for unfunded liabilities since first interim projections, and indicate whether the changes are the result of a new actuarial valuation.

S7A. Identification of the District's Estimated Unfunded Liability for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB)

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate button(s) for items 1a-1c, as applicable. First Interim data that exist (Form 01CSl, Item S7A) will be extracled; otherwise, enter First Interim and Second
Interim data in items 2-4.

1. a. Does your district provide postemployment benefits
other than pensions (OPEB)? (If No, skip items 1b-4) Yes

b. If Yes to Item 1a, have there been changes since
first interim in OPEB liabilities?

No
c. If Yes to Item 1a, have there been changes since
first interim in OPEB contributions?
First Interim
2. OPEB Liabilities (Form 01CSlI, ltem S7A) Second Interim
a. OPEB actuarial accrued liability (AAL) 2,226,672.00 | 2,856,110.00
b. OPEB unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) 2,614,898.00 | 2,677,882.00
c. Are AAL and UAAL based on the district's estimate or an i
actuarial valuation? ) Actuarial Actuarial
d. If based on an actuarial valuation, indicate the date of the OPEB valuation. Jul 01, 2014 Jul 01, 2016
3. OPEB Contributions
a. OPEB annual required contribution (ARC) per actuarial valuation or Alternative First Interim
Measurement Method (Form 01CSI, Item S7A) Second Interim
Current Year (2016-17) 278,340.00 395,592.00
1st Subsequent Year (2017-18) 278,340.00 395,592.00
2nd Subsequent Year (2018-19) 278,340.00 395,592.00
b. OPEB amount contributed (for this purpose, include premiums paid to a self-insurance fund)
(Funds 01-70, objects 3701-3752)
Current Year (2016-17) 147,953.00 148,061.00
1st Subsequent Year (2017-18) 153,019.00 180,447.00
2nd Subsequent Year (2018-19) 155,000.00 203,077.00
c. Cost of OPEB benefits (equivalent of "pay-as-you-go" amount)
Current Year (2016-17) 153,019.00 144,680.00
1st Subsequent Year (2017-18) 153,019.00 180,447.00
2nd Subsequent Year (2018-19) 153,019.00 203,077.00
d. Number of retirees receiving OPEB benefits
Current Year (2016-17) 10 10
1st Subsequent Year (2017-18) 7 7
2nd Subsequent Year (2018-19) 6 6

4. Comments:

California Dept of Education - 149 -
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
File: csi (Rev 06/07/2016) Page 18 of 26 Printed: 3/16/2017 12:22 PM



2016-17 Second Interim
South Monterey County Joint Union High General Fund 27 66068 0000000
Monterey County School District Criteria and Standards Review Form 01CSI

S7B. Identification of the District's Unfunded Liability for Self-insurance Programs

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate button(s) for items 1a-1c, as applicable. First Interim data that exist (Form 01CSl, Item S7B) will be extracted; otherwise, enter First Interim and Second
Interim data in items 2-4.

1. a. Does your district operate any self-insurance programs such as
workers' compensation, employee health and welfare, or
property and liability? (Do not include OPEB; which is covered in
Section S7A) (If No, skip items 1b-4) No
b. If Yes to item 1a, have there been changes since
first interim in self-insurance liabilities?
n/a
c. If Yes to item 1a, have there been changes since
first interim in self-insurance contributions?
n/a
First Interim
2.  Self-Insurance Liabilities (Form 01CSlI, ltem S7B) Second Interim
a. Accrued liability for self-insurance programs
b. Unfunded liability for self-insurance programs
3.  Self-Insurance Contributions First Interim
a. Required contribution (funding) for self-insurance programs (Form 01CSlI, Item S7B) Second Interim

Current Year (2016-17)
1st Subsequent Year (2017-18)
2nd Subsequent Year (2018-19)

b. Amount contributed (funded) for self-insurance programs
Current Year (2016-17)
1st Subsequent Year (2017-18)
2nd Subsequent Year (2018-19)

4. Comments;

California Dept of Education -150-
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
File: csi (Rev 06/07/2016) Page 19 of 26 Printed: 3/16/2017 12:22 PM



2016-17 Second Interim

South Monterey County Joint Union High

Monterey County School District Criteria and Standards Review

S§8. Status of Labor Agreements

General Fund

27 66068 0000000
Form 01CSI

Analyze the status of employee labor agreements. Identify new labor agreements that have been ratified since first interim projections, as well as new commitments provided as part
of previously ratified multiyear agreements; and include all contracts, including all administrator contracts (and including all compensation). For new agreements, indicate the date of
the required board meeting. Compare the increase in new commitments to the projected increase in ongoing revenues and explain how these commitments will be funded in future

fiscal years.

If salary and benefit negotiations are not finalized, upon settlement with certificated or classified staff:

The school district must determine the cost of the settlement, including salaries, benefits, and any other agreements that change costs, and provide the
county office of education (COE) with an analysis of the cost of the settlement and its impact on the operating budget.

The county superintendent shall review the analysis relative to the criteria and standards and may provide written comments to the president of the

district governing board and superintendent.

S8A. Cost Analysis of District's Labor Agreements - Certificated (Non-management) Employees

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate Yes or No button for "Status of Certificated Labor Agreements as of the Previous Reporting Period." There are no extractions in this section.

Status of Certificated Labor Agreements as of the Previous Reporting Period

Were all certificated labor negotiations settled as of first interim projections? Yes
If Yes, complete number of FTEs, then skip to section S8B.
If No, continue with section S8A.
Certificated (Non-management) Salary and Benefit Negotiations
Prior Year (2nd Interim) Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year
(2015-16) (2016-17) (2017-18) (2018-19)
Number of certificated (non-management) full-
time-equivalent (FTE) positions 89.0 98.0 105.0 109.0
1a. Have any salary and benefit negotiations been settled since first interim projections? n/a
If Yes, and the corresponding public disclosure documents have been filed with the COE, complete questions 2 and 3.
If Yes, and the corresponding public disclosure documents have not been filed with the COE, complete questions 2-5.
If No, complete questions 6 and 7.
1b.  Are any salary and benefit negotiations still unsettied?
If Yes, complete questions 6 and 7. No
Neqatiations Settled Since First Interim Projections
2a. Per Government Code Section 3547.5(a), date of public disclosure board meeting: [
2b. Per Government Code Section 3547.5(b), was the collective bargaining agreement
certified by the district superintendent and chief business official?
If Yes, date of Superintendent and CBO certification:
3.  Per Government Code Section 3547.5(c), was a budget revision adopted
to meet the costs of the collective bargaining agreement? n/a
If Yes, date of budget revision board adoption:
4.  Period covered by the agreement: Begin Date: [ | End Date: | |
5.  Salary settlement: Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year
(2016-17) (2017-18) (2018-19)

Is the cost of salary settlement included in the interim and multiyear
projections (MYPs)?

One Year Agreement

Total cost of salary settlement

% change in salary schedule from prior year

or
Multiyear Agreement

Total cost of salary settlement

% change in salary schedule from prior year
(may enter text, such as "Reopener")

Identify the source of funding that will be used to support multiyear salary commitments:

California Dept of Education
3ACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
File: csi (Rev 06/07/2016)

=161~

Page 20 of 26

Printed: 3/16/2017 12:22 PM



2016-17 Second Interim

South Monterey County Joint Union High General Fund 27 66068 0000000
Monterey County School District Criteria and Standards Review Form 01CSI
Negotiations Not Settled
6.  Cost of a one percent increase in salary and statutory benefits
Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year
(2016-17) (2017-18) (2018-19)
7.  Amount included for any tentative salary schedule increases
Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year
Certificated (Non-management) Health and Welfare (H&W) Benefits (2016-17) (2017-18) (2018-19)
1 Are costs of H&W benefit changes included in the interim and MYPs?
2 Total cost of H&W benefits
3.  Percent of H&W cost paid by employer
4 Percent projected change in H&W cost over prior year
Certificated (Non-management) Prior Year Settlements Negotiated
Since First Interim Projections
Are any new costs negotiated since first interim projections for prior year
settlements included in the interim?
If Yes, amount of new costs included in the interim and MYPs
If Yes, explain the nature of the new costs:
Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year
Certificated (Non-management) Step and Column Adjustments (2016-17) (2017-18) (2018-19)
1. Are step & column adjustments included in the interim and MYPs?
2.  Cost of step & column adjustments
3.  Percent change in step & column over prior year
Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year
Certificated (Non-management) Attrition (layoffs and retirements) (2016-17) (2017-18) (2018-19)

1. Are savings from attrition included in the budget and MYPs?

2. Are additional H&W benefits for those laid-off or retired
employees included in the interim and MYPs?

Certificated (Non-management) - Other

List other significant contract changes that have occurred since first interim projections and the cost impact of each change (i.e., class size, hours of employment, leave of absence, bonuses,

etc.):

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
File: csi (Rev 06/07/2016)

-152-

Page 21 of 26

Printed: 3/16/2017 12:22 PM




2016-17 Second Interim

South Monterey County Joint Union High General Fund 27 66068 0000000
Monterey County School District Criteria and Standards Review Form 01CSI
S8B. Cost Analysis of District's Labor Agreements - Classified (Non-management) Employees
DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate Yes or No button for "Status of Classified Labor Agreements as of the Previous Reporting Period." There are no extractions in this section.
Status of Classified Labor Agreements as of the Previous Reporting Period
Were all classified labor negotiations settled as of first interim projections? l
If Yes, complete number of FTEs, then skip to section S8C. Yes
If No, continue with section S8B.
Classified (Non-management) Salary and Benefit Negotiations
Prior Year (2nd Interim) Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year
(2015-16) (2016-17) (2017-18) (2018-19)
Number of classified (non-management)
FTE positions 69.0 62.7 71.5 71.5
1a. Have any salary and benefit negotiations been settled since first interim projections? | n/a —|
If Yes, and the corresponding public disclosure documents have been filed with the COE, complete questions 2 and 3.
If Yes, and the corresponding public disclosure documents have not been filed with the COE, complete questions 2-5.
If No, complete questions 6 and 7.
1b.  Are any salary and benefit negotiations still unsettled?
If Yes, complete questions 6 and 7. No
Negotiations Settled Since First Interim Projections
2a. Per Government Code Section 3547.5(a), date of public disclosure board meeting: - [
2b. Per Government Code Section 3547.5(b), was the collective bargaining agreement
certified by the district superintendent and chief business official?
If Yes, date of Superintendent and CBO certification:
3.  Per Government Code Section 3547.5(c), was a budget revision adopted
to meet the costs of the collective bargaining agreement? n/a
If Yes, date of budget revision board adoption:
4.  Period covered by the agreement: Begin Date: | | End Date: | |
5.  Salary settlement: Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year
(2016-17) (2017-18) (2018-19)
Is the cost of salary settlement included in the interim and multiyear
projections (MYPs)?
One Year Agreement
Total cost of salary settlement
% change in salary schedule from prior year
or
Multiyear Agreement
Total cost of salary settlement
% change in salary schedule from prior year
(may enter text, such as "Reopener")
Identify the source of funding that will be used to support multiyear salary commitments:
Negotiations Not Settled
6.  Cost of a one percent increase in salary and statutory benefits | l
Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year
(2016-17) (2017-18) (2018-19)
7. Amount included for any tentative salary schedule increases —l
California Dept of Education - 153 B

SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
File: csi (Rev 06/07/2016) Page 22 of 26

Printed: 3/16/2017 12:22 PM



2016-17 Second Interim

South Monterey County Joint Union High General Fund 27 66068 0000000
Monterey County School District Criteria and Standards Review Form 01CSI
Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year
Classified (Non-management) Health and Welfare (H&W) Benefits (2016-17) (2017-18) (2018-19)
1. Are costs of H&W benefit changes included in the interim and MYPs?
2.  Total cost of H&W benefits
3.  Percent of H&W cost paid by employer
4.  Percent projected change in H&W cost over prior year

Classified (Non-management) Prior Year Settlements Negotiated
Since First Interim

Are any new costs negotiated since first interim for prior year settlements
included in the interim?

If Yes, amount of new costs included in the interim and MYPs
If Yes, explain the nature of the new costs:

Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year
Classified (Non-management) Step and Column Adjustments (2016-17) (2017-18) (2018-19)
1. Are step & column adjustments included in the interim and MYPs?
2.  Cost of step & column adjustments
3.  Percent change in step & column over prior year
Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year
Classified (Non-management) Attrition (layoffs and retirements) (2016-17) (2017-18) (2018-19)

1. Are savings from attrition included in the interim and MYPs?

2.  Are additional H&W benefits for those laid-off or retired
employees included in the interim and MYPs?

Classified (Non-management) - Other
List other significant contract changes that have occurred since first interim and the cost impact of each (i.e., hours of employment, leave of absence, bonuses, etc.):

California Dept of Education - 154 -
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
File: csi (Rev 06/07/2016) Page 23 of 26 Printed: 3/16/2017 12:22 PM



South Monterey County Joint Union High

2016-17 Second Interim

General Fund

Monterey County School District Criteria and Standards Review

27 66068 0000000
Form 01CSI

S8C. Cost Analysis of District's Labor Agreements - Management/Supervisor/Confidential Employees

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate Yes or No button for "Status of Management/Supervisor/Confidential Labor Agreements as of the Previous Reporting Period." There are no extractions

in this section.

Status of Management/Supervisor/Confidential Labor Agreements as of the Previous Reporting Period

Were all managerial/confidential labor negotiations seftled as of first interim projections? n/a
If Yes or n/a, complete number of FTEs, then skip to S9.
If No, continue with section S8C.
Management/Supervisor/Confidential Salary and Benefit Negotiations
Prior Year (2nd Interim) Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year
(2015-16) (2016-17) (2017-18) (2018-19)
Number of management, supervisor, and
confidential FTE positions 14.0 17.0 17.0 17.0
1a. Have any salary and benefit negotiations been settled since first interim projections?
If Yes, complete question 2. n/a
If No, complete questions 3 and 4.
1b.  Are any salary and benefit negotiations still unsettied? n/a
If Yes, complete questions 3 and 4.
Negotiations Settled Since First Interim Projections
2.  Salary settlement: . Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year
(2016-17) (2017-18) (2018-19)
Is the cost of salary settlement included in the interim and multiyear
projections (MYPs)?
Total cost of salary settlement
Change in salary schedule from prior year
(may enter text, such as "Reopener")
Negotiations Not Settled
3.  Cost of a one percent increase in salary and statutory benefits
Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year
(2016-17) (2017-18) (2018-19)

4. Amount included for any tentative salary schedule increases | |
Management/Supervisor/Confidential Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year
Health and Welfare (H&W) Benefits (2016-17) (2017-18) (2018-19)

1. Are costs of H&W benefit changes included in the interim and MYPs?

2.  Total cost of H&W benefits

3.  Percent of H&W cost paid by employer

4.  Percent projected change in H&W cost over prior year
Management/Supervisor/Confidential Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year
Step and Column Adjustments (2016-17) (2017-18) (2018-19)

1. Are step & column adjustments included in the budget and MYPs?

2.  Cost of step & column adjustments

3. Percent change in step and column over prior year
Management/Supervisor/Confidential Current Year 1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year
Other Benefits (mileage, bonuses, etc.) (2016-17) (2017-18) (2018-19)

1. Are costs of other benefits included in the interim and MYPs?
2.  Total cost of other benefits
3.  Percent change in cost of other benefits over prior year

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
File: csi (Rev 06/07/2016)

- 155~

Page 24 of 26

Printed: 3/16/2017 12:22 PM



2016-17 Second Interim
General Fund
School District Criteria and Standards Review

South Monterey County Joint Union High 27 66068 0000000
Monterey County

Form 01CSI

S$9. Status of OtherAFunds

Analyze the status of other funds that may have negative fund balances at the end of the current fiscal year. If any other fund has a projected negative fund balance, prepare an
interim report and multiyear projection for that fund. Explain plans for how and when the negative fund balance will be addressed.

S9A. Identification of Other Funds with Negative Ending Fund Balances

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate button in Item 1. If Yes, enter data in Item 2 and provide the reports referenced in Item 1.

1. Are any funds other than the general fund projected to have a negative fund
balance at the end of the current fiscal year? No
If Yes, prepare and submit to the reviewing agency a report of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance (e.g., an interim fund report) and a multiyear projection report for
each fund.

2. If Yes, identify each fund, by name and number, that is projected to have a negative ending fund balance for the current fiscal year. Provide reasons for the negalive balance(s) and
explain the plan for how and when the problem(s) will be corrected.

California Dept of Education -156-
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
File: csi (Rev 06/07/2016)

Page 25 of 26 Printed: 3/16/2017 12:22 PM



South Monterey County Joint Union High
Monterey County

2016-17 Second Interim

General Fund
School District Criteria and Standards Review

27 66068 0000000
Form 01CSI

ADDITIONAL FISCAL INDICATORS

The following fiscal indicators are designed to provide additional data for reviewing agencies. A "Yes"

may alert the reviewing agency to the need for additional review.

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate Yes or No button for items A2 through AS; Item A1 is automatically completed based on data from Criterion 9.

Al.

A2,

A3.

Ad.

AS.

A6.

AT.

A8.

AS.

Do cash flow projections show that the district will end the current fiscal year with a
negative cash balance in the general fund? (Data from Criterion 9B-1, Cash Balance,
are used to determine Yes or No)

Is the system of personnel position control independent from the payroll system?

Is enrollment decreasing in both the prior and current fiscal years?

Are new charter schools operating in district boundaries that impact the district's
enroliment, either in the prior or current fiscal year?

Has the district entered into a bargaining agreement where any of the current
or subsequent fiscal years of the agreement would result in salary increases that
are expected to exceed the projected state funded cost-of-living adjustment?

Does the district provide uncapped (100% employer paid) health benefits for current or
retired employees?

Is the district's financial system independent of the county office system?

Does the district have any reports that indicate fiscal distress pursuant to Education
Code Section 42127.6(a)? (If Yes, provide copies to the county office of education.)

Have there been personnel changes in the superintendent or chief business
official positions within the last 12 months?

answer to any single indicator does not necessarily suggest a cause for concern, but

[

[

| Yes

When providing comments for additional fiscal indicators, please include the item number applicable to each comment.

Comments:
(optional)

End of School District Second Interim Criteria and Standards Review

California Dept of Education

SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0

=ile: csi (Rev 06/07/2016)

=157-

Page 26 of 26

Printed: 3/16/2017 12:22 PM



S OUTH M ONTEREY COUNTY JIOINT UNION HIGH S CHOOL DISTRICT ‘
800 Broadway Street, King City, CA 93930 * 831-385-0606 * FAX 831-385-0695

2016/17 Second Interim Financial Report
March 22, 2017

Technical Review

-158-



Page 1

SACS2016ALL Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
"3/16/2017 12:12:37 PM : 27-66068-0000000
Second Interim
2016-17 Projected Totals
Technical Review Checks
South Monterey County Joint Union High Monterey County

Following is a chart of the various types of technical review checks and
related requirements:

P - Fatal (Data must be corrected; an explanation is not allowed)
W/WC - Warnlng/Warnlng with Calculation (If data are not correct,
correct the data; if data are correct an explanation
is required)
0 - Informational (If data are not correct, correct the data; if
data are correct an explanation is optional,
but encouraged)

IMPORT CHECKS

CHECKFUND - (F) - All FUND codes must be wvalid. . .PASSED

CHECKRESOURCE - (W) - All RESOURCE codes must be valid. PASSED

CHK-RS-LOCAL-DEFINED - (F) - All locally defined resource codes must roll up to

a CDE defined resource code. PASSED
CHECKGOAL: - (F) - All GOAL codes must be wvalid. PASSED
CHECKFUNCTION - (F) - All FUNCTION codes must be valid. PASSED
CHECKOBJECT - (F) - All OBJECT codes must be wvalid. PASSED

CHK-FUNDxOBJECT - (F) - All FUND and OBJECT account code combinations must be
valid. PASSED

CHK-FDxRS7690x8590 - (F) - Funds 19, 57, 63, 66, 67, and 73 with Object 8590,
All Other State Revenue, must be used in combination with Resource 7690, STRS-
On Behalf Pension Contributions. PASSED

CHK-FUNDxRESOURCE - (W) - All FUND and RESOURCE account code combinations
should be wvalid. PASSED

CHK-FUNDxGOAL - (W) - All FUND and GOAL account code combinations should be
valid. PASSED

CHK-FUNDXFUNCTION-A - (W) - All FUND (funds 01 through 12, 19, 57, 62, and 73)
and FUNCTION account code combinations should be wvalid. PASSED

CHK-FUNDxFUNCTION-B - (F) - All FUND (all funds except for 01 through 12, 19,

57, 62, and 73) and FUNCTION account code combinations must be valid. PASSED

CHK-RESOURCExXOBJECTA - (W) - All RESOURCE and OBJECT (objects 8000 through
9999, except for 9791, 9793, and 9795) account code combinations should be

valid. PASSED
CHK-RESOURCExOBJECTB - (0O) - All RESOURCE and OBJECT (objects 9791, 9793, and
9795) account code combinations should be wvalid. PASSED

CHK-RES6500x0OBJB8091 - (F) - There is no activity in Resource 6500 (Special

-159-



Page 2
SACS2016ALL Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
27-66068-0000000-South Monterey County Joint Union High-Second Interim 2016-17 Projected Totals
3/16/2017 12:12:37 PM

Education) with Object 8091 (LCFF Transfers—-Current Year) or 8099 (LCFF/Revenue

Limit Transfers-Prior Years). - PASSED
CHK-FUNCTIONxOBJECT - (F) - All FUNCTION and OBJECT account code combinations
must be wvalid. PASSED

CHK-GOALXFUNCTION-A - (F) - Goal and function account code combinations (all
goals with expenditure objects 1000-7999 in functions 1000-1999 and 4000-5999)
must be valid. NOTE: Functions not included in the GOALXFUNCTION table (0000,
2000-3999, 6000-6999, 7100-7199, 7210, 8000-8999) are not checked and will pass

the TRC. PASSED
CHK-GOALXFUNCTION-B - (F) - General administration costs (functions 7200-7999,
except 7210) must be direct-charged to an Undistributed, Nonagency, or County
Services to Districts goal (Goal 0000, 7100-7199, or 8600-8699) . PASSED
SPECIAL-ED-GOAL - (F) - Special Education revenue and expenditure transactions

(resources 3300-3405, 6500-6540, and 7240, objects 1000-8999) must be coded to
a Special Education 5000 goal or to Goal 7110, Nonagency-Educational. This
technical review check excludes Early Intervening Services resources 3312,
3318, 3322, 3329, 3332, and 3334. : PASSED

GENERAL LEDGER CHECKS

INTERFD-DIR-COST - (W) - Transfers of Direct Costs - Interfund (Object 5750)
must net to zero for all funds. PASSED

INTERFD-INDIRECT - (W) - Transfers of Indirect Costs - Interfund (Object 7350)
must net to zero for all funds. PASSED

INTERFD-INDIRECT-FN - (W) - Transfers of Indirect Costs - Interfund (Object
7350) must net to zero by function. PASSED

INTERFD-IN-OUT - (W) - Interfund Transfers In (objects 8910-8929) must equal
Interfund Transfers Out (objects 7610-7629). PASSED

LCFF-TRANSFER - (W) - LCFF Transfers (objects 8091 and 8099) must net to zero,
individually. PASSED

INTRAFD-DIR-COST - (F) - Transfers of Direct Costs (Object 5710) must net to
zero by fund. PASSED

INTRAFD-INDIRECT - (F) - Transfers of Indirect Costs (Object 7310) must net to
zero by fund. PASSED

INTRAFD-INDIRECT-FN - (F) - Transfers of Indirect Costs (Object 7310) must net
to zero by function. PASSED

CONTRIB-UNREST-REV - (F) - Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues (Object
8980) must net to zero by fund. PASSED

CONTRIB-RESTR-REV - (F) - Contributions from Restricted Revenues (Object 8990)
must net to zero by fund. PASSED

EPA-CONTRIB - (F) - There should be no contributions (objects 8980-8999) to the
Education Protection Account (Resource 1400). PASSED

LOTTERY-CONTRIB - (F) - There should be no contributions (objects 8980-8999) to

-160-



Page 3
SACS2016ALL Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
27-66068-0000000-South Monterey County Joint Union High-Second Interim 2016-17 Projected Totals
3/16/2017 12:12:37 PM

the lottery (resources 1100 and 6300) or from the Lottery: Instructional
Materials (Resource 6300): 2 PASSED

PASS-THRU-REV=EXP - (W) - Pass-through revenues from all sources (objects 8287,
8587, and 8697) should equal transfers of pass-through revenues to other
agencies (objects 7211 through 7213, plus 7299 for resources 3327 and 3328), by

resource. PASSED
SE-PASS-THRU-REVENUE - (W) - Transfers of special education pass-through
revenues are not reported in the general fund for the Administrative Unit of a
Special Education Local Plan Area. PASSED

EXCESS-ASSIGN-REU - (F) - Amounts reported in Other Assignments (Object 9780)
and/or Reserve for Economic Uncertainties (REU) (Object 9789) should not create
a negative amount in Unassigned/Unappropriated (Object 9790) by fund and
resource (for all funds except funds 61 through 73). PASSED

UNASSIGNED-NEGATIVE - (F) - Unassigned/Unappropriated balance (Object 9790)
must be zero or negative, by resource, in all funds except the general fund and
funds 61 through 73. PASSED

UNR-NET-POSITION-NEG - (F) - Unrestricted Net Position (Object 9790), in
restricted resources, must be zero or negative, by resource, in funds 61
through 73. PASSED

RS-NET-POSITION-ZERO - (F) - Restricted Net Position (Object 9797), in
unrestricted resources, must be zero, by resource, in funds 61 through 73.
PASSED

EFB-POSITIVE - (W) - All ending fund balances (Object 979Z) should be positive
by resource, by fund. PASSED

OBJ-POSITIVE - (W) - All applicable objects should have a positive balance by
resource, by fund. PASSED

REV-POSITIVE - (W) - Revenue amounts exclusive of contributions (objects 8000-
8979) should be positive by resource, by fund. PASSED

EXP-POSITIVE - (W) - Expenditure amounts (objects 1000-7999) should be positive
by function, resource, and fund. PASSED

CEFB-POSITIVE - (F) - Components of Ending Fund Balance/Net Position (objects
9700-9789, 9796, and 9797) must be positive individually by resource, by fund.
PASSED

SUPPLEMENTAL CHECKS

CS-EXPLANATIONS - (F) - Explanations must be provided in the Criteria and
Standards Review (Form 01CSI) for all criteria and for supplemental ‘
information items S1 through S6, and S9 if applicable, where the standard has
not been met or where the status is Not Met or Yes. PASSED

CS-YES-NO - (F) - Supplemental information items and additional fiscal
indicator items in the Criteria and Standards Review (Form 01CSI) must be
answered Yes or No, where applicable, for the form to be complete. PASSED

-161 -



Page 4
SACS2016ALL Financial Reporting Software - 2016.2.0
27-66068-0000000-South Monterey County Joint Union High-Second Interim 2016-17 Projected Totals
3/16/2017 12:12:37 PM

EXPORT CHECKS

FORMO1-PROVIDE - (F) - Form 0l (Form 01I) must be opened and saved. PASSED

INTERIM-CERT-PROVIDE - (F) - Interim Certification (Form CI) must be provided.
PASSED

ADA-PROVIDE - (F) - Average Daily Attendance data (Form AI) must be provided.
PASSED

CS-PROVIDE - (F) - The Criteria and Standards Review (Form 01CSI) has been
provided. PASSED

CASHFLOW-PROVIDE - (W) - A Cashflow Worksheet (Form CASH) must be provided with
your Interim reports. (Note: LEAs may use a cashflow worksheet other than Form
CASH, as long as it provides a monthly cashflow projected through the end of
the fiscal year.) PASSED

MYP-PROVIDE - (W) - A Multiyear Projection Worksheet must be provided with your
Interim. (Note: LEAs may use a multiyear projection worksheet other than Form
 MYP, with approval of their reviewing agency, as long as it provides current
year and at least two subsequent fiscal years, and separately projects
unrestricted resources, restricted resources, and combined total resources.)
PASSED

MYPIO-PROVIDE - (W) - A multiyear projection worksheet must be provided with
your interim report for any fund projecting a negative balance at the end of
the current fiscal year. (Note: LEAs may use a multiyear projection worksheet
other than Form MYPIO, with approval of their reviewing agency.) PASSED

CHK-UNBALANCED-A - (W) - Unbalanced and/or incomplete data in any of the forms
should be corrected before an official export is completed. PASSED

CHK-UNBALANCED-B - (F) - Unbalanced and/or incomplete data in any of the forms

must be corrected before an official export can be completed. PASSED
CHK-DEPENDENCY - (F) - If data have changed that affect other forms, the
affected forms must be opened and saved. PASSED

Checks Completed.

-162-




XSOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL
DISTRICT

SUBJECT:  Approval of Proposal for Use of Prop 39 Funds MEETING: March 22,2017

AGENDA SECTION: X ACTION
O INFORMATION

J ACTION/CONSENT

GOVERNING BOARD

Board Goals:

Improve, Monitor and Sustain Student Achievement

X Improve School Climate in Support of Teaching, Learning and Student Safety
X  Develop/Sustain Fiscal Solvency
Ensure that Facilities are Safe for Staff and Students
X Ensure compliance with Education/Other Codes/Updating Board Policies and Administrative Regulations

Summary:
The District was awarded approximately $610,000 for energy upgrades through Proposition 39 funds
(California Clean Energy Jobs Act).

We worked with AMBAG Energy Watch to do an energy analysis of the all sites in the District to do a District-
wide LED Replacement Project. Attached is a proposed project specifications. The LED Project cost is
estimated at $650,646. According to AMBAG Energy Watch, the District is eligible to receive up to an
estimated $84,635 in rebates. The balance of the project will be paid out of Proposition 39 Funds.

Recommendation:
It is recommended that the Board of Education approve the 2017 LED Project as proposed by AMBAG Energy
Watch.

Fiscal Impact:
Estimated cost of $650,464 paid by Proposition 39 funds and rebates through AMBAG Energy Watch.

Submitted By: :

M '.1 ) L
Sherrie S. Castellanos Daniel R. Moirao, Ed.D.
Chief Business Official Superintendent

-163-



South Monterey County Joint Union High School District

2017 LED Project — Project Details

Technical Specification Guidelines

This technical specification guide is governed by the California Proposition 39: California Clean Energy Jobs Act—
2015 Program Implementation Guidelines that is administered by the California Energy Commission. The South
Monterey County Joint Union High School District (SMCJUHSD) has received Proposition 39 grant funds based on a
pre-approved project plan to implement the exact scope of work identified in this technical specification.
Therefore, drastic changes to the scope of work or product specifications are not encouraged. The following tables
show pre-selected product specifications for this project: “Detailed LED Replacement Guide by Location”, “LED
Production Quantity Summary by Site”, and “District-Wide LED Product Quantity Summary.” Contractors are
encouraged to specify and install these fixtures.

Alternative Fixture Specifications

Alternative fixture specifications must be approved by SMCIUHSD staff and AMBAG Energy Watch prior to
inclusion in a bid packet or final scope of work to ensure that they meet California Prop 39 requirements, CPUC
energy efficiency rebate requirements, and SMCIUHSD staff preferences. In general, alternative suggestions should
have equal or improved specifications in the following categories:

Control/driver capability
CA QPL, DLC, and Title 24 eligibility

1. Rated wattage

2. Efficacy (lumens per watt)
3. CRI

4. L70 lifetime

5. Product Warranty

6.

7.

Interior Spaces (not gymnasiums) should, in general, meet these minimum specifications:

e 4000 or 4100 kelvin color temperature

e CRlequal to or greater than 80

e Frosted or diffused lens

e L70 lifetime greater than 70,000 hours for fixture or fixture retrofits
e  L70 lifetime greater than 25,000 hours for screw-in lamps.

Gymnasium areas should, in general, meet these minimum specifications:

o 5000 kelvin color temperature

e CRl equal to or greater than 80

e  Frosted lenses designed to withstand blunt force impact
e  Efficacy greater than 120 lumens per watt

e  L70 predicted life greater than 125,000 hours

-164-




Exterior areas should, in general, meet these minimum specifications:

e 5000 kelvin color temperature

e CRIlequal to or greater than 70

o  Efficacy greater than 85 lumens per watt

e L70 predicted life greater than 65,000 hours

Control Guidelines

Lighting controls may be required for certain areas. The contractor is responsible to ensure that new LED products,
at minimum, retain the existing control options in existing spaces.

For interior spaces (not gymnasiums) controls should be considered when:

e  An existing space has bi-level switching (step dimming). If a space has step dimming and a Linmore retrofit
kit is specified to be installed, the contractor must specify a compatible control. One example is the
" Thomas Research Products Stem Dimming Module. '
e  For areas where a volumetric troffer retrofit kit is specified, an appropriate driver or module must be
specified to guarantee that existing controls will be maintained
e  Contractors may suggest additional controls (occupancy, dimming, etc...) as add-alternate items for
consideration by district staff.

For gymnasiums the following controls related items should be considered:

e Controls may be considered by contractor as an add-alternate item.
e  Control suggestions may be requested by the school district staff.

For exterior areas, controls should be considered as an add-alternate item in the following circumstances:

e  When a photocell is required by Title 24 to control the existing fixture’s on/off function

o  Parking lot area lighting with poles shorter than 24 feet require, based on Title 24, to have a high/low
motion enabled bi-level lighting. New fixtures may have the option to come equipped with this feature. If
not, the Wattstoper FSP-211 is one example of this type of control.

e New wall packs with wattage rated higher than 30 watts that are under 24 feet require, based on Title 24,
high/low motion enabled bi-level lighting. New fixtures may have the option to come equipped with this
feature.

Project Rebate Guidelines

The selected contractor must work with directly the AMBAG Energy Watch staff to ensure that South Monterey
County Joint Union High School District receives all possible rebate funds of the lighting project. AMBAG Energy
Watch will manage the rebate process with direct support from the selected contractor to ensure that all project
measures remain rebate eligible. Prior to commencing work, the contractor shall meet with representatives from
the AMBAG Energy Watch program to review rebate processes and procedures and ensure all products meet the
technical specifications listed in the Design Light Consortium Premium 4.0 index. Information and website links can
be found below. Most important among the rebate procedures, the contractor will be responsible for tracking and
notifying AMBAG Energy Watch of any equipment variation from the original work order, taking pictures of

-165-



existing fixtures, and providing line item receipts of equipment. The rebate process requires detailed coordination
of a variety of events. The selected contractor agrees to:

1. Ensure that any material (light fixture) variances meet the Design Light Consortium Premium 4.0 list,
which will go into effect on April 1, 2017. Products can be found in a searchable index found here:
https://www.designlights.org/search/

2. Ensure that any material (light fixture) variances are listed on the California Qualified Products List prior to
installation or purchase of materials. Products can be found in a searchable index found here:
(http://caioulightinggpl.com/)

3. Share a listing of any material variances with AMBAG Energy Watch to ensure material rebate eligibility.
Obtain material variance approval from AMBAG Energy Watch prior to purchase of material.

5. Beavailable for the following rebate inspections

a. Pre-construction rebate inspection with AMBAG Energy Watch staff
b. Post-construction rebate inspection with AMBAG Energy Watch staff

6. Immediately inform AMBAG Energy Watch of any potential scope changes that take place during the
project. ) : :

7. Keep record of wattage variances of existing fixtures during project construction. For example, AMBAG
Energy Watch needs to know if a fixture which has a listed record of being a 150 watt High Pressure
Sodium lamp is actually a 250 watt Metal Halide lamp.

8. The selected contractor must furnish adequate invoices that detail material and project costs. These
invoices will be submitted to AMBAG Energy Watch for rebate purposes.

Project Cost Estimate

As previously stated, this project is administered by the California Energy Commission Proposition 39 program
guidelines. The school district has received a restricted amount of funds to implement each specified project. Due
to these program rules, the final project cost cannot exceed the school districts grant allotment for these projects.
The following project cost estimates were developed by AMBAG Energy Watch based on current market rates for
product costs, installation time, additional material requirements, and prevailing wage rates. These estimates are
provided for illustrative purposes only.

South Monterey County Joint Union HSD - Prop 39 Project Cost Estimate

Location Project Cost Estimate
Greenfield High School $321,127

King City High School $304,287

SMCJUHSD District Office $11,012

SMCJUHSD Maintenance Yard $14,218

TOTAL $650,646

-166-



XSOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL

DISTRICT
SUBJECT:  Approval of Consolidated Application MEETING: March 22,2017
Spring Submission
AGENDA SECTION: X ACTION
O INFORMATION
O ACTION/CONSENT
GOVERNING BOARD

Board Goals:

Improve, Monitor and Sustain Student Achievement

Improve School Climate in Support of Teaching, Learning and Student Safety
X  Develop/Sustain Fiscal Solvency

Ensure that Facilities are Safe for Staff and Students

X  Ensure compliance with Education/Other Codes/Updating Board Policies and Administrative Regulations

Summary:
Annually, districts who receive federal funds are required to submit twice a year the Consolidated Application.

Recommendation:
It is recommended that the Board of Education approve the 2016/17 Spring Submission of the Consolidated
Application

Fiscal Impact:

None

Submitted By:

Sherrie S. Castellanos Daniel R. Moira\b, 'Ed.D.
Chief Business Official Superintendent

-167-




California Department of Education
South Monterey County Joint Union High (27 66068 0000000)

2016-17 Title I, Part A School Allocations

This identifies the amount of Title I, Part A funds to be allocated to eligible public schools and equitable services to students in nonprofit private schools.

CDE Program Contact:

Lana Zhou, Title | Policy and Program Guidance Office, Izhou@cde.ca.gov, 916-319-0956
Nancy Bodenhausen, Title | Policy and Program Guidance Office, NBodenhausen@cde.ca.qgov, 916-445-4904

If an exception to funding is needed, enter an Exception Reason. Use lower case
only.

Allowable Exception Reasons

a - Meets 35% Low Income Requirement
¢ - Funded by Other Allowable Sources
d - Desegregation Waiver on File

e - Grandfather Provision

f - Feeder Pattern

g - Local Funded Charter Opted Out

h - Local Funded Charter Opted In

Low income measure

Group Schools by Grade Span

District-wide low income %

Grade span 1 low income %

Grade span 2 low income %

Grade span 3 low income %

Available Title I, Part A school allocation

Available public school parental involvement reservation

Total participating attendance area low income students (entered on Reservations,
Required)

Available nonprofit private school set-asides
Available nonprofit private school parental involvement reservation
Unallocated school amount

Unallocated public school parental involvement

FRPM
No
72.55%
0.00%
0.00%
72.55%
$374,885
$6,546
1,649

$0
$0
$0.69
$0

**Warning***

The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA)
and other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a
violation of both state and federal law.

Report Date:3/13/2017

R{%

-168-

Consolidated Application

Status: Certified
Saved by: Sherrie Castellanos
Date: 2/28/2017 8:17 PM

APage 10f2



California Department of Education Consolidated Application

South Monterey County Joint Union High (27 66068 0000000) Status: Certified

Saved by: Sherrie Castellanos
Date: 2/28/2017 8:17 PM

2016-17 Title I, Part A School Allocations

This identifies the amount of Title I, Part A funds to be allocated to eligible public schools and equitable services to students in nonprofit private schools.

Unallocated nonprofit private school set-asides $0
Unallocated nonprofit private school parental involvement $0
Sum of Title | participating schools low income student count 1,649

Difference between participating attendance area low income students (entered on 1,649
Reservations, Required) and Sum of Title | participating schools low income student

count
School Name School |Grade | Student Low Low $ Per |Carryover Public Nonprofit |Nonpro| Total Exception EIA Other Exception
Code Span |Enroliment| Income | Income Low School Private fit School Reason | Funded |Program Comment
Group Students | Student | Income Parental Parental Private |Allocation Funds
% Student Involvement | Involvement | Set
(0.00) Aside
Pinnacle Academy Charter |0134254 3 21 17 80.95 227.35 $60 3924.95 N N
- Independent Study
Portola-Butler 2730083 3 61 48 78.69 227.35 $197 11109.80 N N
Continuation High
King City High 2732170 3 1034 769 74.37 227.34 $3,052 177876.46 N N
Greenfield High 2730174 3 1157 815 70.44 227.34 $3,237 188519.10 a N N Meets the
minimum 35%
|
**Warning***
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) l
and other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a !
violation of both state and federal law. ‘
Report Date:3/13/2017 R Page 2 of 2

-169-



California Department of Education Consolidated Application

South Monterey County Joint Union High (27 66068 0000000) Status: Certified
Saved by: Sherrie Castellanos
Date: 2/28/2017 7:58 PM

2016-17 Title I, Part A LEA Allocation
The purpose of this data collection is to calculate the full Title | Part A allocation available to the LEA.

CDE Program Contact:

Jane Liang, District Innovation and Improvement Office, jliang@cde.ca.gov, 916-319-0259
Jacqueline Matranga, District Innovation and Improvement Office , jmatranga@cde.ca.qgov, 916-445-4905

2016-17 Title 1, Part A entitlement $688,972
Transferred-in amount $0
Title I, Part A entitlement after transfers $688,972
Note:

In order for the 2015-16 Allowable Carryover amount to be pre-populated,
the 2015-16 Title |, Part A Carryover data collection should be completed
and saved before beginning data entry on this data collection.

2015-16 Allowable Carryover ' _ $0

(Allowable values are the 12 month 2015-16 carryover amount or,
whichever is less either the 15 month 2015-16 carryover amount or 15% of
the 2015-16 entitlement plus transfers-in amount)

Repayment of funds

2016-17 Total allocation $688,972
Indirect cost reservation $46,094
Administrative reservation $57,251
2016-17 Title I, Part A adjusted allocation $585,627

Indirect Cost and Administration Calculation Tool

To help determine allowable indirect cost and administration reserves,
based on your Approved Indirect Cost Rate as defined on
http://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/ac/ic/, below are recommended values.

2016-17 Approved indirect cost rate 717%
Maximum allowable indirect cost reservation $46,094
Recommended administration reservation $57,251

**Warning***
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA)
and other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a

Report Date:3/13/2017 violation of both stgte and federal law. Page 1 of 7

RO2

-170-




California Department of Education
South Monterey County Joint Union High (27 66068 0000000)

2016-17 Title I, Part A Reservations, Required

Consolidated Application

Status: Certified
Saved by: Sherrie Castellanos
Date: 2/28/2017 7:59 PM

To report LEA required reservations before distributing funds to schools, and to calculate and report nonprofit

private school set-aside values.

CDE Program Contact:

Lana Zhou, Title | Policy and Program Guidance Office, Izhou@cde.ca.gov, 916-319-0956
Sylvia Hanna, Title | Policy and Program Guidance Office, shanna@cde.ca.gov, 916-319-0948

Nonprofit Private School Equitable Services Percentage Calculation

Total participating nonprofit private school low income students

of attendance

Total participating attendance area low income students 1,649
Percent of nonprofit private school low income students for equitable 0.00%
service calculations

Required Reservations

Title | Part A adjusted allocation $585,627
Parental Involvement

Parental involvement $6,890
(1% of the entitlement plus transfers-in if greater than $500,000.)

Supplemental parental involvement $0
(Optional: Additional discretionary set-aside.)

Nonprofit private school parental involvement set-aside $0
Amount remaining $6,890
Public school parental involvement $6,546
Balance available for LEA parental involvement activities $344
Direct and Indirect Services

Direct or indirect services to homeless children, regardless of their school $104

Homeless services provided

(Maximum 500 characters)

Backpacks with school supplies.
Supplemental tutor, counseling and
other schoolwide services.

Local neglected institutions

Does the LEA have local institutions for neglected children or children
currently classified as neglected?

No

Direct or indirect services in local institutions for neglected children

Local delinquent institutions

Does the LEA have local institutions for delinquent children?

No

Other neglected or delinquent services

**Warning***

The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA)
and other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a

Report Date:3/13/2017

~1l71-

violation of both state and federal law.

Page 2 of 7




California Department of Education
South Monterey County Joint Union High (27 66068 0000000)

2016-17 Title I, Part A Reservations, Required

Consolidated Application

Status: Certified
Saved by: Sherrie Castellanos
Date: 2/28/2017 7:59 PM

To report LEA required reservations before distributing funds to schools, and to calculate and report nonprofit

private school set-aside values.

CDE Program Contact:

Lana Zhou, Title | Policy and Program Guidance Office, Izhou@cde.ca.gov, 916-319-0956
Sylvia Hanna, Title | Policy and Program Guidance Office, shanna@cde.ca.gov, 916-319-0948

Program Improvement (PI)

The following reservation is required if the LEA is in Program Improvement, or has one or more schools in

Program Improvement.

Program Improvement activities

(Including Alternative Supports and public school Choice Transportation.)

$135,832

Program Improvement comments

Supplemental tutoring services for

students.
(Maximum 500 characters)
Program Improvement Professional Development
Professional development funds Yes
Will the LEA use PI school-level professional development funds to help
meet the LEA 10% minimum professional development requirement?
Pl professional development $67,916
(Minimum 10% of the entitlement plus transfers in.)
2015-16 PI professional development carryover $0
Total Pl professional development $67,916

**Warning***

The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA)
and other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a

violation of both state and federal law.

RO2

Report Date:3/13/2017

-L12-

Page 3 of 7




California Department of Education Consolidated Application
South Monterey County Joint Union High (27 66068 0000000) Status: Certified

Saved by: Sherrie Castellanos
Date: 2/28/2017 8:15 PM

2016-17 Title I, Part A Reservations, Allowed

To report LEA allowable reservations before distributing funds to schools, and to calculate and report nonprofit
private school set-aside values.

CDE Program Contact:

Lana Zhou, Title | Policy and Program Guidance Office, lzhou@cde.ca.qov, 916-319-0956
Nancy Bodenhausen, Title | Policy and Program Guidance Office, NBodenhausen@cde.ca.gov, 916-445-4904

Allowed Reservations

Professional development for credentialed teachers and highly qualified paraprofessionals

Professional development for teachers and paraprofessionals $0
Nonprofit private school equitable services $0
Professional development reserved for public schools $0

D-istrict-wide Instructional Programs

District-wide instructional programs $0

(Non-PI activities)

Nonprofit private school equitable services $0

District-wide instructional programs for Title | public schools $0

Other School Programs

Other school programs

Including summer school or intersession programs or before and after
school programs.

Nonprofit private school equitable services $0

Other school programs reserved for public schools $0

Other Allowable Reservations

Salary differentials $0
Preschool programs $0
Capital expenses for nonprofit private schools $0

Program Improvement Activities

Teacher incentives and rewards $0

(Maximum 5% of entitlement after transfers.)

Professional development of credentialed teachers $0
Technical assistance to schools $0
Summer school, intersession programs or before and after school $0
programs

**Warning***
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA)
and other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a
iolati h federal law.
Report Date:3/13/2017 violation of both state and federal law Page 4 of 7

BER
=02

-173-



California Department of Education Consolidated Application

South Monterey County Joint Union High (27 66068 0000000) Status: Certified
Saved by: Sherrie Castellanos
Date: 2/28/2017 8:15 PM

2016-17 Title I, Part A Reservations, Allowed

To report LEA allowable reservations before distributing funds to schools, and to calculate and report nonprofit
private school set-aside values.

CDE Program Contact:

Lana Zhou, Title | Policy and Program Guidance Office, Izhou@cde.ca.gov, 916-319-0956
Nancy Bodenhausen, Title | Policy and Program Guidance Office, NBodenhausen@cde.ca.qgov, 916-445-4904

Reservation Summary

Adjusted Allocation $585,627
Total required reservations $204,196
Total allowed reservations $0
Allocations after reservations $381,431
- [Total nonprofit private school set aside : . - $0
Nonprofit private school Parental Involvement set-aside $0
Public school Parental Involvement set-aside $6,546
Amount available for Title |, Part A school allocations $374,885

**Warning***
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA)
and other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a

Report Date:3/13/2017 violation of both state and federal law. Page 5 of 7

Ro2

-174-




California Department of Education Consolidated Application

South Monterey County Joint Union High (27 66068 0000000) Status: Certified
Saved by: Sherrie Castellanos
Date: 2/28/2017 7:58 PM

2016-17 Title II, Part A LEA Allocations

The purpose of this data collection is to calculate the total allocation amount available to the LEA for Title I, Part
A Teacher & Principal Training & Recruiting.

CDE Program Contact:

Melissa Flemmer, Educator Excellence Office, mflemmer@cde.ca.qov . 916-324-5689
Juan J. Sanchez, Educator Excellence Office, jsanchez@cde.ca.gov, 916-319-0452

2016-17 Title ll, Part A entitlement $53,234
Total funds transferred out of Title II, Part A $0
Total entitlement after transfers $53,234
Repayment of funds $0

Repayment comment

Provide an explanation of why repayment dollars were added back to the

allocation

2016-17 Allocation $53,234
Administrative and indirect costs $3,655
2016-17 Title Il, Part A adjusted allocation $49,579

**Warning***
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA)
and other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a

Report Date:3/13/2017 violation of both:§tate and federal law. Page 6 of 7

=175=



California Department of Education Consolidated Application

South Monterey County Joint Union High (27 66068 0000000) Status: Certified
Saved by: Sherrie Castellanos
Date: 2/28/2017 7:58 PM _

2016-17 Consolidation of Administrative Funds
A request by the LEA to consolidate administrative funds for specific programs.

CDE Program Contact:
Julie Brucklacher, Financial Accountability and Info Srv Office, jbruckla@cde.ca.qov, 916-327-0858

Title I, Part A (Basic) Yes
SACS Code 3010
Title I, Part C (Migrant Education) No
SACS Code 3060
Title [, Part D (Delinquent) No
SACS Code 3025
Title Il, Part A (Educator Quality) Yes
SACS Code 4035
Title Ill, Part A (Immigrant Students) No
SACS Code 4201
Title lll, Part A (English Learner Students) - 2% maximum No
SACS Code 4203
Title IV, Part B (21st Century Community Learning Centers) No
SACS Code 4124

***Warning***
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA)
and other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a

Report Date:3/13/2017 violation of bothitfte and federal law. Page 7 of 7

-176-




SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL

DISTRICT
SUBJECT: Approval of Purchase of 2017 Chevrélet MEETING: March 22, 2017
Silverado
AGENDA SECTION: X ACTION
O INFORMATION
O ACTION/CONSENT
GOVERNING BOARD

Board Goals:

Improve, Monitor and Sustain Student Achievement

X Improve School Climate in Support of Teaching, Learning and Student Safety
X Develop/Sustain Fiscal Solvency
Ensure that Facilities are Safe for Staff and Students
Ensure compliance with Education/Other Codes/Updating Board Policies and Administrative Regulations

I

Summary:
The District has a 1994 extended cab pickup truck used to transport students to FFA events. At a recent Ag

Department meeting, the condition of the vehicle and need to replace it was discussed. The 1994 pick-up has an
extended cab which does not do well when transporting students since there is very little leg space and they
must exit through one of the two front doors. Additionally, the front seat no longer adjusts and the passenger
seat has a broken hinge so the seat leans back too far.

The Ag Department has requested the vehicle to be replaced. A quote was received from Gilroy Chevrolet for a
2017, Crew Cab 2500, 4x4 for $37,112.36 with taxes included.

The purpose of this vehicle will be to transport wood and metal purchased for the ag mechanics classes as well
as pull the livestock trailer and transport students to FFA events. The old pickup and the proposed crew cab
have long beds , which we are finding is a necessity for the wood and metal. The proposed new truck has a
true, crew cab with 4 doors providing more legroom for long trips and easier entrance and exit from the truck.

Once the new pickup is purchased, we would request to surplus the 1994 pickup.

Recommendation:
It is recommended that the Board of Education approve the purchase of the 2017 Chevrolet Silverado.

Fiscal Impact: .
$37,112.36 paid out of CTE Grant Funds — No impact to the Ending Balance.

Submitted By: A

Sherrie S. Castellanos Daniel R. Moirao, Ed.D.
Chief Business Official =177= Superintendent




SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL

DISTRICT
SUBJECT: Immigration Forum MEETING: March 22, 2017
AGENDA SECTION: X ACTION
O INFORMATION
) ACTION/CONSENT

GOVERNING BOARD

Board Goals:

Improve, Monitor and Sustain Student Achievement )
X Improve School Climate in Support of Teaching, Learning and Student Safety
Develop/Sustain Fiscal Solvency
Ensure that Facilities are Safe for Staff and Students
Ensure Compliance with Education/Other Codes/Updating Board Policies and Administrative Regulations

1

Summary:

The Superintendent has been working with the City Managers of King City and Greenfield as well as the
Catholic Charities Organization. The discussions have focused on holding community forums regarding
Immigration: Know Your Rights. These forums are planned to be conducted by the Catholic Charities group,
but sponsored by the respective agencies: King City, City of Greenfield and South Monterey County Joint
Union High School District. The elementary districts will be invited to attend as well. The King City forum is
scheduled for April 2, at 2:00 PM. We are still in discussion with the City of Greenfield.

Recommendation:
It is recommended that the South Monterey County Board of Education support hosting the Immigration Forum
with the City of King and the City of Greenfield.

Fiscal Impact:

Submitted By: Approved:
Daniel R. Moirao, Ed.D. Daniel R. MoiraB, Ed.D.
Superintendent Superintendent

-178-



SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
GOVERNING BOARD

SUBJECT: Board Policies -Second Reading MEETING: March 22, 2017

AGENDA SECTION: O ACTION
X INFORMATION

J ACTION/CONSENT

Improve, Monitor and Sustain Student Achievement

Improve School Climate in Support of Teaching, Learning and Student Safety

Develop/Sustain Fiscal Solvency

Ensure that Facilities are Safe for Staff and Students . A

X Ensure Compliance with Education/Other Codes/Updating Board Policies and Administrative Regulations

Summary:

The following Board Policies are presented as a first reading/revision for the Governing’s Board Consideration:
BP 3470 — Debt Issuance and Management (new)
BP 5030 — Student Wellness
AR 5111.1 — Criteria for Residency (revised)
BP 5116.2 — Involuntary Student Transfers (revised)
BP 5141.21 — Administering Medication and Monitoring Health Conditions (new)
AR 5141.21 — Administering Medication and Monitoring Health Conditions (new)
BP 6146.1 — High School Graduation Requirements (revised)
BP 6154 — Homework/Makeup Work (revised)
BP 6164.6 — Identification and Education Under Section 504 (new)
AR 6164.6 — Identification and Education Under Section 504 (new)
BP 6173 — Education for Homeless Children (revised)
AR 6173.3 — Education for Juvenile Court School Students (revised)
BB 9240 — Board Training (new)
BB 9323 — Meeting Conduct (revised)

Recommendation:
All suggested changes have been made from the first reading. It is recommended that the Board of Education
approve the board policies second reading.

Fiscal Impact:
No fiscal impact

Submitted By: Approved:

\ .
Daniel R. Moirao, Ed. D. Daniel R. Moirao, Ed.D.
Superintendent Superintendent

-179-



. . BP 3470 (a) .
Business and Noninstructional Operations

Debt Issuance And Management

*#*Note: Government Code 8855, as amended by SB 1029 (Ch. 307, Statutes of 2016),
mandates that the Governing Board adopt a debt management policy prior to issuing any debt,
such as general obligation bonds, tax and revenue anticipation notes (TRANS), and certificates of
participation. The policy must include (1) the purposes for which the debt proceeds may be used;
(2) the types of debt that may be issued; (3) the relationship of the debt to, and integration with,
the district's capital improvement program or budget, if applicable; (4) policy goals related to the
district's planning goals and objectives; and (5) internal control procedures to ensure that the
proceeds of the proposed debt issuance will be directed to the intended use. SB 1029 declares the
intent of the Legislature that, consistent with the recommendation of the Government Finance
Officers Association (GFOA), local agencies adopt comprehensive written debt management
policies that are reflective of local, state, and federal laws and regulations. Districts are
encouraged to consult legal counsel and their financial advisor in developing this policy. The
following policy should be revised to reflect district practice, *#*#*

The Governing Board is committed to long-term capital and financial planning and recognizes
that the issuance of debt is a key source for funding the improvement and maintenance of school
facilities and managing cash flow. Any debt issued by the district shall be consistent with law
and this policy.

(cf. 3000 - Concepts and Roles)

(cf. 3460 - Financial Reports and Accountability)
(cf. 7110 - Facilities Master Plan)

(cf. 7210 - Facilities Financing)

***Note: Article 16, Section 18 of California Constitution contains the basic "debt limitation"
(i-e., the constraints on discretionary borrowing) applicable to school districts. Under so-called
"traditional authority," a measure authorizing the issuance of general obligation bonds may be
approved by two-thirds of the electorate; under Proposition 39, a measure authorizing the
issuance of general obligation bonds may be approved by 55 percent of the electorate (see
BP/AR 7214 - General Obligation Bonds). Lease financings, such as certificates of participation,
are not considered "indebtedness" for purposes of the Constitutional debt limitation and are not
subject to voter approval. For further information, see the California Debt and Investment
Advisory Commission's (CDIAC) California Debt Issuance Primer.***

The district shall not enter into indebtedness or liability that in any year exceeds the income and
revenue provided for such year, unless two-thirds of the voters approve the obligation or one of
the exceptions specified in law applies. (California Constitution, Article 16, Section 18)

When the Board determines that it is in the best interest of the district, the Board may issue debt

or order an election to issue debt. The Superintendent or designee shall make recommendations
to the Board regarding appropriate financing methods for capital projects or other projects that

-180-




BP 3470 (b)

are authorized purposes for debt issuance. When approved by the Board and/or the voters as
applicable, the Superintendent or designee shall administer and coordinate the district's debt
issuance program and activities, including the timing of issuance, sizing of issuance, method of
sale, structuring of the issue, and marketing strategies.

***Note: Pursuant to 15 USC 780-4 (Section 15B of Securities Exchange Act of 1934), any
financial advisor retained by the district must be duly registered with both the Securities
Exchange Commission (SEC) and the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (MSRB) and
must also hold any certifications and/or licenses required by the SEC and/or MSRB. ***

The Superintendent or designee shall retain a financial advisor, municipal advisor, investment
advisor, and other financial services professionals as needed to assist with the structuring of the
debt issuance and to provide general advice on the district's debt management program,
financing options, investments, and compliance with legal requirements. Contracts for services
provided by such advisors may be for a single transaction or for multiple transactions, consistent
with the contracting requirements in Education Code 17596. In the event that the district issues
debt through a negotiated sale, underwriters may be selected for multiple transactions if multiple
issuances are planned for the same project. In addition, the district shall select a legal team on an
as-needed basis to assist with debt issuances or special projects.

(cf. 3312 - Contracts)
(cf. 3600 - Consultants)
(cf. 9270 - Conflict of Interest)

Goals

*#*Note: Government Code 8855, as amended by SB 1029 (Ch. 307, Statutes of 2016),
mandates that the district's debt management policy include policy goals related to the district's
planning goals and objectives. The following section should be revised to reflect district

goals. ***

The district's debt issuance activities and procedures shall be aligned with the district's vision and
goals for providing adequate facilities and programs that support student learning and
well-being. When issuing debt, the district shall ensure that it:

L. Maintains accountability for the fiscal health of the district, including prudent
management and transparency of the district's financing programs '

2. Attains the best possible credit rating for each debt issue in order to reduce interest costs,
within the context of preserving financial flexibility and meeting capital funding requirements

3. Takes all practical precautions and proactive measures to avoid any financial decision
that will negatively impact current credit ratings on existing or future debt issues

-181- |



BP 3470 (c)

4. Maintains effective communication with rating agencies and, as appropriate, credit
enhancers such as bond insurers or other providers of credit or liquidity instruments in order to
enhance the creditworthiness, liquidity, or marketability of the debt

3. Monitors the district's statutory debt limit in relation to assessed valuation within the
district and the tax burden needed to meet long-term debt service requirements

6. When determining the timing of debt issuance, considers market conditions, cash flows
associated with repayment, and the district's ability to expend the obtained funds in a timely,
efficient, and economical manner consistent with federal tax laws

7. Determines the amortization (maturity) schedule which will fit best within the overall
debt structure of the district at the time the new debt is issued

8. ~ Considers the useful lives of assets funded by the debt issue, as well as repair and
replacement costs of those assets to be incurred in the future

9. Preserves the availability of the district's general fund for operating purposes and other
purposes that cannot be funded by the issuance of voter-approved debt

10. Meets the ongoing obligations and accountability requirements associated with the
issuance and management of debt under state and federal tax and securities laws

(cf. 0000 - Vision)

(cf. 0200 - Goals for the School District)
(cf. 7000 - Concepts and Roles)

Authorized Purposes for the Issuance of Debt

***Note: Government Code 8855, as amended by SB 1029 (Ch. 307, Statutes of 2016),
mandates that the district's debt management policy include the purposes for which debt
proceeds may be used. The following section should be revised to reflect purposes that the Board
has determined may be appropriate purposes for issuing debt in the district.***

The district may issue debt for any of the following purposes:

1. To pay for the cost of capital improvements, including acquiring, constructing,
reconstructing, rehabilitating, replacing, improving, extending, enlarging, and/or equipping
district facilities

2. To refund existing debt

3. To provide for cash flow needs

-182-



BP 3470 (d)

(cf. 3100 - Budget)
(cf. 3110 - Transfer of Funds)

Pursuant to Government Code 53854, general operating costs, including, but not limited to, items
normally funded in the district's annual operating budget, shall not be financed from debt payable
later than 15 months from the date of issuance. The district may deem it desirable to finance cash
flow requirements under certain conditions so that available resources better match expenditures
within a given fiscal year. To satisfy both state constitutional and statutory constraints, such cash
flow borrowing shall be payable from taxes, income, revenue, cash receipts, and other moneys
attributable to the fiscal year in which the debt is issued.

Authorized Types of Debt

***Note: Government Code 8855, as amended by SB 1029 (Ch. 307, Statutes of 2016),
mandates that the district's debt management policy include the types of debt that may be issued.

The following section should be revised to reflect the types of debt instruments authorized by the
Board. ***

The Superintendent or designee shall recommend to the Board potential financing method(s) that
result in the highest benefit to the district, with the cost of staff and consultants considered.
Potential financing sources may include:

1. Short-Term Debt

a. Short-term debt, such as tax and revenue anticipation notes (TRANS), when necessary to
allow the district to meet its cash flow requirements (Government Code 53850-53858)

b. Bond anticipation notes (BANs) to provide interim financing for capital bond projects
that will ultimately be paid from general obligation bonds (Education Code 15150)

e Grant anticipation notes (GANs) to provide interim financing pending the receipt of
grants and/or loans from the state or federal government that have been appropriated and
committed to the district (Government Code 53859-53859.08)

2 Long-Term Debt

*#*Note: The California Constitution, Article 13A, Sections 1(b)(2) and 1(b)(3), Education Code
15100-15262 and 15264-15276, and Government Code 53506-53509.5 authorize the district to
issue general obligation bonds requiring either two-thirds voter approval or 55 percent voter
approval, subject to specific accountability requirements. Voter-approved general obligation
bonds typically provide the lowest cost of borrowing and, by providing for the levy of additional
ad valorem property taxes to service the debt, do not impact the district's general fund. See
BP/AR 7214 - General Obligation Bonds for requirements pertaining to the issuance of general
obligation bonds.***

-183-



BP 3470 (e)

a. General obligation bonds for projects approved by voters (California Constitution, Article
13A, Section 1; Education Code 15100-15262, 15264-15276; Government Code 53 506-53509.5)

(cf. 7214 - General Obligation Bonds)

*#*Note: Districts may establish a community facilities district for school facility purposes in
accordance with the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act (Government Code 5331 1-53368.3).
The boundaries of the Mello-Roos district may include the entire school district, but usually
include only a portion of the district, such as an area with new housing developments. The bonds
sold by the community facilities district are paid for by a special tax on the properties within that
community facilities district's boundaries. See BP 7212 - Mello Roos Districts. ***

b. Special tax bonds issued pursuant to the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982
(Government Code 53311-53368.3) .

(cf. 7212 - Mello Roos Districts)
3. Lease financing, including certificates of participation (COPs)

a. Lease financing to fund the highest priority capital equipment purchases when
pay-as-you-go financing is not feasible (Education Code 17450-17453.1)

***Note: Authority for lease financings is based in part on judicial rulings finding that leases
that meet certain conditions do not constitute indebtedness subject to a vote of the electorate. ***

b. Lease financing to fund facilities projects when there is insufficient time to obtain voter
approval or in instances where obtaining voter approval is either not feasible or unavailable
(Education Code 17400-17429)

4. Special financing programs or structures offered by the federal or state government, such
as Qualified Zone Academy Bonds or other tax credit obligations or obligations that provide
subsidized interest payments, when the use of such programs or structures is determined to result
in sufficiently lower financing costs compared to traditional tax-exempt bonds and/or COPs

5. Temporary borrowing from other sources such as the County Treasurer

*#*Note: Education Code 42133 prohibits the issuance of non-voter approved debt when the
district has a qualified or negative certification regarding the district's ability to meet its fiscal
obligations, except as provided below. Pursuant to Education Code 42131, a "qualified
certification” indicates that the district may not meet its financial obligations for the current
fiscal year and two subsequent fiscal years, and a "negative" certification indicates that the
district will be unable to meet its financial obligations for the remainder of the fiscal year or the
subsequent fiscal year. See BP 3460 - Financial Reports and Accountability for further
information about such certifications.***

-184-



BP 3470 ()

COPs, TRANS, revenue bonds, or any other non-voter approved debt instrument shall not be
issued by the district in any fiscal year in which the district has a qualified or negative
certification, unless the County Superintendent of Schools determines, pursuant to criteria
established by the Superintendent of Public Instruction, that the district's repayment of that
indebtedness is probable. (Education Code 42133)

Relationship of Debt to District Facilities Program and Budget

*#*Note: Government Code 8855, as amended by SB 1029 (Ch. 307, Statutes of 2016),
mandates that the district's debt management policy include the relationship of the debt to, and
integration with, the district's capital improvement program or budget, if applicable. The
following section should be revised to reflect district practice.***

Decisions regarding the issuance of debt for the purpose of financing capital improvement shall
be aligned with current needs for acquisition, development, and/or improvement of district
property and facilities as identified in the district's facilities master plan or other applicable needs
assessment, the projected costs of those needs, schedules for the projects, and the expected
resources.

##*Note: The following paragraph is optional.***

The cost of debt issued for major capital repairs or replacements shall be evaluated against the
potential cost of delaying such repairs and/or replacing such facilities.

When considering a debt issuance, the Board and the Superintendent or designee shall evaluate
both the short-term and long-term implications of the debt issuance and additional operating
costs associated with the new projects involved. Such evaluation may include, but is not limited
to, the projected ratio of annual debt service to the tax burden on the district's taxpayers and the
ratio of annual debt service secured by the general fund to general fund expenditures.

The district may enter into credit enhancement agreements such as municipal bond insurance,
surety bonds, letters of credit, and lines of credit with commercial banks, municipal bond
insurance companies, or other financial entities when their use is judged to lower borrowing
costs, eliminate restrictive covenants, or have a net economic benefit to the financing.

Structure of Debt Issues

The district shall consider the overall impact of the current and future debt burden of the
financing when determining the duration of the debt issue.

The district shall design the financing schedule and repayment of debt so as to take best
advantage of market conditions, ensure cost effectiveness, provide flexibility, and, as practical,
recapture or maximize its debt capacity for future use. Principal amortization will be structured
to meet debt repayment, tax rate, and flexibility goals.

-185-



BP 3470 (g)

*#*Note: Education Code 15106 limits the district's total outstanding bonded debt (i.e., the
principal portion only) to 1.25 or 2.5 percent of the assessed valuation of the taxable property of
a non-unified and unified district, respectively. Consequently, Education Code 15106 limits the
issuance of new debt when the district has total bonded indebtedness in excess of the applicable
percentage of the assessed valuation in the district. TRANs and lease payment obligations in
support of COPs generally do not count against this limit except as provided in Education Code
17422 ***

For new money debt issuances for capital improvements, the district shall size the debt issuance
with the aim of funding capital projects as deemed appropriate by the Board, as long as the
issuance is consistent with the overall financing plan, does not exceed the amount authorized by
voters, and, unless a waiver is sought and received from the state, will not cause the district to

exceed the limitation on debt issuances specified in the California Constitution or Education
Code 15106.

To the extent practicable, the district shall also consider credit issues, market factors, and tax law
when sizing the district's bond issuance. The sizing of refunding bonds shall be determined by
the amount of money that will be required to cover the principal of, any accrued interest on, and
any redemption premium for the debt to be paid on the call date and to cover appropriate
financing costs.

Any general obligation bond issued by the district shall mature within 40 years of the issuance
date or as otherwise required by law. (California Constitution, Article 16, Section 18;
Government Code 53508.6)

The final maturity of equipment or real property lease obligations will be limited to the useful
life of the assets to be financed but, with respect to a lease purchase of equipment, no longer than
a period of 10 years. (Education Code 17452)

Method of Sale
For the sale of any district-issued debt, the Superintendent or designee shall recommend the
method of sale with the potential to achieve the lowest financing cost and/or to generate other

benefits to the district. Potential methods of sale include:

1. A competitive bidding process through which the award is based on, among other factors,
the lowest offered true interest cost ' ' '

2. Negotiated sale, subject to approval by the district to ensure that interest costs are in
accordance with comparable market interest rates

3. Private placement sale, when the financing can or must be structured for a single or

limited number of purchasers or where the terms of the private placement are more beneficial to
the district than either a negotiated or competitive sale

-186-




BP 3470 (h)
Investment of Proceed

The district shall actively manage the proceeds of debt issued for public purposes in a manner
that is consistent with state law governing the investment of public funds and with the permitted
securities covenants of related financing documents executed by the district. Where applicable,
the district's official investment policy and legal documents for a particular debt issuance shall
govern specific methods of investment of bond-related proceeds. Preservation of principal shall
be the primary goal of any investment strategy, followed by the availability of funds and then by
return on investment.

(cf. 3430 - Investing)

*#*Note: Pursuant to Education Code 15146, the proceeds of the sale of bonds, exclusive of any
premium received, must be deposited in the county treasury to the credit of the building fund of
the district. As amended by AB 2738 (Ch. 472, Statutes of 2016), Education Code 15146
prohibits districts from withdrawing proceeds from the sale of bonds at any time for purposes of
making investments outside the county treasury.***

With regard to general obligation bonds, the district shall invest new money bond proceeds in the
county treasury pool as required by law. (Education Code 15146)

The management of public funds shall enable the district to respond to changes in markets or
changes in payment or construction schedules so as to ensure liquidity and minimize risk.

Refunding/Restructuring

*#*Note: The following section may be revised to reflect district practice. The GFOA's
Analyzing and Issuing Refunding Bonds states that a test often used to assess the appropriateness
of a refunding is the achievement of a minimum net present value savings. According to the
GFOA, a common threshold is that the savings, as a percentage of the refunding bonds, should
be at least 3-5 percent. However, the GFOA recognizes that it may be appropriate to approve
refunding that results in lower anticipated savings in some circumstances, such as when interest
rates are at low levels or the time remaining to maturity is limited and thus future opportunities
to achieve greater savings are not likely to occur.***

The district may consider refunding or restructuring outstanding debt if it will be financially
advantageous or beneficial for debt repayment and/or structuring flexibility. When doing so, the
district shall consider the maximization of the district's expected net savings over the life of the
debt issuance and, when using a general obligation bond to refund an existing bond, shall ensure
that the final maturity of the refunding bond is no longer than the final maturity of the existing
bond.

-187-



BP 3470 (i)
Internal Controls

##¥*Note: Government Code 8855, as amended by SB 1029 (Ch. 307, Statutes of 2016),
mandates that the district's debt management policy include the internal control procedures that
the district has implemented or will implement to ensure that the proceeds of the proposed debt
issuance will be directed to the intended use. Examples of internal control standards for the
management of bond funds are contained in the U.S. Government Accountability Office's
Internal Control System Checklist. These include factors related to the internal control
environment, risk assessment, control activities, information and communications, and
monitoring. Because internal controls and accountability measures may be lengthy, districts may
choose to develop an administrative regulation, exhibit, or other document that provides further
details and that may be updated as needed. Also see BP 3400 - Management of District
Assets/Accounts. The following section should be revised to reflect district practice.***

The Superintendent or designee shall establish internal control procedures to ensure that the
proceeds of any debt issuance are directed to the intended use. Such procedures shall assist the
district in maintaining the effectiveness and efficiency of operations, properly expending funds,
reliably reporting debt incurred by the district and the use of the proceeds, complying with all
laws and regulations, preventing fraud, and avoiding conflict of interest.

(cf. 3314 - Payments for Goods and Services)
(cf. 3400 - Management of District Assets/Accounts)

The district shall be vigilant in using bond proceeds in accordance with the stated purposes at the
time such debt was incurred as defined in the text of the voter-approved bond measure.
(Government Code 53410)

When feasible, the district shall issue debt with a defined revenue source in order to preserve the
use of the general fund for general operating purposes.

The district shall annually conduct a due diligence review to ensure its compliance with all
ongoing obligations applicable to issuers of debt. Such a review may be conducted by general
legal counsel or bond counsel. Any district personnel involved in conducting such reviews shall
receive periodic training regarding their responsibilities.

In addition, the Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the district completes, as applicable,
all performance and financial audits that may be required for any debt issued by thé district,
including disclosure requirements applicable to a particular transaction.

Records/Reports

***Note: Government Code 8855 requires that the district report any proposed issuance of debt

to the CDIAC at least 30 days prior to the sale of the debt issue. Typically, bond counsel will file
the report on behalf of the district. As amended by SB 1029 (Ch. 307, Statutes of 2016),

-188-



BP 3470 (j)

Government Code 8855 requires that the report include a certification that the district has
adopted a debt policy and that the issuance is consistent with that policy.***

At least 30 days prior to the sale of any debt issue, the Superintendent or designee shall submit a
report of the proposed issuance to the California Debt and Investment Advisory Commission
(CDIAC). Such report shall include a self-certification that the district has adopted a policy
concerning the use of debt that complies with law and that the contemplated debt issuance is
consistent with that policy. (Government Code 8855)

*#*Note: SB 1029 (Ch. 307, Statutes of 2016) amended Government Code 8855 to add the
following requirement for an annual report of debt issuance, applicable to any final sale of debt
on or after January 21, 2017. The report covers the period from July 1 to June 30, and must be
submitted electronically on a form provided by CDIAC within seven months of the end of the
reporting period (January 31).%**

On or before January 31 of each year, the Superintendent or designee shall submit a reportto the
CDIAC regarding the debt authorized, the debt outstanding, and the use of proceeds of the issued
debt for the period from July 1 to June 30. (Government Code 8855)

*#*Note: Pursuant to 17 CFR 240.15¢2-12, most financings are required to have official
disclosure statements which include the terms of the bond, security, risk factors, financial and
operating information concerning the issuer, and background information. In addition, districts
must provide ongoing disclosure in the form of annual reports and event notices pursuant to 17
CFR 240.15¢2-12. Such disclosures must be made to the MSRB through its Electronic Municipal
Market Access repository or any successor repository, as well as to investors and other persons
or entities entitled to disclosure. For further information, see CDIAC's California Debt Issuance
Primer and the GFOA's Understanding Your Continuing Disclosure Requirements.***

The Superintendent or designee shall provide initial and any annual or ongoing disclosures
required by 17 CFR 240.10b-5 and 240.15¢2-12 to the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board,
investors, and other persons or entities entitled to disclosure, and shall ensure that the district's
disclosure filings are updated as needed.

*#*Note: 26 CFR 1.6001-1 requires districts to retain records for as long as the contents thereof
are material in the administration of any internal revenue law. Records related to debt issuance
may affect tax liability in both past and future tax years. In order to be consistent with specific
record retention requirements, the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) publication Tax Exempt Bond
FAQs Regarding Record Retention Requirements, available on the IRS web site, recommends
that material records should be kept for as long as the debt is outstanding, plus three years after
the final payment of the debt. Although the IRS recommendation is specific to tax-exempt
bonds, districts should also retain records related to other forms debt issuance for the same length
of time. ***

The Superintendent or designee shall maintain transaction records of decisions made in

-185-



BP 3470 (k)

connection with each debt issuance, including the selection of members of the financing team,
the structuring of the financing, selection of credit enhancement products and providers, and
selection of investment products. Each transaction file shall include the official transcript for the
financing, interest rates and cost of issuance on the day when the debt was sold ("final number
runs"), and a post-pricing summary of the debt issue. In addition, documentation evidencing the
expenditure of proceeds, the use of debt-financed property by public and private entities, all
sources of payment or security for the debt, and investment of proceeds shall be kept for as long
as the debt is outstanding, plus the period ending three years after the financial payment date of
the debt or the final payment date of any obligations or series of bonds issued to refund directly
or indirectly all of any portion of the debt, whichever is later.

The Superintendent or designee shall annually report to the Board regarding debts issued by the
district, including information on actual and projected tax rates, an analysis of bonding capacity,
ratings on the district's bonds, market update and refunding opportunities, new development for

California bond financings, and the district's compliance with post-issuance requirements.

Legal Reference:

EDUCATION CODE

5300-5441 Conduct of elections

15100-15262 Bonds for school districts and community college districts
15264-15276  Strict accountability in local school construction bonds
15278-15288 Citizen's oversight committees

15300-15425 School Facilities Improvement Districts
17150 Public disclosure of non-voter-approved debt
17400-17429 Leasing of district property

17450-17453.1 Leasing of equipment

17456 Sale or lease of district property

17596 Duration of contracts

42130-42134 Financial reports and certifications
ELECTIONS CODE

1000 Established election dates

GOVERNMENT CODE

8855 California Debt and Investment Advisory Commission
53311-53368.3 Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act
53410-53411 Bond reporting

53506-53509.5 General obligation bonds

53550-53569 Refunding bonds of local agencies
53580-53595.55 Bonds

53850-53858 Tax and revenue anticipation notes
53859-53859.08 Grant anticipation notes

CALIFORNIA CONSTITUTION

Article 13A, Section 1 Tax limitation

Article 16, Section 18 Debt limit

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 15

~190-



BP 3470 (1)

780-4 Registration of municipal securities dealers
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 26

54E Qualified Zone Academy Bonds

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 17
240.10b-5 Prohibition against fraud or deceit
240.15¢2-12 Municipal securities disclosure
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 26
1.103 Interest on state and local bonds

1.141 Private activity bonds

1.148 Arbitrage and rebate

1.149 Hedge bonds

1.6001-1 Records

Management Resources: _ _
CALIFORNIA DEBT AND INVESTMENT ADVISORY COMMISSION PUBLICATIONS
California Debt Issuance Primer

GOVERNMENT FINANCE OFFICERS ASSOCIATION PUBLICATIONS

An Elected Official's Guide to Debt Issuance, 2nd Ed., 2016

Understanding Your Continuing Disclosure Responsibilities, Best Practice, September 2015
Investment of Bond Proceeds, Best Practice, September 2014

Selecting and Managing Municipal Advisors, Best Practice, February 2014

Debt Management Policy, Best Practice, October 2012

Analyzing and Issuing Refunding Bonds, Best Practice, February 2011

INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE PUBLICATIONS

Tax Exempt Bond FAQs Regarding Record Retention Requirements

Tax-Exempt Governmental Bonds, Publication 4079, rev. 2016

U.S. GOVERNMENT ACCOUNTABILITY OFFICE PUBLICATIONS

Internal Control System Checklist

WEB SITES

California Debt and Investment Advisory Commission: http://www.treasurer.ca.gov/cdiac
Government Finance Officers Association: http://www.gfoa.org

Internal Revenue Service: http://www.irs.gov

Municipal Security Rulemaking Board, Electronic Municipal Market Access (EMMA):
http://www.emma.msrb.org

U.S. Government Accountability Office: http://www.gao.gov

U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission: http://www.sec.gov

12/16
Policy: SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
Adopted: March 22, 2017 King City, California

-191-




BP 5030 (a)
Students
Student Wellness

The Governing Board recognizes the link between student health and learning and desires to
provide a comprehensive program promoting healthy eating and physical activity for district
students. The Superintendent or designee shall build a coordinated school health system that
supports and reinforces health literacy through health education, physical education and activity,
health services, nutrition services, psychological and counseling services, health promotion for
staff, a safe and healthy school environment, and parent/guardian and community involvement.

(cf. 3513.3 - Tobacco-Free Schools)

(cf. 3514 - Environmental Safety)

(cf. 3555 - Nutrition Program Compliance)

(cf. 5131.6 - Alcohol and Other Drugs)

(cf. 5131.61 - Drug Testing)

(cf. 5131.62 - Tobacco)

(cf. 5131.63 - Steroids)

(cf. 5141 - Health Care and Emergencies)

(cf. 5141.22 - Infectious Diseases)

(cf. 5141.3 - Health Examinations)

(cf. 5141.31 - Immunizations)

(cf. 5141.32 - Health Screening for School Entry)
(cf. 5141.6 - School Health Services)

(cf. 6142.1 - Sexual Health and HIV/AIDS Prevention Education)
(cf. 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services)

To encourage consistent health messages between the home and school environment, the
Superintendent or designee may disseminate health information and/or the district's student
wellness policy to parents/guardians through district or school newsletters, handouts,
parent/guardian meetings, district and school web sites, and other communications. Outreach to
parents/guardians shall emphasize the relationship between student health and academic
performance.

(cf. 1100 - Communication with the Public)
(cf. 1112 - Media Relations)

(cf. 1113 - District and School Web Sites)
(cf. 1114 - District-Sponsored Social Media)
(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement)

School Health Council/Committee

The Superintendent or designee shall permit parents/guardians, students, food service employees,
physical education teachers, school health professionals, Board members, school administrators,

=192-



BP 5030 (b)

and members of the public to participate in the development, implementation, and periodic
review and update of the district's student wellness policy. (42 USC 1758b)

To fulfill this requirement, the Superintendent or designee may appoint a school health council
or other district committee whose membership shall include representatives of these groups.
He/she also may invite participation of other groups or individuals, such as health educators,
curriculum directors, counselors, before- and after-school program staff, health practitioners,
and/or others interested in school health issues.

(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees)
(cf. 9140 - Board Representatives)

The school health council/committee shall advise the district on health-related issues, activities,
policies, and programs. At the discretion of the Superintendent or designee, the duties of the
council/committee may also include the planning, implementation, and evaluation of activities to
promote health within the school or community.

Nutrition and Physical Activity Goals

The Board shall adopt goals for nutrition promotion and education, physical activity, and other
school-based activities that promote student wellness. (42 USC 1758b)

(cf. 0000 - Vision)
(cf. 0200 - Goals for the School District)

The district's nutrition education and physical education programs shall be based on research,
consistent with the expectations established in the state's curriculum frameworks and content
standards, and designed to build the skills and knowledge that all students need to maintain a
healthy lifestyle.

(cf. 6011 - Academic Standards)
(cf. 6143 - Courses of Study)

Nutrition education shall be provided as part of the health education program and, as appropriate,
shall be integrated into other academic subjects in the regular educational program. Nutrition
education also may be offered through before- and after-school programs.

(cf. 5148.2 - Before/After School Programs)
(cf. 6142.8 - Comprehensive Health Education)

The Board prohibits the marketing and advertising of non-nutritious foods and beverages through

signage, vending machine fronts, logos, scoreboards, school supplies, advertisements in school
publications, coupon or incentive programs, free give-aways, or other means.

-193-




BP 5030 (c)
(cf. 1325 - Advertising and Promotion)

All students shall be provided opportunities to be physically active on a regular basis.
Opportunities for moderate to vigorous physical activity shall be provided through physical
education and recess and may also be provided through school athletic programs, extracurricular
programs, before- and after-school programs, programs encouraging students to walk or bicycle
to and from school, in-class physical activity breaks, and other structured and unstructured
activities.

(cf. 5142.2 - Safe Routes to School Program)

(cf. 6142.7 - Physical Education and Activity)

(cf. 6145 - Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities)
(cf. 6145.2 - Athletic Competition)

The Board may enter into a joint use agreement to make district facilities or grounds available
for recreational or sports activities outside the school day and/or to use community facilities to
expand students' access to opportunity for physical activity.

(cf. 1330.1 - Joint Use Agreements)

Professional development may be regularly offered to the nutrition program director, managers,
and staff, as well as health education teachers, physical education teachers, coaches, activity
supervisors, and other staff as appropriate to enhance their knowledge and skills related to
student health and wellness.

(cf. 4131 - Staff Development)
(cf. 4231 - Staff Development)
(cf. 4331 - Staff Development)

In order to ensure that students have access to comprehensive health services, the district may
provide access to health services at or near district schools and/or may provide referrals to
community resources.

The Board recognizes that a safe, positive school environment is also conducive to students'
physical and mental health and thus prohibits bullying and harassment of all students, including
bullying on the basis of weight or health condition.

(cf. 5131.2 - Bullying)
(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment)

The Superintendent or designee shall encourage staff to serve as positive role models for healthy

eating and physical fitness. He/she shall promote work-site wellness and may provide
opportunities for regular physical activity among employees. Professional development may

-194-



BP 5030 (d)

include instructional strategies that assess health knowledge and skills and promote healthy
behaviors.

(cf. 4131 - Staff Development)
(cf. 4231 - Staff Development)
(cf. 4331 - Staff Development)

Nutritional Guidelines for Foods Available at School
For all foods available on each campus during the school day, the district shall adopt nutritional

guidelines which are consistent with 42 USC 1773 and 1779 and support the objectives of
promoting student health and reducing childhood obesity. (42 USC 1758b)

The Board believes that foods and beverages available to students at district schools shall support
the health curriculum and promote optimal health, taking into consideration the needs of students
with special dietary needs. Nutritional standards adopted by the district for all foods and
beverages sold to students, including foods and beverages provided through the district's food
service program, student stores, vending machines, or other venues, shall meet or exceed state
and federal nutritional standards.

(cf. 3312 - Contracts)

(cf. 3550 - Food Service/Child Nutrition Program)
(cf. 3554 - Other Food Sales)

(cf. 5141.27 - Food Allergies/Special Dietary Needs)
(cf. 5148 - Child Care and Development)

(cf. 5148.3 - Preschool/Early Childhood Education)

In order to maximize the district's ability to provide nutritious meals and snacks, all district
schools shall participate in available federal school nutrition programs, including the National
School Lunch and School Breakfast Programs and after-school snack programs, to the extent
possible. When approved by the California Department of Education, the district may sponsor a
summer meal program.

(cf. 3552 - Summer Meal Program)
(cf. 3553 - Free and Reduced Price Meals)
(cf. 1230 - School-Connected Organizations)

School staff shall encourage parents/guardians or other volunteers to support the district's
nutrition education program by considering nutritional quality when selecting any snacks which
they may donate for occasional class parties. Class parties or celebrations shall be held after the
lunch period.

The Superintendent or designee shall provide access to free, potable water in the food service

-196-



BP 5030 (e)

area during meal times in accordance with Education Code 38086 and 42 USC 1758, and shall
encourage students' consumption of water by educating them about the health benefits of water
and by serving water in an appealing manner.

The Board believes that all foods and beverages sold to students at district schools, including
those available outside the district's reimbursable food services program, should support the
health curriculum and promote optimal health. Nutrition standards adopted by the district for
foods and beverages provided through student stores, vending machines, or other venues shall
meet or exceed state and federal nutrition standards.

(cf. 3312 - Contracts)
(cf. 3554 - Other Food Sales)

The Superintendent or designee shall encourage school organizations to use healthy food items
or non-food items for fundraising purposes.

He/she also shall encourage school staff to avoid the use of non-nutritious foods as a reward for
students' academic performance, accomplishments, or classroom behavior.

School staff shall encourage parents/guardians or other volunteers to support the district's
nutrition education program by considering nutritional quality when selecting any snacks
which they may donate for occasional class parties. Class parties or celebrations shall be held
after the lunch period when possible.

To reinforce the district's nutrition education program, the Board prohibits the marketing and
advertising of foods and beverages that do not meet nutrition standards for the sale of foods and
beverages on campus during the school day. (7 CFR 210.30)

(cf. 1325 - Advertising and Promotion)

Program Implementation and Evaluation

The Superintendent designates the individual(s) identified below as the individual(s) responsible
for ensuring that each school site complies with the district's wellness policy. (42 USC 1758b; 7
CFR 210.30)

Food Services Manager

(Title or Position)

831 385 0606

(Phone Number)

TBD
(Email Address)

-106-



BP 5030 (f)

(cf. 0500 - Accountability)
(cf. 3555 - Nutrition Program Compliance)

The Superintendent or designee shall assess the implementation and effectiveness of this policy
at least once every three years. (42 USC 1758b; 7 CFR 210.30)

The assessment shall include the extent to which district schools are in compliance with this
policy, the extent to which this policy compares to model wellness policies available from the
U.S. Department of Agriculture, and a description of the progress made in attaining the goals of
the wellness policy. (42 USC 1758b)

The Superintendent or designee shall invite feedback on district and school wellness activities
from food service personnel, school administrators, the wellness council, parents/guardians,
students, teachers, before- and after-school program staff, and/or other appropriate persons.

The Board and the Superintendent or designee shall establish indicators that will be used to
measure the implementation and effectiveness of the district activities related to student
wellness. Such indicators may include, but are not limited to:

1. Descriptions of the district's nutrition education, physical education, and health education
curricula and the extent to which they align with state academic content standards and legal
requirements

2. An analysis of the nutritional content of school meals and snacks served in all district
programs, based on a sample of menus and production records

3. Student participation rates in all school meal and/or snack programs, including the
number of students enrolled in the free and reduced-price meals program compared to the
number of students eligible for that program

4. Extent to which foods and beverages sold on campus outside the food services program,
such as through vending machines, student stores, or fundraisers, comply with nutrition
standards

5. Extent to which other foods and beverages that are available on campus during the school
day, such as foods and beverages for classroom parties, school celebrations, and
rewards/incentives, comply with nutrition standards '

6. Results of the state's physical fitness test at applicable grade levels

7. Number of minutes of physical education offered at each grade span, and the estimated
percentage of class time spent in moderate to vigorous physical activity

8. A description of district efforts to provide additional opportunities for physical activity

- 197 -



_ , BP 5030 (g)
outside of the physical education program

0. A description of other districtwide or school-based wellness activities offered, including
the number of sites and/or students participating, as appropriate :

As feasible, the assessment report may include a comparison of results across multiple years, a
comparison of district data with county, statewide, or national data, and/or a comparison of
wellness data with other student outcomes such as academic indicators or student discipline
rates.

In addition, the Superintendent or designee shall prepare and maintain the proper documentation
and records needed for the administrative review of the district's wellness policy conducted by
the California Department of Education (CDE) every three years.

The assessment results of both the district and state evaluations shall be submitted to the Board
for the purposes of evaluating policy and practice, recognizing accomplishments, and making
policy adjustments as needed to focus district resources and efforts on actions that are most
likely to make a positive impact on student health and achievement.

Notifications

The Superintendent or designee shall inform the public about the content and implementation of
the district's wellness policy and shall make the policy, and any updates to the policy, available
the public on an annual basis. He/she shall also inform the public of the district's progress
towards meeting the goals of the wellness policy, including the availability of the triennial
district assessment. (Education Code 49432; 42 USC 1758b; 7 CFR 210.30)

(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications)

The Superintendent or designee shall distribute this information through the most effective
methods of communication, including district or school newsletters, handouts, parent/guardian
meetings, district and school web sites, and other communications. Outreach to parents/guardians
shall emphasize the relationship between student health and wellness and academic performance.

(cf. 1100 - Communication with the Public)
(cf. 1112 - Media Relations)

(cf. 1113 - District and School Web Sites)
(cf. 1114 - District-Sponsored Social Media)
(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement)

The Superintendent or designee shall inform and update the public, including parents/guardians,
students, and others in the community, about the contents and implementation of this policy.
He/she shall periodically measure and make available to the public an assessment of the extent to
which district schools are in compliance with this policy, the extent to which this policy
compares to model wellness policies available from the U.S. Department of Agriculture, and a

-198-



BP 5030 (h)
description of the progress made in attaining the goals of the wellness policy. (42 USC 1758b)

To determine whether the policy is being effectively implemented district wide and at each
district school, the following indicators shall be used:

1. Descriptions of the district's nutrition education, physical education, and health education
curricula by grade level

2. Number of minutes of physical education instruction offered at each grade span

3. Number and type of exemptions granted from physical education

4. Results of the state's physical fitness test

5. An analysis of the nutritional content of meals served based on a sample of menus

6. Student participation rates in school meal programs, compared to percentage of students

eligible for free and reduced-price meals

7. Number of sales of non-nutritious foods and beverages in fundraisers or other venues
outside of the district's meal programs

8. Feedback from food service personnel, school administrators, the school health council,
parents/guardians, students, teachers, before- and after-school program staff, and/or other
appropriate persons

9. Any other indicators recommended by the Superintendent and approved by the Board

Posting Requirements

Each school shall post the district's policies and regulations on nutrition and physical activity in
public view within all school cafeterias or in other central eating areas. (Education Code 49432)

Each school shall also post a summary of nutrition and physical activity laws and regulations
prepared by the California Department of Education.

Records

The Superintendent or designee shall retain records that document compliance with 7 CFR
210.30, including, but not limited to, the written student wellness policy, documentation of the
triennial assessment of the wellness policy for each school site, and documentation
demonstrating compliance with the community involvement requirements, including
requirements to make the policy and assessment results available to the public. (7 CFR 210.30)

-199-



Legal Reference:

EDUCATION CODE

33350-33354 CDE responsibilities re: physical education
38086 Free fresh drinking water

49430-49434 Pupil Nutrition, Health, and Achievement Act of 2001
49490-49494 School breakfast and lunch programs
49500-49505 School meals

49510-49520 Nutrition

49530-49536 Child Nutrition Act

49540-49546 Child care food program

49547-49548.3 Comprehensive nutrition services
49550-49562 Meals for needy students

49565-49565.8 California Fresh Start pilot program
49570 National School Lunch Act

51210 Course of study, grades 1-6 .
51210.1-51210.2 Physical education, grades 1-6

51210.4 Nutrition education

51220 Course of study, grades 7-12

51222 Physical education

51223 Physical education, elementary schools
51795-51798 School instructional gardens

51880-51921 Comprehensive health education

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5

15500-15501 Food sales by student organizations

15510 Mandatory meals for needy students

15530-15535 Nutrition education

15550-15565 School lunch and breakfast programs
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42

1751-1769j National School Lunch Program, especially:
1758b Local wellness policy

1771-1793 Child Nutrition Act, especially:

1773 School Breakfast Program

1779 Rules and regulations, Child Nutrition Act

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 7
210.1-210.33 National School Lunch Program, especially:
210.30 Wellness policy

220.1-220.22 National School Breakfast Program

- COURT DECISIONS '

Frazer v. Dixon Unified School District, (1993) 18 Cal.App.4th 781

Management Resources:
CSBA PUBLICATIONS

Integrating Physical Activity into the School Day, Governance Brief, April 2016
Increasing Access to Drinking Water in Schools, Policy Brief, April 2013

BP 5030 (i)

Monitoring for Success: A Guide for Assessing and Strengthening Student Wellness Policies,

-200-



BP 5030 (5)

rev. 2012

Nutrition Standards for Schools: Implications for Student Wellness, Policy Brief, rev. April
2012

Student Wellness: A Healthy Food and Physical Activity Policy Resource Guide, rev. 2012
Physical Activity and Physical Education in California Schools, Research Brief, April 2010
Building Healthy Communities: A School Leader's Guide to Collaboration and Community
Engagement, 2009

Safe Routes to School: Program and Policy Strategies for School Districts, Policy Brief, 2009
Physical Education and California Schools, Policy Brief, rev. October 2007

School-Based Marketing of Foods and Beverages: Policy Implications for School Boards, Policy
Brief, March 2006

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS

Physical Education Framework for California Public Schools, Kindergarten Through Grade
Twelve, 2009

Health Framework for California Public Schools, Kindergarten Through Grade Twelve, 2003
CALIFORNIA PROJECT LEAN PUBLICATIONS

Policy in Action: A Guide to Implementing Your Local School Wellness Policy, October 2006
CENTER FOR COLLABORATIVE SOLUTIONS

Changing Lives, Saving Lives: A Step-by-Step Guide to Developing Exemplary Practices in
Healthy Eating, Physical Activity and Food Security in Afterschool Programs, January 2015
CENTERS FOR DISEASE CONTROL AND PREVENTION PUBLICATIONS

School Health Index for Physical Activity and Healthy Eating: A Self-Assessment and Planning
Guide, rev. 2012

FEDERAL REGISTER

Rules and Regulations, July 29, 2016, Vol. 81, Number 146, pages 50151-50170
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF STATE BOARDS OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS
Fit, Healthy and Ready to Learn, rev. 2012

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE PUBLICATIONS

Dietary Guidelines for Americans, 2016

WEB SITES

CSBA: http://www.csba.org

Action for Healthy Kids: http://www.actionforhealthykids.org

Alliance for a Healthier Generation: http://www.healthiergeneration.org
California Department of Education, Nutrition Services Division: http://www. cde ca.gov/lsmu
California Department of Public Health: http://www.cdph.ca.gov

California Healthy Kids Resource Center: http://www.californiahealthykids.org
California Project LEAN (Leaders Encouraging Activity and Nutrition):
http://www.californiaprojectlean.org

California School Nutrition Association: http://www.calsna.org

Center for Collaborative Solutions: http://www.ccscenter.org

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention: http://www.cdc.gov

Dairy Council of California: http://www.dairycouncilofca.org

-201-




BP 5030 (k)

National Alliance for Nutrition and Activity: http://www.cspinet.org/nutritionpolicy/nana.html
National Association of State Boards of Education: http://www.nasbe.org

School Nutrition Association: http://www.schoolnutrition.org

Society for Nutrition Education: http://www.sne.org

U.S. Department of Agriculture, Food Nutrition Service, wellness policy:
http://www.fns.usda.gov/tn/Healthy/wellnesspolicy.html

U.S. Department of Agriculture, Healthy Meals Resource System:
http://healthymeals.fns.usda.gov

(7/11 4/13) 12/16

Policy SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

Adopted: March 22, 2017 King City, California

-202-



AR 5111.1 (a)
Students
District Residency
Criteria for Residency

A student shall be deemed to have complied with district residency requirements for enrollment
in a district school if he/she meets any of the following criteria:

1. The student's parent/guardian resides within district boundaries. (Education Code 48200)

2. The student is placed within district boundaries in a regularly established licensed
children's institution, a licensed foster home, or a family home pursuant to a court-
ordered commitment or placement. (Education Code 48204)

3. The student has been admitted through an interdistrict attendance option, such as an
interdistrict attendance agreement, "school district of choice" transfer, or Open
Enrollment Act transfer. (Education Code 46600, 48204, 48301, 48356)

4. The student is an emancipated minor residing within district boundaries. (Education Code
48204)

5. The student lives with a caregiving adult within district boundaries. (Education Code
48204)

6. The student resides in a state hospital located within district boundaries. (Education Code
48204)

7. The student is confined to a hospital or other residential health facility within district
boundaries for treatment of a temporary disability. (Education Code 48207)

(cf. 6183 - Home and Hospital Instruction)

8. The student's parent/guardian resides outside district boundaries but is employed within
district boundaries and lives with the student at the place of employment for a minimum of three
days during the school week. (Education Code 48204)

9. The student's parent/guardian, while on active military duty pursuant to an official
military order, is transferred or is pending transfer to a military installation within district

boundaries. (Education Code 48204.3)

(cf. 6173.2 - Education of Children of Military Families)

-203-



AR 5111.1 (b)
Residency Based on Parent/Guardian Employment (Allen Bill Transfers)

District residency status may be granted to a student if at least one of his/her parents/guardians is
physically employed within district boundaries for a minimum of 10 hours during the school
week. No student seeking residency on this basis shall be denied enrollment based on race,
ethnicity, sex, parental income, scholastic achievement, or any of the individual characteristics
set forth in Education Code 220. However, the Superintendent or designee may deny enrollment
into the district if any of the following circumstances is present: (Education Code 48204)

1, The additional cost of educating the student would exceed the amount of additional state
aid received as a result of the transfer.

2. Enrollment of the student would adversely affect the district's court-ordered or voluntary
desegregation plan as determined by the Governing Board.

3. Other circumstances exist that are not arbitrary.

Such circumstances may include, but are not limited to, overcrowding of school facilities at the
relevant grade level.

Once a student establishes residency on this basis, he/she shall not be required to reapply for
enrollment in subsequent years. The student may continue to attend school in the district through
the highest grade level offered by the district if the parent/ guardian so chooses and if at least one
parent/guardian of the student continues to be physically employed by an employer situated
within district boundaries, subject to the exceptions in items #1-3 above. (Education Code
48204)

The Superintendent or designee may deny a transfer out of the district by a student whose
parent/guardian is employed within the boundaries of another district if the difference between
the number of students entering and exiting the district on the basis of parent/guardian
employment exceeds the limits prescribed in Education Code 48204. (Education Code 48204)

District residency is not required for enrollment in a regional occupational center or program if
there are openings in the program or class. (Education Code 52317

(¢f- 6178.2 - Regional Occupational Center/Program)

The district may admit a nonresident student living in an adjoining state or foreign country in
accordance with Education Code 48050-48052.

(cf. 5111.2 - Nonresident Foreign Students)
The Superintendent or designee shall annually notify parents/guardians of all existing attendance

options available in the district, including, but not limited to, all options for meeting residency
requirements for school attendance. (Education Code 48980)

-204-




AR 5111.1 (¢)
(¢f. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications)
Proof of Residency
The Superintendent or designee shall annually verify each student's district residency status and

retain a copy of the document or written statement offered as verification in the student's
mandatory permanent record. (5 CCR 432)

(cf 5111 - Admission)
(cf. 5125 - Student Records)
Evidence of residency may be established by documentation showing the name and address of
the parent/guardian within the district, 1nclud1ng, but not hmlted to, any of the followmg
(Education Code 48204.1)

1. Property tax payment receipt

2. Rental property contract, lease, or payment receipt

3. Utility service contract, statement, or payment receipt

4. Pay stub

5. Voter registration

6. Correspondence from a government agency

7. Declaration of residency executed by the student's parent/guardian

8. If the student is an unaccompanied youth as defined in 42 USC 11434a, a declaration of
residency executed by the student

9. If the student is residing in the home of a caregiving adult within district boundaries, an
affidavit executed by the caregiving adult in accordance with Family Code 6552

- (¢f. 5141 - Health Care and Emergencies)

The Superintendent or designee shall make a reasonable effort to secure evidence that a homeless
or foster youth resides within the district, including, but not limited to, a utility bill, letter from a
homeless shelter, hotel/motel receipt, or affidavit from the student's parent/guardian or other
qualified adult relative.

However, a homeless or foster youth shall not be required to provide proof of residency as a
condition of enrollment in district schools. (Education Code 48853.5; 42 USC 1 1432)

-205-



AR 5111.1 (d)

(¢f- 6173 - Education for Homeless Children)
(cf- 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth)

A parent/guardian seeking residency status on the basis of his/her employment within district
boundaries shall submit proof of the employment which may include, but not be limited to, a
paycheck stub or letter from his/her employer listing a physical address within district
boundaries. Such evidence shall also indicate the number of hours or days per school week that
the parent/guardian is employed at that location.

*#¥Note: Pursuant to Education Code 48204, a student shall be deemed a resident of the district
if he/she lives with a caregiving adult within district boundaries; see item #5 in section "Criteria
for Residency" above. Family Code 6552 provides an affidavit which authorizes a caregiver 18
years of age or older to enroll a minor in school and requires the caregiver's attestation that the
student lives with the caregiver. If the student stops living with the caregiver, Family Code 6550
requires the caregiver to so notify the school.*** ' '

9. If the student is residing in the home of a caregiving adult within district boundaries, an
affidavit executed by the caregiving adult in accordance with Family Code 6552
(cf. 5141 - Health Care and Emergencies)

A parent/guardian seeking residency status on the basis of his/her employment within district
boundaries shall submit proof of the employment which may include, but not be limited to,a
paycheck stub or letter from his/her employer listing a physical address within district
boundaries. Such evidence shall also indicate the number of hours or days per school week that
the parent/guardian is employed at that location.

A parent/guardian who is transferred or pending transfer into a military installation within
district boundaries shall provide proof of residence within 10 days after the published arrival date
provided on official documentation. For this purpose, he/she may use as his/her address a
temporary on-base billeting facility, a purchased or leased home or apartment, or federal
government or public-private venture off-base military housing. (Education Code 48204.3)

Any homeless or foster youth or student who has had contact with the juvenile justice system
shall be immediately enrolled in school even if he/she is unable to provide proof of residency.
(Education Code 48645.5, 48852.7, 48853.5; 42 USC 11432)

(cf. 6173 - Education for Homeless Children)
(cf. 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth)
(cf. 6173.3 - Education for Juvenile Court School Students)

Failure to Verify Residency
When the Superintendent or designee reasonably believes that a student's parent/guardian has

provided false or unreliable evidence of residency, he/she may make reasonable efforts to
determine that the student meets district residency requirements. (Education Code 48204.1)

-206-



AR 51111 (e)

If the Superintendent or designee, upon investigation, determines that a student's enrollment or
attempted enrollment is based on false or unreliable evidence of residency, he/she shall deny or
revoke the student's enrollment. Before any such denial or revocation is final, the parent/guardian
shall be sent written notice of the facts leading to the decision. This notice also shall inform the
parent/guardian that he/she may provide new material evidence of residency, in writing, to the
Superintendent or designee within 10 school days. The State Administrator/Superintendent or
designee shall review any new evidence and make a final decision within 10 school days.

Safe at Home/Confidential Address Program

When a student or parent/guardian participating in the Safe at Home program requests that the
district use the substitute address designated by the Secretary of State, the Superintendent or
designee shall use the substitute address for all future communications and correspondence and
shall not include the actual address in the student's file or any other public record. The
Superintendent or designee may request the actual residence address for the purpose of
establishing residency within district boundaries. (Government Code 6206, 6207)

(cf. 3580 - District Records)

Regulation SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

Adopted: March 22,2017 King City, California

-207-




BP 5116.2 (a)
Students

Involuntary Student Transfers

The Governing Board desires to enroll students in the school of their choice, but recognizes that
circumstances sometimes necessitate the involuntary transfer of some students to another school
or program in the district. The Superintendent or designee shall develop procedures to facilitate

the transition of such students into their new school of enrollment.

(cf. 5113.1 - Chronic Absence and Truancy)

(cf. 5116.1 - Intradistrict Open Enrollment)

(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process)

(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities))
(cf. 6173.3 - Education for Juvenile Court School Students)

As applicable, when determining the best placement for a student who is subject to involuntary
transfer, the Superintendent or designee shall review all educational options for which the
student is eligible, the student's academic progress and needs, the enrollment capacity at district
schools, and the availability of support services and other resources.

Whenever a student is involuntarily transferred, the Superintendent or designee shall provide
timely written notification to the student and his/her parent/guardian and an opportunity for the
student and parent/guardian to meet with the Superintendent or designee to discuss the transfer.

Students Convicted of Violent Felony or Misdemeanor

A student may be transferred to another district school if he/she is convicted of a violent felony,
as defined in Penal Code 667.5(c), or a misdemeanor listed in Penal Code 29805 and is enrolled
at the same school as the victim of the crime for which he/she was convicted. (Education Code
48929)

Before transferring such a student, the Superintendent or designee shall attempt to resolve the
conflict using restorative justice, counseling, or other such services. He/she shall also notify the
student and his/her parents/guardians of the right to request a meeting with the principal or
designee. (Education Code 48929)

(cf. 5138 - Conflict Resolution/Peer Mediation)
(cf. 5144 - Discipline) '
(cf. 6164.2 - Guidance and Counseling Services)

Participation of the victim in any conflict resolution program shall be voluntary, and he/she shall
not be subjected to any disciplinary action for his/her refusal to participate in conflict resolution.

The principal or designee shall submit to the Superintendent or designee a recommendation as to
whether or not the student should be transferred. If the Superintendent or designee determines

-208-



BP 5116.2 (b)

that a transfer would be in the best interest of the students involved, he/she shall submit such
recommendation to the Board for approval.

The Board shall deliberate in closed session to maintain the confidentiality of student
information, unless the parent/guardian or adult student submits a written request that the matter
be addressed in open session and doing so would not violate the privacy rights of any other
student. The Board's decision shall be final.

(cf. 9321 - Closed Session Purposes and Agendas)

The decision to transfer a student shall be subject to periodic review by the Superintendent or
designee.

The Superintendent or designee shall annually notify parents/ guardians of the district's policy
authorizing the transfer of a student pursuant to Education Code 48929. (Education Code 48980)

(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications)
Other Involuntary Transfers
Students may be involuntarily transferred under either of the following circumstances:

*#¥*Note: Item #1 below is for use by districts that maintain high schools. Education Code 48432
requires such districts to establish and maintain continuation education schools or classes
whenever there are any students residing in the district who are subject to compulsory
continuation education. Pursuant to Education Code 48432.5, districts that assign students to
continuation schools are mandated to adopt rules and regulations governing procedures for
involuntary transfer of students to continuation schools. See BP/AR 6184 - Continuation
Education for language fulfilling this mandate. ***

i If a high school student commits an act enumerated in Education Code 48900 or is
habitually truant or irregular in school attendance, he/she may be transferred to a continuation
school. (Education Code 48432.5)

(cf. 6184 - Continuation Education)

2. If a student is expelled from school for any reason, is probation-referred pursuant to
Welfare and Institutions Code 300 or 602, or is referred by a school attendance review board or
another formal district process, he/she may be transferred to a community day school.
(Education Code 48662)

(cf. 6173 - Education for Homeless Children)

(cf. 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth)
(cf. 6185 - Community Day School)

-209-




BP 5116.2 (c)

Legal Reference:

EDUCATION CODE

35146 Closed sessions; student matters

48430-48438 Continuation classes, especially:

48432.5 Involuntary transfer to continuation school
48660-48666 Community day schools, especially:
48662 Involuntary transfer to community day school
48900 Grounds for suspension and expulsion

48929 Transfer of student convicted of violent felony or misdemeanor
48980 Notice at beginning of term

PENAL CODE

667.5 Violent felony, definition

29805 Misdemeanors involving firearms

WELFARE AND INSTITUTIONS CODE

300 Minors subject to jurisdiction

602 Minors violating laws defining crime; ward of court

Management Resources:
WEB SITES

CSBA: http://www.csba.org
California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov

12/16

Policy: SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

Adopted: March 22, 2017 King City, California

-210-



. BP 5141.21 (a)
Students

Administering Medication And Monitoring Health Conditions

The Governing Board believes that regular school attendance is critical to student learning and
that students who need to take medication prescribed or ordered for them by their authorized
health care providers should have an opportunity to participate in the educational program.

(cf. 5113 - Absences and Excuses)
(cf. 5113.1 - Chronic Absence and Truancy)

Any medication prescribed for a student with a disability who is qualified to receive services
under the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act or Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of
1973 shall be administered in accordance with the student's individualized education program or
Section 504 services plan, as applicable. |

(cf. 5141.24 - Specialized Health Care Services)
(cf. 6159 - Individualized Education Program)
(cf. 6164.6 - Identification and Education Under Section 504)

For the administration of medication to other students during school or school-related activities,
the Superintendent or designee shall develop protocols which shall include options for allowing a
parent/guardian to administer medication to his/her child at school, designate other individuals to
do so on his/her behalf, and, with the child's authorized health care provider's approval, request
the district's permission for his/her child to self-administer a medication or self-monitor and/or
self-test for a medical condition. Such processes shall be implemented in a manner that preserves
campus security, minimizes instructional interruptions, and promotes student safety and privacy.

(cf. 1250 - Visitors/Outsiders)

(cf. 5141 - Health Care and Emergencies)

(cf. 5141.22 - Infectious Diseases)

(cf. 5141.23 - Asthma Management)

(cf. 5141.27 - Food Allergies/Special Dietary Needs)
(cf. 6116 - Classroom Interruptions)

The Superintendent or designee shall make available epinephrine auto-injectors at each school
for providing emergency medical aid to any person suffering, or reasonably believed to be
* suffering, from an anaphylactic reaction. ‘(Education Code 49414) '

The Board authorizes the Superintendent or designee to make available naloxone hydrochloride
or another opioid antagonist for emergency medical aid to any person suffering, or reasonably

believed to be suffering, from an opioid overdose. (Education Code 49414.3)

The Superintendent or designee shall collaborate with city and county emergency responders,
including local public health administrators, to design procedures or measures for addressing an

-211-



: _ , BP 5141.21 (b)
emergency such as a public disaster or epidemic.

(cf. 3516 - Emergencies and Disaster Preparedness Plan)
Administration of Medication by School Personnel

When allowed by law, medication prescribed to a student by an authorized health care provider
may be administered by a school nurse or, when a school nurse or other medically licensed
person is unavailable and the physician has authorized administration of medication by
unlicensed personnel for a particular student, by other designated school personnel with
appropriate training. School nurses and other designated school personnel shall administer
medications to students in accordance with law, Board policy, administrative regulation, and, as
applicable, the written statement provided by the student's parent/guardian and authorized health
care provider. Such personnel shall be afforded appropriate liability protection.

| (cf. 3530 - Risk Maﬁagement/Insurance) |
(cf. 4119.42/4219.42/4319.42 - Exposure Control Plan for Bloodborne Pathogens)
(cf. 4119.43/4219.43/4319.43 - Universal Precautions)

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that school personnel designated to administer any
medication receive appropriate training and, as necessary, retraining from qualified medical
personnel before any medication is administered. At a minimum, the training shall cover how
and when such medication should be administered, the recognition of symptoms and treatment,
emergency follow-up procedures, and the proper documentation and storage of medication. Such
trained, unlicensed designated school personnel shall be supervised by, and provided with
immediate communication access to, a school nurse, physician, or other appropriate individual.
(Education Code 49414, 49414.3, 49414.5, 49423, 49423.1)

The Superintendent or designee shall maintain documentation of the training and ongoing
supervision, as well as annual written verification of competency of other designated school
personnel.

(cf. 4131 - Staff Development)
(cf. 4231 - Staff Development)
(cf. 4331 - Staff Development)

Legal Reference:

" EDUCATION CODE

48980 Notification at beginning of term

49407 Liability for treatment

49408 Emergency information

49414 Emergency epinephrine auto-injectors

49414.3 Emergency medical assistance; administration of medication for opioid overdose
49414.5 Providing school personnel with voluntary emergency training

49422-49427 Employment of medical personnel, especially:

-212-



BP 514121 (c)

49423 Administration of prescribed medication for student
49423.1 Inhaled asthma medication

49480 Continuing medication regimen; notice

BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONS CODE

2700-2837 Nursing, especially:

2726 Authority not conferred

2727 Exceptions in general

3501 Definitions

4119.2 Acquisition of epinephrine auto-injectors

4119.8 Acquisition of naloxone hydrochloride or another opioid antagonist
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5

600-611 Administering medication to students

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20

1232g Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act of 1974
1400-1482 Individuals with Disabilities Education Act

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 29

794 Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Section 504

COURT DECISIONS

American Nurses Association v. Torlakson, (2013) 57 Cal.4th 570

Management Resources:

AMERICAN DIABETES ASSOCIATION PUBLICATIONS

Glucagon Training Standards for School Personnel: Providing Emergency Medical Assistance
to Pupils with Diabetes, May 2006

Training Standards for the Administration of Epinephrine Auto-Injectors, rev. 2015

Legal Advisory on Rights of Students with Diabetes in California's K-12 Public Schools, August
2007

Program Advisory on Medication Administration, 2005

NATIONAL DIABETES EDUCATION PROGRAM PUBLICATIONS

Helping the Student with Diabetes Succeed: A Guide for School Personnel, June 2003

WEB SITES

CSBA: http://www.csba.org

American Diabetes Association: http://www.diabetes.org

California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/he/hn

National Diabetes Education Program: http://www.ndep.nih.gov

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, National Institutes of Health, Blood Institute,
asthma information: http://www.nhlbi.nih.gov/health/public/lung/index.htm#asthma

(11711 12/13) 12/16
Policy: SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

Adopted: March 22, 2017 King City, California

-213-




A AR 5141.21 (a)
Students

Administering Medication And Monitoring Health Conditions
Definitions

Authorized health care provider means an individual who is licensed by the State of California to
prescribe or order medication, including, but not limited to, a physician or physician assistant.
(Education Code 49423; 5 CCR 601)

Other designated school personnel means any individual employed by the district, including a
nonmedical school employee, who has volunteered or consented to administer medication or
otherwise assist the student and who may legally administer the medication to the student or
assist the student in the administration of the medication. (5 CCR 601, 621)

Medication may include not only a substance dispensed in the United States by prescription, but
also a substance that does not require a prescription, such as over-the-counter remedies,
nutritional supplements, and herbal remedies. (5 CCR 601)

Epinephrine auto-injector means a disposable delivery device designed for the automatic
injection of a premeasured dose of epinephrine into the human body to prevent or treat a
life-threatening allergic reaction. (Education Code 49414)

Anaphylaxis means a potentially life-threatening hypersensitivity to a substance, which may
result from an insect sting, food allergy, drug reaction, exercise, or other cause. Symptoms may
include shortness of breath, wheezing, difficulty breathing, difficulty talking or swallowing,
hives, itching, swelling, shock, or asthma. (Education Code 49414)

(cf. 5141.23 - Asthma Management)
(cf. 5141.27 - Food Allergies/Special Dietary Needs)

Opioid antagonist means naloxone hydrochloride or another drug approved by the federal Food
and Drug Administration that, when administered, negates or neutralizes in whole or in part the
pharmacological effects of an opioid in the body and that has been approved for the treatment of
an opioid overdose. (Education Code 49414.3) '

Notifications to Parents/Guardians

At the beginning of each school year, the Superintendent or designee shall notify
parents/guardians of the options available to students who need to take prescribed medication
during the school day and the rights and responsibilities of parents/guardians regarding those

options. (Education Code 49480)

(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications)

-214-



AR 514121 (b)

In addition, the Superintendent or designee shall inform the parents/guardians of any student on a
continuing medication regimen for a nonepisodic condition of the following requirements:
(Education Code 49480)

1. The parent/guardian is required to inform the school nurse or other designated employee
of the medication being taken, the current dosage, and the name of the supervising physician.

2 With the parent/guardian's consent, the school nurse or other designated employee may
communicate with the student's physician regarding the medication and its effects and may
counsel school personnel regarding the possible effects of the medication on the student's
physical, intellectual, and social behavior, as well as possible behavioral signs and symptoms of
adverse side effects, omission, or overdose.

When a student requires medication during the school day in order to participate in the
educational program, the Superintendent or designee shall, as appropriate, inform the student's
parents/guardians that the student may qualify for services or accommodations pursuant to the
Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (20 USC 1400-1482) or Section 504 of the federal
Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 USC 794).

(cf. 6164.4 - Identification and Evaluation of Individuals for Special Education)
(cf. 6164.6 - Identification and Education Under Section 504)

Parent/Guardian Responsibilities

The responsibilities of the parent/guardian of any student who may need medication during the
school day shall include, but are not limited to:

1. Providing parent/guardian and authorized health care provider written statements each
school year as described in the sections "Parent/Guardian Statement" and "Health Care Provider
Statement" below. The parent/guardian shall provide a new authorized health care provider's
statement if the medication, dosage, frequency of administration, or reason for administration
changes. (Education Code 49414.5, 49423, 49423.1; 5 CCR 600, 626)

2. If the student is on a continuing medication regimen for a nonepisodic condition,
informing the school nurse or other designated certificated employee of the medication being
taken, the current dosage, and the name of the supervising physician and updating the
information when needed. (Education Code 49480) '

3. Providing medications in properly labeled, original containers along with the authorized
health care provider's instructions. For prescribed or ordered medication, the container also
shall bear the name and telephone number of the pharmacy, the student's identification, and the
name and phone number of the authorized health care provider. (5 CCR 606)

-215-



AR 514121 (c)
Parent/Guardian Statement

When district employees are to administer medication to a student, the parent/guardian's written
statement shall:

1. Identify the student

2. Grant permission for an authorized district representative to communicate directly with
the student's authorized health care provider and pharmacist, as may be necessary, regarding the
health care provider's written statement or any other questions that may arise with regard to the
medication

3. Contain an acknowledgment that the parent/guardian understands how district employees
will administer the medication or otherwise assist the student in its administration

4. Contain an acknowledgment that the parent/guardian understands his/her responsibilities
to enable district employees to administer or otherwise assist the student in the administration of
medication, including, but not limited to, the parent/guardian's responsibility to provide a written
statement from the authorized health care provider, to ensure that the medication is delivered to
the school in a proper container by an individual legally authorized to be in possession of the
medication, and to provide all necessary supplies and equipment

5. Contain an acknowledgment that the parent/guardian understands that he/she may
terminate the consent for the administration of the medication or for otherwise assisting the
student in the administration of medication at any time

In addition to the requirements in items #1-5 above, if a parent/guardian has requested that
his/her child be allowed to carry and self-administer prescription auto-injectable epinephrine or
prescription inhaled asthma medication, the parent/guardian's written statement shall:
(Education Code 49423, 49423.1)

1. Consent to the self-administration

2. Release the district and school personnel from civil liability if the student suffers an
adverse reaction as a result of self-administering the medication

In addition to the requirements in items #1-5 above, if a parent/guardian wishes to designate an
individual who is not an employee of the district to administer medication to his/her child, the
parent/guardian's written statement shall clearly identify the individual and shall state:

L. The individual's willingness to accept the designation

2. That the individual is permitted to be on the school site

-216-




‘ . AR 5141.21 (d)
3. Any limitations on the individual's authority

Health Care Provider Statement

When any district employee is to administer prescribed medication to a student, or when a
student is to be allowed to carry and self-administer prescribed medication during school hours,
the authorized health care provider's written statement shall include:

L Clear identification of the student (Education Code 49423, 49423.1; 5 CCR 602)
2. The name of the medication (Education Code 49423, 49423.1; 5 CCR 602)

3. The method, amount, and time schedules by which the medication is to be taken
(Education Code 49423, 49423.1; 5 CCR 602)

4. If alparent/ guardian has réquested that his/her child be allowed to self-administer
medication, confirmation that the student is able to self-administer the medication (Education
Code 49414.5, 49423, 49423.1; 5 CCR 602)

3. For medication that is to be administered by unlicensed personnel, confirmation by the
student's health care provider that the medication may safely and appropriately be administered
by unlicensed personnel (Education Code 49423, 49423.1; 5 CCR 602)

6. For medication that is to be administered on an as-needed basis, the specific symptoms
that would necessitate administration of the medication, allowable frequency for administration,
and indications for referral for medical evaluation

7. Possible side effects of the medication
8. Name, address, telephone number, and signature of the student's authorized health care
provider

District Responsibilities

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that any unlicensed school personnel authorized to
administer medication to a student receives appropriate training from the school nurse or other
qualified medical personnel.

The school nurse or other designated school personnel shall:

L. Administer or assist in administering medication in accordance with the authorized health
care provider's written statement

2. Accept delivery of medications from parents/guardians and count and record them upon
receipt

-217-



AR 5141.21 (e)
3. Maintain a list of students needing medication during the school day, including those

authorized to self-administer medication, and note on the list the type of medication and the
times and dosage to be administered

4. Maintain for each student a medication log which may:
a. Specify the student's name, medication, dose, method of administration, time of
administration during the regular school day, date(s) on which the student is required to take the

medication, and the authorized health care provider's name and contact information

b. Contain space for daily recording of the date, time, and amount of medication
administered, and the signature of the individual administering the medication

5. Maintain for each student a medication record which may include the authorized health
care provider's written statement, the parent/guardian's written statement, the medication log, and
any other written documentation related to the administration of medication to the student

6. Ensure that student confidentiality is appropriately maintained

(cf. 5125 - Student Records)

7. Coordinate and, as appropriate, ensure the administration of medication during field trips
and other school-related activities

(cf. 5148.2 - Before/After School Programs)

(cf. 6145.2 - Athletic Competition)
(cf. 6153 - School-Sponsored Trips)

8. Report to a student's parent/guardian and the site administrator any refusal by the student
to take his/her medication

B, Keep all medication to be administered by the district in a locked drawer or cabinet

10.  Asneeded, communicate with a student's authorized health care provider and/or
pharmacist regarding the medication and its effects

11. Counsel other designated school personnel regarding the possible effects of a medication
on a student's physical, intellectual, and social behavior, as well as possible behavioral signs and
symptoms of adverse side effects, omission, or overdose

12. Ensure that any unused, discontinued, or outdated medication is returned to the student's

parent/guardian at the end of the school year or, if the medication cannot be returned, dispose of
it in accordance with state laws and local ordinances

-218-



AR 5141.21 ()

13. Inthe event of a medical emergency requiring administration of medication, provide
immediate medical assistance, directly observe the student following the administration of
medication, contact the student's parent/guardian, and determine whether the student should
return to class, rest in the school office, or receive further medical assistance

14. Report to the site administrator, the student's parent/guardian, and, if necessary, the
student's authorized health care provider any instance when a medication is not administered
properly, including administration of the wrong medication or failure to administer the
medication in accordance with authorized health care provider's written statement

Emergency Epinephrine Auto-Injectors

The Superintendent or designee shall provide epinephrine auto-injectors to school nurses or other
employees who have volunteered to administer them in an emergency and have received
training. The school nurse, or a volunteer employee when a school nurse or physician is
unavailable, may administer an epinephrine auto-injector to provide emergency medical aid to
any person suffering, or reasonably believed to be suffering, from potentially life-threatening
symptoms of anaphylaxis at school or a school activity. (Education Code 49414)

At least once per school year, the Superintendent or designee shall distribute to all staff a notice
requesting volunteers to be trained to administer an epinephrine auto-injector and describing the
training that the volunteer will receive. (Education Code 49414)

(cf. 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 - Employee Notifications)

The principal or designee at each school may designate one or more volunteers to receive initial
and annual refresher training, which shall be provided by a school nurse or other qualified person
designated by a physician and surgeon authorized pursuant to Education Code 49414 and shall
be based on the standards developed by the Superintendent of Public Instruction (SPI). Written
materials covering the required topics for training shall be retained by the school for reference.
(Education Code 49414)

(cf. 4131 - Staff Development)
(cf. 4231 - Staff Development)
(cf. 4331 - Staff Development)

A school nurse or other qualified supervisor of health, or a district administrator if the district

does not have a qualified supervisor of health, shall obtain a prescription for epinephrine
auto-injectors for each school from an authorized physician and surgeon. Such prescription may

-219-



AR 514121 (g)

be filled by local or mail order pharmacies or epinephrine auto-injector manufacturers.
Elementary schools shall, at a minimum, be provided one adult (regular) and one junior
epinephrine auto-injector. Secondary schools shall be provided at least one adult (regular)
epinephrine auto-injector, unless there are any students at the school who require a junior
epinephrine auto-injector. (Education Code 49414)

If an epinephrine auto-injector is used, the school nurse or other qualified supervisor of health
shall restock the epinephrine auto-injector as soon as reasonably possible, but no later than two
weeks after it is used. In addition, epinephrine auto-injectors shall be restocked before their
expiration date. (Education Code 49414)

Information regarding defense and indemnification provided by the district for any and all civil
liability for volunteers administering epinephrine auto-injectors shall be provided to each
volunteer and retained in his/her personnel file. (Education Code 49414)

(cf. 4112.6/4212.6/4312.6 - Personnel Files)

A school may accept gifts, grants, and donations from any source for the support of the school in
carrying out the requirements of Education Code 49414, including, but not limited to, the

acceptance of epinephrine auto-injectors from a manufacturer or wholesaler, (Education Code
49414)

(cf. 3290 - Gifts, Grants and Bequests)

The Superintendent or designee shall maintain records regarding the acquisition and disposition
of epinephrine auto-injectors for a period of three years from the date the records were created.
(Business and Professions Code 4119.2)

(cf. 3580 - District Records)
Emergency Medication for Opioid Overdose

The district may elect to make emergency naloxone hydrochloride or another opioid antagonist
available at schools for the purpose of providing emergency medical aid to persons suffering, or
reasonably believed to be suffering, from an opioid overdose. In determining whether to make
this medication available, the Superintendent or designee shall evaluate the emergency medical
response time to the school and determine whether initiating emergency medical services is an
acceptable alternative to providing an opioid antagonist and training personnel to administer the
medication. (Education Code 49414.3)

When available at the school site, the school nurse shall provide emergency naloxone
hydrochloride or another opioid antagonist for emergency medical aid to any person exhibiting
potentially life-threatening symptoms of an opioid overdose at school or a school activity. Other
designated personnel who have volunteered and have received training may administer such

-220-



me AR 5141.21 (h)

dication when a school nurse or physician is unavailable, and shall only administer the
medication by nasal spray or auto-injector. (Education Code 49414.3)

At least once per school year, the Superintendent or designee shall distribute to all staff a notice
requesting volunteers to be trained to administer naloxone hydrochloride or another opioid
antagonist, describing the training that the volunteer will receive, and explaining the right of the
volunteer to rescind his/her offer to volunteer at any time, including after receiving training. The
notice shall also include a statement that no benefit will be granted to or withheld from any
employee based on his/her offer to volunteer and that there will be no retaliation against any
employee for rescinding his/her offer to volunteer. (Education Code 49414.3)

The principal or designee may designate one or more volunteer employees to receive initial and
annual refresher training, based on standards adopted by the SPI, regarding the storage and
emergency use of naloxone hydrochloride or another opioid antagonist. The training shall be
provided at no cost to the employee, conducted during his/her regular working hours, and be
provided by a school nurse or other qualified person designated by an authorizing physician and
surgeon. Written materials provided during the training shall be retained at the school for
reference. (Education Code 49414.3)

A school nurse, other qualified supervisor of health, or, if the district does not have a qualified
supervisor of health, a district administrator shall obtain a prescription for naloxone
hydrochloride or another opioid antagonist for each school from an authorized physician and
surgeon. Such prescription may be filled by local or mail order pharmacies or manufacturers.
(Education Code 49414.3)

If the medication is used, the school nurse, other qualified supervisor of health, or district
administrator, as applicable, shall restock the medication as soon as reasonably possible, but no
later than two weeks after it is used. In addition, the medication shall be restocked before its
expiration date. (Education Code 49414.3)

Information regarding defense and indemnification provided by the district for any and all civil
liability for volunteers administering naloxone hydrochloride or another opioid antagonist for
emergency aid shall be provided to each volunteer and retained in his/her personnel file.
(Education Code 49414.3)

A school may accept gifts, grants, and donations from any source for the support of the school in
carrying out the requirements of Education Code 49414.3, including, but not limited to, the
acceptance of the naloxone hydrochloride or another opioid antagonist from a manufacturer or
wholesaler. (Education Code 49414.3)

The Superintendent or designee shall maintain records regarding the acquisition and disposition

of naloxone hydrochloride or another opioid antagonist for a period of three years from the date
the records were created. (Business and Professions Code 41 19.8)

221~




AR 5141.21 (i)

(12/13 12/14) 12/16

Regulation:  SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTIRCT

Adopted: March 22, 2017 King City, California

-222-



BP 6146.1(a)
Instfuction
HIGH SCHOOL GRADUATION REQUIREMENTS

The Governing Board desires to prepare all students to obtain a high school diploma to enable them to
take advantage of opportunities for postsecondary education and employment.

(cf. 5127 - Graduation Ceremonies and Activities)
(cf. 5147 - Dropout Prevention)

(cf. 6011 - Academic Standards)

(cf. 6143 - Courses of Study)

(cf. 6146.3 - Reciprocity of Academic Credit)

To obtain a high school diploma, students shall complete at least the following courses in grades 9-12,
. with each course being one year unless otherwise specified:

Students shall receive diplomas of graduation from high school only after completing the prescribed
course of study and meeting the standards of proficiency established by the district.

1. Four courses in English (Education Code 51225.3)
(cf. 6142.91 - Reading/Language Arts Instruction)
2, Two courses in mathematics (Education Code 51225.3)

At least one mathematics course, or a combination of the two mathematics courses, shall meet or
exceed state academic content standards for Algebra I or Mathematics I. Completion of such
coursework prior to grade 9 shall satisfy the Algebra I or

Mathematics I requirement, but shall not exempt a student from the requirement to complete two
mathematics courses in grades 9-12. (Education Code 51224.5)

Students may be awarded up to one mathematics course credit for successful completion of an
approved computer science course that is classified as a "category ¢" course based on the "a-g" course
requirements for college admission. (Education Code 51225.3, 51225.3 5)

(cf. 6011 - Academic Standards)
" (cf. 6142.92 - Mathermatics Instruction)
(cf. 6152.1 - Placement in Mathematics Courses)

2

3. Two courses in science, including biological and physical sciences (Education Code 51225.3)
(cf. 6142.93 - Science Instruction)
4, Three courses in social studies, including United States history and geography; world history,

culture, and geography; a one-semester course in American government and civics; and a one-semester
course in economics (Education Code 51225.3)

-223-




BP 6146.1 (b)

(cf. 6142.3 - Civic Education)
(cf. 6142.94 - History-Social Science Instruction)

5. One course in visual or performing arts, foreign language, including American Sign Language,
or career technical education (CTE) (Education Code 51225.3)

To be counted towards meeting graduation requirements, a CTE course shall be aligned to the CTE
model curriculum standards and framework adopted by the State Board of Education.

(cf. 6142.2 - World/Foreign Language Instruction)
(cf. 6142.6 - Visual and Performing Arts Education)
(cf. 6178 - Career Technical Education)

(cf. 6178.2 - Regional Occupational Center/Program)

6. Two courses in physical education, unless the student has been otherwise exempted pursuant to
other sections of the Education Code (Education Code 51225.3)

(cf. 6142.7 - Physical Education and Activity)

(cf. 6142.1 - Sexual Health and HIV/AIDS Prevention Instruction)
(cf. 6142.4 - Service Learning/Community Service Classes)
(cf. 6142.8 - Comprehensive Health Education)

Because the prescribed course of study may not accommodate the needs of some students, the Board
shall provide alternative means for the completion of prescribed courses in accordance with law.

(cf. 6146.11 - Alternative Credits Toward Graduation)
(cf. 6146.2 - Certificate of Proficiency/High School Equivalency)
(cf. 6146.4 - Differential Graduation and Competency Standards for Students with Disabilities)

A foster youth, homeless student, or former juvenile court school student who transfers into the district
any time after completing his/her second year of high school shall be required to complete all
graduation requirements specified in Education Code 51225.3 but shall be exempt from any additional
district-adopted graduation requirements, unless the Superintendent or designee makes a finding that
the student is reasonably able to complete the requirements in time to graduate by the end of his/her
fourth year of high school. Within 30 days of the transfer, any such student shall be notified of the
availability of the exemption and whether he/she qualifies for it. (Education Code 5 1225.1)

(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures)

(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications)

(cf. 6173 - Education for Homeless Children)

(cf. 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth)

(cf. 6173.3 - Education for Juvenile Court School Students)

-224-



BP 6146.1 (c)
Retroactive Diplomas

Until July 31, 2018, any student who completed grade 12 in the 2003-04 school year or a subsequent
school year and has met all applicable graduation requirements other than the passage of the high
school exit examination shall be granted a high school diploma. (Education Code 60851.6)

The district may retroactively grant a high school diploma to a former student who was interned by
order of the federal government during World War II or who is an honorably discharged veteran of
World War II, the Korean War, or the Vietnam War, provided that he/she was enrolled in a district
school immediately preceding the internment or military service and he/she did not receive a diploma
because his/her education was interrupted due to the internment or military service. A deceased former
student who satisfies these conditions may be granted a retroactive diploma to be received by his/her
next of kin. (Education Code 51430)

In addition, the district may grant a diploma to a veteran who entered the military service of the United
States while he/she was a district student in grade 12 and who had completed the first half of the work
required for grade 12. (Education Code 51440)

Legal Reference:

EDUCATION CODE

47612 Enrollment in charter school

48200 Compulsory attendance

48412 Certificate of proficiency

48430 Continuation education schools and classes

48645.5 Acceptance of coursework

48980 Required notification at beginning of term

49701 Interstate Compact on Educational Opportunity for Military Children
51224 Skills and knowledge required for adult life

51224.5 Algebra instruction

51225.1 Exemption from district graduation requirements

51225.2 Pupil in foster care defined; acceptance of coursework, credits, retaking of course
51225.3 High school graduation

51225.35 Mathematics course requirements; computer science

51225.36 Instruction in sexual harassment and violence; districts that require health education for
graduation

512255 Honorary diplomas; foreign exchange students

51225.6 Compression-only cardiopulmonary resuscitation

51228 Graduation requirements

51240-51246 Exemptions from requirements

51250-51251 Assistance to military dependents

51410-51412 Diplomas

51420-51427 High school equivalency certificates

51430 Retroactive high school diplomas

51440 Retroactive high school diplomas

51450-51455 Golden State Seal Merit Diploma

~225-



BP 6146.1 (d)

51745 Independent study restrictions

56390-56392 Recognition for educational achievement, special education

60851.5 Suspension of high school exit examination

60851.6 Retroactive diploma; completion of all graduation requirements except high school exit
examination

66204 Certification of high school courses as meeting university admissions criteria
67386 Student safety; affirmative consent standard

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5

1600-1651 Graduation of students from grade 12 and credit toward graduation
4600-4687 Uniform complaint procedures

COURT DECISIONS

O'Connell v. Superior Court (Valenzuela), (2006) 141 Cal.App.4th 1452

Management Resources:

WEB SITES

CSBA: http://www.csba.org

California Department of Education, High School: http://www.cde.ca.gov/ci/gs/hs
University of California, List of Approved a-g Courses:
http://www.universityofcalifornia.edu/admissions/freshman/requirements

(12/13 12/15) 12/16

To obtain a high school diploma, students shall complete at least the following courses in grades 9-12,

with each course being one year unless otherwise specified:

Students shall receive diplomas of graduation from high school only after completing the prescribed

course of study and meeting the standards of proficiency established by the district.
The prescribed course of study for students in grades 9 through 12 shall include:

SMCJUHSD, State, and UC-CSU Graduation Requirement

Subjects

SMCJUHSD Graduation

Calif. State Requirements

UC & CSU Requirements

Requirements

(Ed. Code 51225.3)

(A-G)

English

40 units:

e 40 units approved
courses

e 10 units of ELD per year
may be counted for
English credit

e 10 units of Read 180
may be counted for

English credit

3 years

~226-

4 years approved courses




BP 6146.1 (e)

Subjects SMCJUHSD Graduation Calif. State Requirements | UC & CSU Requirements
Requirements (Ed. Code 51225.3) (A-G)
Mathematics 20 units: 2 years: 3 years approved math

10 units Math 1
10 units other approved
math courses

Including 1 year of
Algebra |/Math 1

courses (4 years
recommended):

Algebra, Geometry, and
Intermediate Algebra
College preparatory
mathematics that
include or integrate the
topics covered in
elementary and
advanced algebra and
two and three
dimensional geometry

Social Studies

30 units:

10 units World History
10 units U.S. History
5 units Civics

5 units Economics

3 years:

1 year U.S. History &
Geography

1 year World History,
Culture & Geography
1 semester American
Government or Civics

° 1 semester Economics

2 years:

1 year U.S. History

1 year of another
approved Social Studies
course

Science

20 units:

° 10 units Physical
Science
10 units Biological

Science

2 years:

Including biological and
physical sciences

2 years approved lab
science courses (3 years
recommended):

e Biology
Chemistry
Physics

Foreign Language

10 units OR 10 units of
Visual and Performing Arts
OR 10 units of Career &
Technical Education

1 year OR 1 year of Visual
and Performing Arts OR 10
units of Career & Technical
Education

2 years in same language

3 years recommended

Visual and Performing Arts

10 units OR 10 units of
foreign language OR 10 units

1 year OR 1 year of foreign
language (which includes

1 year from among dance,
drama/theater, music, or

*  Music of Career & Technical American Sign Language) or |visual arts
* Art Education 10 units of Career &
e Drama Technical Education
e Dance
Physical Education 20 units 2 years No Requirement

10 units in 9t grade
10 additional units in

10%-12th grades

Unless the pupil has
been exempted

pursuant to EC 51241

227~




BP 6146.1 (f)

Applications 1A OR
Computer Literacy
20 hours community
service in 11th or 12th

Elective 90 units Other coursework as the 1 Year from among history,
governing board of the English, advanced
school district may, by rule, [mathematics, lab science,
specify foreign language, social
science, or fine arts
Other e 10 units Computer - Other coursework as the [ Admission Test Required

governing board of the
school district may, by rule,
specify

SAT or ACT

Subject Test for UC
(subject areas)

grades
* Health Educ. Completion of required
Component courses with “C” grade or
better
Total required units: 240
Board approved: 3-23-16
Effective beginning: 7-1-12

The Governing Board recognizes that the prescribed course of study may not accommodate the needs
of some students. The Board, with the active involvement of parents/guardians, administrators,
teachers and students, shall adopt alternative means for the completion of prescribed courses, which

may include:

1. Practical demonstration of skills and competencies.
2. Work experience or other outside school experience.

(cf- 6178.1 — Work Experience Education)

3. Vocational education classes offered in high schools.

(cf. 6178 — Vocational Education)

4. Courses offered by regional occupational centers or programs.

5. Interdisciplinary study.

6. Independent Study.

(cf- 6158 — Independent Study)

7. Credit earned at a postsecondary institution.
8. Credit for driver education and training which satisfies the requirements of Vehicle Code 12814.6.

Requirements for graduation and specified alternative means for completing the prescribed course of
study shall be made available to students, parents/guardians and the public.

(Education Code 51225.3)

-228-



BP 6146.1 (g)

Foreign exchange' students may receive -honorary diplomas pui‘suant to Education Code 51225.5.

(cf- 5118 — Transfers, withdrawals)
(cf. 5127. — Graduation Ceremonies and Activities)
(cf. 6146.3 — Reciprocity on Standards of Proficiency/Graduation Requirements)

Standards of Proficiency

The Board shall adopt proficiency standards in these areas and any others it deems appropriate. All
adopted proficiency standards shall correspond with the goals of the course of study required for
graduation.

The Board shall actively involve administrators, teachers, counselors, students and parents/guardians
broadly representative of the district’s socioeconomic composition in the adoption of high school
proficiency.. (Education Code 51215)

The Superintendent shall provide for the periodic screening of assessment instruments for racial,
cultural or sexual bias.

Students shall be assessed periodically to measure mastery of basic skills and shall be provided with
additional instruction and opportunities to meet the standards established by the district.

Parents will be notified by certified mail between the student’s junior and senior year if their son or
daughter is in jeopardy of graduation on time.

(cf- 5125- Student Records)

(cf- 6020 — Parent Involvement)

(cf. 6146.5 — Elementary School Promotion/Standards of Proficiency)
(cf- 6164.2 — Guidance Services)

(cf. 6177 — Summer School)

Policy: SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

Adopted: March 22,2017 King City, California

-229-




BP 6154 (a)
Instruction
Homework/Makeup Work

The Governing Board recognizes that meaningful homework assignments can be a valuable
extension of student learning time and assist students in developing good study habits.
Homework shall be assigned when necessary to support classroom lessons, enable students to
complete unfinished assignments, or review and apply academic content for better
understanding.

The Superintendent or designee shall collaborate with school administrators and teachers to
develop and regularly review guidelines for the assignment of homework and the related
responsibilities of students, staff, and parents/guardians.

Homework assignments shall be reasonable in length and appropriate to the grade level and
course. The Board expects that the number, frequency, and degree of difficulty of homework
assignments will increase with the grade level and the maturity of students. Teachers shall assign
homework only as necessary to fulfill academic goals and reinforce current instruction.

(cf. 6011 - Academic Standards)

As needed, teachers may receive training in designing relevant homework assignments that
reinforce classroom learning objectives.

(cf. 4131 - Staff Development)

Although on-time completion of homework is important to maintain academic progress, the
Board recognizes that students learn at different rates. Students shall receive credit for work that
is completed late in order to encourage their continued learning.

Age-appropriate instruction may be given to help students allocate their time wisely, meet their
deadlines, and develop good personal study habits.

At the beginning of the school year, teachers shall communicate homework expectations to
students and their parents/guardians. Homework guidelines also shall be included in student
and/or parent handbooks. These communications shall include the manner in which homework
relates to achievement of academic standards and course content, the impact of homework
assignments on students' grades, any school resources and programs that are available to provide
homework support, and ways in which parents/guardians may appropriately assist their children.

Although it is the student's responsibility to undertake assignments independently,
parents/guardians may serve as a resource and are encouraged to ensure that their child's
homework assignments are completed. When a student repeatedly fails to complete his/her
homework, the teacher shall notify the student's parents/guardians as soon as possible so that

-230-



BP 6154 (b)
corrective action can be taken prior to the release of any final grades or report cards.

(cf. 5020 - Parent Rights and Responsibilities)
(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement)

To further support students' homework efforts, the Superintendent or designee may establish and
maintain telephone help lines, provide access to school library media centers and technological
resources, and/or provide before-school and after-school programs where students can receive
homework assistance from teachers, volunteers, and/or student tutors. The Board encourages the
Superintendent or designee to design class and transportation schedules that will enable students
to make use of homework support services.

(cf. 1240 - Volunteer Assistance)

(cf. 1700 - Relations between Private Industry and the Schools)
(cf. 3541 - Transportation Routes and Services)

(cf. 5148 - Child Care and Development)

(cf. 5148.2 - Before/After School Programs)

(cf. 6112 - School Day)

(cf. 6142.4 - Service Learning/Community Service Classes)
(cf. 6163.1 - Library Media Centers)

Teachers shall review all completed homework to assess the student's understanding of academic
content and shall provide timely feedback to the student.

Makeup Work
Students who miss school work because of an excused absence shall be given the opportunity to

complete all assignments and tests that can be reasonably provided. As determined by the
teacher, the assignments and tests shall be reasonably equivalent to, but not necessarily identical
to, the assignments and tests missed during the absence. Students shall receive full credit for

work satisfactorily completed within a reasonable period of time. (Education Code 48205)
(cf. 5113 - Absences and Excuses)

Students who miss school work because of unexcused absences may be given the opportunity to
make up missed work for full or reduced credit. Teachers shall assign such makeup work as
necessary to ensure academic progress, not as a punitive measure.

Legal Reference:

EDUCATION CODE

8420-8428 21st Century High School After School Safety and Enrichment for Teens
8482-8484.65 After School Education and Safety Program

8484.7-8484.9 21st Century Community Learning Centers

48205 Absences for personal reasons

48913 Completion of work missed by suspended student

48980 Parental notifications

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20

-231-



BP 6154 (c)
7171-7176 21st Century Community Learning Centers

Management Resources:

CSBA PUBLICATIONS

Research-Supported Strategies to Improve the Accuracy and Fairness of Grades, Governance
Brief, July 2016

WEB SITES

CSBA: http://www.csba.org

California State PTA: http://www.capta.org

(2/97 2/99) 12/16

Policy SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

Adopted: March 22,2017 King City, California

~232-



BP 6164.6 (a)
Instruction
Identification And Education Under Section 504

The Governing Board believes that all children, including children with disabilities, should have
an opportunity to learn in a safe and nurturing environment. The Superintendent or designee
shall work to identify children with disabilities who reside within its jurisdiction in order to
ensure that they receive educational and related services required by law.

The Superintendent or designee shall provide identified students with disabilities with a free
appropriate public education, as defined under Section 504 of the federal Rehabilitation Act of
1973. Such students shall receive regular or special education and related aids and services
designed to meet their individual educational needs as adequately as the needs of nondisabled
students are met. (34 CFR 104.33)

(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities)

(cf. 0430 - Comprehensive Local Plan for Special Education)

(cf. 5141.21 - Administering Medication and Monitoring Health Conditions)

(cf. 5141.22 - Infectious Diseases)

(cf. 5141.23 - Asthma Management)

(cf. 5141.24 - Specialized Health Care Services)

(cf. 5141.27 - Food Allergies/Special Dietary Needs)

(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities))
(cf. 6164.4 - Identification and Evaluation of Individuals for Special Education)

In addition, qualified students with disabilities shall be provided an equal opportunity to
participate in programs and activities that are integral components of the district's basic
education program, including, but not limited to, extracurricular athletics, interscholastic sports,
and/or other nonacademic activities. (34 CFR 104.37)

(cf. 6145 - Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities)
(cf. 6145.2 - Athletic Competition)
(cf. 6145.5 - Student Organizations and Equal Access)

The district's local control and accountability plan shall include goals and specific actions

to improve student achievement and other outcomes of students with disabilities. At least
annually, the Superintendent or designee shall assess the district's progress in attaining the goals
established for students with disabilities and shall report these results to the Board. (Education
Code 52052, 52060)

(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan)

In providing services to students with disabilities under Section 504, the Superintendent or
designee shall ensure district compliance with law, including providing the students and their

-233~



BP 6164.6 (b)

parents/guardians with applicable procedural safeguards and required notifications. Any dispute
as to the identification, evaluation, or placement of any student with a disability shall be resolved
in accordance with the processes specified in the "Procedural Safeguards" section of the
accompanying administrative regulation.

Legal Reference:

EDUCATION CODE

49423.5 Specialized physical health care services

52052 Numerically significant student subgroups

52060-52077 Local control and accountability plan

56043 Special education, timelines

56321 Assessment; development of IEP; parental notifications, consent
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5

3051.12 Health and Nursing Services

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20

1232g Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act of 1974

1400-1482 Individuals with Disabilities Education Act

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 29

705 Definitions; Vocational Rehabilitation Act

794 Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Section 504

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42

12101-12213 Americans with Disabilities Act

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 28

35.101-35.190 Nondiscrimination on the basis of disability in state and local government
services

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34

104.1-104.61 Nondiscrimination on the basis of handicap, especially:
104.1 Purpose to effectuate Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973
104.3 Definitions

104.32 Location and notification

104.33 Free appropriate public education

104.34 Educational setting

104.35 Evaluation and placement

104.36 Procedural safeguards

104.37 Nonacademic services

104.7 Responsible employee; grievance procedures

COURT DECISIONS '

Christopher S. v. Stanislaus County Office of Education, (2004) 384 F.3d 1205

Management Resources:

CSBA PUBLICATIONS

Rights of Students with Diabetes Under IDEA and Section 504, Policy Brief, December 2007
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION LEGAL ADVISORIES

Legal Advisory on Rights of Students with Diabetes in California's K-12 Public Schools, August

-234-




BP 6164.6 (c)
2007

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS PUBLICATIONS
Dear Colleague Letter and Resource Guide on Students with ADHD, July 2016

Protecting Students with Disabilities: Frequently Asked Questions About Section 504 and the
Education of Children with Disabilities, October 2015

Dear Colleague Letter, January 2013

Dear Colleague Letter and Questions and Answers on ADA Amendments Act of 2008 for
Students with Disabilities Attending Public Elementary and Secondary Schools, January 2012
Free Appropriate Public Education for Students with Disabilities: Requirements under Section
504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, September 2007

WEB SITES

CSBA: http://www.csba.org

California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov ,

U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights: http:/www2.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr

(11/07 4/13) 12/16

Policy SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

Adopted: March 22,2017 King City, California

-235-



AR 6164.6 (a)

Instruction
Identification And Education Under Section 504

The Superintendent designates the following position as the district's 504 Coordinator to
implement the requirements of Section 504 of the federal Rehabilitation Act of 1973: (34 CFR
104.7)
Director of Alternative Programs for Student Support
800 Broadway, CA 93930
1-385-4461

Definitions

For the purpose of implementing Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, the following .
terms and phrases shall have only the meanings specified below:

Free appropriate public education (FAPE) means the provision of regular or special education
and related aids and services designed to meet the individual educational needs of a student with
disabilities as adequately as the needs of nondisabled students are met, without cost to the

student or his/her parent/guardian, except when a fee is imposed on nondisabled students. (34
CFR 104.33)

(cf. 3260 - Fees and Charges)

Student with a disability means a student who has a physical or mental impairment which
substantially limits one or more major life activities. (34 CFR 104.3)

Physical impairment means any physiological disorder or condition, cosmetic disfigurement, or
anatomical loss affecting one or more of the following body systems: neurological,
musculoskeletal, special sense organs; respiratory, including speech organs; cardiovascular;
reproductive, digestive, genito-urinary; hemic and lymphatic; skin; and endocrine. (34 CFR
104.3)

Mental impairment means any mental or psychological disorder, such as mental retardation,
organic brain syndrome, emotional or mental illness, and specific learning disabilities. (34 CFR
104.3)

Substantially limits major life activities means limiting a person's ability to perform functions, as
compared to most people in the general population, such as caring for himself/herself,
performing manual tasks, seeing, hearing, eating, sleeping, walking, standing, lifting, bending,
speaking, breathing, learning, reading, concentrating, thinking, writing, communicating, and
working. Major life activities also includes major bodily functions such as functions of the
immune system, special sense organs and skin, normal cell growth, digestive, bowel, bladder,
neurological, brain, respiratory, circulatory, cardiovascular, endocrine, hemic, lymphatic,

-236-



AR 6164.6 (b)

musculoskeletal, and reproductive functions, as well as the operation of an individual organ
within a body system. The determination of whether an impairment substantially limits a
student's major life activities shall be made without regard to the ameliorative effects of
mitigating measures other than ordinary eyeglasses or contact lenses. Mitigating measures are
measures that an individual may use to eliminate or reduce the effects of an impairment,
including, but not limited to, medications, medical supplies or equipment, prosthetic devices,
assistive devices, reasonable modifications or auxiliary aids or services, learned behavioral or
adaptive neurological modifications, psychotherapy, behavioral therapy, or physical therapy.
(42 USC 12102; 28 CFR 35.108)

Referral, Identification, and Evaluation
Any action or decision to be taken by the district involving the referral, identification, or
evaluation of a student with disabilities shall be in accordance with the following procedures:

1. Any studeht may be referred by a parent/guardian, teacher, other school emplbyee, student
success team, or community agency for consideration of eligibility as a disabled student under
Section 504. This referral may be made to the principal or 504 Coordinator

2. Upon receipt of any such referral, the principal, 504 Coordinator, or other qualified
individual with expertise in the area of the student's suspected disability shall consider the
referral and determine whether an evaluation is appropriate. This determination shall be based
on a review of the student's school records, including those in academic and nonacademic areas
of the school program; consultation with the student's teacher(s), other professionals, and the
parent/guardian, as appropriate; and analysis of the student's needs.

If it is determined that an evaluation is unnecessary, the principal or 504 Coordinator
shall inform the parents/guardians in writing of this decision and of the procedural safeguards
available, as described in the "Procedural Safeguards" section below.

3. If it is determined that the student needs or is believed to need special education or
related services under Section 504, the district shall conduct an evaluation of the student prior to
his/her initial placement. (34 CFR 104.35)

Prior to conducting an initial evaluation of a student for eligibility under Section 504, the district
shall obtain written parent/guardian consent.

The district's evaluation procedures shall ensure that the tests and other evaluation
materials: (34 CFR 104.35)

a. Have been validated and are administered by trained personnel in conformance with the
instruction provided by the test publishers

b. Are tailored to assess specific areas of educational need and are not merely designed to
provide a single general intelligence quotient

-237-



AR 6164.6 (c)

e. Reflect the student's aptitude or achievement or whatever else the tests purport to
measure rather than his/her impaired sensory, manual, or speaking skills, except where those
skills are the factors that the tests purport to measure

Section 504 Services Plan and Placement
Services and placement decisions for students with disabilities shall be determined as follows:

1. A multi-disciplinary 504 team shall be convened to review the evaluation data in order to
make placement decisions.

The 504 team shall consist of a group of persons knowledgeable about the student, the meaning
of the evaluation data, and the placement options. (34 CFR 104.35)

In interpreting evaluation data and making placement decisions, the team shall draw upon
information from a variety of sources, including aptitude and achievement tests, teacher
recommendations, physical condition, social or cultural background, and adaptive behavior. The
team shall also ensure that information obtained from all such sources is documented and
carefully considered and that the placement decision is made in conformity with 34 CFR 104.34.
(34 CFR 104.35)

2. If, upon evaluation, a student is determined to be eligible for services under Section 504,
the team shall meet to develop a written 504 services plan which shall specify the types of
regular or special education services, accommodations, and supplementary aids and services
necessary to ensure that the student receives FAPE.

The parents/guardians shall be invited to participate in the meeting and shall be given an
opportunity to examine all relevant records.

(cf. 5141.21 - Administering Medication and Monitoring Health Conditions)
(cf. 5141.22 - Infectious Diseases)

(cf. 5141.23 - Asthma Management)

(cf. 5141.24 - Specialized Health Care Services)

(cf. 5141.26 - Tuberculosis Testing)

(cf. 5141.27 - Food Allergies/Special Dietary Needs)

3. If the 504 team determines that no services are necessary for the student, the record of the
team's meeting shall reflect whether or not the student has been identified as a disabled person
under Section 504 and shall state the basis for the determination that no special services are
presently needed. The student's parent/guardian shall be informed in writing of his/her rights
and procedural safeguards, as described in the "Procedural Safeguards" section below.

4. The student shall be placed in the regular educational environment, unless the district can
demonstrate that the education of the student in the regular environment with the use of

~-Z38-



AR 6164.6 (d)

supplementary aids and services cannot be achieved satisfactorily. The student shall be
educated with those who are not disabled to the maximum extent appropriate to his/her
individual needs. (34 CFR 104.34)

3. The district shall complete the identification, evaluation, and placement process within a
reasonable time frame.

6. A copy of the student's Section 504 services plan shall be kept in his/her student record.
The student's teacher(s) and any other staff who provide services to the student shall be informed
of the plan's requirements.

If a student transfers to another school within the district, the principal or designee at the school
from which the student is transferring shall ensure that the principal or designee at the new
school receives a copy of the plan prior to the student's enrollment in the new school.

(cf. 5125 - Student Records)
Review and Reevaluation

The 504 team shall monitor the progress of the student and, at least annually, shall review the
effectiveness of the student's Section 504 services plan to determine whether the services are

appropriate and necessary and whether the student's needs are being met as adequately as the
needs of nondisabled students. In addition, each student with a disability under Section 504

shall be reevaluated at least once every three years.

A reevaluation of the student's needs shall be conducted before any subsequent significant
change in placement. (34 CFR 104.35)

(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process)
(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities))

Procedural Safeguards

The Superintendent or designee shall notify the parents/guardians of students with disabilities of
all actions and decisions by the district regarding the identification, evaluation, or educational
placement of their children. He/she also shall notify the parents/guardians of all the procedural
safeguards available to them if they disagree with the district's action or decision, including an
opportunity to examine all relevant records and an impartial hearing in which they shall have the
right to participate. (34 CFR 104.36)

(cf. 6159.1 - Procedural Safeguards and Complaints for Special Education)

If a parent/guardian disagrees with any district action or decision regarding the identification,
evaluation, or educational placement of his/her child under Section 504, he/she may request a

-239-



AR 6164.6 (e)
Section 504 due process hearing within 30 days of that action or decision.

Prior to requesting a Section 504 due process hearing, the parent/guardian may, at his/her
discretion, but within 30 days of the district's action or decision, request an administrative review
of the action or decision. The Coordinator shall designate an appropriate administrator to meet
with the parent/guardian to attempt to resolve the issue and the administrative review shall be
held within 14 days of receiving the parent/guardian's request. If the parent/guardian is not
satisfied with the resolution of the issue, he/she may request a Section 504 due process hearing.

Section 504 due process hearing shall be conducted in accordance with the following procedures:
1. The parent/guardian shall submit a written request to the Coordinator within 30 days of
receiving the district's decision or, if an administrative review is held, within 14 days of the
completion of the review. The request for the due process hearing shall include:

a. The specific nature of the decision with which he/she disagrees

b. The specific relief he/she seeks

£. Any other information he/she believes is pertinent to resolving the disagreement

2. Within 30 days of receiving the parent/guardian's request, the Superintendent or designee
and 504 Coordinator shall select an impartial hearing officer. This 30-day deadline may be
extended for good cause or by mutual agreement of the parties.

3. Within 45 days of the selection of the hearing officer, the Section 504 due process
hearing shall be conducted and a written decision mailed to all parties. This 45-day deadline
may be extended for good cause or by mutual agreement of the parties.

4. The parties to the hearing shall be afforded the right to:

a. Be accompanied and advised by counsel and by individuals with special knowledge or
training related to the problems of students with disabilities under Section 504

b. Present written and oral evidence
c. Question and cross-examine witnesses
d. Receive written findings by the hearing officer stating the decision and explaining the

reasons for the decision

If desired, either party may seek a review of the hearing officer's decision by a federal court of
competent jurisdiction.

-240-




AR 6164.6 (f)

Notifications

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the district has taken appropriate steps to notify
students and parents/guardians of the district's duty under Section 504. (34 CFR 104.32)

(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications)
(11/07 3/09) 4/13

Regulation =~ SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

Adopted: March 22,2017 King City, California

-241-



AR 6164.6 (a)
Instruction
Identification And Education Under Section 504

The Superintendent designates the following position as the district's 504 Coordinator to
implement the requirements of Section 504 of the federal Rehabilitation Act of 1973: (34 CFR
104.7)
Director of Alternative Programs for Student Support
800 Broadway, CA 93930
1-385-4461

Definitions

For the purpose of implementing Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, the following
terms and phrases shall have only the meanings specified below:

Free appropriate public education (FAPE) means the provision of regular or special education
and related aids and services designed to meet the individual educational needs of a student with
disabilities as adequately as the needs of nondisabled students are met, without cost to the
student or his/her parent/guardian, except when a fee is imposed on nondisabled students. (34
CFR 104.33)

(cf. 3260 - Fees and Charges)

Student with a disability means a student who has a physical or mental impairment which
substantially limits one or more major life activities. (34 CFR 104.3)

Physical impairment means any physiological disorder or condition, cosmetic disfigurement, or
anatomical loss affecting one or more of the following body systems: neurological,;
musculoskeletal, special sense organs; respiratory, including speech organs; cardiovascular;
reproductive, digestive, genito-urinary; hemic and lymphatic; skin; and endocrine. (34 CFR
104.3)

Mental impairment means any mental or psychological disorder, such as mental retardation,
organic brain syndrome, emotional or mental illness, and specific learning disabilities. (34 CFR
104.3)

Substantially limits major life activities means limiting a person's ability to perform functions, as
compared to most people in the general population, such as caring for himself/herself,
performing manual tasks, seeing, hearing, eating, sleeping, walking, standing, lifting, bending,
speaking, breathing, learning, reading, concentrating, thinking, writing, communicating, and
working. Major life activities also includes major bodily functions such as functions of the
immune system, special sense organs and skin, normal cell growth, digestive, bowel, bladder,
neurological, brain, respiratory, circulatory, cardiovascular, endocrine, hemic, lymphatic,

-242-



AR 6164.6 (b)

musculoskeletal, and reproductive functions, as well as the operation of an individual organ
within a body system. The determination of whether an impairment substantially limits a
student's major life activities shall be made without regard to the ameliorative effects of
mitigating measures other than ordinary eyeglasses or contact lenses. Mitigating measures are
measures that an individual may use to eliminate or reduce the effects of an impairment,
including, but not limited to, medications, medical supplies or equipment, prosthetic devices,
assistive devices, reasonable modifications or auxiliary aids or services, learned behavioral or
adaptive neurological modifications, psychotherapy, behavioral therapy, or physical therapy.
(42 USC 12102; 28 CFR 35.108)

Referral, Identification, and Evaluation
Any action or decision to be taken by the district involving the referral, identification, or
evaluation of a student with disabilities shall be in accordance with the following procedures:

1. Any student rhay be referred by a pérent/ guardian, teacher; other school employée, student
success team, or community agency for consideration of eligibility as a disabled student under
Section 504. This referral may be made to the principal or 504 Coordinator

2, Upon receipt of any such referral, the principal, 504 Coordinator, or other qualified
individual with expertise in the area of the student's suspected disability shall consider the
referral and determine whether an evaluation is appropriate. This determination shall be based
on a review of the student's school records, including those in academic and nonacademic areas
of the school program; consultation with the student's teacher(s), other professionals, and the
parent/guardian, as appropriate; and analysis of the student's needs.

If it is determined that an evaluation is unnecessary, the principal or 504 Coordinator
shall inform the parents/guardians in writing of this decision and of the procedural safeguards
available, as described in the "Procedural Safeguards" section below.

3. If it is determined that the student needs or is believed to need special education or
related services under Section 504, the district shall conduct an evaluation of the student prior to
his/her initial placement. (34 CFR 104.35)

Prior to conducting an initial evaluation of a student for eligibility under Section 504, the district
shall obtain written parent/guardian consent.

The district's evaluation procedures shall ensure that the tests and other evaluation
materials: (34 CFR 104.35)

a. Have been validated and are administered by trained personnel in conformance with the
instruction provided by the test publishers

b. Are tailored to assess specific areas of educational need and are not merely designed to
provide a single general intelligence quotient

-243-



AR 6164.6 (c)

c. Reflect the student's aptitude or achievement or whatever else the tests purport to
measure rather than his/her impaired sensory, manual, or speaking skills, except where those
skills are the factors that the tests purport to measure

Section 504 Services Plan and Placement
Services and placement decisions for students with disabilities shall be determined as follows:

1. A multi-disciplinary 504 team shall be convened to review the evaluation data in order to
make placement decisions.

The 504 team shall consist of a group of persons knowledgeable about the student, the meaning
of the evaluation data, and the placement options. (34 CFR 104.35)

In interpreting evaluation data and making placement decisions, the team shall draw upon
information from a variety of sources, including aptitude and achievement tests, teacher
recommendations, physical condition, social or cultural background, and adaptive behavior. The
team shall also ensure that information obtained from all such sources is documented and
carefully considered and that the placement decision is made in conformity with 34 CFR 104.34.
(34 CFR 104.35)

2 If, upon evaluation, a student is determined to be eligible for services under Section 504,
the team shall meet to develop a written 504 services plan which shall specify the types of
regular or special education services, accommodations, and supplementary aids and services
necessary to ensure that the student receives FAPE.

The parents/guardians shall be invited to participate in the meeting and shall be given an
opportunity to examine all relevant records.

(cf. 5141.21 - Administering Medication and Monitoring Health Conditions)
(cf. 5141.22 - Infectious Diseases)

(cf. 5141.23 - Asthma Management)

(cf. 5141.24 - Specialized Health Care Services)

(cf. 5141.26 - Tuberculosis Testing)

(cf. 5141.27 - Food Allergies/Special Dietary Needs)

3. " If'the 504 team determines that no services are necessary for the student, the record of the
team's meeting shall reflect whether or not the student has been identified as a disabled person
under Section 504 and shall state the basis for the determination that no special services are
presently needed. The student's parent/guardian shall be informed in writing of his/her rights
and procedural safeguards, as described in the "Procedural Safeguards" section below.

4. The student shall be placed in the regular educational environment, unless the district can
demonstrate that the education of the student in the regular environment with the use of

-244-



AR 6164.6 (d)

supplementary aids and services cannot be achieved satisfactorily. The student shall be
educated with those who are not disabled to the maximum extent appropriate to his/her
individual needs. (34 CFR 104.34)

5. The district shall complete the identification, evaluation, and placement process within a
reasonable time frame.

6. A copy of the student's Section 504 services plan shall be kept in his/her student record.
The student's teacher(s) and any other staff who provide services to the student shall be informed
of the plan's requirements.

If a student transfers to another school within the district, the principal or designee at the school
from which the student is transferring shall ensure that the principal or designee at the new
. school receives a copy of the plan prior to the student's enrollment in the new school.

(cf. 5125 - Student Records)
Review and Reevaluation

The 504 team shall monitor the progress of the student and, at least annually, shall review the
effectiveness of the student's Section 504 services plan to determine whether the services are

appropriate and necessary and whether the student's needs are being met as adequately as the

needs of nondisabled students. In addition, each student with a disability under Section 504

shall be reevaluated at least once every three years.

A reevaluation of the student's needs shall be conducted before any subsequent significant
change in placement. (34 CFR 104.35)

(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process)
(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities))

Procedural Safeguards

The Superintendent or designee shall notify the parents/guardians of students with disabilities of
all actions and decisions by the district regarding the identification, evaluation, or educational
placement of their children. He/she also shall notify the parents/guardians of all the procedural
safeguards available to them if they disagre¢ with the district's action or decision, including an
opportunity to examine all relevant records and an impartial hearing in which they shall have the
right to participate. (34 CFR 104.36)

(cf. 6159.1 - Procedural Safeguards and Complaints for Special Education)

If a parent/guardian disagrees with any district action or decision regarding the identification,
evaluation, or educational placement of his/her child under Section 504, he/she may request a

-245-



AR 6164.6 ()
Section 504 due process hearing within 30 days of that action or decision.

Prior to requesting a Section 504 due process hearing, the parent/guardian may, at his/her
discretion, but within 30 days of the district's action or decision, request an administrative review
of the action or decision. The Coordinator shall designate an appropriate administrator to meet
with the parent/guardian to attempt to resolve the issue and the administrative review shall be
held within 14 days of receiving the parent/guardian's request. If the parent/ guardian is not
satisfied with the resolution of the issue, he/she may request a Section 504 due process hearing.

Section 504 due process hearing shall be conducted in accordance with the following procedures:
1. The parent/guardian shall submit a written request to the Coordinator within 30 days of
receiving the district's decision or, if an administrative review is held, within 14 days of the
completion of the review. The request for the due process hearing shall include:

a. The specific nature of the decision with which he/she disagrees

b The specific relief he/she seeks

€. Any other information he/she believes is pertinent to resolving the disagreement

2. Within 30 days of receiving the parent/guardian's request, the Superintendent or designee
and 504 Coordinator shall select an impartial hearing officer. This 30-day deadline may be
extended for-good cause or by mutual agreement of the parties.

3. Within 45 days of the selection of the hearing officer, the Section 504 due process
hearing shall be conducted and a written decision mailed to all parties. This 45- day deadline
may be extended for good cause or by mutual agreement of the parties.

4. The parties to the hearing shall be afforded the right to:

a. Be accompanied and advised by counsel and by individuals with special knowledge or
training related to the problems of students with disabilities under Section 504

b. Present written and oral evidence
c. Question and cross-examine witnesses’
d. Receive written findings by the hearing officer stating the decision and explaining the

reasons for the decision

If desired, either party may seek a review of the hearing officer's decision by a federal court of
competent jurisdiction.

-246-



AR 6164.6 (f)

Notifications

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the district has taken appropriate steps to notify
students and parents/guardians of the district's duty under Section 504. (34 CFR 104.32)

(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications)
(11/07 3/09) 4/13

Regulation = SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

Adopted: March 22,2017 King City, California

-247 -



BP 6173 (a)
Instruction
Education For Homeless Children

The Governing Board desires to ensure that homeless students have access to the same free and
appropriate public education provided to other students within the district. The district shall
provide homeless students with access to education and other services necessary for these
students to meet the same challenging academic standards as other students.

Homeless students shall not be segregated into a separate school or program based on their status
as homeless and shall not be stigmatized in any way.

(cf. 3553 - Free and Reduced Price Meals).

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that placement decisions for homeless students are
based on the student's best interest as defined in law and administrative regulation.

(¢f 5111.13 - Residency for Homeless Children)

When there are at least 15 homeless students in the district or a district school, the district's local
control and accountability plan (LCAP) shall include goals and specific actions to improve
student achievement and other outcomes of homeless students. (Education Code 52052, 52060)

(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan)

At least annually, the Superintendent or designee shall report to the Board on outcomes for
homeless students, which may include, but are not limited to, school attendance, student
achievement test results, promotion and retention rates by grade level, graduation rates,
suspension/expulsion rates, and other outcomes related to any goals and specific actions
identified in the LCAP. Based on the evaluation data, the district shall revise its strategies as
needed to better support the education of homeless students.

(cf. 0500 - Accountability)
(cf. 6190 - Evaluation of the Instructional Program)

Transportation

The district shall provide transportation for a homeless student to and from his/her school of
origin when the student is residing within the district and the parent/guardian requests that such
transportation be provided. If the student moves outside of district boundaries, but continues to
attend his/her school of origin within this district, the Superintendent or designee shall consult
with the Superintendent of the district in which the student is now residing to agree upon a
method to apportion the responsibility and costs of the transportation. (42 USC 11432)

(¢f- 3250 - Transportation Fees)
(cf. 3541 - Transportation Routes and Services)

-248-



BP 6173 (b)

Legal Reference:

EDUCATION CODE

2558.2 Use of revenue limits to determine average daily attendance of homeless children
39807.5 Payment of transportation costs by parents

48850 Educational rights; participation in extracurricular activities
48852.5 Notice of educational rights of homeless students

48852.7 Enrollment of homeless students

48915.5 Recommended expulsion, homeless student with disabilities
48918.1 Notice of recommended expulsion

51225.1-51225.3 Graduation requirements

52060-52077 Local control and accountability plan

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5

4600-4687 Uniform complaint procedures

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42

11431-11435 McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act

Management Resources:

CALIFORNIA CHILD WELFARE COUNCIL

Partial Credit Model Policy and Practice Recommendations

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

Homeless Education Dispute Resolution Process, January 30, 2007

NATIONAL CENTER FOR HOMELESS EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS

Homeless Liaison Toolkit, 2013

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION GUIDANCE

Education for Homeless Children and Youth Program, Non-Regulatory Guidance, July 2004
WEB SITES

California Child Welfare Council: http://www.chhs.ca. gov/Pages/CAChildWelfareCouncil.aspx
California Department of Education, Homeless Children and Youth Education:
http://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/hs/cy

National Center for Homeless Education at SERVE: http://www.serve.org/nche

National Law Center on Homelessness and Poverty: http://www.nlchp.org

U.S. Department of Education: http://www.ed.gov/programs/homeless/index.html

(7/02 7/05) 12/15

Policy SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

Adopted: March 22, 2017 King City, California

-249-



AR 6173.3 (a)
Instruction

Education For Juvenile Court School Students

The Superintendent or designee shall collaborate with the County Superintendent of Schools and
the county probation department to facilitate the transition of students from a juvenile court
school into the regular schools of the district. Such collaboration may include, but not be limited
to, the development of data-sharing systems, communication strategies, and other structures that
aid in the enrollment, placement, and continuous educational progress of such students.

Enrollment

A former juvenile court school student transferring into a regular district school shall be
immediately enrolled in the school. The Superintendent or designee shall not deny enrollment to
a student solely on the basis of his/her arrest, adjudication by a juvenile court, formal or informal
supervision by a probation officer, detention in a juvenile facility, enrollment in a juvenile court
school, or other contact with the juvenile justice system. (Education Code 48645.5)

(cf. 5111 - Admission)

(cf. 5111.1 - District Residency)

(cf. 5125 - Student Records)

(cf. 5125.2 - Withholding Grades, Diploma or Transcripts)
(cf. 5132 - Dress and Grooming)

(cf. 5141.26 - Tuberculosis Testing)

(cf. 5141.31 - Immunizations)

Transfer of Coursework and Credits

When a student transfers from a juvenile court school into a district school, the district shall
accept and issue full credit for any coursework that the student has satisfactorily completed at
that school and shall not require the student to retake the course. If the student did not complete
the entire course, he/she shall be issued partial credit for the coursework completed and shall not
be required to retake the portion of the course completed. (Education Code 48645.5, 51225.2)

However, a student may be required to retake the portion of the course completed if the
Superintendent or designee, in consultation with the holder of educational rights for the student,
finds that the student is reasonably able to complete the requirements in time to graduate from
high school. Whenever partial credit is issued to a formeér juvenile court school student in any
particular course, he/she shall be enrolled in the same or equivalent course, if applicable, so that
he/she may continue and complete the entire course. (Education Code 51225.2)

Partial credits shall be awarded on the basis of 0.5 credits for every seven class periods attended

per subject. If the school is on a block schedule, each block schedule class period attended shall
be equal to two regular class periods per subject.

-250-




AR G6173.3 (b)

In no event shall the district prevent a former juvenile court school student from taking or
retaking a course to meet the eligibility requirements for admission to the California State
University or the University of California. (Education Code 51225.2)

(cf. 6143 - Courses of Study)
Graduation

If a student completes district graduation requirements while being detained in a juvenile facility,
the district shall issue the student a diploma from the school the student last attended, unless the
County Superintendent issues the diploma. (Education Code 48645.5)

(cf. 6146.1 - High School Graduation Requirements)

A studerit who transfers to a dfstrict school from a j uVenile court school shall generally be
expected to complete all courses required by Education Code 51225.3 and to fulfill any
additional graduation requirements prescribed by the Governing Board.

However, when a student who has completed his/her second year of high school transfers from a
Juvenile court school into a district school, he/she shall be exempted from all district-adopted
coursework and other district-established graduation requirements, unless the district makes a
finding that the student is reasonably able to complete the additional requirements in time to
graduate from high school by the end of his/her fourth year of high school. Within 30 calendar
days of the student's transfer, the Superintendent or designee shall notify the student, the person
holding the right to make educational decisions for him/her, and the student's social worker or
probation officer of the availability of the exemption and whether the student qualifies for it. If
the Superintendent or designee fails to provide this notification, the student shall be eligible for
the exemption once notified, even if the notification occurs after the termination of the court's
jurisdiction over the student. (Education Code 51225.1)

(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications)

To determine whether a student is in his/her third or fourth year of high school, the district shall
use either the number of credits he/she has earned as of the date of the transfer or the length of
his/her school enrollment, whichever qualifies him/her for the exemption. (Education Code
51225.1)

The Superintendent or designee shall notify any former juvenile court school student who is
granted an exemption and the person holding the right to make educational decisions for him/her
how any requirements that are waived will affect the student's ability to gain admission to a
postsecondary educational institution and shall provide information about transfer opportunities
available through the California Community Colleges. (Education Code 51225.1)

-251 -



AR 6173.3 (¢

The district shall not require or request a former juvenile court school student to transfer schools
in order to qualify for an exemption, and no request for a transfer solely to qualify for an
exemption shall be made by a student, the person holding the right to make educational decisions
for the student, or the student's social worker or probation officer. (Education Code 51225.1)

If a student is exempted from local graduation requirements, the exemption shall continue to
apply after the termination of the court's jurisdiction over the student or if he/she transfers to
another school or school district. (Education Code 51225.1)

If the Superintendent or designee determines that a former juvenile court school student is
reasonably able to complete district graduation requirements within his/her fifth year of high
school, he/she shall: (Education Code 51225.1)

1. Inform the student and, if the student is under 18 years of age, the person holding the
right to make educational decisions for him/her, of the option available to the student to remain
in school for a fifth year to complete the district's graduation requirements and how that will
affect his/her ability to gain admission to a postsecondary educational institution

2. Provide information to the student about transfer opportunities available through the
California Community Colleges

3. Upon agreement with the student or with the person holding the right to make educational
decisions for him/her if he/she is under 18 years of age, permit the student to stay in school for a
fifth year to complete the district's graduation requirements

Notification and Complaints

Information regarding the educational rights of former juvenile court school students, as
specified in Education Code 51225.1 and 51225.2, shall be included in the annual uniform
complaint procedures notification distributed to students, parents/guardians, employees, and
other interested parties pursuant to 5 CCR 4622. (Education Code 51225.1, 51225.2)

Any complaint that the district has not complied with requirements regarding the education of
former juvenile court school students, as specified in Education Code 51225.1 or 51225.2, may
be filed in accordance with the district's procedures in AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint
Procedures.

(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures)

Legal Reference:

EDUCATION CODE

48645-48648 Juvenile court schools

48853.5 Immediate enrollment

51225.1 Exemption from district graduation requirements

- 2b2-



AR 6173.3 (d)

51225.2 Former juvenile court school student defined; acceptance of coursework, credits,
retaking of course

51225.3 High school graduation

60851.5 Suspension of high school exit examination

WELFARE AND INSTITUTIONS CODE

602 Minors violating law; ward of court

880-893 Wards and dependent children; juvenile homes, ranches and camps

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5

4600-4687 Uniform complaint procedures

Management Resources:

CALIFORNIA CHILD WELFARE COUNCIL

Partial Credit Model Policy and Practice Recommendations

YOUTH LAW CENTER PUBLICATIONS . :
Educational Injustice: Barriers to Achievement and Higher Education for Youth in California
Juvenile Court Schools, 2016

WEB SITES

CSBA: http://www.csba.org

California Child Welfare Council: http://www.chhs.ca.gov/Pages/CAChild WelfareCouncil.aspx
California Department of Education, Juvenile Court Schools: http://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/eoljc
Youth Law Center: http://www.ylc.org

12/16

Regulation: SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

Adopted: March 22, 2017 King City, California

-253-



_ BB 9240 (a)
Board Bylaws

Board Training

The Governing Board believes that the Board's ability to effectively and responsibly govern the
district is essential to promoting student achievement, building positive community relations, and
protecting the public interest in district schools. Board members shall be provided sufficient
opportunities for professional development that helps them understand their responsibilities, stay
abreast of new developments in education, and develop boardsmanship skills.

(cf. 9000 - Role of the Board)
(cf. 9005 - Governance Standards)

The Board and/or the Superintendent or designee shall provide an orientation to newly elected or
appointed Board members which includes comprehensive information regarding Board roles,
policies, and procedures and the district's vision and goals, operations, and current challenges.
Throughout their first term, Board members shall continue to participate in additional
educational opportunities designed to assist them in understanding the principles of effective
governance, including, but not limited to, information on school finance and budgets, student
achievement and assessment, labor relations, community relations, program evaluation, open
meeting laws (the Brown Act), conflict of interest laws, and other topics necessary to govern
effectively and in compliance with law.

(cf. 9230 - Orientation)

All Board members are encouraged to continuously participate in advanced training offered by
the California School Boards Association in order to reinforce boardsmanship skills and build
knowledge related to key education issues. Such activities may include online courses, webinars,
webcasts, and in-person attendance at workshops and conferences. In addition, workshops and
consultations may be held within the district on issues that involve the entire governance team.

Funds for board training shall be budgeted annually for the Board and each Board member. In
selecting appropriate activities, the Board and/or individual Board members shall consider
activities that are aligned with the district's vision and goals and the needs of the Board or
individual member to obtain specific knowledge and skills. The Board shall annually develop a
board training calendar in order to schedule and track board training activities and to schedule
opportunities for Board members to report on the activities in which they participated.

(cf. 0000 - Vision)

(cf. 0200 - Goals for the School District)

(cf. 3100 - Budget)

(cf. 9250 - Remuneration, Reimbursement, and Other Benefits)

Board members may attend a conference or similar public gathering with other Board members
and/or with the Superintendent or designee in order to develop common knowledge and

-254-



BB 9240 (b)

understanding of an issue or engage in team-building exercises. In such cases, a majority of the
Board members shall not discuss among themselves, other than as part of the scheduled program,
business of a specified nature that is within the district's jurisdiction, so as not to violate the
Brown Act open meeting laws pursuant to Government Code 54952.2.

(cf. 9320 - Meetings and Notices)

Board members shall report to the Board, orally or in writing, on the board training activities
they attend, for the purpose of sharing the acquired knowledge or skills with the full Board and
enlarging the benefit of the activity to the Board and district.

Legal Reference:

GOVERNMENT CODE

54950-54963 The Ralph M. Brown Act, especially:
54952.2 Meeting

Management Resources:

CSBA PUBLICATIONS

Professional Governance Standards for School Boards

WEB SITES

CSBA: http://www.csba.org

California County Boards of Education: http://www.theccbe.org
National School Boards Association: http://www.nsba.org

(12/87 6/94) 12/16

Bylaw: SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

Adopted: March 22, 2017 King City, California

-255-



BB 9323 (a)
Bylaws of the Board

MEETING CONDUCT
Meeting Procedures

All Governing Board meetings shall begin on time and shall be guided by an agenda prepared in
accordance with Board bylaws and posted and distributed in accordance the Ralph M. Brown Act
(open meeting requirements) and other applicable laws.

(cf. 9322 - Agenda/Meeting Materials)

The Board president shall conduct Board meetings in accordance with Board bylaws and procedures
that enable the Board to efficiently consider issues and carry out the will of the majority.

(cf- 9121 - President)

The Board believes that late night meetings deter public participation, can affect the Board's
decision-making ability, and can be a burden to staff. Regular Board meetings shall be adjourned at
10:30 p.m. unless extended to a specific time determined by a majority of the Board. The meeting
shall be extended no more than once and subsequently may be adjourned to a later date.

(cf- 9320 - Meetings and Notices)
Quorum

A majority of the number of filled positions on the Board constitutes a quorum (Education Code
35164)

(cf- 9323.2 - Actions by the Board)
Abstentions

The Board believes that when no conflict of interest requires abstention, its members have a duty to
vote on issues before them. When a member abstains, his/her abstention shall be not be counted for
purposes of determining whether a majority of the membership of the Board has taken action.

(cf- 9270 - Conflict of Interest)
Public Participation

Members of the public are encouraged to attend Board meetings and to address the Board
concerning any item on the agenda or within the Board's jurisdiction. So as not to inhibit public
participation, persons attending Board meetings shall not be requested to sign in, complete a
questionnaire, or otherwise provide their name or other information as a condition of attending the
meeting.

~£26-



BB 9323 (b)

In order to conduct district business in an orderly and efficiént manner, the Board requires that
public presentations to the Board comply with the following procedures:

1. The Board shall give members of the public an opportunity to address the Board on any item of
interest to the public that is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board, either before or
during the Board's consideration of the item. (Education Code 35 145.5, Government Code 54954.3)

2. At a time so designated on the agenda at a regular meeting, members of the public may bring
before the Board, matters that are not listed on the agenda. The Board shall take no action or
discussion on any item not appearing on the posted agenda, except as authorized by law. (Education
Code 35145.5, Government Code 54954.2)

3. Without taking action, Board members or district staff members may briefly respond to statements
made or questions posed by the public about items not appearing on the agenda. Additionally, on
their own initiative or in response to questions posed by the public, a Board or staff member may ask
a question for clarification, make a brief announcement, or make a brief report on histherown
activities. (Government Code 54954.2)

Furthermore, the Board or a Board member may provide a reference to staff or other resources for
factual information, ask staff to report back to the Board at a subsequent meeting concerning any
matter, or take action directing staff to place a matter of business on a future agenda. (Government
Code 54954.2)

4. The Board need not allow the public to speak on any item that has already been considered by a
committee composed exclusively of Board members at a public meeting where the public had the
opportunity to address the committee on that item. However, if the Board determines that the item
has been substantially changed since the committee heard the item, the Board shall provide an
opportunity for the public to speak. (Government Code 54954.3)

(cf- 9130 - Board Committees)

5. A person wishing to be heard by the Board shall first be recognized by the president and shall then
proceed to comment as briefly as the subject permits.

Individual speakers shall be allowed three minutes to address the Board on each agenda or non-
agenda item. The Board shall limit the total time for public input on each item to 20 minutes. With
Board consent, the Board president may increase or decrease the time allowed for public
presentation, depending on the topic and the number of persons wishing to be heard. The president
may take a poll of speakers for or against a particular issue and may ask that additional persons
speak only if they have something new to add.

In order to ensure that non-English speakers receive the same opportunity to directly address the
Board, any member of the public who utilizes a translator shall be provided at least twice the allotted
time to address the Board, unless simultaneous translation equipment is used to allow the Board to
hear the translated public testimony simultaneously. (Government Code 54954.3)

-257-



BB 9323 (c)
6. The Board president may rule on the appropriateness of a topic.

a. If the topic would be more suitably addressed at a later time, the president may indicate the time
and place when it should be presented.

b. The Board shall not prohibit public criticism of its policies, procedures, programs, services, acts,
or omissions. (Government Code 54954.3)

& The Board shall not prohibit public criticism of district employees. However, whenever a
member of the public initiates specific complaints or charges against an individual employee, the
Board president shall inform the complainant of the appropriate complaint procedure.

(cf. 1312.1 - Complaints Concerning District Employees)
(cf. 9321 - Closed Session Purposes and Agendas)

Whenever a member of the public initiates specific complaints or charges against an employee, the
Board president shall inform the complainant that in order to protect the employee's right to adequate
notice before a hearing of such complaints and charges, and also to preserve the ability of the Board
to legally consider the complaints or charges in any subsequent evaluation of the employee, it is the
policy of the Board to hear such complaints or charges in closed session unless otherwise requested
by the employee pursuant to Government Code 54957. The Board president shall also encourage the
complainant to file a complaint using the appropriate district complaint procedure.

(¢f- 1312.1 - Complaints Concerning District Employees)

(cf- 9321 - Closed Session Purposes and A gendas)

7. The Board president shall not permit any disturbance or willful interruption of Board
meetings. Persistent disruption by an individual or group or any conduct or statements that threaten
the safety of any person(s) at the meeting shall be grounds for the president to terminate the privilege
of addressing the Board.

The Board may remove disruptive individuals and order the room cleared if necessary. In this case,
members of the media not participating in the disturbance shall be allowed to remain, and
individuals not participating in such disturbances may be allowed to remain at the discretion of the
Board. When the room is ordered cleared due to a disturbance, further Board proceedings shall
concern only matters appearing on the agenda. (Government Code 54957.9)

When such disruptive conduct occurs, the Superintendent or designee shall contact local law
enforcement.

Recording by the Public

Members of the public may record an open Board meeting using an audio or video recorder, still or
motion picture camera, cell phone, or other device, provided that the noise, illumination, or
obstruction of view does not persistently disrupt the meeting. The Superintendent or designee may
designate locations from which members of the public may make such recordings without causing a
distraction.

-258-



BB 9323 (d)
(cf. 9324 - Board Minutes and Recordings)

If the Board finds that noise, illumination, or obstruction of view related to these activities would
persistently disrupt the proceedings, these activities shall be discontinued or restricted as determined
by the Board. (Government Code 54953.5, 54953.6)

Legal Reference:

EDUCATION CODE

5095 Powers of remaining board members and new appointees

32210 Willful disturbance of public school or meeting a misdemeanor
35010 Prescription and enforcement of rules

35145.5 Agenda; public participation; regulations

35163 Official actions, minutes and journal

35164 Vote requirements

35165 Effect of vacancies upon majority and unanimous votes by seven member board
CODE OF CIVIL PROCEDURE ' '
527.8 Workplace Violence Safety Act

GOVERNMENT CODE

54953.3 Prohibition against conditions for attending a board meeting
54953.5 Audio or video recording of proceedings

54953.6 Broadcasting of proceedings

54954.2 Agenda; posting; action on other matters

54954.3 Opportunity for public to address legislative body; regulations
54957 Closed sessions

54957.9 Disorderly conduct of general public during meeting; clearing of room
PENAL CODE

403 Disruption of assembly or meeting

COURT DECISIONS

City of San Jose v. Garbett, (2010) 190 Cal.App.4th 526

Norse v. City of Santa Cruz, (9th Cir. 2010) 629 F3d 966

McMahon v. Albany Unified School District, (2002) 104 Cal.App.4th 1275
Rubin v. City of Burbank, (2002) 101 Cal.App.4th 1194

Baca v. Moreno Valley Unified School District, (1996) 936 F.Supp. 719
ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS

90 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 47 (2007)

76 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 281 (1993)

66 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 336 (1983)

63 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 215 (1980)

61 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 243, 253 (1978)

59 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 532 (1976)

55 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 26 (1972)

Management Resources:

CSBA PUBLICATIONS

Call to Order: A Blueprint for Great Board Meetings, 2015

The Brown Act: School Boards and Open Meeting Laws, rev. 2014
ATTORNEY GENERAL PUBLICATIONS

=259



BB 9323 (e)

The Brown Act: Open Meetings for Local Legislative Bodies, 2003
WEB SITES

CSBA: http://www.csba.org
California Attorney General's Office: https://oag.ca.gov

(10/97 11/06) 12/16

Bylaws: SOUTH MONTEREY COUNTY JOINT UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

Adopted: March 22,2017 King City, California

-260-



